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R E L A T I O N S H I P  

H&R Block tax professional Lisa Russell helped Kelly Charleston, a 

single mother from Glendale, Arizona, with her taxes. She suggested

that Kelly, above left, make larger contributions to her 401(k) plan

and ask about employer-sponsored education savings accounts.

R E S U L T  

Kelly has a better long-term perspective on her financial goals. She’s

now looking for a home, due in part to information that Lisa gave

her. Lisa referred Kelly to an H&R Block Mortgage loan specialist 

familiar with programs for minorities buying a first home. 



H&R Block serves clients through businesses operating under three brands:

H&R Block, RSM McGladrey and Option One. These businesses share a 

long-term focus on building strong client relationships based on service 

excellence. H&R Block, the leading brand in consumer tax services, offers

clients a choice of in-office and digital tax solutions. H&R Block Financial

Advisors helps clients plan for the future, while H&R Block Mortgage helps

them with home finance products. RSM McGladrey offers a unique array of tax,

accounting and business services for middle-market companies. Option One

Mortgage is a leader in wholesale non-prime lending and servicing. 
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Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts and number of shareholders

Year Ended April 30 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

FOR  THE  YEAR :
Total revenues $ 4,205,570 $ 3,746,457 $ 3,285,701 $ 2,965,405 $ 2,420,923
Net income before change in accounting principle $ 704,256 $ 580,064 $ 434,405 $ 276,748 $ 251,895
Net income $ 697,897 $ 580,064 $ 434,405 $ 281,162 $ 251,895

AT  YEAR  END:
Total assets $ 5,380,026 $ 4,767,308 $ 4,384,640 $ 4,166,044 $ 5,700,146
Long-term debt $ 545,811 $ 822,302 $ 868,387 $ 870,974 $ 872,396
Stockholders’ equity $ 1,897,009 $ 1,663,709 $ 1,369,420 $ 1,173,741 $ 1,218,589
Shares outstanding 173,096 179,601 181,126 183,608 196,070
Number of shareholders 29,430 30,716 31,094 31,523 33,557

MEASUREMENTS :
Basic earnings per share:

Net income before change in accounting principle $ 3.98 $         3.23 $         2.38 $         1.50 $         1.28
Net income $ 3.94 $         3.23 $         2.38 $         1.53 $         1.28

Diluted earnings per share:
Net income before change in accounting principle $ 3.90 $         3.15 $         2.31 $         1.49 $         1.27
Net income $ 3.86 $         3.15 $         2.31 $         1.52 $         1.27

Other per share data:
Cash dividends declared $ .78 $ .70 $  .63 $    .59 $   .54
Net book value $ 10.96 $         9.26 $         7.56 $         6.39 $         6.22

Return on total revenues 16.7% 15.5% 13.2% 9.3% 10.4%
Return on stockholders’ equity 43.6% 45.2% 41.1% 29.7% 25.1%
Return on average assets 13.8% 13.5% 9.8% 5.3% 7.0%
Working capital ratio 1.20 1.38 1.17 1.13 1.09
Debt to total capital ratio 30.2% 34.5% 40.4% 44.0% 50.1%
Total equity to total assets .35 .35 .31 .28 .21
Dividend yield 1.7% 1.8% 1.6% 2.1% 2.6%
Dividend payout ratio 19.8% 21.7% 26.6% 38.5% 41.9%

SELECTED F INANC IAL H IGHL IGHTS
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L E T T E R  T O  S H A R E H O L D E R S

We’ve completed another successful year 

at H&R Block, again delivering strong results

as measured by traditional financial indicators:

n Revenues, up 12 percent

n Earnings, up 20 percent

n Earnings per share, up 23 percent

n Return on equity, 44 percent.

Over the past five years, we’ve sustained our

growth through changing economic climates.

We’ve demonstrated the resilience of our mix of

businesses, operating under the umbrella of

our three brands – H&R Block, Option One and

RSM McGladrey.

For the past two years, Option One led our

growth with outstanding results in revenues

and pretax earnings. In 2004, our growth was

boosted by revenue and earnings improvements

in our H&R Block and RSM McGladrey 

branded businesses. And at the end of the year,

our financial condition was as solid as we’ve

seen it in many years.

Once again, we generated significant free

cash flow, which we deployed in ways that 

we believe will create long-term value for 

shareholders. 

We invested in the future growth of our 

businesses when those investments made

sense in terms of our strategic objectives. And

we returned excess cash to shareholders in the

form of dividends and share repurchases.

This year we increased our dividend for the

seventh consecutive year, returning $138 million

to shareholders. We repurchased 10.6 million

shares for $520 million and decreased the

number of shares outstanding from 180 million

to 173 million.

We face complex challenges as we work to

achieve our long-term objectives. But looking

forward, we remain committed to our core 

principles for creating shareholder value: 

n We operate our businesses to create 

unique value for the clients we serve.

n We work to continuously make our 

services more relevant and valuable 

to clients.

n We deploy capital efficiently, increasing

earnings while minimizing required capital.

n We work to increase long-term shareholder

value through the prudent use of our capital.

We operate our businesses with a strategic

focus on the long term: long-term relationships

with clients, long-term growth in the markets

we serve, and long-term returns for shareholders.

Mark A. Ernst, H&R Block chairman, president and chief executive officer, speaks to U.S. tax managers.H&R Block’s corporate offices in Kansas City, Missouri.
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In practice, this approach means we’ll be

patient when we believe that selected businesses

need time to build a solid foundation for their

future growth. And at times, we’ll continue to

make investments that we believe will create

the greatest value over the long term, even

when it appears that the stock market might

reward other alternatives more quickly. 

H&R BLOCK BRANDED BUSINESSES

The U.S. tax business had a year of notable

successes, along with some disappointments.

Among our achievements, we integrated the

operations of 459 former franchise offices into

our network of company-owned tax offices. 

This complex transition, executed very well, 

contributed to the segment’s 13 percent

increase in revenues and 15 percent increase in

pretax earnings. 

Our digital tax solutions business reached

critical scale and is now making a meaningful

contribution to pretax earnings. We gained

share in the online tax solutions market. And

we enjoyed our fastest growth in a niche that

we believe has great potential – the blended

channel that enables clients to do their taxes

with a software or online solution and have the

option of getting help from a tax professional to

answer questions or check their work.

We have a healthy lead in this emerging

market. H&R Block is the only company that

offers a range of digital tax solutions and also

has its own nationwide network of tax offices.

Over time, we believe a large number of 

taxpayers will prefer a blended digital tax 

solution to a purely digital alternative. 

We saw improved client satisfaction in our

tax offices, which indicates we’re making

Susan Arkuszewski, a tax professional in Brockton, Massachusetts, reads to elementary school children. She was 
the recipient of a Henry W. Bloch award for outstanding community service in 2003.

Tim Witt and Justin Bergen, senior securities analysts, 
Investment Management department at H&R Block
Financial Advisors headquarters in Detroit.

Franz Warren, northeast regional director, 
H&R Block Financial Advisors, Greenwich,
Connecticut.
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progress in increasing the value that clients

place on our services. More than 215,000 IRA

accounts were funded, up more than 70 percent

from last year. And nearly half of H&R Block

Mortgage clients got their mortgage referral

from our other businesses. These trends

demonstrate our progress in increasing the 

relevance of our tax-related advice and 

associated financial products and services.

Without question, our biggest disappointment

was the decline in the number of retail tax

clients, a 3 percent decrease. The U.S. tax 

business faces both short-term and long-term

challenges. 

We’ve known for some time that our success

in this market would attract competitors who

believe they can duplicate at least part of what

we offer our clients, notably speed of refund.

Refund speed is of primary importance to early-

season filers, who will take their business to a

competitor if there is too long a wait in one of

our offices or if a competitor’s office is more 

conveniently located.

Our review indicates there are many locations

that present growth opportunities – areas

where we have many taxpayers who fit our 

profile of likely clients, but not enough office

capacity to give them the convenience of 

quicker service or a closer location. 

In 2005, we plan to open as many as 600 new

offices in these areas. (We began the expansion

process in 2004, when we opened offices in

about 550 Wal-Mart stores.) 

In the next several years, we’ll continue to

add offices where research indicates we have an

opportunity to grow. In the short term, we’ll also

continue to refine our marketing strategies and

tactics to attract more new clients to our offices.

The long-term challenge, however, is more

fundamental: to more sharply differentiate the

unique value of the H&R Block brand, building

on our current strengths while also providing

consumers a more compelling value proposition

beyond mere convenience. 

While speed of refund is becoming a 

more widely available service in the industry,

we’re unique in our ability to empower clients to

make decisions to improve their tax and 

financial lives. 

We’re the only major company that 

provides a combination of tax services and

financial information and advice, along with

related products and services that enable clients

to work toward their financial objectives. 

We’re also unique in our ability to give

clients the flexibility to choose from a wide

variety of tax solutions: meeting with a tax 

“We’re unique in our ability to empower clients to make

decisions to improve their tax and financial lives.”

Sherry Kindred, a tax client, with her daughter
Ashleigh at the H&R Block tax office, 
St. Charles, Missouri.

Chan Singh, H&R Block tax professional, 
Toronto, Ontario, Canada.

Jeffery W. Yabuki, executive vice president and chief operating officer, meets with H&R Block associates.



“Since 1999, we’ve made significant progress with our

long-term mission to help clients achieve their financial

objectives by serving as their tax and financial partner.”
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professional in an office, using software or

online tax products at home, or blending these

alternatives.

Since 1999, we’ve made significant progress

with our long-term mission to help clients

achieve their financial objectives by serving as

their tax and financial partner. In 2004, for the

first time we began highlighting the advantage

of this expanded relationship in our marketing

programs. We believe this competitive 

advantage will become more compelling in

years to come as we continue to deepen our

capability of delivering on that brand promise.

H&R Block Financial Advisors has been a

business on the mend for several years. We saw

progress in 2004 with a 14 percent increase in

revenues and a $64 million improvement to the

bottom line. The organization has modified its

business model to match the realities of 

today’s market by shifting our focus from 

transaction-based client relationships to more

advice-based relationships. We plan to have

several thousand tax professional/financial 

advisor partnerships in 2005. And we now have

more than 1,000 tax professionals enrolled in 

a program to become licensed referral tax 

professionals. 

I am confident we have a strong foundation

in place to grow this business in scale and move

us forward with H&R Block’s mission to

become our clients’ tax and financial partner.

Our international tax business contributed a

solid year, with important growth initiatives

that were internally funded. While this 

business is fairly small, we see opportunities

that bode well for future growth, such as in the

United Kingdom, where we are moving forward

with a relationship with Barclays Bank.

Option One headquarters, Irvine, California.Chris Garnica, server systems team lead, with Colleen Bell, third-party team lead, and Sid Ellegard, senior 
network engineer, in the network operations center at Option One Mortgage, Irvine, California.
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OPTION ONE MORTGAGE

We’ve believed for some time that our 

mortgage business is a unique enterprise that

has more potential for creating long-term

shareholder value than many investors realize.

In 2004, our mortgage segment’s financial

results once again showed what an outstanding

business we have in Option One, our non-prime

mortgage operation. And our retail mortgage

business – H&R Block Mortgage – also 

demonstrated excellent results and strong

growth potential.

Loan origination increased 40 percent. The

segment recorded $678 million in pretax 

earnings. We increased revenues 10 percent

even though the year-over-year comparison

was challenging.

(In 2004, we sold previously securitized 

residual interests that boosted revenues and

earnings by about $131 million, compared with

similar transactions this year that yielded

about $41 million.)

We manage Option One to optimize cash flow

and minimize risk to the balance sheet. Our

approach generates substantial free cash flows

that we convert to shareholder value in the

form of dividends and share repurchases,

which enables us to accrue significant value for

long-term shareholders. 

If you’re an investor with relatively short-term

goals, this strategy may not be as satisfying 

as a spinoff or a sale of this business would be.

But the principles that guide our approach to

the business keep our focus on creating 

long-term value.

Next year brings significant challenges. The

expected increase in interest rates will test the

quality of our organization and the ability of 

Karen Carpenter, an underwriter with Option One, 
Bellevue, Washington.

Bob Dubrish, president and chief executive officer, 
Option One Mortgage.

Marcus S. Alexander, an underwriter with Option 
One, participates in a company-sponsored community 
service project, building a house for Habitat for
Humanity in Redmond, Washington.

H&R Block Mortgage headquarters, Forest
Hills, California.
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our associates to respond with agility to the

rate changes. We expect somewhat lower 

margins as a result of the interest rate volatility

that makes bond investors more cautious.

Margins may improve after rates stabilize at a

higher level. 

Despite these likely fluctuations in the inter-

est rate environment, we expect continued

g r o w t h

in mortgage originations. This expected growth

is driven primarily by factors that we can 

manage, such as the number of our account

executives, our closing ratios and other 

controllable drivers.

Our long-term focus on building a strong

organization with solid client relationships will

be critical to our success. This challenging 

transitional period – when the wind is in 

our face, not at our back – will enable us to 

demonstrate this business’s enduring value.

RSM MCGLADREY BUSINESS SERVICES

The business services market for mid-sized

companies is an opportunity where we believe

we can build a business that creates unique,

long-term value for clients and shareholders.

Our investments in this area fit in well with

our mission and strategy. 

In 2004, we got a glimpse of the potential this

business promises. Revenues grew 15 percent.

Pretax earnings improved by $33 million. This

progress was driven by good results in our core

tax and accounting business, along with solid

growth in our capital markets operation.

RSM McGladrey’s most significant 

accomplishment of 2004 was further establishing

a solid foundation that will sustain future

growth. This business is now positioned to

make a more meaningful contribution to 

RSM McGladrey Business Services offices, Minneapolis.Brandon Maves, general services manager, 
RSM McGladrey, Minneapolis.
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H&R Block’s earnings.

VALUES FOR LONG-TERM RELATIONSHIPS

Certainly all of our businesses – in whatever

stage of development – face distinct challenges

in the coming year. There’s no doubt these 

challenges will engage our full attention. 

But as we look forward to H&R Block’s 

fiftieth anniversary in 2005, we remember

what we have learned from the company’s 

history: that the H&R Block brand is a 

long-term asset of considerable value, and that

creating value for each of our brands is a long-

term process.

There isn’t a line item on our balance sheet

that fully captures the value of the H&R Block

brand, although by some estimates, it’s the

company’s single most valuable asset. This

value accrued after long years of working with

clients to win their trust and maintain their

confidence in our ability to serve them well. 

Our experience in establishing H&R Block as

the leading brand in consumer tax services

teaches us that nothing is more important than

the trust we engender when we help our clients

achieve a financial goal.

This lesson stands behind our commitment

to the core principles that shape our long-term

approach to the business, as well as our 

commitment to our mission and corporate 

values that govern the company’s relationships

with clients, shareholders and its associates –

the values of client focus, integrity, excellence,

respect for the individual and teamwork.

These values are a common denominator

between and among the company’s three

brands. They guide our commitment to expand

the relevance of the H&R Block brand and

increase the value of the Option One and 

RSM McGladrey brands.

In a time of transition and change, we realize

the importance of remaining true to our values

and principles. We’ve consistently taken this

approach to the business. We are confident

about our prospects for the coming year 

and appreciate your continued support.

“Our experience in establishing H&R Block as the leading

brand in consumer tax services taught us that nothing is

more important than the trust we engender when we

help our clients achieve a financial goal.”

Sec t i on  Head –  H&R  BLOCK
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Keith Searcy, service center associate, Kansas City, Missouri.H&R Block tax office, Chicago.

Jaana Gray, H&R Block tax professional, 
Sydney, Australia.

Mark A. Ernst 
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer



R E L A T I O N S H I P  

H&R Block tax professional John Irwin helped Ray Swiczkowski, Jr.,

above, get the best possible tax refund. John explained the 

advantages of starting an IRA as well as the costs and benefits of 

various settlement products, including refund anticipation loans. 

R E S U L T  

When Ray lost his job, he was able to live on cash from a refund

anticipation loan. After he found a new job, he began to plan his

future and opened an account with H&R Block Financial Advisors Inc.

He intends to finance a home with a loan from H&R Block Mortgage.
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With the help of H&R Block tax professional

John Irwin, Ray got a substantial tax refund in

2003. The 38-year-old factory worker and father

of two hoped to do as well in 2004. When he

learned John had moved from the H&R Block

office in Holland, Ohio, to another office in

nearby Maumee, Ray tracked him down.

During the tax preparation interview, Ray

lamented that he hadn’t done much planning

for his retirement. John recommended an IRA

and introduced Ray to Randy Smith, a senior

tax professional who was highly knowledgeable

about IRAs. 

The IRA enabled Ray to begin saving for the

future while pushing him into a lower tax

bracket. And that increased his refund by 

several hundred dollars.

Ray also mentioned that he hoped to buy 

his first home from his mother, who was 

selling the house she’d lived in for 30 years. 

But his financial history wasn’t perfect and 

three lenders had already rejected his 

loan application. 

With Ray’s permission, John called 

H&R Block Mortgage, and within minutes,

loan specialist Dustin Ekey of the Cleveland

office was on the phone, explaining possible

choices to Ray and setting the groundwork for

a mortgage application.

When the tax return was completed, John

summarized the ways in which Ray could get

his refund, including an explanation of the costs

and benefits of various settlement products.

Ray chose a refund anticipation loan. 

“I knew it wasn’t the cheapest thing to do,

but I wanted the money right away, and the

way things turned out, it was a blessing,” Ray

said. He was about to be laid off from his job. 

“It was one of the best days of my life,

because of everything I was able to do with

H&R Block, especially getting a mortgage 

application going,” he said. “But it was also one

of the worst.” 

Fortunately, Ray had access to his refund

money until he got a new job. Then Edie

Schwamberger, of H&R Block Financial

Advisors, helped Ray open an account to allow

for financial planning in the future. Ray is also

looking to close in the near future on an 

H&R Block mortgage. 

“The professionals at H&R Block were great.

It’s such a pleasure dealing with people who

have your best interests at heart,” he said. 

“No doubt, I’ll return to H&R Block because 

no other tax service company is able to give 

financial advice and help me out in so 

many ways.” 

T A X  A N D  F I N A N C I A L  R E L A T I O N S H I P S

H&R Block helped Ray Swiczkowski, Jr. get the best possible tax refund. But Ray’s

trusted tax professional didn’t stop there. He also encouraged Ray to get started on

his long-term goals – home ownership and retirement – by introducing him to 

H&R Block Mortgage and H&R Block Financial Advisors.
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A year ago, 26-year-old Jenniffer Scheideler

was like many other dedicated single moms –

working full-time at a temporary agency near

her home in New Milford, Pennsylvania, and

scrambling to raise two boys, ages six and 

16 months.

Today, Jenniffer is confined to a wheelchair,

with vision problems and stroke-like symptoms

caused by multiple sclerosis. 

She spent a month in the hospital after the

sudden onset of the disease last August and

hasn’t worked since. She goes to rehab twice a

week, but spends most of her time at home

because it’s difficult to get out. 

That’s why Jenniffer was so intrigued when

she received an e-mail in January promoting

H&R Block’s online tax preparation solution.

She liked the option of doing her taxes online

while also having the opportunity to speak with

a tax professional if she had a question or 

needed to be reassured that she was handling a

complex tax issue in the right way. So one night

after the kids were asleep and the apartment

was quiet, she decided to give it a try.

“I got into it and thought, ‘Wow, this is so

convenient!’” she said. “It was great.’’

Jenniffer’s tax return was more complex

than usual this year due to her illness and

related unemployment and disability issues.

When a couple of questions cropped up during

the online session, Jenniffer decided to leave a

voice message at the nearby H&R Block office

in Montrose, Pennsylvania.

“It was close to midnight when I called and

much to my amazement, a tax professional

picked up the phone,’’ Jenniffer said. 

After talking with two tax professionals,

Jacqueline Hunter and Sherry Frederici,

Jenniffer completed her return and e-mailed it

to Sherry for review. “She called back a little

while later, and we were finished,’’ Jenniffer

said. “She told me my refund amounts and

when the money would be in my account.

Really, the whole thing was amazing.’’

As an H&R Block tax professional, Sherry

says she was glad to lend a hand. “That’s what

we’re here for. It felt good to help her, because

it’s hard for her to get out.’’ As for the late

hours, Sherry said that’s par for the course 

during the tax season.

Jenniffer was so enthusiastic about the 

simplicity and convenience of H&R Block’s

online tax solution that she says she’ll be using

it again next year. “The convenience was 

phenomenal. I could put the kids to bed and sit

down with my cup of tea and just do my taxes

without any interruptions,’’ she said.

“I was doing my tax return online when a couple of questions cropped up. It was close

to midnight when I called to leave a voice message at a nearby H&R Block office. Much

to my amazement, a tax professional picked up the phone.” Jenniffer Scheideler, digital tax solutions client



R E S U L T  

Jenniffer completed her taxes at home, with telephone assistance

from an H&R Block tax professional in a nearby office. She enjoyed

the comfort and convenience of home, combined with the help she

needed from a tax professional.

R E L A T I O N S H I P  

Jenniffer Scheideler’s health problems made it difficult for her to

visit a tax office, but she wanted a tax professional to answer her

questions and assure her that she was handling a complex issue 

correctly. H&R Block offered a service alternative that met her needs. 

 



R E L A T I O N S H I P  

Sharon and Marion Goodman, above, rely upon tax professional

Lillian Callaway to help them find all the credits and deductions that

the law allows. They also appreciate Lillian’s advice, which gave them

alternatives to consider for funding their children’s higher education.

R E S U L T  

The Goodmans are confident that their tax and financial lives are in

good order, without having to take a great deal of time out from

the many activities that bring meaning to their lives and enhance

the quality of life in their community.
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Sharon and Marion Goodman have a full life

and a busy schedule, with many activities and

commitments involving family, community and

a wide variety of organizations. 

They rely on their trusted H&R Block tax

professional, Lillian Callaway, not only for 

help preparing their tax return, but also for

information and suggestions that are relevant

to the Goodman’s major personal and financial

objectives. This advice enables them to plan

more effectively for their long-term goals.

Marion retired last year from a position with

the State of Florida Department of Children

and Families. He’s a deacon at his church and

engaged in other volunteer activities.

Sharon is the former mayor of their home-

town of Arcadia, Florida, where she now serves

as city councilor and school principal. She

directs an early childhood preschool with more

than 100 students. And after school, she’s also

a dedicated student, working many hours to

achieve an important personal objective: a 

doctorate in religious studies. She was ordained

as a minister last year.

In addition to these demanding commitments,

Sharon also volunteers tirelessly for her church.

“My life is pretty complex, and taxes just

aren’t my area of expertise,’’ she said. “I need

someone I can trust and who I know will get the

job done right. That’s why I chose H&R Block. 

“I have many education exemptions and

travel expenses that need to be taken into

account. And Lillian really knows the letter of

the law. 

“She’s extremely competent and dedicated.

We couldn’t be happier with the work she’s done

and the assistance she’s given us,’’ Sharon said.

Lillian’s relationship with the Goodmans is

based on her insight into the couple’s tax 

situation. But she also has some insight into

their life situation. And she’s given them some

alternatives to consider that enabled them to

plan more effectively for family goals, such as

financing a college education for their children.

For example, Lillian directed the Goodmans

to available scholarships and financial aid for

their son, Marion III, now a junior in high

school. Their daughter, Shari, is a sophomore

at Florida Gulf Coast University.

It’s all part of the job for Lillian, a six-year

tax professional with H&R Block. 

“I don’t know that there’s any particular

thing I’ve done that’s been exceptional,’’ she

said. “I just try to be attentive to the client’s

needs. I enjoy working with people. And when

I’m able to help someone like I’ve helped the

Goodmans, it’s very satisfying.’’

“My life is pretty complex, and taxes just aren’t my area of expertise. I need 

someone I can trust and who I know will get the job done right. That’s why I chose

H&R Block.” Sharon Goodman, H&R Block client



R E L A T I O N S H I P  

In 1992, Delia Meier, above, and the family-owned Iowa 80 Group

turned to RSM McGladrey for help in drafting a three-year strategic

plan. RSM McGladrey specializes in assisting privately held middle-

market companies to become more efficient and grow.

R E S U L T  

Working with professionals from RSM McGladrey, the Iowa 80 Group

has achieved its goal of transforming the family business into the

world’s largest truck stop, with a sister company that operates the

industry’s largest chain of truck weighing stations. 



Re su l t s  f o r  M id - S i z ed  Bu s i ne s s –  H&R  BLOCK

17 –

In 1965, a visionary named Bill Moon 

purchased a small truck stop along a newly

constructed stretch of Interstate 80 in Walcott,

Iowa. In time, the family business grew to

become one of the largest independent truck

stops in the U.S.

But after Bill passed away in 1992, wife

Carolyn, son Will and daughter Delia realized

the time had come to plan the next stage in the

company’s future.

“My father always had a strategic plan, but it

was in his head,” said Delia Meier, a senior vice

president with the business. “We needed to

make a transition to the second generation, to

a different kind of company.”

At the recommendation of a friend, the Iowa

80 Group’s management team turned to 

RSM McGladrey Business Services Inc. for 

professional advice. 

RSM McGladrey business consultants helped

develop a plan to make Iowa 80 the largest

truck stop in the world and continue the 

expansion of one of the company’s subsidiaries,

a truck weighing business called CAT 

Scale Company.

Today, the Iowa 80 truck stop in Walcott is

indeed the largest in the world. The 200-acre

facility, which handles about 5,000 visitors 

a day, boasts four restaurants, gift and 

convenience stores, a truck service facility,

shower facilities, a barbershop, dental services

and an 80-seat movie theater. 

The company also owns Truckomat truck

washing facilities at 10 locations nationwide.

The CAT Scale business, meanwhile, has

expanded from 250 locations in 1992 to 900

locations and is now the largest truck scale

chain in the industry. 

Delia said the discipline enforced by

RSM McGladrey’s rigorous strategic planning

process played a key role in Iowa 80 Group’s

success. Each long-term plan assesses a range

of competitive issues, analyzes the state of the

business, and defines three-year objectives.

“The strategic plans have really been great

tools for us. They’ve forced us to focus on what

we need to do and give us the guidelines to 

follow through and do it,” she said. “We’ve had

many opportunities to get involved in different

things. But if it didn’t fit our strategic plan, we

didn’t do it. I don’t think that either the CAT

Scale or truck stop businesses would be where

they are today if we’d gotten sidetracked.”

Iowa 80 will celebrate its 40th year with the

opening of a truck museum, including a building

that will house Bill Moon’s collection of more

than 100 vintage trucks. 

RSM McGladrey consultants worked closely with the managers of a family-owned

company to help them plan for a second generation of growth and achieve 

ambitious goals: to build the world’s largest truck stop and expand their presence in

the transportation industry. 

R E S U L T S  F O R  M I D - S I Z E D  B U S I N E S S

 



R E L A T I O N S H I P  

Option One Mortgage Corp. provides wholesale, non-prime loans 

to Remington Mortgage in Southfield, Michigan. Remington

Mortgage offers the loans on a retail basis to homeowners in the

southern Michigan region.

R E S U L T  

Option One understands that every loan applicant is a unique 

individual and evaluates every loan application on an individual

basis. This approach gives a competitive edge to Josh Stern, above,

enabling Remington Mortgage to provide loans to more applicants.
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Josh Stern, president of Southfield,

Michigan-based Remington Mortgage Inc., sees

a world of difference between Option One and

other mortgage companies. For the past six

years, he’s worked closely with Option One to

provide non-prime loans to homeowners across

southern Michigan.

Unlike many non-prime lenders, Option One

takes the time to thoroughly examine a loan

opportunity and fully understand a borrower’s

circumstances before making a decision on the

loan application, Josh said. That’s much different

from many other mortgage companies, which

rely solely on computer programs to generate

approvals or denials.

Option One’s willingness to look deeper

means the company is much more likely to

make a challenging loan work, he said. That

flexibility and commitment, coupled with

Option One’s portfolio of products, translates

into satisfied – and appreciative – customers. 

“Option One is a very progressive company

that has a great feel for what customers need,’’

Josh said. “They’re a non-prime lender that

seems truly interested in making sure the loan

makes sense for the customer.’’

According to Josh, Option One account 

executive Connie Werner exemplifies another

quality that sets Option One apart: the 

dedication of its people.

“It’s truly a partnership with Connie,’’ he

said. “She’s in here several times a week to

review and discuss the loans in our pipeline

and to see what she can do to get them funded.

She works extremely hard.’’

Connie has even played a role in Remington’s

marketing efforts. Last year, she suggested that

Remington expand its direct mail campaign to

target new territories. The campaign’s result?

New customers and more mortgages.

In addition to the close working relationship

with Connie, Josh regularly communicates with

other Option One managers. In contrast, most

other lenders send only their account reps. 

Connie says mutual trust and respect are at

the heart of the relationship between

Remington and Option One.

“I’m fortunate to work with someone who

believes in the approach that Option One takes

to the non-prime market,’’ she said. “Together, 

I think we’ve been able to do a lot of good for a

lot of people. I’m really proud of what we’ve

accomplished.’’ Josh agrees.

“Option One gives you respect and really

goes the extra mile, both for the customers and

the broker. We enjoy doing business with them.

They make our jobs a lot easier,’’ Josh said.

Option One Mortgage builds partnerships with mortgage brokers, helping companies

like Remington Mortgage become more competitive with a wide range of mortgage

products and an approach to customer service that enables them to meet the needs

of more loan applicants.

R E L A T I O N S H I P S  L E A D  T O  R E S U L T S
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Denver-based Preferred Mortgage Group Inc.

was established a decade ago as an alternative

for those who have faced credit difficulties. In

Option One Mortgage Corp., they found a 

perfect partner. 

“We’ve had a fantastic relationship for four

years,’’ said Eric Garza, Preferred Mortgage’s

chief executive officer. “Option One takes a very

commonsense approach to underwriting, and

with the flexibility and the risk management

tools they have, they’re able to offer a wide

range of programs that are sustainable in 

the marketplace.’’

Option One’s willingness to approach each

and every loan and borrower on an individual

basis complements Preferred Mortgage’s 

strategy, which includes providing clients with

financial counseling to help them get back on

their feet. 

In fact, Preferred Mortgage is so enthusiastic

about Option One’s client-centered approach

that the company gives Option One a first look

at every non-prime loan application that comes

through the door, Eric said. Preferred Mortgage

did almost $300 million in loans last year.

“Rather than sending 50 loans to 50 different

companies, we’d rather send them all to Option

One because of the relationship we have with

them,’’ he said. This relationship “helps us in

pricing and it helps us build momentum.

“We have a very good working knowledge of

Option One’s programs, and that gives us a

competitive edge in the market when we sit

down with the clients. It’s truly a partnership.’’

Because Option One is able to respond quickly

to mortgage applications with a top-notch team

of loan professionals, doing business with the

company is a breeze, Eric said. 

Option One runs “at a higher speed than a

lot of companies in terms of getting back to

their clients,’’ he said. This responsiveness is

coupled with a determination to make a 

decision that also serves the customer’s best

interest: Option One is willing to pass on a loan

opportunity when it may not be to the borrower’s

advantage to take on more debt.

“I respect that, because that’s something a

lot of companies won’t do.’’

Richard Brown, Option One’s Denver branch

manager, said he meets frequently with Eric to

find new ways to serve customers better.

“We’ve been able to help them grow their

business by being flexible on some matters,’’

Richard said. “And we’ve benefited because the

vast majority of the non-prime loans that they

get are automatically funneled to us. So it truly

is the best kind of partnership.’’

“Since 9-11, many people have needed to draw on the equity in their homes to get

them through difficult times. Option One has done a great job meeting that need.”

Eric Garza, chief executive officer, Preferred Mortgage

 



R E S U L T  

Eric Garza, above, is able to be more successful, thanks to the ease

of doing business with Option One, which offers a variety of 

wholesale mortgage products and services that meet the needs of a

broad range of loan applicants.

R E L A T I O N S H I P  

Preferred Mortgage Group takes a customer service-intensive

approach to the mortgage business, helping homeowners who have

faced credit difficulties. Option One’s focus on client service enables

Preferred Mortgage to give its customers the attention they need.
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Amounts in thousands, except offices and number of loans originated

Year Ended April 30 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

NUMBER  OF  TAX  OFF ICES :
By country:

United States 9,851 9,301 9,015 9,072 9,210
Canada 891 910 955 944 966
Australia 378 362 362 350 349
Other 65 62 59 84 89

11,185 10,635 10,391 10,450 10,614
By type:

Company-owned 6,942 6,045 5,794 5,827 5,952
Franchised 4,243 4,590 4,597 4,623 4,662

11,185 10,635 10,391 10,450 10,614

RE TURN AND FEE  D ATA : (1) 

Tax preparation fees:
United States $ 2,119,772 $ 1,947,727 $ 1,863,204 $ 1,661,270 $ 1,498,297
Canada 81,495 82,006 77,985 76,101 73,193
Australia 55,303 52,892 49,660 47,021 39,463

Electronic filing fees in the United States $ 126,212 $ 196,813 $ 214,751 $ 212,018 $ 205,538
Discounted return fees in Canada $ 27,322 $ 28,369 $ 27,024 $ 28,616 $ 29,020
Number of returns prepared:

United States 15,903 16,331 16,899 16,442 16,276
Regular returns in Canada 1,182 1,191 1,196 1,220 1,258
Discounted returns in Canada 552 531 525 532 547
Australia 519 505 489 486 455
Overseas 72 76 69 54 29

18,228 18,634 19,178 18,734 18,565
Clients served:

United States (2) 16,015 16,517 17,148 16,883 16,933
Canada 1,734 1,722 1,721 1,752 1,805
Australia 519 505 489 486 455
Overseas 72 76 69 54 29

18,340 18,820 19,427 19,175 19,222

MORTGAGE  DATA:
Number of loans originated:

Wholesale 130,356 93,497 74,208 49,805 47,390
Retail 24,983 22,344 15,125 10,254 6,702
Total 155,339 115,841 89,333 60,059 54,092

Volume of loans originated:
Wholesale $ 20,150,992 $ 13,659,243 $ 9,457,331 $ 5,289,715 $ 4,903,459
Retail 3,105,021 2,918,378 1,995,842 1,235,186 794,202
Total $ 23,256,013 $ 16,577,621 $ 11,453,173 $ 6,524,901 $ 5,697,661

Loan sales $ 23,234,935 $ 17,225,774 $ 11,440,190 $ 6,009,544 $ 6,080,162

(1) Combined return and fee data from company-owned and franchised offices, in local currency.
(2) Includes returns filed electronically.

F IVE  YEARS  IN  REV IEW
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F IVE  YEARS  IN  REV IEW

Amounts in thousands

Year Ended April 30 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

U.S .  TAX  OPERAT ION S :
Revenues:

Tax preparation and related fees $ 1,519,238 $ 1,378,733 $ 1,364,673 $ 1,237,622 $ 1,108,666
Royalties 173,754 163,519 154,780 140,146 128,870
RAL waiver/participation fees 174,923 139,116 159,965 133,710 89,761
Other 225,702 180,313 151,856 111,521 70,490

2,093,617 1,861,681 1,831,274 1,622,999 1,397,787
Expenses:

Compensation and benefits 662,326 577,545 598,355 561,962 517,968
Occupancy and equipment 235,469 207,366 186,998 172,572 173,656
Depreciation and amortization 54,879 39,456 39,871 55,346 55,814
Bad debt 44,155 17,358 38,235 55,391 32,540 
Other 469,196 472,878 434,347 343,661 297,817

1,466,025 1,314,603 1,297,806 1,188,932 1,077,795
Pretax income $ 627,592 $ 547,078 $ 533,468 $ 434,067 $ 319,992

MORTGAGE  OPERAT ION S :
Revenues:

Gain on sales of mortgage assets $  726,718 $ 740,343 $ 424,401 $ 228,494 $ 184,533
Loan servicing 211,710 168,351 147,162 110,222 62,510
Interest income 340,798 253,880 127,860 57,517 102,156
Other 2,173 2,837 2,910 3,274 1,156

1,281,399 1,165,411 702,333 399,507 350,355 
Expenses:

Compensation and benefits 297,441 242,143 171,084 123,874 98,899
Variable servicing and processing 107,538 74,774 86,146 34,620 20,338
Occupancy and equipment 49,231 42,626 30,700 23,683 15,462
Other 148,928 111,918 75,015 79,338 127,082

603,138 471,461 362,945 261,515 261,781
Pretax income $  678,261 $ 693,950 $ 339,388 $ 137,992 $ 88,574

BUS INESS  SERV ICES :
Revenues:

Accounting, tax and consulting $  372,423 $ 352,102 $ 365,194 $ 356,258 $ 311,388
Capital markets 73,857 35,626 10,756  - 1 - 1
Other 52,930 46,412 40,976 29,910 8,535

499,210 434,140 416,926 386,168 319,923

Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 336,073 292,291 265,960 240,660 182,592
Occupancy and equipment 25,277 24,428 19,957 24,792 28,444
Other 118,539 131,539 108,293 104,763 91,776

479,889 448,258 394,210 370,215 302,812
Pretax income (loss) $     19,321 $ (14,118) $ 22,716 $ 15,953 $ 17,111
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Amounts in thousands

Year Ended April 30 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

INVESTMENT  SERV ICES :
Revenues:

Production revenue $ 161,330 $ 130,780 $ 149,667 $ 229,558 $ 172,053
Margin interest income 33,408 37,300 67,849 211,128 83,955
Other 34,732 32,714 33,169 31,739 12,368

229,470 200,794 250,685 472,425 268,376
Expenses:

Interest 1,358 4,830 14,744 106,265 41,563
Commissions 53,851 41,748 46,490 68,099 55,327
Compensation and benefits 97,151 92,978 93,314 93,592 43,842
Occupancy and equipment 29,054 30,323 29,106 28,804 12,551
Other 112,502 159,207 121,893 166,367 73,867

293,916 329,086 305,547 463,127 227,150
Pretax income (loss) $  (64,446) $ (128,292) $ (54,862) $ 9,298 $ 41,226

INTERNAT IONAL  TAX  OPERAT IONS :
Revenues $ 97,560 $ 85,082 $ 78,710 $ 78,469 $ 79,814
Expenses 86,463 74,618 71,617 72,445 74,945
Pretax income $   11,097 $ 10,464 $ 7,093 $ 6,024 $ 4,869

CORPORATE  OPERAT ION S :
Revenues $       4,314 $ (651) $ 5,773 $ 5,837 $ 4,668
Expenses 116,673 123,790 139,833 142,070 74,014
Investment income, net 4,691 2,436 3,097 5,977 9,840
Pretax loss $ (107,668) $ (122,005) $ (130,963) $ (130,256) $ (59,506)

CONSOL IDATED:
Revenues $ 4,205,570 $ 3,746,457 $ 3,285,701 $ 2,965,405 $ 2,420,923
Expenses 3,046,104 2,761,816 2,571,958 2,498,304 2,018,497
Investment income, net 4,691 2,436 3,097 5,977 9,840
Pretax income $ 1,164,157 $ 987,077 $ 716,840 $ 473,078 $ 412,266



4400 Main Street
Kansas City, Missouri 64111

N O T I C E  O F  A N N U A L  M E E T I N G  O F  S H A R E H O L D E R S
t o  b e  h e l d  S e p t e m b e r  8 ,  2 0 0 4

The annual meeting of shareholders of H&R Block, Inc., a Missouri corporation (the ‘‘Company’’), will be held in the H&R Block City
Stage Theater at Union Station located at 30 West Pershing (corner of Pershing and Main Street), Kansas City, Missouri, on Wednesday,
September 8, 2004 at 9:00 a.m., Kansas City time (CDT). Shareholders attending the meeting are asked to park in The Yards Parking Lot
located on the west side of Union Station. The meeting will be held for the following purposes:

1. The election of three Class III directors (nominees are Donna R. Ecton, Louis W. Smith and Rayford Wilkins, Jr.) to serve until the
2007 annual meeting and until their successors are elected and qualified (See page 3);

2. The approval of an amendment to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of
Common Stock, without par value, from 500,000,000 to 800,000,000 (See page 10);

3. The approval of an amendment to the 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors to extend the Plan for five years, such that it
will terminate, unless further extended, on December 5, 2009 (See page 12);

4. The approval of amendments to the 1999 Stock Option Plan for Seasonal Employees to (i) extend the Plan for two years, such that
it will terminate, unless further extended, on December 31, 2006 and (ii) increase the aggregate number of authorized shares of
Common Stock issuable under the Plan from 20,000,000 to 23,000,000 (See page 14);

5. The ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent accountants for the fiscal year ending April 30,
2005 (See page 17); and

6. The transaction of any other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments thereof.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on June 30, 2004 as the record date for determining shareholders of the
Company entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors
BRET G. WILSON
Secretary

Kansas City, Missouri
July 23, 2004

A proxy for the annual meeting is enclosed. Even though you may plan to attend the meeting in person, please promptly
vote by telephone or Internet or by completing the enclosed proxy card and returning it in the enclosed postage-paid
envelope. Telephone and Internet voting information is provided on the proxy card. If you are present at the meeting and
desire to vote in person, your vote by proxy will not be used.
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H & R  B L O C K ,  I N C .
P R O X Y  S TAT E M E N T
F O R  T H E  2 0 0 4  A N N U A L  M E E T I N G  O F  S H A R E H O L D E R S

Q U E S T I O N S  A N D  A N S W E R S  A B O U T  T H E  A N N U A L  M E E T I N G  A N D  V O T I N G
The Board of Directors (the ‘‘Board of Directors’’ or ‘‘Board’’) of H&R Block, Inc., a Missouri corporation (‘‘H&R Block’’ or the
‘‘Company’’) solicits the enclosed proxy for use at the annual meeting of shareholders of the Company to be held at 9:00 a.m. (CDT), on
Wednesday, September 8, 2004 in the H&R Block City Stage Theater at Union Station located at 30 West Pershing (corner of Pershing
and Main Street), Kansas City, Missouri. This Proxy Statement contains information about the matters to be voted on at the meeting and
the voting process, as well as information about our directors and executive officers.

W h y  d i d  I  re c e i v e  t h i s  p ro x y  s t a t e m e n t ? W h o  i s  e n t i t l e d  t o  v o t e ?
The Board of Directors is soliciting your proxy to vote at the You may vote if you owned H&R Block Common Stock as of the
annual meeting because you are a shareholder at the close of close of business on June 30, 2004, the record date, including
business on June 30, 2004, the record date, and are entitled to restricted shares of Common Stock issued on or before June 30,
vote at the meeting. This proxy statement, the proxy card and 2004 under the Company’s Long-Term Executive Compensation
Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal year ended April 30, Plans that allow the recipients the right to vote such shares while
2004 are being made available to shareholders beginning on or subject to restrictions. Each share of H&R Block common stock
about July 23, 2004. This proxy statement summarizes the is entitled to one vote.
information you need to know to vote at the annual meeting. You
do not need to attend the annual meeting to vote your shares. W h a t  a re  t h e  v o t i n g  re c o m m e n d a t i o n s  o f  t h e

B o a rd  o f  D i re c t o r s ?
Our Board of Directors recommends that you vote your sharesW h a t  a m  I  v o t i n g  o n ?
‘‘FOR’’ each of the Class III nominees named in this proxyYou are voting on five (5) items of business at the annual meeting:
standing for election to the Board, ‘‘FOR’’ the amendment to� The election of three Class III directors (nominees are
Company’s Articles of Incorporation, ‘‘FOR’’ the amendment toDonna R. Ecton, Louis W. Smith and Rayford Wilkins, Jr.) to
the 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors, ‘‘FOR’’ theserve until the 2007 annual meeting and until their
amendments to the 1999 Stock Option Plan for Seasonalsuccessors are elected and qualified;
Employees and ‘‘FOR’’ the ratification of KPMG LLP as our� The approval of an amendment to the Company’s Articles of
independent accountants.Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of

Common Stock, without par value, from 500,000,000 to
800,000,000; H o w  d o  I  v o t e ?

� The approval of an amendment to the 1989 Stock Option If you are a shareholder of record, there are four ways to vote:
Plan for Outside Directors to extend the Plan for five years, � by toll-free telephone at 1-800-435-6710 and following the
such that it will terminate, unless further extended, on instructions on the proxy card;
December 5, 2009; � by Internet at http://www.eproxy.com/hrb/ and following the

� The approval of amendments to the 1999 Stock Option Plan instructions on the proxy card;
for Seasonal Employees to (i) extend the Plan for two years, � by completing and mailing your proxy card; and
such that it will terminate, unless further extended, on � by written ballot at the annual meeting.
December 31, 2006, and (ii) increase the aggregate number If you vote by Internet or telephone, your vote must be
of authorized shares of Common Stock issuable under the received before 11:59 p.m. (ET) on the day before the annual
Plan from 20,000,000 to 23,000,000; and meeting. Your shares will be voted as you indicate. If you do not

� The ratification of KPMG LLP as independent accountants indicate your voting preferences the appointed proxies (Mark A.
for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2005. Ernst, G. Kenneth Baum and Henry F. Frigon) will vote your

1 –
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shares FOR items 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5. If your shares are owned in joint W h a t  a re  b ro k e r  n o n - v o t e s  a n d  h o w  a re  t h e y
names, all joint owners must vote by the same method and if joint c o u n t e d ?
owners vote by mail, all of the joint owners must sign the proxy Broker non-votes occur when nominees, such as brokers and
card. banks holding shares on behalf of the beneficial owners, are

If your shares are held in a brokerage account in your broker’s prohibited from exercising discretionary voting authority for
name (this is called street name), you should follow the voting beneficial owners who have not provided voting instructions at
directions provided by your broker or nominee. You may least ten days before the annual meeting date. If no instructions
complete and mail a voting instruction card to your broker or are given within that time frame, the nominees may vote those
nominee or, in most cases, submit voting instructions by shares on matters deemed ‘‘routine’’ by the New York Stock
telephone or the Internet to your broker or nominee. If you Exchange. On non-routine matters, nominees cannot vote
provide specific voting instructions by mail, telephone, or the without instructions from the beneficial owner, resulting in so-
Internet, your broker or nominee should vote your shares as you called ‘‘broker non-votes.’’ Broker non-votes are not counted for
have directed. the purposes of determining the number of shares present in

We will pass out written ballots to anyone who wants to vote at person or represented by proxy on a voting matter.
the annual meeting. If you hold your shares in street name, you
must request a legal proxy from your broker or other nominee to C a n  I  c h a n g e  m y  v o t e ?
vote at the annual meeting. It is important that your shares are If you are a shareholder of record, you may revoke your proxy at
represented at the meeting, whether or not you attend the any time before it is voted at the annual meeting by:
meeting in person. To make sure that your shares are � sending written notice of revocation to the Secretary of the
represented, we urge you to vote as soon as possible by Internet, Company;
telephone or mail by following the instructions in this proxy � submitting a new, proper proxy by telephone, Internet or
statement. paper ballot, after the date of the revoked proxy; or

� attending the annual meeting and voting in person.
W h a t  i s  t h e  d i f f e re n c e  b e t w e e n  h o l d i n g If you are a beneficial owner of shares, you may submit new
s h a re s  a s  a  s h a re h o l d e r  o f  re c o rd  a n d  a s  a voting instructions by contacting your broker, bank or other
b e n e f i c i a l  o w n e r ? nominee. You may also vote in person at the annual meeting if
If your shares are registered directly in your name with the you obtain legal proxy as described above.
Company’s transfer agent, Mellon Investor Services LLC (‘‘Mellon
Investor Services’’) you are considered, with respect to those

W h a t  v o t e  i s  re q u i re d  t o  a p p ro v e  e a c hshares, the ‘‘shareholder of record.’’ The proxy statement, annual
p ro p o s a l ?report and proxy card have been made available directly to
For Item 2 on the form of proxy, the affirmative vote of a majorityshareholders of record by the Company.
of the outstanding shares entitled to vote at the annual meeting ofIf your shares are held in a stock brokerage account or by a
shareholders is necessary for approval of the amendment to thebank or other nominee, you are considered the ‘‘beneficial
Company’s Articles of Incorporation to increase the number ofowner’’ of shares held in street name. The proxy materials should
authorized shares. For all other matters to be voted upon at thebe forwarded to you by your broker, bank or nominee who is
annual meeting, the affirmative vote of a majority of sharesconsidered, with respect to those shares, the shareholder of
present in person or represented by proxy, and entitled to vote onrecord. As the beneficial holder, you have the right to direct your
the matter, is necessary for election or approval.broker, bank or nominee how to vote and are also invited to

attend the annual meeting. However, since you are not a
shareholder of record, you may not vote these shares in person at D o  s h a re h o l d e r s  h a v e  c u m u l a t i v e  v o t i n g
the annual meeting unless you bring with you a legal proxy from r i g h t s  w i t h  re s p e c t  t o  t h e  e l e c t i o n  o f
the shareholder of record. Your broker or nominee has enclosed a d i re c t o r s ?
voting instruction card for you to use in directing the broker, No. Shareholders do not have cumulative voting rights with
bank or other nominee how to vote your shares. respect to the election of directors.
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W h a t  c o n s t i t u t e s  a  q u o r u m ? box on your proxy card or by following the instructions if you
As of the record date 167,770,961 shares of the Company’s vote by telephone or the Internet. If you choose to access future
Common Stock were issued and outstanding. A majority of the proxy statements and annual reports on the Internet, you will
outstanding shares entitled to vote at the annual meeting, receive a proxy card in the mail next year with instructions
represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum. containing the Internet address for those materials. Your choice
Shares represented by a proxy that directs that the shares abstain will remain in effect until you advise us otherwise.
from voting or that a vote be withheld on a matter shall be If you are a beneficial owner, please refer to the information
deemed to be represented at the annual meeting for quorum provided by your broker, bank or nominee for instructions on
purposes. Shares represented by proxy as to which no voting how to access future proxy statements and annual reports on the
instructions are given as to matters to be voted upon shall be Internet.
deemed to be represented at the annual meeting for quorum
purposes. H o w  m u c h  d i d  t h i s  p ro x y  s o l i c i t a t i o n  c o s t ?

The Company has retained Mellon Investor Services to assist in
W h o  w i l l  c o u n t  t h e  v o t e ? the solicitation of proxies on behalf of the Board of Directors for
Representatives of Mellon Investor Services, the Company’s a fee of $11,500 plus reimbursement of reasonable expenses.
transfer agent, will count the vote and serve as the inspectors of Further, brokers and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries
election. will be requested to forward soliciting material to their principals

and the Company will reimburse them for the expense of
W h a t  d o e s  i t  m e a n  i f  I  re c e i v e  m o re  t h a n  o n e doing so.
p ro x y  c a rd ?
It means your shares are held in more than one account. You

W h a t  i s  t h e  C o m p a n y ’ s  We b  a d d re s s ?should vote all your proxy shares. To provide better shareholder
The Company’s home page is www.hrblock.com. The Company’sservice, we encourage you to have all your shares registered in
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission arethe same name and address. You may do this by contacting our
available free of charge via a link from this address.transfer agent, Mellon Investor Services, at 1-888-213-0964.

C a n  I  a c c e s s  t h e  p ro x y  s t a t e m e n t  a n d  a n n u a l W i l l  a n y  o t h e r  m a t t e r s  b e  v o t e d  o n ?
re p o r t  o n  t h e  I n t e r n e t  i n s t e a d  o f  re c e i v i n g As of the date of this proxy statement, our management knows of
p a p e r  c o p i e s ? no other matter that will be presented for consideration at the
This proxy statement and 2004 Annual Report are located on the meeting other than those matters discussed in this proxy
Company’s website. Most shareholders can access future proxy statement. If any other matters properly come before the meeting
statements and annual reports on the Internet instead of and call for a vote of the shareholders, validly executed proxies in
receiving paper copies in the mail. If you are a shareholder of the enclosed form will be voted in accordance with the
record, you can choose this option by marking the appropriate recommendation of the Board of Directors.

I T E M  1  O N  F O R M  O F  P R O X Y

E l e c t i o n  o f  D i re c t o r s
The Company’s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws provide that as nearly as possible, of one-third of the members of the Board.
the number of directors to constitute the Board of Directors shall There are currently three Class I directors, three Class II
not be fewer than nine nor more than 15, with the exact number directors and three Class III directors. The term of office of one
to be fixed by a resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of a class of directors expires at each annual meeting of shareholders.
majority of the entire Board. Effective September 11, 2002 the Directors elected at an annual meeting of shareholders to
Board fixed the number of directors to constitute the Board of succeed those whose terms expire are identified as being of the
Directors at nine. The Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws same class as those directors they succeed and are elected for a
provide that the Board of Directors shall be divided into three term to expire at the third annual meeting of shareholders after
classes: Class I, Class II and Class III, with each class to consist, their election.
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At the annual meeting of shareholders to be held on The nominees for election as Class III directors, the current
September 8, 2004, three Class III directors will be elected to hold Class I directors and the current Class II directors are listed
office for three years and until their successors are elected and below. Thomas M. Bloch, Mark A. Ernst and Tom D. Seip serve as
shall have qualified. Donna R. Ecton, Louis W. Smith and Rayford Class I directors with terms scheduled to expire at the annual
Wilkins, Jr. have been nominated for election as Class III meeting of shareholders in 2005. G. Kenneth Baum, Henry F.
directors of the Company. The shares voted by proxy will be Frigon and Roger W. Hale serve as Class II directors with terms
voted for the election of all three nominees unless authority to do scheduled to expire at the annual meeting of shareholders in
so is withheld as provided in the form of proxy. All nominees are 2006. The number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned
currently Class III directors of the Company and have consented by each director is listed under the heading ‘‘Security Ownership
to serve if elected. The Board of Directors has no reason to of Directors and Management’’ on page 30 of this proxy
believe that any of the nominees will be unable to accept the statement.
office of director. If such contingency should arise, it is the
intention of the proxies to vote for such person or persons as the
Board of Directors may recommend.

Nominees for election at this meeting to a term expiring in 2007 (Class III Directors):

Donna R. Ecton
Director since 1993
Age 57

Ms. Ecton is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of EEI Inc., a management consulting
firm located in Paradise Valley, Arizona that she founded in 1998. Prior to forming EEI Inc., Ms. Ecton
served as the Chief Operating Officer of PETsMART, Inc., Phoenix, Arizona, a retail supplier of products
and services for pets, from December 1996 until May 1998 and on the Board of Directors of PETsMART,
Inc., from 1994 until 1998. Prior to PETsMART, Ms. Ecton was Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Business Mail Express, Inc., a privately held expedited printing and mailing business, and
before that she served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Van Houten North America, Inc. and
Andes Candies, Inc., a privately held international confectionary company. Ms. Ecton’s previous business
experience covers a variety of management positions with companies such as Nutri/System, Inc.,
Campbell Soup Company, Citibank, N.A. and Chemical Bank. She received a Bachelor of Arts in
Economics from Wellesley College (Durant Scholar) in 1969 and a Master of Business Administration
from the Harvard Graduate School of Business Administration in 1971. Ms. Ecton is Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors and a member of the Executive and Governance and Nominating
Committees.

Louis W. Smith
Director since 1998
Age 61

Mr. Smith served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Ewing Marion Kauffman Foundation, a
charitable foundation, Kansas City, Missouri, from July 1997 until April 2002 and President and Chief
Operating Officer of the Ewing Marion Kauffman Foundation from June 1995 to July 1997. He also served
on the Board of Directors of such Foundation from January 1991 through September 2002. Prior to joining
the Foundation, Mr. Smith had a 29-year career with AlliedSignal, Inc. (now Honeywell International), a
diversified technology and manufacturing company, retiring as President of the Kansas City Division in
1995. Mr. Smith also serves on the Board of Directors of Sprint Corporation. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in electrical engineering from the University of Missouri-Rolla and a Master of Business Administration
from the Executive Fellows Program at Rockhurst University. Mr. Smith has served since September 2002
as the Presiding Director of the Board of Directors, is Chairman of the Executive and Compensation
Committees of the Board of Directors and a member of the Audit Committee.

Rayford Wilkins, Jr.
Director since 2000
Age 52

Mr. Wilkins has served as Group President, SBC Communications, Inc., San Antonio, Texas, a diversified
telecommunications company and wireless communications provider, since May 2002. Previously he
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Pacific Bell Telephone Company and Nevada Bell
Telephone Company, San Ramon, California, from September 2000 until April 2002 and as President of
SBC Business Communications Services, San Antonio, Texas, from October 1999 through September 2000.
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Mr. Wilkins served as President and CEO of Southwestern Bell Telephone Co., San Antonio, Texas, from
July 1999 until October 1999. He served as President of Business Communications Services, Pacific Bell
Telephone Company, San Ramon, California, from August 1997 until July 1999. He also served as Vice
President and General Manager of Southwestern Bell Telephone Co., Kansas City, Missouri, from August
1993 until August 1997. He earned a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the University of
Texas in Austin in 1974 and attended the University of Pittsburgh’s Management Program for Executives
in October 1987. Mr. Wilkins is a member of the Audit and Compensation Committees of the Board of
Directors.

Continuing directors whose terms expire in 2005 (Class I Directors):

Thomas M. Bloch
Director since 2000
Age 50

Mr. Bloch has served since January 2000 as Vice Chairman of the University Academy, an urban college
preparatory charter school that he co-founded in Kansas City, Missouri and as an educator with the
University Academy since August 2000. He also served as President of the Youth Service Alliance of
Greater Kansas City since July 1999. Mr. Bloch served as an educator with St. Francis Xavier School from
October 1995 until August 2000. Prior to changing careers, Mr. Bloch had a 19-year career with the
H&R Block organization, resigning as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in 1995. He is
also a director of Generali USA Life Reassurance Company. Mr. Bloch graduated from Claremont
McKenna College in Claremont, California in 1976. He is a member of the Executive and Finance
Committees of the Board of Directors.

Mark A. Ernst
Director since 1999
Age 46

Mr. Ernst has served as Chairman of the Board of the Company since September 2002, Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since January 2001 and as President of the Company since September 1999. He
served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company from September 1998 through December 2000 and as
Executive Vice President of the Company from September 1998 until September 1999. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Ernst served as Senior Vice President, Third Party and International Distribution and
Senior Vice President, Workplace Financial Services of American Express Company, a diversified financial
services company, Minneapolis, Minnesota, from July 1997 through June 1998 and November 1995
through July 1997, respectively. Mr. Ernst is also a director of Great Plains Energy, Inc. and Knight-Ridder,
Inc. He received a Master of Business Administration with an emphasis in finance and economics from the
University of Chicago and an undergraduate degree in accounting and finance from Drake University. He
is a Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Ernst is a member of the Executive Committee of the Board of
Directors.

Tom D. Seip
Director since 2001
Age 54

Mr. Seip currently serves as managing partner of Seip Investments LP and the managing member of Too
Much Stuff LLC and Ridgefield Farm LLC, private investment vehicles. He served as the President, Chief
Executive Officer and director of Westaff, Inc., Walnut Creek, California, a temporary staffing services
company, from May 2001 until January 2002. Mr. Seip was employed by Charles Schwab & Co., Inc., San
Francisco, California, from January 1983 until June 1998 in various positions, including Chief Executive
Officer of Charles Schwab Investment Management, Inc. from 1997 until June 1998 and Executive Vice
President – Retail Brokerage from 1994 until 1997. Mr. Seip is also a trustee of the Neuberger Berman
Mutual Funds, New York. He received a Bachelor of Arts degree from Pennsylvania State University and
participated in the Doctoral Program in Developmental Psychology at the University of Michigan. Mr. Seip
is a member of the Compensation, Finance and Governance and Nominating Committees of the Board of
Directors.
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Continuing directors whose terms expire in 2006 (Class II Directors):

G. Kenneth Baum
Director since 1961
Age 74

Mr. Baum has served as the Chairman of George K. Baum Group, Inc., an investment company, Kansas
City, Missouri, since April 1994. Mr. Baum joined the firm of George K. Baum & Company, a regional
investment banking firm, in 1952 and was President of that organization from 1957 until 1982 when he was
elected to Chairman of the Board, serving in that capacity until April 1994. Mr. Baum graduated from
Carleton College, Northfield, Minnesota in 1952 with a Bachelor of Arts degree in history. He currently
serves as a director of Interstate Bakeries Corporation. Mr. Baum is Chairman of the Finance Committee
of the Board of Directors and is a member of the Executive and Governance and Nominating Committees.

Henry F. Frigon
Director since 1992
Age 69

Mr. Frigon has served as the Chairman of the Board of CARSTAR, Inc., Overland Park, Kansas, since July
1998. He served as Chief Executive Officer of CARSTAR, Inc. from July 1998 until February 2001.
Mr. Frigon retired from Hallmark Cards, Inc., Kansas City, Missouri in 1994 where he served as Executive
Vice President, Corporate Development & Strategy, and Chief Financial Officer, as well as being a member
of its Board of Directors from 1990 until December 1994. Prior to joining Hallmark, Mr. Frigon served as
the President and Chief Executive Officer of BATUS, Inc., where he was responsible for the company’s
extensive U.S. holdings in retailing, financial services, tobacco and paper. His previous business
experience covers a variety of operating, management and board positions with companies such as Masco
Corporation, General Housewares, General Foods Corporation and Chase Manhattan Bank. Mr. Frigon
received a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Tufts University in 1957 and a Master of Business
Administration from New York University in 1961. He also attended Wharton Graduate School at the
University of Pennsylvania and completed the Advanced Management Program at Harvard Business
School. Mr. Frigon is also a director of Buckeye Technologies, Inc., Dimon, Inc., Packaging Corporation of
America, Sypris Solutions, Inc. and Tuesday Morning Corporation. Mr. Frigon is a member of the
Compensation and Finance Committees of the Board of Directors.

Roger W. Hale
Director since 1991
Age 61

Mr. Hale served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of LG&E Energy Corporation, a diversified
energy services company headquartered in Louisville, Kentucky, from August 1990 until retiring in April
2001. Prior to joining LG&E, he was Executive Vice President of BellSouth Corporation, a
communications services company in Atlanta, Georgia. From 1966 to 1986, Mr. Hale held several
executive positions with AT&T Co., a communications services company, including Vice President,
Southern Region from 1983 to 1986. He received a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
Maryland in 1965 and a Master of Science in Management from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology,
Sloan School of Management in 1979. Mr. Hale is also a director of Ashland, Inc., where he serves on the
Audit and Public Policy and Environmental Committees. Mr. Hale is Chairman of the Governance and
Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors and a member of the Audit and Executive Committees.

A d d i t i o n a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  C o n c e r n i n g  t h e  B o a rd  o f  D i re c t o r s

Board of Directors’ Meetings and Committees
The Board of Directors is responsible for managing the property of meetings of the Board committees on which he or she served
and business affairs of the Company. The Board of Directors that were held during the time in which he or she served on such
reviews significant developments affecting the Company and acts committees in such year, except for Mr. Wilkins who attended a
on matters requiring Board approval. During the 2004 fiscal year, combined total of 72% of the meetings due to scheduling
the Board of Directors held eight meetings and the standing conflicts. The Company has adjusted its schedule of regular
Board committees held 22 meetings. Each of the incumbent Board and Committee meetings in fiscal year 2005 to reduce such
directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (1) the total scheduling conflicts.
number of meetings of the Board held during the time in which he The standing committees of the Board include the Executive
or she served as a director in such year and (2) the total number Committee, the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee,
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the Finance Committee and the Governance and Nominating the ‘‘Compensation Committee Report on Executive
Committee. Set forth below is a description of the duties of each Compensation’’ beginning on page 23.
committee and its members. The Finance Committee, whose members are Messrs. Baum

The Executive Committee, whose members are Mr. Smith (Chairman), Bloch, Frigon and Seip, held three meetings during
(Chairman), Ms. Ecton and Messrs. Baum, Bloch, Ernst and Hale, the 2004 fiscal year. The primary duties of the Finance Committee
held no meetings during fiscal year 2004. The primary function of are to provide advice to management and the Board of Directors
the Executive Committee is to control and manage, between concerning the financial structure of the Company, the funding of
meetings of the Board, the property and business of the Company the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries, the
in all matters in which exclusive authority has not been given to investment of Company funds, determining appropriate areas of
the entire Board of Directors or in which specific direction has business development and expansion and developing acquisition
not been given by the Board. and divestiture strategies.

The Audit Committee, whose members are Ms. Ecton The Governance and Nominating Committee, whose
(Chairman) and Messrs. Hale, Smith and Wilkins, held members are Mr. Hale (Chairman), Ms. Ecton and Messrs. Baum
11 meetings during the 2004 fiscal year. All of the members of the and Seip, held three meetings during the 2004 fiscal year. The
Audit Committee are independent under the New York Stock Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for
Exchange’s listing standards and the Board’s Director corporate governance matters, the initiation of nominations for
Independence Standards. The Board has determined that each of election as a director of the Company, the evaluation of the
Ms. Ecton, Mr. Hale, Mr. Smith and Mr. Wilkins is an audit performance of the Board of Directors, and the determination of
committee financial expert, pursuant to the criteria prescribed by compensation of outside directors of the Company. The Board
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Board adopted a adopted a revised written charter for the Governance and
revised written charter for the Audit Committee in March 2003, a Nominating Committee in March 2004, a copy of which is
copy of which is available on the Company’s website at available on the Company’s website at www.hrblock.com under
www.hrblock.com under the tab ‘‘Our Company’’ and then under the tab ‘‘Our Company’’ and then under the heading ‘‘Investors –
the heading ‘‘Investors – Governance Documents.’’ The functions Governance Documents.’’ All of the members of the Governance
of the Committee are described in the Audit Committee Charter and Nominating Committee are independent under the New York
and include making recommendations to the Board of Directors Stock Exchange’s listing standards and the Board’s Director
with respect to the appointment of the Company’s independent Independence Standards.
accountants, evaluating the independence and performance of
such accountants, reviewing the scope of the annual audit, and Director’s Compensation
reviewing and discussing with management and the independent Directors, excluding those who are employed by the Company or
accountants the audited financial statements and accounting its subsidiaries, received an annual director’s fee of $30,000,
principles. See the ‘‘Audit Committee Report’’ beginning on meeting fees of $2,000 for each Board meeting attended,
page 18. committee chairman fees of $2,000 for each committee meeting

The Compensation Committee, whose members are that they chair, and meeting fees of $1,200 for each committee
Messrs. Smith (Chairman), Frigon, Seip and Wilkins held five meeting attended in a capacity other than as chairman. In
meetings during fiscal year 2004. The functions of the Committee addition, the chairman of the audit committee receives an annual
primarily include reviewing the compensation of the executive committee chairman’s fee of $5,000. Beginning with the annual
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries, recommending to installment payable on June 1, 2004, the Board approved an
the Board of Directors the salaries and any bonus or cash increase in the annual director’s fee for non-employee directors
incentive plans for such executive officers, and administering the from $30,000 to $40,000. All other fees paid will remain the same.
Company’s long-term incentive compensation plans. The Board In accordance with the provisions of the H&R Block Deferred
adopted a revised written charter for the Compensation Compensation Plan for Directors, as amended, eligible non-
Committee in March 2003, a copy of which is available on the employee directors may defer receipt of their retainers and/or
Company’s website at www.hrblock.com under the tab ‘‘Our meeting fees. Deferrals are placed in an account maintained by
Company’’ and then under the heading ‘‘Investors – Governance the Company for each director and such deferrals are fully vested
Documents.’’ All of the members of the Compensation Committee at all times. Gains or losses are posted to each account in
are independent under the New York Stock Exchange’s listing accordance with the participant’s selection among fixed rate,
standards and the Board’s Director Independence Standards. See variable rate and Company Common Stock investment
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alternatives. Payment of benefits occurs in cash upon termination Corporate Governance
of the participant’s services as a director or upon his or her death. Our Board of Directors has adopted and operated under,
The account balance is generally paid out in approximately equal Corporate Governance Guidelines (the ‘‘Guidelines’’) to assist the
monthly installments over a 10-year period after the occurrence Board in exercising its responsibilities. The Guidelines reflect the
of the event which results in the benefit distribution. Board’s commitment to monitor the effectiveness of policy and

Pursuant to the H&R Block Stock Plan for Non-Employee decision-making both at the Board level and management level,
Directors, eligible non-employee directors have the opportunity with a view to enhancing shareholder value over the long term.
to receive payment of their retainers and/or meeting fees on a The Guidelines also assure that the Board will have the necessary
deferred basis in shares of Common Stock of the Company. The authority and practices in place to review and evaluate the
retainers and/or fees are initially paid in the form of stock units. Company’s business operations as needed and to make decisions
The stock units in the directors’ accounts are fully vested at all that are independent of the Company’s management. The
times. Payment of the stock units must be deferred at least one Guidelines are not intended to be a static statement of the
year after the year such units are credited and the director shall Company’s policies, principles and guidelines, but are subject to
select the date of payment, which may be upon termination of continual assessment and refinement as the Board may determine
service as a director. The maximum number of shares of advisable or necessary in the view of the best interests of the
Common Stock that may be issued under the Stock Plan is Company and its shareholders. A copy of the Guidelines is
currently 600,000 shares. available on the Company’s website at www.hrblock.com under

The 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors, as amended, the tab ‘‘Our Company’’ and then under the heading ‘‘Investors –
provides for the grant of stock options to directors of the Governance Documents.’’
Company who are not employees of the Company or any of its The Guidelines also provide that a non-employee director may
subsidiaries. The Plan specifies that nonqualified stock options be appointed as the ‘‘Presiding Director’’ of the Board. The
are to be automatically granted to outside directors of the Presiding Director (Louis W. Smith) leads executive sessions of
Company serving as such on June 30 of each year in which the the non-employee directors at meetings that are held prior to
Plan is in effect. Effective June 30, 2002, each stock option each regular meeting of the Board. In addition, the Presiding
granted to an outside director of the Company pursuant to the Director may call executive sessions as deemed necessary.
Plan is for 4,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, and the As further described in the Guidelines, the Board believes that
purchase price per share is equal to the last reported sale price a substantial majority of the Board should consist of directors
for the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the who are independent under the New York Stock Exchange’s
date of grant. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock listing standards. As described below, seven of the Board’s nine
as to which options may be granted under the Plan is 800,000. directors are independent directors within the meaning of the

Options for 4,000 shares each, with an option price of $43.25 Board’s Director Independence Standards and the New York
per share, were granted to Ms. Ecton and Messrs. Baum, Bloch, Stock Exchange’s listing standards.
Frigon, Hale, Seip, Smith and Wilkins on June 30, 2003. The The New York Stock Exchange’s listing standards provide that
outstanding stock options may not be exercised until at least one a director does not qualify as independent unless the Board
year after the date of grant, and then may be exercised only in affirmatively determines that the director has no material
increments in any one year of up to one-third of the aggregate relationship with the Company. The listing standards permit the
number of shares subject to the option. Vesting is accelerated in Board to adopt and disclose standards to assist the Board in
the event of death, retirement or removal as a director without making determinations of independence. Accordingly, the Board
cause. Beginning with the grant on June 30, 2004, options will be has adopted Director Independence Standards (attached as
fully vested and immediately exercisable as of date of grant. All Appendix A to this proxy statement) to assist the Board in
outstanding options expire ten years after the date of grant. determining whether a director has a material relationship with

The Company also offers to its non-employee directors free the Company. The Director Independence Standards also are
income tax return preparation services at an H&R Block office of available on the Company’s website at www.hrblock.com under
their choice and free business travel insurance in connection with the tab ‘‘Our Company’’ and then under the heading ‘‘Investors –
Company-related travel. Governance Documents.’’

In June 2004, the Board conducted an evaluation of director
independence, based on the Director Independence Standards
and the New York Stock Exchange’s listing standards. In
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connection with this review, the Board evaluated commercial, identifying candidates that are consistent with the criteria
charitable, consulting, familial and other relationships with each outlined above. In addition, the Governance and Nominating
director or immediate family members and their related interest Committee may use the services of consultants or a search firm.
to the Company and its subsidiaries. As a result of this evaluation, The Committee will consider recommendations by the
the Board affirmatively determined that each Ms. Ecton and Company’s shareholders of qualified director candidates for
Messrs. Baum, Frigon, Hale, Seip, Smith and Wilkins are possible nomination by the Board. Shareholders may recommend
independent directors. qualified director candidates by writing to the Company’s

Finally, all directors, officers and employees of the Company Corporate Secretary, at our offices at 4400 Main Street, Kansas
must act ethically and in accordance with the policies comprising City, Missouri 64111. Submissions should include information
the H&R Block Code of Business Ethics and Conduct (the regarding a candidate’s background, qualifications, experience,
‘‘Code’’). The Code includes guidelines relating to the ethical and willingness to serve as a director. Based on preliminary
handling of actual or potential conflicts of interest, compliance assessment of a candidate’s qualifications, the Governance and
with laws, accurate financial reporting and procedures for Nominating Committee may conduct interviews with the
promoting compliance with, and reporting violations of, the candidate and request additional information from the candidate.
Code. The Code is available on the Company’s website under the The Committee uses the same process for evaluating all
tab ‘‘Our Company’’ and then under the heading ‘‘Investors – nominees, including those recommended by shareholders. In
Governance Documents.’’ As permitted by applicable law, the addition, the Company’s bylaws contain specific conditions under
Company intends to post at this location on our website any which persons may be nominated directly by shareholders. The
amendments to the Code, or any waiver from a provision of the provisions include the condition that shareholders comply with
Code, that applies  to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, the advance notice time requirements outlined in the
Chief Financial Officer or Principal Accounting Officer. ‘‘Shareholder Proposals and Nominations’’ section of this Proxy

Statement.
Director Nomination Process
The entire Board of Directors is responsible for nominating

Shareholder Communications with the Board
members for election to the Board and for filling vacancies on the

Shareholders wishing to communicate with the Board of
Board that may occur between annual meetings of the

Directors, the non-management directors, or with an individual
shareholders. The Governance and Nominating Committee is

Board member concerning the Company may do so by writing to
responsible for identifying, screening and recommending

the Board, to the non-management directors, or to the particular
candidates to the entire Board for Board membership. The

Board member, and mailing to the correspondence to: Office of
Governance and Nominating Committee works with the Board to

the Chief Legal Officer, H&R Block, Inc., 4400 Main Street, Kansas
determine the appropriate characteristics, skills and experience

City, Missouri 64111. The envelope should indicate that it
for the Board as a whole and its individual members. In

contains a shareholder communication. All such shareholder
evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Board

communications will be forwarded to the director or directors to
takes into account many factors such as general understanding of

whom the communication is addressed.
various business disciplines (e.g., marketing, finance, information
technology), the Company’s business environment, educational
and professional background, analytical ability and willingness to Director Attendance at Annual Meetings
devote adequate time to Board duties. The Board evaluates each Although the Company has no specific policy regarding director
individual in the context of the Board as a whole with the attendance at its Annual Meeting of Shareholders, all directors
objective of retaining a group with diverse and relevant are encouraged to attend. Board and Committee meetings are
experience that can best perpetuate the Company’s success and held immediately preceding and following the Annual Meeting of
represent shareholder interests through sound judgment. Shareholders, with directors attending the Annual Meeting. Eight

The Governance and Nominating Committee may seek the of nine directors attended last year’s Annual Meeting of
input of the other members of the Board and management in Shareholders.
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I T E M  2  O N  F O R M  O F  P R O X Y

A p p ro v a l  o f  a n  A m e n d m e n t  t o  t h e  C o m p a n y ’ s  A r t i c l e s  o f  I n c o r p o r a t i o n  t o  I n c re a s e  t h e  N u m b e r
o f  A u t h o r i z e d  S h a re s  o f  C o m m o n  S t o c k

Description of the Proposed Amendment
The Board of Directors has determined that it is advisable to the Board of Directors to issue shares of Common Stock without
amend the Company’s Amended and Restated Articles of the delay and expense associated with seeking shareholder
Incorporation (the ‘‘Articles’’). On June 9, 2004, the Board of approval at a special shareholders’ meeting. Elimination of such
Directors approved a proposed amendment to the Articles (the delays and expense occasioned by the necessity of obtaining
‘‘Amendment’’) to increase the number of shares of Common shareholder approval will better enable the Company, among
Stock, without par value, authorized for issuance from other things, to take advantage of changing market and financial
500,000,000 to 800,000,000. conditions.

The Board believes that an increase in the number of The additional Common Stock to be authorized by adoption of
authorized shares is in the best interests of the Company and its the Amendment would have rights identical to the currently
shareholders so that the Company maintains an adequate reserve outstanding Common Stock of the Company. Adoption of the
of authorized but unissued shares. Such reserve of shares may be proposed Amendment and issuance of the Common Stock would
used for the purposes described below. not affect the rights of the holders of currently outstanding

The Board has directed that the Amendment be submitted to Common Stock of the Company, except for effects incidental to
the shareholders for their consideration and approval. increasing the number of shares of the Company’s Common

Stock outstanding. Any future issuance of Common Stock will be
subject to the rights of holders of any outstanding shares of anyReasons for the Proposed Amendment
Preferred Stock that the Company may issue in the future.The number of authorized shares of Common Stock of the

Company has remained at 500,000,000 since 2001. Of the
500,000,000 currently authorized shares of Common Stock, as of Possible Effects of the Amendment
April 30, 2004, 173,096,270 shares were outstanding, 44,849,128 If the proposed Amendment is approved, the Board of Directors
were held as treasury shares and 33,900,614 shares were reserved may cause the issuance of additional shares of Common Stock
for issuance under various stock option plans and other stock- without further vote of the shareholders of the Company, except
related incentive plans. as may be required by applicable laws or under the rules of any

Although the Company has no specific plans to use the national securities exchange on which shares of Common Stock
additional authorized shares of Common Stock, the Company’s of the Company are then listed. Current holders of Common
Board of Directors believes that it is prudent to increase the Stock have no preemptive or like rights, which means that
number of authorized shares of Common Stock to the proposed current shareholders do not have a prior right to purchase any
level to provide a reserve of shares for issuance in connection new issue of stock of the Company to maintain their
with possible stock splits or stock dividends should the Board of proportionate ownership interests. The authorization of
Directors determine that it would be desirable to facilitate a additional shares of Common Stock may also dilute the voting
broader base of shareholders. The Amendment will also provide power of currently outstanding shares and reduce the portion of
flexibility with respect to other matters such as financings, dividends and liquidation proceeds available to the holders of
corporate mergers, acquisitions of property, shareholder rights currently outstanding stock.
plans, establishing strategic relationships with corporate In addition, the Board of Directors could use authorized but
partners, employee benefit plans and other general corporate unissued shares to create or maintain impediments to a takeover
purposes. Currently there are no definite plans, agreements or or a transfer of control of the Company. For example, the
arrangements in place requiring the utilization of these additional proposed increase in authorized shares would maintain, in the
shares for future stock dividends or splits, financing and event of a stock split, a sufficient number of shares of Common
acquisition transactions, employee benefit plans or other general Stock for the Company to exchange Common Stock for rights
corporate purposes. Having such additional authorized Common under the Rights Plan (described below), or provide a substantial
Stock available for issuance in the future would, however, allow base of shares of Common Stock to enable holders of rights to
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purchase such Common Stock under such plan upon the exercise having a market value equal to twice the exercise price of the
of rights. Accordingly, the increase in the number of authorized Right. Following an Unapproved Stock Acquisition, if the
shares of Common Stock may deter a future takeover attempt Company is involved in a merger, or 50% or more of the
which holders of Common Stock may deem to be in their best Company’s assets or earning power are sold, the registered
interest or in which holders of Common Stock may be offered a holder of each Right has the right (the ‘‘Merger Right’’) to
premium for their shares over the market price. purchase for the exercise price of the Right a number of shares of

The Board of Directors is not currently aware of any attempt to the common stock of the surviving or purchasing company
takeover or acquire the Company. While it may be deemed to having a market value equal to twice the exercise price of the
have potential anti-takeover effects, the proposed Amendment is Right.
not prompted by any specific effort or takeover threat currently After an Unapproved Stock Acquisition, but before any person
perceived by management. Moreover, management does not or group of persons acquires 50% or more of the outstanding
currently intend to propose additional anti-takeover measures in shares of the Company’s Common Stock, the Board of Directors
the foreseeable future. may exchange all or part of the then outstanding and exercisable

Rights for Common Stock at an exchange ratio of one share of
Corporate Action Regarding Takeover Attempts Common Stock per Right (the ‘‘Exchange’’). Upon any such
The Rights Plan is intended to deter coercive or unfair takeover Exchange, the right of any holder to exercise a Right terminates.
tactics and to prevent a potential acquiror from gaining control of Upon the occurrence of any event giving rise to the exercisability
the Company without offering a fair price to all of the Company’s of the Subscription Right or the Merger Right or the ability of the
stockholders. The plan provides a strong incentive for anyone Board of Directors to effect the Exchange, the Rights held by the
interested in acquiring the Company to negotiate directly with the acquiring person or group under the new plan will become void
Board of Directors. Under the Rights Plan adopted in July 1998, a as they relate to the Subscription Right, the Merger Right or the
dividend of one right (a ‘‘Right’’) per share was declared and paid Exchange.
on each share of the Company’s Common Stock outstanding on The Company may redeem the Rights under the Rights Plan at
July 25, 1998. Rights automatically attach to shares issued after a price of $.000625 per Right at any time prior to the earlier of
such date. (i) an Unapproved Stock Acquisition or (ii) the expiration of the

Under the Rights Plan, a Right becomes exercisable when a rights. The Rights under the plan will expire on March 25, 2008,
person or group of persons acquires beneficial ownership of 15% unless extended by the Board of Directors. Until a Right is
or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s Common exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will have no rights as a
Stock without the prior written approval of the Company’s Board stockholder of the Company, including the right to vote or
of Directors (an ‘‘Unapproved Stock Acquisition’’), and at the receive dividends. Issuance of the Rights alone has no dilutive
close of business on the tenth business day following the effect and does not affect reported net earnings per share.
commencement of, or the public announcement of an intent to The Company’s Articles of Incorporation also contain
commence, a tender offer that would result in an Unapproved provisions designed to apply in the event of takeover attempts.
Stock Acquisition. The Company may, prior to any Unapproved The general purpose of such provisions is to ameliorate the time
Stock Acquisition, amend the plan to lower such 15% threshold to constraints and pressure tactics often associated with takeover
not less than the greater of (1) any percentage greater than the attempts and to encourage potential takeover bidders to seek
largest percentage of beneficial ownership by any person or approval of the Board prior to attempting a takeover. Certain
group of persons then known by the Company, or (2) 10% (in business transactions between the Company and a person or
which case the acquisition of such lower percentage of beneficial entity owning more than 15% of the Company’s outstanding
ownership then constitutes an Unapproved Stock Acquisition and voting stock require approval of the holders of 80% of the
the Rights become exercisable). When exercisable, the registered Company’s outstanding voting stock. Such business transactions
holder of each Right may purchase from the Company one two- include (a) a merger or consolidation involving the Company or
hundredths of a share of a class of the Company’s Participating any of its subsidiary corporations; (b) the sale or exchange of
Preferred Stock, without par value at a price of $107.50, subject more than 20% of the assets of the Company or 20% of the assets
to adjustment. The registered holder of each Right then also has of any of its subsidiary corporations; (c) the issuance, transfer or
the right (the ‘‘Subscription Right’’) to purchase for the exercise other disposition of any securities of the Company or any of its
price of the Right, in lieu of shares of Participating Preferred subsidiary corporations; (d) any recapitalization or
Stock, a number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock reclassification of securities of the Company; and (e) any
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liquidation, spin-off or other dissolution of the Company. the President. The foregoing Article provisions may not be
Approval by 80% of the shareholders is not necessary when amended or repealed except upon the approval of 80% of the
certain procedural and price safeguards designed to protect all of stock of the Company, unless at least 80% of the members of the
the Company’s shareholders are observed or when the business Board recommend such a change.
transaction receives the approval of two-thirds of the directors. The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the
The Articles authorize the issuance of up to 6,000,000 shares of Company’s outstanding shares of Common Stock entitled to vote
Preferred Stock on such terms as may be determined by the at the annual meeting is required to approve this proposal.
Board. The Articles provide for a classified board of directors in THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE ‘‘FOR’’
order to extend the time necessary to elect a majority of the THE PROPOSAL TO AMEND ARTICLE THREE OF THE
Board. The entire Board may not be removed except by the COMPANY’S ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION TO INCREASE THE
affirmative vote of 80% of each class of stock of the Company NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
entitled to elect directors. Shareholders’ meetings may be called FROM 500,000,000 TO 800,000,000 SHARES, AND PROXIES
only by the holders of at least 80% of the stock of the Company, a SOLICITED BY THE BOARD WILL BE SO VOTED IN THE
majority of the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board or ABSENCE OF INSTRUCTIONS TO THE CONTRARY.

I T E M  3  O N  F O R M  O F  P R O X Y

A p p ro v a l  o f  a n  A m e n d m e n t  t o  t h e  1 9 8 9  S t o c k  O p t i o n  P l a n  f o r  O u t s i d e  D i re c t o r s

Introduction
The 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors (the Plan, as the Company by those directors. The Board also believes that the
amended, shall be referred to as the ‘‘Directors Plan’’) was continued services of qualified Outside Directors are essential to
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company on the sustained growth and progress of the Company and its
December 6, 1989. The Directors Plan was amended by the Board subsidiaries, and that the options granted pursuant to the
of Directors on June 19, 1991, and such Plan, as amended, was Directors Plan provide additional incentive for the Outside
approved by the shareholders on September 11, 1991. At the Directors to promote the Company’s success. The Board believes
annual meeting of shareholders held in September 1998, the that it is in the Company’s best interest to adopt the proposed
shareholders approved an amendment to the Directors Plan that amendment to extend the Directors Plan for five years, such that
extended its term from December 4, 1999 to December 5, 2001 it will terminate, unless further extended, on December 5, 2009.
and increased from 2,000 to 3,000 the number of shares of
Common Stock subject to an option automatically granted to Material Features of the Directors Plan
each ‘‘Outside Director’’ on an annual basis. At the annual The material features of the Directors Plan are summarized
meeting of shareholders held in September, 2001, the below. The summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the
shareholders approved an amendment to the Directors Plan that specific provisions of the Directors Plan, the full text of which (as
extended the expiration from December 5, 1999 to December 5, proposed to be amended) is set forth as Appendix B to this proxy
2004, increased from 3,000 to 4,000 the number of shares of statement.
Common Stock subject to an option automatically granted to Participation in the Plan. All Outside Directors of the
each ‘‘Outside Director’’ on an annual basis, and increased the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to participate in the
maximum number of shares issuable from 300,000 to 500,000 Directors Plan. As such, Ms. Ecton and Messrs. Baum, Bloch,
(800,000 after adjusting for the 2-for-1 split of the Common Stock Frigon, Hale, Seip, Smith, and Wilkins, as Outside Directors, each
effective August 1, 2001). Unless extended, the Directors Plan will have a direct interest in the proposed amendments to the
terminate on December 5, 2004, except as to the stock options Directors Plan. Employees (including directors who are
then outstanding. employees) of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company

The Board believes that the Directors Plan has been effective in are not eligible to receive options under the Directors Plan. The
attracting and retaining experienced and qualified Outside Directors Plan provides that options are to be automatically
Directors (generally, those directors who are not employed by the granted to Outside Directors of the Company serving as such on
Company or any of its subsidiaries) and in securing for the the dates of grant specified in the Directors Plan. An Option
Company and its shareholders the benefits of stock ownership in Committee appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company
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to administer the Directors Plan, consisting only of directors who at such times and upon such terms as may be selected by it.
are not Outside Directors, has the authority under the Plan to Subject to certain exceptions, the outstanding options may not be
grant stock options to such Outside Directors of subsidiaries of exercised until at least one year after the date of grant, and then
the Company (who are not also Outside Directors of the may be exercised only in increments in any one year of up to one-
Company) as the Committee shall determine. There are currently third of the aggregate number of shares subject to the option.
eight Outside Directors of the Company. Beginning with the grant scheduled for June 30, 2004, options will

Administration of the Directors Plan. The Directors Plan is be fully vested and immediately exercisable as of date of grant.
administered by the Option Committee of the Company’s Board Each stock option is exercisable by payment of the exercise price
of Directors, as described above. Mark A. Ernst serves as the sole in cash, by delivery of Common Stock having a market value
member of the Option Committee. The Option Committee has the equal to the aggregate option price or by a combination of
full power and authority to administer the Directors Plan, to payment of cash and delivery of Common Stock.
interpret the provisions of the Directors Plan and to adopt rules The Option Committee may require that a recipient of a stock
and regulations for carrying out the Directors Plan and written option under the Plan be an Outside Director at the time a stock
policies for implementing the Plan. A majority of the Option option is exercised or may establish other provisions concerning
Committee members shall constitute a quorum and the acts of a the termination or disposition of a stock option on the death or
majority of the members present at any meeting at which a retirement of its recipient.
quorum is present, or acts approved in writing by all members of Options Granted to Outside Directors Under the Directors
the Committee, shall be valid acts of the Option Committee. All Plan. In accordance with the provisions of the Directors Plan,
Outside Directors shall be ineligible to vote upon any matter on June 30, 2003, an automatic grant of a stock option for 4,000
concerning the stock options. shares of Common Stock with an exercise price per share equal

Types of Awards Under the Directors Plan. Stock options to $43.25 was awarded to each of Ms. Ecton and Messrs. Baum,
are the only awards available under the Directors Plan. Stock Bloch, Frigon, Hale, Seip, Smith and Wilkins. On June 30, 2004, an
options granted or to be granted are nonqualified stock options automatic grant of a stock option for 4,000 shares of Common
and are not intended to be ‘‘incentive stock options,’’ as defined in Stock with an exercise price per share equal to $47.68 was
Section 422(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. awarded to each of Ms. Ecton and Messrs. Baum, Bloch, Frigon,
A stock option to purchase an aggregate of 4,000 shares of Hale, Seip, Smith, and Wilkins. None of the executive officers
Common Stock is granted on each June 30 in which the Directors listed on the Summary Compensation Table and no employees of
Plan is in effect to each Outside Director of the Company serving the Company or its subsidiaries are eligible for stock option
as such on such date of grant. The Option Committee may, in the grants under the Directors Plan.
exercise of its sole and absolute discretion during the Shares of Common Stock Issuable Under the Directors Plan.
continuance of the Directors Plan, determine which Outside The aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that may be
Directors of any subsidiary of the Company shall be granted issued under the Directors Plan may not exceed 800,000 shares,
stock options, as well as the date of grant and the size of stock provided that such aggregate number may be adjusted for any
options to be granted to any such Outside Directors of the stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, or similar
Company’s subsidiaries. transaction.

The purchase price per share of Common Stock under each Non-Alienation. Stock options granted pursuant to the
stock option shall be equal to the last reported sales price for the Directors Plan are not assignable or transferable by the recipient
Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or
the grant of such stock option. If the date of grant falls on a non- pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order.
business day, the stock option price will be equal to the last Anti-Dilution Protection. Shares subject to outstanding
reported sales price for the Common Stock on the next preceding options are subject to anti-dilution protection. In the event of any
business day on which the stock is quoted. The closing price per change in the capital structure of the Company, including, but not
share for the Company’s Common Stock on the New York Stock limited, to a change resulting from a stock dividend or stock split,
Exchange on June 30, 2004, was $xx.xx. All stock options shall the Board of Directors of the Company shall make equitable
expire as to all of their unexercised shares ten years after the adjustments with respect to stock options or any provisions of
date of grant. the Directors Plan as it deems necessary or appropriate. If the

The Option Committee may determine that all or a portion of Company becomes a party to a corporate merger, consolidation,
any stock option granted under the Directors Plan shall be vested reorganization or liquidation, the Board shall make such binding
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arrangements it deems advisable with respect to the outstanding tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences inherent in the
options, including, but not limited to, the substitution of new ownership and/or exercise of the options, and the ownership and
stock for any stock options then outstanding, the assumption of disposition of the underlying securities.
such stock options and the termination of or payment for such The recipient of stock options under the Directors Plan will not
stock options. recognize any income for federal income tax purposes on the

Termination or Amendment of the Directors Plan. The grant of the nonqualified option. Generally, on the exercise of the
Board of Directors of the Company has the right to amend, option, the optionee will recognize taxable ordinary income equal
modify, supplement, suspend or terminate the Directors Plan, to the difference between the option price of the shares and the
provided that no amendment, supplement, modification, fair market value of the shares on the exercise date. The
suspension or termination in any manner affects any stock Company generally will be entitled to a deduction on the date of
options theretofore granted under the Plan without the consent exercise in an amount equal to the ordinary income recognized by
of the recipient thereof. The Directors Plan may not be amended the optionee. Upon disposition of the shares purchased pursuant
to increase the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock to the stock option, the optionee will recognize long-term or
that may be issued under the Directors Plan (unless such increase short-term capital gain or loss, as the case may be, equal to the
is a result of a change in the capital structure of the Company), difference between the amount realized on such disposition and
change the termination date of the Plan, or delete or amend the the basis for such shares, which basis will include the amount
provisions in the Plan relating to the establishment of the stock previously recognized by the optionee as ordinary income.
option price without the prior approval of the holders of a
majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock represented Effective Date and Vote Required
at a meeting of shareholders. The Plan provisions relating to the The amendment to the Directors Plan shall be effective
prescribed stock options for Outside Directors of the Company immediately on the date of their approval by the shareholders of
and the stock option price may not be amended more than once the Company. If the amendment is not approved by such
every six months. Unless the Directors Plan is amended as shareholders, the Directors Plan will remain in effect as it
proposed, stock options may be granted in accordance with the currently exists until its expiration date.
terms of the Plan until December 5, 2004, on which date the Plan The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares
will terminate except as to stock options then outstanding, which of Common Stock represented and entitled to vote on this
stock options shall remain in effect until they have expired proposal at the annual meeting of shareholders will constitute
according to their terms. approval of the amendment to the Directors Plan.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF
THE AMENDMENT TO THE 1989 STOCK OPTION PLAN FORFederal Income Tax Consequences
OUTSIDE DIRECTORS, AND PROXIES SOLICITED BY THEThe federal income tax consequences of the Directors Plan and
BOARD WILL BE SO VOTED IN THE ABSENCE OFthe options granted thereunder are as described below. The
INSTRUCTIONS TO THE CONTRARY.following information is not a definitive explanation of the tax

consequences of the options. Recipients should consult their own

I T E M  4  O N  F O R M  O F  P R O X Y

A p p ro v a l  o f  A m e n d m e n t s  t o  t h e  1 9 9 9  S t o c k  O p t i o n  P l a n  f o r  S e a s o n a l  E m p l o y e e s

Introduction
The Company has since 1969 offered a stock option program to date the Plan will terminate except as to stock options then
the seasonal employees of its income tax services business. The outstanding, which stock options will remain in effect until they
Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 1999 Stock Option have expired according to their terms. The original termination
Plan for Seasonal Employees (the Plan, as amended, shall be date of the Seasonal Plan was December 31, 2002. At the
referred to as the ‘‘Seasonal Plan’’) in March 1999, and the Company’s annual meeting of shareholders held on
shareholders approved the Plan in September 1999. September 12, 2001, the shareholders approved an amendment to

Currently, stock options may be granted in accordance with the the Seasonal Plan to extend until December 31, 2004.
terms of the Seasonal Plan until December 31, 2004, on which
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The Seasonal Plan currently provides that the aggregate amended, the full text of which is set forth as Appendix C to this
number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the proxy statement.
Plan may not exceed 20,000,000 shares, provided that such Participation in and Awards Under the Seasonal Plan.
aggregated number shall be adjusted for any stock split, stock Options to purchase the Company’s Common Stock are granted
dividend, recapitalization or similar transaction. The Seasonal under the Seasonal Plan to ‘‘Eligible Seasonal Employees’’ of the
Plan originally provided that the aggregate number of shares of direct and indirect, majority-owned subsidiaries of H&R Block
Common Stock that may be issued under the Plan may not Services, Inc., an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of the
exceed 6,000,000 and also provided that such aggregate number Company. Such subsidiaries are collectively referred to herein as
would be adjusted for any stock split, stock dividend, ‘‘Tax Services.’’ Eligible Seasonal Employees are employees of
recapitalization or similar transaction. In accordance with such Tax Services hired to perform jobs designated as seasonal jobs
provision, the original aggregate number of shares was doubled for limited periods of time during each year. Such employees
to 12,000,000 shares on August 1, 2001, as a result of the two-for- must have adhered to the working hours agreed upon during the
one split of the Common Stock effected on that date. At the year. At the peak of the 2004 tax season, the Company employed
Company’s annual meeting of shareholders held on approximately 96,000 Eligible Seasonal Employees. Officers and
September 12, 2001, the shareholders approved an amendment to directors of H&R Block Services, Inc., Tax Services and the
the Seasonal Plan to increase the aggregate number of shares of Company may not receive grants pursuant to the Seasonal Plan.
Common Stock for which options may be granted by 8,000,000 On June 30 of each year that the Seasonal Plan is in effect, each
shares (from 12,000,000 to 20,000,000 shares). Eligible Seasonal Employee who was employed by Tax Services

As of April 30, 2004, approximately 5,431,475 shares remained either on the immediately preceding April 15 (or the next
available for issuance under the Seasonal Plan. With grants of business day if it falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday) or for at
options for 2,509,295 on June 30, 2004, there will be an least 100 working days during the 12-month period preceding
insufficient number of shares of Common Stock authorized under such June 30 will receive an option to purchase shares of
the Seasonal Plan to permit the grant of options through the Common Stock of the Company as follows:
amended termination date of December 31, 2006. Accordingly, (1) Each option granted on June 30, 1999 was for one share of
the Board has approved amendments to the Seasonal Plan, Common Stock for each $100 of compensation earned
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company to during the preceding 12 months, provided that such
(i) extend the Seasonal Plan for an additional two years, until compensation was $500 or more;
December 31, 2006, and (ii) to increase the number of authorized (2) Each option granted on June 30 of each year that the
shares thereunder by 3,000,000 shares (from 20,000,000 to Seasonal Plan is in effect after 1999 to a participant who
23,000,000). was granted an option on June 30, 1999, is for one share of

The Seasonal Plan is intended to reward performance, Common Stock for each $100 of compensation earned
encourage retention and instill loyalty in the seasonal tax during the preceding 12 months, provided that such
associates who are vital to this segment of the Company’s compensation is $4,000 or more; and
business. The Board believes that a substantial majority of (3) Each option granted on June 30 of each year that the
seasonal associates perceive a seasonal stock option plan as a Seasonal Plan is in effect after 1999 to a participant who
valuable benefit, that such a plan has in fact proven to be a was not granted an option on June 30, 1999, is for one
valuable tool in retaining seasonal associates, and that it is share of Common Stock for each $200 of compensation
important to continue this incentive. The Board believes that it is earned during the preceding 12 months, provided that such
in the best interests of the Company to adopt the proposed compensation is $4,000 or more.
amendments to (a) extend the Seasonal Plan for two years, such If the Eligible Seasonal Employee does not earn the specified
that it will terminate, unless further extended, on December 31, minimum compensation ($500 or $4,000, as the case may be), no
2006, and (b) increase the maximum number of shares issuable option will be awarded. In all cases, the maximum annual grant is
under the Seasonal Plan by 3,000,000 shares. an option to purchase 100 shares of Common Stock. The

purchase price per share of Common Stock under each stock
Material Features of the Seasonal Plan option is equal to the last reported sales price for the Common
The material features of the Seasonal Plan, as amended, are Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of the grant.
summarized below. The summary is qualified in its entirety by If the date of grant falls on a non-business day, the stock option
reference to the specific provisions of the Seasonal Plan, as price will be equal to the last reported sales price on the next
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preceding business day on which the stock is quoted. Each option stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization or similar transaction.
is exercisable only between the dates of September 1 through Shares subject to options that expire or otherwise terminate
November 30 of either of the two calendar years immediately unexercised may again be optioned by the Company during the
following the calendar year in which the option is granted, and life of the Seasonal Plan. If the amendments to the Seasonal Plan
then only if the optionee is an Eligible Seasonal Employee or a are adopted, the number of shares that may be issued thereunder
full-time employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and will increase to 23,000,000 shares.
if the compensation earned during the year of exercise is at least Non-Alienation. Stock options granted pursuant to the
50% of that earned during the year of the grant. An option may be Seasonal Plan are not assignable or transferable by the recipient,
exercised for less than the total number of shares covered and terminate upon the recipient’s death.
thereby and, upon any exercise as to less than all shares covered Anti-Dilution Protection. In the event a merger,
by an option, the option terminates as to the balance of such consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, stock dividend,
shares. stock split, or other change in the corporate structure or

Administration of the Seasonal Plan. The Seasonal Plan is capitalization affecting the Company’s capital stock shall occur,
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s an appropriate adjustment shall be made in (a) the number of
Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee has the full shares of stock available for options under the Seasonal Plan and
power and authority to administer the Seasonal Plan, to interpret subject to outstanding options, (b) the purchase price per share
the provisions of the Seasonal Plan and to adopt rules and for each outstanding option, and (c) the method of participation
regulations for carrying out the Seasonal Plan and written as outlined under ‘‘Participation in and Awards under the
policies for implementing the Seasonal Plan. A majority of the Seasonal Plan,’’ provided that no adjustment shall be made to the
Compensation Committee members constitutes a quorum and the methods of participation in the event of a stock dividend or stock
acts of a majority of the members present at any meeting at split. Any adjustment to the Seasonal Plan shall be made by the
which a quorum is present, or acts approved in writing by all Board of Directors and, when so made, shall be effective and
members of the Committee, are valid acts of the Compensation binding for all purposes of the Seasonal Plan and of all options
Committee. then outstanding.

Options Granted or to be Granted Under the Seasonal Plan. Termination or Amendment of the Seasonal Plan. The
The following table reports the options granted on June 30, 2002, Board of Directors of the Company has the right to amend,
June 30, 2003 and June 30, 2004 under the Seasonal Plan: modify, supplement, suspend or terminate the Seasonal Plan,

provided that no amendment, supplement, modification,
Shares Subject Number of suspension or termination in any manner affects any stock

Date of Grant to Options Optionees Price options theretofore granted thereunder without the consent of
June 30, 2002 2,415,320 36,543 $46.15 the recipient thereof. The Seasonal Plan may not be amended to
June 30, 2003 2,319,674 35,853 $43.25

(i) increase the aggregate number of shares of Common StockJune 30, 2004 2,509,295 40,042 $47.68
that may be issued (unless such increase is a result of a change in
the capital structure of the Company), (ii) materially modify theIf shareholders approve the amendments, stock options will
requirements as to eligibility for participation in the Seasonalautomatically be awarded under the Seasonal Plan on June 30,
Plan, or (iii) materially increase the benefits accruing to2005 to Eligible Seasonal Employees in accordance with the
participants under the Seasonal Plan. Unless the amendments arecriteria set forth above under ‘‘Participation in and Awards under
approved, the Seasonal Plan will terminate on December 31, 2004,the Seasonal Plan.’’ It is not possible to state the number of
if not terminated earlier by the Board of Directors.options to be granted to any person or group or the number of

shares to be subject to any such options. No options under the
Federal Income Tax ConsequencesSeasonal Plan have been granted or will be granted to any
Federal income tax consequences of the Seasonal Plan and theexecutive officer, director or nominee for director of the
options granted thereunder are as described below. The followingCompany.
information is not a definitive explanation of the taxShares of Common Stock Issuable Under the Seasonal Plan.
consequences of the options. Recipients should consult their ownThe aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that may be
tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences inherent in theissued under the Seasonal Plan may not exceed 20,000,000 shares,
ownership and/or exercise of the options, and the ownership andprovided that such aggregate number may be adjusted for any
disposition of the underlying securities.
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The recipient of a stock option under the Seasonal Plan is not Effective Date and Vote Required
deemed to have received any income at the time the option is The amendments shall become effective immediately upon the
granted; however, the recipient will recognize taxable ordinary date of their approval by the shareholders. If the amendments are
income in the year any part of the option is exercised in an not approved, the Seasonal Plan will expire according to its terms
amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares on December 31, 2004.
on the exercise date over the option price of the shares. The The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares
Company generally will be entitled to a deduction for purposes of of Common Stock represented and entitled to vote on this
determining its corporate income tax obligations in an amount proposal at the annual meeting of shareholders will constitute
equal to the total amount of ordinary income recognized by the approval of the amendments to the Seasonal Plan.
optionee. Upon disposition of the shares by the seasonal THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS APPROVAL OF
employee, the optionee will recognize long-term or short-term THE AMENDMENTS TO THE 1999 STOCK OPTION PLAN FOR
capital gain or loss, as the case may be, equal to the difference SEASONAL EMPLOYEES, AND PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE
between the amount realized on such disposition and the basis BOARD WILL BE SO VOTED IN THE ABSENCE OF
for such shares, which basis includes the amount previously INSTRUCTIONS TO THE CONTRARY.
recognized by the optionee as ordinary income.

I T E M  5  O N  F O R M  O F  P R O X Y

R a t i f i c a t i o n  o f  A p p o i n t m e n t  o f  I n d e p e n d e n t  A c c o u n t a n t s
The Board of Directors has appointed KPMG LLP as independent on the financial statements for such year and there have been no
accountants to audit the Company’s financial statements for the reportable events (as defined in Regulation S-K
fiscal year ended April 30, 2005. A representative of KPMG LLP is Item 304(a)(1)(v)). We requested that PwC furnish a letter
expected to attend the annual meeting to respond to appropriate addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commission stating
questions and will have an opportunity to make a statement if he whether or not PwC agreed with the above statements. A copy of
or she so desires. such letter stating no disagreement with the above was included

On May 12, 2003 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (‘‘PwC’’) as Exhibit 16.1 to our amended Current Report on Form 8-K filed
informed the Company that it declined to stand for re-election as with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 24,
the independent accountants for the Company upon completion 2004.
of the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal On July 10, 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company
year ended April 30, 2003 and services related thereto. On July 16, appointed and engaged KPMG LLP as its independent accountant
2003, the Company filed its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004. The ratification of such
fiscal year ended April 30, 2003. In connection therewith PwC appointment was submitted to a vote of the shareholders of the
completed its audit of the Company’s financial statements. The Company at the annual meeting of shareholders on September 10,
reports of PwC on the financial statements for each the 2003. Prior to their appointment, the Company had not consulted
Company’s fiscal years ended April 30, 2003 and April 30, 2002 with KPMG LLP during the last two fiscal years on (i) the
contained no adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and were application of accounting principles to a specific transaction,
not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that
accounting principle. In connection with its audit for each of the might be rendered on the Company’s financial statements or
Company’s fiscal years ended April 30, 2003 and April 30, 2002, (ii) any matter that was either the subject of a disagreement or
and through July 16, 2003, there have been no disagreements with reportable event, as those terms are defined in Item 304(a)(1)(iv)
PwC on any matter of accounting principles or practices, and (v) of Regulation S-K.
financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure, PROXIES SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE
which disagreements if not resolved to the satisfaction of PwC VOTED ‘‘FOR’’ RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF KPMG
would have caused them to make reference thereto in their report LLP IN THE ABSENCE OF INSTRUCTIONS TO THE CONTRARY.
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A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  R e p o r t
The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation of to communication with audit committees. In addition, the Audit
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted Committee has received from KPMG the written disclosures and
accounting principles and the financial reporting process, the letter required by Independence Standards Board No. 1
including the Company’s system of internal controls. The relating to independence discussions with audit committees; has
Company’s independent accountants are responsible for auditing discussed with KPMG their independence from the Company and
the Company’s financial statements and expressing an opinion as its management; and has considered whether KPMG’s provision
to their conformity to accounting principles generally accepted in of non-audit services to the Company is compatible with
the United States. The Audit Committee of the Board of maintaining the auditor’s independence.
Directors, composed solely of independent directors, meets Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the
periodically with management, the independent accountants and Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors of the
the internal auditor to review matters relating to the Company’s Company, and the Board has approved, that the Company’s
financial statements, internal audit activities, internal accounting audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on
controls and non-audit services provided by the independent Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004, for filing with
accountants. the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with
AUDIT COMMITTEEmanagement and KPMG LLP (‘‘KPMG’’), the Company’s

independent accountants, the Company’s audited financial Donna R. Ecton, Chairman
statements for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004. The Audit Roger W. Hale
Committee has also discussed with KPMG the matters required to Louis W. Smith
be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 relating Rayford Wilkins, Jr.

A u d i t  F e e s
The following table presents fees for professional services Audit-Related Fees are fees for assurance and related services
rendered by KPMG LLP for the audit of the Company’s annual that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or
financial statements for 2004 and for professional services review of the Company’s financial statements or that are
rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (‘‘PwC’’) for the audit traditionally performed by the independent auditor.
of the Company’s annual financial statements for 2003, and fees Tax Fees consist of fees for the preparation of original and
billed for other services rendered by KPMG LLP and PwC for amended tax returns, claims for refunds and tax payment-
such years: planning services for tax compliance, tax planning, tax

consultation and tax advice.
Fiscal Year All other fees are fees billed for professional services that were

2004 2003 not the result of an audit or review.
Audit fees $2,121,275 $1,170,681 The Audit Committee has adopted policies and procedures for
Audit-related fees 944,811 618,363 pre-approving audit and non-audit services performed by the
Tax fees 115,000 254,136 independent auditor so that the provision of such services does
All other fees 345,000 131,302

not impair the auditor’s independence. Under the Audit
Total fees $3,526,086 $2,174,482

Committee’s pre-approval policy, the terms and fees of the annual
Audit Fees consist of fees for professional services rendered audit engagement require specific Audit Committee approval.

for the audit of the Company’s financial statements and review of Other types of service are eligible for general pre-approval.
financial statements included in the Company’s quarterly reports Unless a type of service to be provided by the independent
and services normally provided by the independent auditor in auditor has received general pre-approval, it will require specific
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements. Audit Committee pre-approval. In addition, any proposed services
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exceeding pre-approved cost levels require specific pre-approval quality. All such factors will be considered as a whole and no one
by the Audit Committee. factor should necessarily be determinative. The Audit Committee

General pre-approval granted under the Audit Committee’s pre- will also consider the relationship between fees for audit and
approval policy, normally extends to the fiscal year next non-audit services in deciding whether to pre-approve any such
following the date of pre-approval. The Audit Committee reviews services. The Audit Committee may determine for each fiscal year
and pre-approves services that the independent auditor may the appropriate ratio between fees for Audit Services and fees for
provide without obtaining specific Audit Committee pre-approval Audit-Related Services, Tax Services and All Other Services.
on an annual basis and revises the list of general pre-approved The Audit Committee may delegate pre-approval authority to
services from time to time. one or more of its members. The member or members to whom

In determining whether to pre-approve audit or non-audit such authority is delegated shall report any pre-approval
services (regardless of whether such approval is general or decisions to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.
specific pre-approval), the Audit Committee will consider In no instance does the Audit Committee delegate to management
whether such services are consistent with the Securities and its responsibilities to pre-approve services performed by the
Exchange Commission’s rules on auditor independence. The independent auditor.
Audit Committee will also consider whether the independent The Audit Committee has concluded that the provision of non-
auditor is best positioned to provide the most effective and audit services provided to the Company by its independent
efficient service and whether the service might enhance the accountant during the 2004 fiscal year was compatible with
Company’s ability to manage or control risk or improve audit maintaining the independent accountant’s independence.

E q u i t y  C o m p e n s a t i o n  P l a n s
The following table provides information about the Company’s Common Stock that may be issued upon the exercise of options,
warrants and rights under all of the Company’s existing equity compensation plans as of April 30, 2004. The Company currently has four
stock-based compensation plans: the 2003 Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan, the 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors,
the 1999 Stock Option Plan for Seasonal Employees, and the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The shareholders have approved all
of the Company’s stock-based compensation plans. The shareholders approved the 2003 Plan in September 2002 to replace the 1993
Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan, effective July 1, 2003. The 1993 Plan terminated at that time, except with respect to
outstanding awards thereunder. The shareholders had approved the 1993 Plan in September 1993 to replace the 1984 Long-Term
Executive Compensation Plan, which terminated at that time except with respect to outstanding options thereunder.

Number of Securities Remaining Available
Number of Securities to Be Issued Weighted-Average Exercise Price for Future Issuance Under Equity

upon Exercise of Outstanding of Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans Excluding Securities
Options, Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (A)

Plan Category (A) (B) (C)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 14,482,000 $35.86 9,880,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders 0 0 0

Total 14,482,000 $35.86 9,880,000
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C o m p e n s a t i o n  o f  E x e c u t i v e  O ff i c e r s

Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004 and for the two previous fiscal years the annual, long-term and
other compensation paid to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company serving as such during such year and to each of the four highest
paid executive officers of the Company (other than the Chief Executive Officer) who was serving as an executive officer of the
Company at the end of such year and one additional executive officer (Frank J. Cotroneo) who would have been included as one of the
four highest paid executive officers, but for the fact that he was not serving as an executive officer as of April 30, 2004.

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation AwardsRestricted
Other Annual Stock Securities LTIP All Other

Fiscal Salary Bonus Compensation Award(s) Underlying Payouts Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year ($) ($) ($) ($)(1) Options (#) ($) ($)(2)

Mark A. Ernst, 2004 768,750 865,477 1,574 432,500 110,000 -0- 90,958
Chairman of the Board, 2003 741,667 734,063 -0- -0- 120,000 -0- 60,470
President and Chief Executive Officer 2002 683,333 787,500 27 168,032 180,000 -0- 77,554

Robert E. Dubrish, 2004 450,000 438,681 40 229,982 90,000 -0- 66,097(3)

President and Chief Executive Officer, 2003 425,000 414,375 40 138,125 90,000 -0- 29,676
Option One Mortgage Corporation 2002 360,153 297,000 -0- 139,511 60,000 -0- 35,969

Jeffery W. Yabuki, 2004 437,500 383,133 1,482 216,250 90,000 -0- 51,290
Executive Vice President 2003 416,667 352,219 1,440 -0- 90,000 -0- 37,268
and Chief Operating Officer 2002 411,006 365,625 36,601 126,451 90,000 -0- 31,645

Steven Tait 2004 400,000 217,008 272 -0- 40,000 -0- 22,216
President, RSM McGladrey 2003 33,333 -0- -0- 321,375 50,000 -0- 20
Business Services, Inc. 2002 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Brian L. Nygaard 2004 359,167 194,769 4,466 216,250 35,000 -0- 29,057
President and Chief Executive Officer, 2003 350,000 50,050 -0- -0- 50,000 -0- 11,228
H&R Block Financial Advisors, Inc. 2002 171,859 325,655 -0- 509,965 40,000 -0- 2,640

Frank J. Cotroneo (4) 2004 384,334 109,309 1,064 216,250 45,000 -0- 62,352(5)

2003 373,333 262,969 40 -0- 55,000 -0- 24,643
2002 362,500 301,125 9,437 92,392 70,000 -0- 12,126

NOTES:
(1) Restricted shares of the Company’s common stock granted because they represent a portion of Mr. Ernst’s fiscal year

pursuant to the Company’s Long-Term Executive 2002 short-term incentive compensation. As of April 30, 2004,
Compensation Plan. The awards shown represent grants of Mr. Ernst held 12,428 restricted shares with a value of
restricted shares valued as of the date of the grant. Dividends $560,627.
are paid on the restricted shares as when dividends are paid Robert E. Dubrish – For fiscal year 2004, 5,000 shares
on the Company’s common stock. The restricted shares vest in granted on June 30, 2003, valued at 43.25 per share and
one-third annual increments beginning one year after the grant 288 shares granted on June 30, 2004, valued at $47.68 The
date. 288 shares are reported for fiscal year 2004 because they

Mark A. Ernst – For fiscal year 2004, 10,000 shares granted represent a portion of Mr. Dubrish’s fiscal year 2004 short-
on June 30, 2003, valued at $43.25 per share. For fiscal year term incentive compensation. For fiscal year 2003,
2002, 3,641 shares granted on June 30, 2002, valued at $46.15 3,194 shares granted on June 30, 2003, valued at $43.25. The
per share. The shares are reported for fiscal year 2002 shares are reported for fiscal year 2003 because they
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represent a portion Mr. Dubrish’s fiscal year 2003 short-term (Mr. Yabuki) and $10,000 (Mr. Tait), $19,028 (Mr. Nygaard) and
incentive compensation. For fiscal year 2002, 3,023 shares $20,802 (Mr. Cotroneo); (b) the Company’s matching
granted June 30, 2002, valued at $46.15. The shares are contributions under the H&R Block Retirement Savings Plan
reported for fiscal year 2002 because they represent a (‘‘RSP’’) of $5,150 (Mr. Ernst), $6,246 (Mr. Dubrish), $10,218
portion of Mr. Dubrish’s fiscal year 2002 short-term incentive (Mr. Yabuki), $10,000 (Mr. Tait), $9,554 (Mr. Nygaard) and
compensation. As of April 30, 2004, Mr. Dubrish held $4,375 (Mr. Cotroneo); (c) the insurance premiums paid by the
10,210 restricted shares with a value of $460,573. Company with respect to term life insurance maintained by

the Company for the benefit of each of the named executiveJeffery W. Yabuki – For fiscal year 2004, 5,000 granted on
officers of $1,017 (Mr. Ernst), $594 (Mr. Dubrish), $578June 30, 2003, valued at $43.25 per share. For fiscal year
(Mr. Yabuki), $536 (Mr. Tait), $475 (Mr. Nygaard) and $6262002, 2,740 shares granted on June 30, 2002, valued at $46.15
(Mr. Cotroneo); and (d) the economic value of the deathper share. The shares are reported for fiscal year 2002
benefit provided by the Company’s Executive Survivor Planbecause they represent a portion of Mr. Yabuki’s fiscal year
(‘‘ESP’’) of $1,275 (Mr. Ernst), $1,175 (Mr. Dubrish), $6342002 short-term incentive compensation. As of April 30, 2004,
(Mr. Yabuki), $1,680 (Mr. Tait) and $642 (Mr. Cotroneo). TheMr. Yabuki held 6,827 restricted shares with a value of
imputed income reported from the ESP represents the portion$307,966.
of the premium paid by the Company pursuant to the ESP that

Steven Tait – For fiscal year 2003, 7,500 shares granted as a
is attributable to term life insurance coverage for the

part of his initial hiring on April 1, 2003, valued at $42.85 per
executive officer. The ESP provides only an insurance benefit

share. As of April 30, 2004, Mr. Tait held 5,000 restricted
with no cash compensation element to the executive officer.

shares with a value of $225,550.

Brian L. Nygaard – For fiscal year 2004, 5,000 restricted (3) Amount includes a payment to Mr. Dubrish of $14,711 for
shares granted on June 30, 2003, valued at $43.25 per share. carryover paid time off resulting from the combination Option
For fiscal year 2002, 14,500 shares granted as a part of his One’s paid time off plans.
initial hiring on November 5, 2001, valued at $35.17 per share.

(4) Mr. Cotroneo, the Company’s former Senior Vice PresidentAs of April 30, 2004, Mr. Nygaard held 9,834 restricted shares
and Chief Financial Officer, resigned from the Companywith a value of $443,612.
effective October 31, 2003. In connection with such

Mr. Cotroneo – For fiscal year 2004, 5,000 granted on
resignation, Mr. Cotroneo entered into a Termination

June 30, 2003, valued at $43.25 per share. For fiscal year
Agreement with the Company, pursuant to which he was paid

2002, 2,002 shares granted on June 30, 2002, valued at $46.15
$301,476. Such amount represents an aggregate of one-half of

per share. The shares are reported for fiscal year 2002
Mr. Cotroneo’s annual base salary and target short-term

because they represent a portion of Mr. Cotroneo’s fiscal
incentive compensation for the 2004 fiscal year, which is

year 2002 short-term incentive compensation. All of
reflected in the ‘‘Salary’’ and ‘‘Bonus’’ columns above. A

Mr. Cotroneo’s restricted shares were cancelled in
summary of the Termination Agreement is provided under the

connection with his resignation (See Note 4).
heading ‘‘Employment Agreements, Change in Control and

(2) For fiscal year 2004, these figures include the following: (a) the Other Arrangements’’ below.
Company’s matching contributions under the Company’s
Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives (‘‘DCP’’) of (5) Amount includes a severance payment of $35,908 to
$83,516 (Mr. Ernst), $43,371 (Mr. Dubrish), $39,861 Mr. Cotroneo in connection with his resignation (See Note 4).
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Stock Option Grant Table
The following table summarizes options to purchase the Company’s Common Stock granted during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004
to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table (the ‘‘Named Officers’’) above:

Potential Realizable Value at
Assumed Annual Rates of

Stock Price Appreciation for
Individual Grants Option Term(1)

Number of % of Total
Securities Options Granted

Underlying Options to Employees in Exercise Price
Name Granted (#)(2) Fiscal Year ($/Sh)(2) Expiration Date 5% ($) 10% ($)

Mark A. Ernst 110,000 2.94% $43.25 6/30/2013 $2,991,966 $7,582,230
Robert E. Dubrish 90,000 2.41% $43.25 6/30/2013 $2,447,972 $6,203,643
Jeffery W. Yabuki 90,000 2.41% $43.25 6/30/2013 $2,447,972 $6,203,643
Steven Tait 40,000 1.07% $43.25 6/30/2013 $1,087,988 $2,757,174
Brian L. Nygaard 35,000 .94% $43.25 6/30/2013 $ 951,989 $2,412,528
Frank J. Cotroneo (3) 45,000 1.20% $43.25 6/30/2013 -0- -0-

NOTES:
(1) The amounts shown as potential realizable values on the Officers become exercisable two years after the date of grant,

options identified in the table are based on arbitrarily assumed at which time they are exercisable on a cumulative basis at a
annualized rates of appreciation in the price of the Company’s maximum annual rate of one-third of the total number of
Common Stock of five percent and ten percent over the term shares subject to the option. The stock options generally
of the options, as set forth in the rules of the Securities and become fully exercisable (a) at any time after the Named
Exchange Commission relating to proxy disclosure. Actual Officer reaches the age of 65, retires, and more than one year
gains, if any, on stock option exercises are dependent on the has elapsed since the date of grant, or (b) upon a change in
future performance of the Common Stock. There can be no control of the Company not less than six months after the date
assurance that the potential realizable values reflected in this of grant. The Named Officer must be employed by the
table will be achieved. Company or one of its subsidiary corporations at the time of

exercise, except that the exercise of the options may take(2) Stock option grants consisted of nonqualified stock options,
place for limited time periods after the termination ofincentive stock options or a combination of the two types of
employment in the event of death, retirement, disability oroptions. No stock appreciation rights were granted during
termination without cause. All options expire ten years afterfiscal year 2004. Options were granted under the 2003 Long-
the date of grant.Term Executive Compensation Plan. The exercise price for

each option is the fair market value of a share of Common (3) Pursuant to Mr. Cotroneo’s Termination Agreement with the
Stock on the date of grant. Options granted to the Named Company, such options were cancelled on October 31, 2003.
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Option Exercises and Fiscal Year-End Values
The following table summarizes the value realized on the exercise of options during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004 and presents the
value of unexercised options as of such date for the Named Officers. The value of unexercised in-the-money options at fiscal year-end is
calculated by determining the difference between the fair market value of the securities underlying the options at fiscal year-end and
the exercise price of the options multiplied by the number of shares underlying such option.

Value of Unexercised
Number of Securities Underlying In-the-Money

Unexercised Options at Options at FY-
FY-End (#) End ($)

Shares Acquired Value Exercisable (E)/ Exercisable (E)/
Name on Exercise (#) Realized ($) Unexercisable (U) Unexercisable (U)

Mark A. Ernst -0- -0- 654,000(E) $15,317,505(E)
326,000(U) $ 1,772,820(U)

Robert E. Dubrish -0- -0- 217,600(E) $ 5,202,022(E)
214,000(U) $ 758,468(U)

Jeffery W. Yabuki -0- -0- 186,000(E) $ 4,089,295(E)
234,000(U) $ 1,130,430(U)

Steven Tait -0- -0- -0-(E) -0-(E)
90,000(U) $ 219,800(U)

Brian L. Nygaard -0- -0- 13,333(E) $ 132,930(E)
111,667(U) $ 343,570(U)

Frank J. Cotroneo 63,334 $1,398,808 -0-(E) -0-(E)
-0-(U) -0-(U)

C o m p e n s a t i o n  C o m m i t t e e  R e p o r t  o n  E x e c u t i v e  C o m p e n s a t i o n

Compensation Philosophy 
The Company continues to be strongly committed to maximizing � Integrate executive compensation programs with the
shareholder value through consistent growth and profitability. Company’s annual and long-term business objectives and
Superior performance by the executive officers and management focus executive behavior on fulfilling those objectives.
team of the Company and its subsidiary corporations is essential � Provide variable compensation opportunities that relate
to reaching that goal. As such, the Company’s philosophy is to directly to the Company’s performance and align executive
ensure that executive compensation is linked directly to compensation with the interests of the Company’s
sustained improvements in corporate performance and increased shareholders.
shareholder value as measured by the Company’s stock price and
the payment of dividends. The Compensation Committee is Compensation Program
responsible for reviewing the Company’s executive compensation The Company’s executive compensation program is designed to
program and policies each year and recommending to the non- ensure that executive pay levels and incentive opportunities are
employee members of the Board of Directors the compensation competitive and reflect the performance of both the individual
of the Company’s executive officers. executive and the Company. In designing executive

The Compensation Committee has established the following compensation programs and determining executive officer
objectives as guidelines in making compensation decisions: salaries, the Committee considers information provided by

� Provide a competitive total compensation program that compensation consultants and surveys regarding compensation
enables the Company and its subsidiary corporations to paid to executives holding positions with similar responsibilities
attract and retain the key executives needed to accomplish in organizations of comparable size.
the Company’s goals.
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Base Salary. Base salaries are determined by reference to upon how actual results compare to the pre-established
factors such as market surveys, individual salary grades and performance targets.
salary ranges. Salary grade levels are determined by comparing Payments under the Discretionary STI Component for fiscal
jobs to applicable market pay practices and assessing a job’s year 2004 were based upon achievement of measurable strategic
internal value. The primary factors considered in determining the and individual performance objectives that support the
appropriate salary for fiscal year 2004 within a particular salary Company’s priorities. For most executive officers, 20% of the
range were the executive’s individual performance and the ratio executive’s overall targeted STI Program compensation was
of the individual’s prior salary to the mid-point of the salary based on the Discretionary STI Component. Actual incentive
range. Individual executive officers salaries are reviewed annually payouts under the Discretionary Objective STI Component could
by the Committee. be from 0% to 200% of the target award.

Short-Term Incentive Program. The Company’s short-term For fiscal year 2004, the Compensation Committee determined
incentive program (the ‘‘STI Program’’) consists of an objective that the Financial STI Component for executive officers other
incentive compensation component based upon objective, than Senior Executives could be increased or decreased based on
financial-performance-based criteria (the ‘‘Financial STI the associate’s individual performance rating for the fiscal year.
Component’’) and a discretionary incentive compensation Top performers were eligible to receive up to 1.5 times the actual
component based on the achievement of pre-established calculated STI Program payout (increasing the top end of the
individual or strategic objectives (the ‘‘Discretionary STI range of potential actual payouts for these criteria from 200% to
Component’’). Certain aspects of the STI Program differ, 300% of the target award). Associates whose performance ratings
depending upon whether a participant is a senior vice president indicated that they were not consistently meeting expectations
or more senior officer of the Company or one of its operating could have calculated payout amounts reduced by up to 75%.
subsidiaries (‘‘Senior Executive’’). A heavier emphasis for These multipliers provided incentive for stronger individual
executive officers (80% of targeted incentive compensation in performance.
most cases in fiscal year 2004) is placed upon the Financial STI Most short-term incentive compensation is paid in cash. A
Component, which specifically relates executive pay to Company portion of Senior Executives’ performance-based incentive
performance. Payments under the STI Program provide financial compensation, however, is paid in the form of shares of restricted
rewards solely for achieving substantive business results. Under Common Stock so that Senior Executives have more meaningful
the STI Program, the Committee establishes performance goals exposure to the Company’s performance. Payment in the form of
for the Company and its business units, as well as competitive restricted stock also encourages Senior Executive retention.
target bonus awards for the participants (usually a percentage of Accordingly, actual short-term incentive payouts that exceeded
salary). The Committee specifies the performance goals for each 150% of the targeted payouts were paid in the form of restricted
participant and the portion of the target award to which each stock. Restricted stock is issued under the Company’s 2003 Long-
performance goal applies. Term Executive Compensation Plan and is described in more

Payments under the Financial STI Component are paid after detail under ‘‘Long-Term Incentive Compensation’’ below. The
the end of a fiscal year only if the Company (or applicable number of shares of restricted stock awarded was calculated by
business unit) has met the performance goals established by the dividing the cash value of the applicable incentive compensation
Compensation Committee for such fiscal year. The Committee by the last reported closing price for the Company’s stock as of
reviews and approves the payout for an executive officer and June 30, 2004.
certifies the extent to which performance targets have been Short-Term Incentive Compensation Plan. In addition to the
achieved prior to the payment under the Financial STI STI Program, the Company maintains the H&R Block Short-Term
Component. Fiscal year 2004 performance criteria under the Incentive Plan, which was approved by the Company’s
Financial STI Component consisted of the following, depending shareholders on September 13, 2000 (the ‘‘STI Plan). The STI Plan
on the business unit: (i) the degree to which the Company permits the Company to include a bonus compensation
attained targeted year-over-year growth in diluted earnings per component in executive officer compensation intended to qualify
share; (ii) year-over-year growth in pretax earnings; and as deductible performance-based compensation under
(iii) attainment of year-over-year revenue goals. Under the section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
Financial STI Component, participants can earn more or less than amended. Under the STI Plan, the Committee may grant
the target award (from 0% to 200% of the target award) depending performance-based awards to certain officers of the Company or

its subsidiaries who are selected by the Committee, including the
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Company’s Chief Executive Officer and its four other highest paid on the first anniversary of the date of issuance. Options are
executive officers at the end of the applicable tax year. To the granted, and restricted stock is awarded, to executive officers at
extent an officer receives an award under the STI Plan, such the Committee’s discretion. The Committee generally awards
officer does not receive an award under the Financial Component stock options and restricted stock to executive officers on an
of the STI Program. Awards under the STI Plan are based on annual basis. The number of shares subject to any stock option
performance targets established each year by the Committee grant or restricted stock award is based on the executive’s level
based on one or more of the following business criteria: of responsibility, prior year’s performance and future potential.
(a) earnings, (b) revenues, (c) sales of products, services or The Compensation Committee believes that stock options and
accounts, (d) numbers of income tax returns prepared, restricted stock have been effective in attracting, retaining and
(e) margins, (f) earnings per share, (g) return on equity, (h) return rewarding executives and key employees of the Company and its
on capital, and (i) total shareholder return. Fiscal year 2004 subsidiary corporations.
performance criteria under the STI Plan were the same as the In some cases in fiscal year 2004, the Compensation Committee
fiscal year 2004 performance criteria under the Financial awarded to executive officers restricted Stock pursuant to the
Component of the STI Program. 2003 Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan as an inducement

Deferred Compensation. The Company offers to its to accept employment with a subsidiary of the Company or in
executive officers and key employees of its subsidiaries a connection with the STI Program (as described above).
deferred compensation plan designed to enhance the Restricted stock is subject to forfeiture and may not be
participants’ financial security upon retirement. Subject to annual transferred by the executive until certain time restrictions lapse.
deferral limits, the plan offers participants the opportunity to In each case, the Restricted Shares Agreement between the
defer an aggregate of $1 million of compensation during the time Company and the executive officer provides that, prior to the
of his or her participation in the plan. The Company contributes time restricted stock vests, (i) such restricted stock is
to the plan an annual match of 100% of the first 5% of aggregate nontransferable, (ii) the officer is entitled to receive any cash
salary and bonus deferred to the plan and the Company’s dividends payable with respect to unvested restricted stock and
qualified retirement plans, less any employer matching (iii) the officer is entitled to vote such unvested restricted stock
contributions made to one of the Company’s qualified retirement shares at any meeting of shareholders of the Company.
plans. Vesting in such Company contributions is based on the Executive Stock Ownership Guidelines. The Company
number of years of plan participation as an employee. Gains or believes that its executives should have a significant financial
losses are posted to a participant’s account in accordance with stake in the Company so that their interests are aligned with
his or her selection of various fixed rate, variable rate and those of the shareholders. To that end, the Board of Directors has
Company stock investment alternatives. The plan is unfunded adopted stock ownership guidelines that set forth the Board’s
and benefits are paid upon termination of employment, except in expectations that certain executives should own shares of
cases of disability or hardship. Company stock with an aggregate value that meets or exceeds

Long-Term Incentive Compensation. The Company certain specified multiples of the executive’s base salary. The
encourages stock ownership by executive officers of the Board has adopted similar stock ownership guidelines with
Company. Long-term incentive awards tied to the Company’s respect to stock ownership by Board members. The Board
Common Stock, such as stock options and restricted stock, are member ownership guidelines are a multiple of the annual
designed to encourage stock ownership. Stock options and retainer paid to non-employee Directors.
restricted stock provide incentive to executives by giving them an
economic interest in managing for stock price appreciation, Compensation of Chief Executive Officer
thereby better aligning their interests with those of the The salary, short-term incentive compensation and long-term
Company’s shareholders. Under the Company’s 2003 Long-Term incentive compensation of the Chief Executive Officer are
Executive Compensation Plan, option exercise prices are set at determined by the Committee substantially in conformity with
100% of the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant and the policies described above for all other executives of the
the options generally expire after ten years. Options granted to Company.
executive officers in fiscal year 2004 become exercisable over a Mark A. Ernst has served as President and Chief Executive
three-year period on a cumulative basis in one-third increments. Officer of the Company since January 1, 2001 and as Chairman of
Restrictions on restricted stock granted in fiscal year 2004 lapse the Board since September 11, 2002. Mr. Ernst is a party to an
over a three-year period in one-third annual increments beginning employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Company entered
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into at the time of his employment by such subsidiary in 1998. compensation paid to any one executive officer named in the
Mr. Ernst’s annual base rate of salary was increased from Summary Compensation Table of the Company’s proxy
$750,000 to $772,500, effective July 1, 2003. In addition, the statement, subject to certain transition rules and exceptions for
Committee established a target award under the STI Plan for specified types of performance-based compensation.
Mr. Ernst for fiscal year 2004 of $494,400, 100% of which is tied to The Committee believes that it is in the Company’s and
the following objective, performance-based criteria with payouts shareholders’ best interests to maximize tax deductibility only
for each criteria component ranging from 0% to 200% against when practicable and consistent with the Committee’s overall
threshold to maximum target levels: (i) 40% was based on year- compensation philosophy, the needs of the Company and
over-year growth in overall corporate earnings per share of 7.8% shareholder interests. The Committee may award non-deductible
to 25.0% (with the incentive payout at the target award upon compensation when it believes that such awards are in the best
15.9% growth), (ii) 10% was based on year-over-year growth in interest of the shareholders, balancing tax efficiency with long-
overall revenue of 5.5% to 12.0% (with the incentive payout at the term strategic objectives.
target award upon 8.0% growth) and (iii) 50% was tied to The Committee believes the H&R Block Short-Term Incentive
individual business unit performance targets. Based upon the Plan and compensation payable under the 2003 Long-Term
results achieved by the Company, Mr. Ernst earned incentive Executive Compensation Plan in the form of stock options satisfy
compensation under the STI Plan of $705,577 (143% of target). the requirements for exemption under Section 162(m). With the

Under the Discretionary STI Component of the STI Program a Committee’s primary focus on performance-based compensation
target award of $123,600 (20% of annual base pay) was under these Plans, it expects to continue to qualify most
established for Mr. Ernst, with an actual payout to be an amount compensation paid to the named executive officers as tax
between 0% and 200% of the target award, as determined by the deductible.
Compensation Committee based upon the Company’s measurable

COMPENSATION COMMITTEEperformance against pre-established individual objectives. The
Louis W. Smith, ChairmanCompensation Committee determined that Mr. Ernst earned
Henry F. Frigonincentive compensation under the Discretionary STI Component
Tom D. Seipof $159,900 (130% of target) due primarily to his role in
Rayford Wilkins, Jr.(i) developing best-in-class mortgage segment financial and

reporting controls, (ii) strengthening the corporate legal function,
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider(iii) addressing issues pertaining to the Company’s refund
Participationanticipation loan product, (iv) completing comprehensive
The following non-employee directors serve on thestrategic and operational reviews of the Company’s Financial
Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors:Services and Business Services segments, and (v) involving the
Louis W. Smith (Chairman), Henry F. Frigon, Tom D. Seip andBoard of Directors in the corporate headquarters site analysis
Rayford Wilkins, Jr. No directors on the Compensationprocess. All of Mr. Ernst’s short-term incentive compensation was
Committee (a) are or have been officers or employees of thepaid in cash.
Company or any of its subsidiaries, or (b) had any relationshipsMr. Ernst was granted an option to purchase 110,000 shares of
requiring disclosure in the proxy statement.Common Stock at an option price of $43.25 per share, the last

quoted market price for the Company’s Common Stock on
June 30, 2003, the date of grant. Such option has a term of ten Employment Agreements, Change-in-Control and Other
years and vests in one-third annual increments beginning on the Arrangements
first anniversary of the date of grant. Mr. Ernst was also awarded Mark A. Ernst is subject to an Employment Agreement with HRB
10,000 shares of restricted stock. Restrictions on such restricted Management, Inc. (‘‘HRB’’), an indirect subsidiary of the
stock lapse over a three-year period in one-third annual Company, dated July 16, 1998, whereby effective September 1,
increments beginning June 30, 2004. 1998, he was employed as the Executive Vice President and Chief

Operating Officer of the Company. The Agreement provides for
Tax Considerations an initial base salary at an annual rate of $400,000; participation
Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended in the Company’s Short-Term Incentive Plan; 72,000 restricted
(the ‘‘Code’’), and Treasury Regulations relating thereto limit to shares of the Company’s Common Stock (‘‘Common Stock’’)
$1 million the Company’s federal income tax deduction for (split-adjusted) awarded on the effective date; and a stock option
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to purchase 300,000 shares of Common Stock (split-adjusted) may be zero. In addition, in such circumstances, Option One is
granted on the effective date. Base salary and incentive bonus obligated to provide health, life and disability insurance benefits
compensation are to be reviewed annually by the Compensation for up to 12 months following such termination, and all
Committee. The Agreement provides that it may be terminated by outstanding stock options that would have vested in the 18-month
either party at any time for any reason upon 45 days’ prior written period following termination become fully vested and are
notice, by HRB for ‘‘cause,’’ and by Mr. Ernst for ‘‘good reason,’’ exercisable for the three-month period following termination or
in each case as defined in the Agreement. If the Agreement is the severance period.
terminated by HRB without ‘‘cause,’’ by Mr. Ernst for ‘‘good During the 2004 fiscal year, Mr. Dubrish maintained a margin
reason,’’ or by either party during the 180-day period following account with H&R Block Financial Advisors, Inc. to pay
the date of a ‘‘change of control’’ (as defined in the Agreement) of withholding taxes upon the vesting of restricted stock. The
the Company, HRB is obligated to continue to pay Mr. Ernst’s largest aggregate amount of indebtedness outstanding in the
salary (determined as of the termination date) and provide all margin account at any time during the 2004 fiscal year was
other benefits for a period of two years following such $321,891. As of July 1, 2004 there was no outstanding balance in
termination, as well as a pro rata portion of the incentive bonus this account and the account has been closed. This margin
compensation to which he would have been entitled had he account was established in the ordinary course of business and
remained employed through the end of the fiscal year in which on substantially the same terms, including interest rates,
such termination occurs. In addition, all outstanding stock collateral and repayment terms as those prevailing at the time for
options become fully vested and are exercisable for the three- comparable transactions with other customers.
month period following termination, and any restrictions upon Jeffery W. Yabuki is subject to an Employment Agreement with
Common Stock awarded Mr. Ernst on the effective date lapse and HRB dated September 7, 1999, whereby effective September 7,
such stock becomes fully vested upon the date of termination. 1999, he was employed as the President, H&R Block

Robert E. Dubrish is subject to an Employment Agreement International. The Agreement provides for an initial base salary at
with Option One Mortgage Corporation (‘‘Option One’’), an an annual rate of $250,000; participation in the Company’s Short-
indirect subsidiary of the Company, dated February 9, 2002, and Term Incentive Plan; a $70,000 bonus upon continued
effective June 30, 2001. The Agreement provides for a base salary employment by HRB through April 30, 2000; 67,600 restricted
at an annual rate of $360,000 as of the effective date and a stock shares of Common Stock (split-adjusted) awarded on the
option to purchase 60,000 shares of Common Stock (split- effective date; a stock option to purchase 80,000 shares of
adjusted) granted as of the effective date. Base salary and any Common Stock (split-adjusted) granted on the effective date; and
incentive bonus compensation are to be reviewed annually by the a stock option to purchase a minimum 44,000 shares of Common
Compensation Committee. The Agreement provides that it may Stock (split-adjusted) granted on the date in fiscal year 2001 on
be terminated by either party at any time for any reason upon 45 which options are granted to all or substantially all other senior
days’ prior written notice. Option One also has the right to executives of the Company and its subsidiaries. Base salary and
terminate the Agreement without notice upon the occurrence of incentive bonus compensation are to be reviewed annually by the
certain stated events. If Mr. Dubrish incurs a ‘‘qualifying Compensation Committee. The Agreement provides that it may
termination,’’ as defined in the H&R Block Severance Plan (the be terminated by either party at any time for any reason upon
‘‘Severance Plan’’), or if the Agreement is terminated by 45 days’ prior written notice, by mutual written agreement, by
Mr. Dubrish within 180 days following a ‘‘change of control’’ (as HRB for ‘‘cause,’’ and by Mr. Yabuki for ‘‘good reason,’’ in each
defined in the Agreement) of the Company, Option One is case as defined in the Agreement. If the Agreement is terminated
obligated to pay to Mr. Dubrish his choice of the level of by HRB without ‘‘cause,’’ by Mr. Yabuki for ‘‘good reason,’’ or by
severance compensation and benefits as would be provided under either party within 180 days following a ‘‘change of control’’ (as
the Severance Plan as such plan exists either on the effective date defined in the Agreement) of the Company, HRB is obligated to
of the Agreement or on Mr. Dubrish’s last day of employment. As pay to Mr. Yabuki for the two-year period following such
of the effective date, the Severance Plan provides maximum termination compensation at an annual rate equal to the sum of
compensation of 18 months of salary and one and one-half times the annual rate of base salary in effect on the date of termination
target payout under the STI Program, with the actual amount and the aggregate short-term incentive compensation paid by
based upon Mr. Dubrish’s salary and target payout, salary grade HRB to him for the last fiscal year completed prior to the year of
and length of service with all subsidiaries of the Company at the termination, and provide health, life and disability insurance
time of his termination, as well as a discretionary payment, which benefits for a period of two years following such termination. In
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addition, all outstanding stock options which would have vested November 5, 2001 he was employed as President and Chief
during such two-year period following termination become fully Executive Officer of H&R Financial Advisors, Inc. The Agreement
vested and are exercisable for the three-month period following provides for a base salary at an annual rate of $350,000 for the
termination, and any restrictions upon stock held by Mr. Yabuki first year, 14,500 restricted shares of Common Stock awarded on
lapse to the extent such restrictions would have lapsed during the the effective date, a stock option to purchase 40,000 shares of the
two-year period following termination. Company’s Common Stock granted as of the date in fiscal year

Steven Tait is subject to an Employment Agreement with HRB 2002 on which options are granted to substantially all senior
Business Services, Inc. (now RSM McGladrey Business Services, executives of the Company and participation in the Company’s
Inc.) (‘‘RSM’’), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, dated Short-Term Incentive Plan, with a target award for calendar year
April 1, 2003, whereby effective April 1, 2003, he was employed as 2001 of not less than $300,000. Base salary, any additional salary
President of RSM. The Agreement provides for an initial base and incentive compensation are to be reviewed annually by the
salary at an annual rate of $400,000; participation in the Compensation Committee during the term of the Agreement. The
Company’s Short-Term Incentive Plan with a target bonus for Agreement provides that it may be terminated by the parties’
fiscal year 2004 of $220,000; 7,500 restricted shares of the mutual written agreement or by either party for ‘‘good reason,’’ as
Company’s Common Stock awarded on the effective date; a stock defined in the Agreement. ‘‘Good reason’’ is defined to include a
option to purchase 50,000 shares of Common Stock granted on substantial reduction in Mr. Nygaard’s duties and a material
the effective date; and a stock option to purchase a 40,000 shares breach of the Agreement by the Company. If the Agreement is
of Common Stock granted on the date in fiscal year 2004 on terminated by the Company without ‘‘cause’’ or within 180 days
which options are granted to all or substantially all other senior following a ‘‘Change of Control,’’ or by Mr. Nygaard for ‘‘good
executives of the Company and its subsidiaries. Base salary is to reason,’’ as such terms are defined in the Agreement, the
be reviewed for adjustment no less than annually. The Agreement Company is obligated to pay to Mr. Nygaard the level of
provides that it may be terminated by either party at any time for compensation and severance benefits as would be provided under
any reason upon 45 days’ prior written notice. RSM also has the the Severance Plan as such plan exists either on the date of Mr.
right to terminate the Agreement without notice upon the Nygaard’s employment agreement or on Mr. Nygaard’s last day of
occurrence of certain stated events. If Mr. Tait incurs a active employment with the following adjustments: (a) the
‘‘qualifying termination,’’ as defined in the H&R Block Severance ‘‘Severance Period’’ shall be 24 months, (b) Mr. Nygaard will be
Plan (the ‘‘Severance Plan’’), or if the Agreement is terminated by credited with 24 ‘‘Years of Service’’ for purposes of determining
Mr. Tait within 180 days following a ‘‘change of control’’ (as severance compensation, (c) Mr. Nygaard will receive a payment
defined in the Agreement) of the Company, RSM is obligated to in lieu of the severance payment under the Severance Plan equal
pay to Mr. Tait his choice of the level of severance compensation to his most recent payment under the H&R Block Short-Term
and benefits as would be provided under the Severance Plan as Incentive Plan and the discretionary short-term incentive
such plan exists either on the effective date of the Agreement or program (except in the case of a ‘‘Change of Control’’ that occurs
on Mr. Tait’s last day of employment. As of the effective date, the in calendar year 2002, which case, Mr. Nygaard will receive
Severance Plan provides maximum compensation of 18 months $192,500), (d) all outstanding stock options become fully vested
of salary and one twelfth of the target payout under the STI and are exercisable for the three-month period following
Program multiplied by Mr. Tait’s years of service, as well as a termination and (e) any nonvested restricted shares of Common
discretionary payment, which may be zero. In addition, in such Stock awarded pursuant to the Agreement become fully vested.
circumstances, RSM is obligated to provide medical, dental, The Severance Plan could provide up to a maximum of 18
vision, employee assistance, life insurance, cafeteria plan and months’ of salary based upon the base salary at the time of
accidental death and dismemberment insurance benefits for up to termination, a pro-rata share of Mr. Nygaard’s target payout
12 months following such termination, and all outstanding stock under the Short-Term Incentive Program based upon the period in
options that would have vested in the 18-month period following such fiscal year in which Mr. Nygaard is employed by the
termination become fully vested and are exercisable for the Company and a possible discretionary amount. In addition, in
three-month period following termination or the severance such circumstances, the Company is obligated to provide health,
period. life and disability insurance benefits for the one-year period

Brian L. Nygaard is subject to an Employment Agreement with following such termination, all outstanding stock options which
H&R Block Financial Advisors, Inc., an indirect subsidiary of the would have vested in the 18-month period following termination
Company, dated November 5, 2001 whereby effective become fully vested and are exercisable for the three-month
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period following termination, and any shares of restricted stock consolidation do not, immediately after such reorganization or
held by Mr. Nygaard become fully vested upon the date of consolidation, own more than 50% of the voting securities of the
termination. reorganized or consolidated organization, or (B) the sale of all or

Mr. Cotroneo and HRB entered into a Termination Agreement substantially all of the assets of the Company, or (iv) approval by
dated September 3, 2003 (the ‘‘Termination Agreement’’), the Company’s shareholders of a liquidation or dissolution of the
whereby Mr. Cotroneo’s employment and his Employment Company.
Agreement with HRB terminated on October 31, 2003 (the
‘‘Termination Date’’). Under the Termination Agreement, HRB Performance Graph
agreed to (1) pay Mr. Cotroneo $301,476 over a 6-month period The graph below sets forth for the five-year period ended April 30,
beginning on the Termination Date in semi-monthly equal 2004, the cumulative total shareholder return to the Company’s
installments of $25,123, (2) allow Mr. Cotroneo to remain eligible shareholders, as well as the cumulative total return of the
to participate in those health and welfare plans maintained by Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and the cumulative total
HRB offering medical, dental, vision, employee assistance, return of the Standard & Poor’s Diversified Commercial Services
flexible spending account, life insurance and accidental death and Index, the published industry index to which the Company is
dismemberment insurance benefits during the 6-month period currently assigned by Standard & Poor’s. The performance graph
beginning on the Termination Date, and (3) allow Mr. Cotroneo to assumes that $100 was invested at the market close on April 30,
exercise stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s 1999 and that dividends were reinvested. The data for the graph
common stock that were outstanding and exercisable as of the was furnished by Research Data Group, Inc.
Termination Date, for the first 3 months after the Termination
Date. In exchange, Mr. Cotroneo agreed to, among other things,
release the Company and all its subsidiaries from any and all
claims.

Stock option agreements entered into on or after June 30, 1996
between the Company and the recipients of stock options granted
pursuant to the 1993 Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan
and the 2003 Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan contain
provisions that accelerate the vesting of options held more than
six months in the event of certain changes in control. For
purposes of such agreements, changes in control include (i) the 0
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purchase or other acquisition by a person, entity or group of
persons of beneficial ownership of 20% or more of the Company’s Cumulative Total Shareholder Return
voting securities, (ii) the turnover of more than a majority of the
directors on the Board of Directors as a result of a proxy contest 4/99 4/00 4/01 4/02 4/03 4/04
or series of contests, (iii) either approval (for agreements entered

H&R BLOCK, INC. 100.00 88.93 120.65 178.87 175.02 207.80
into prior to June 30, 2001) by the Company’s shareholders or S & P 500 100.00 110.13 95.84 83.74 72.60 89.21
completion (for agreements entered into on or after June 30, S & P DIVERSIFIED

COMMERCIAL2001) of (A) a reorganization or consolidation such that the
SERVICES 100.00 82.08 101.71 109.86 101.18 146.59shareholders immediately prior to the reorganization or
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I n f o r m a t i o n  R e g a rd i n g  S e c u r i t y  H o l d e r s

Security Ownership of Directors and Management
The following table shows as of June 1, 2004 the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by each director and nominee
for election as director, by each of the Named Officers and by all directors and executive officers as a group. The number of shares
beneficially owned is determined under rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The information is not necessarily indicative
of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Under these rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares as to which the individual
has either sole or shared voting power or investment power and also any shares that the individual has the right to acquire within
60 days through the exercise of any stock option or other right. Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes, each person has sole voting
and investment power with respect to shares set forth in the following table.

Number of Shares

Beneficially Share Units and Percent
Name Owned(1) Share Equivalents(2) Total of Class

G. Kenneth Baum 231,601 6,448 238,049 *
Thomas M. Bloch 264,113(3) 0 264,113 *
Frank J. Cotroneo 10,000 0 10,000 *
Robert E. Dubrish 358,138(4) 0 358,138 *
Donna R. Ecton 43,135 2,549 45,684 *
Mark A. Ernst 884,233(5) 0 884,233 *
Henry F. Frigon 32,001(6) 4,387 36,388 *
Roger W. Hale 55,584 2,548 58,132 *
Bryan L. Nygaard 61,170(7) 0 61,170 *
Tom D. Seip 5,001 1,367 6,368 *
Louis W. Smith 26,001 9,236 35,237 *
Steven Tait 20,834(8) 0 20,834 *
Rayford Wilkins, Jr 10,001 2,668 12,669 *
Jeffery W. Yabuki 303,918(9) 2,207 306,125 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (23 persons) 2,546,908(10)(11) 32,781 2,579,689 1.5%

* Less than 1%

(1) Includes shares that on June 1, 2004 the specified person had the ownership of 150,000 shares held by M&H Bloch Partners, LP,
right to purchase as of June 30, 2004 pursuant to options granted in except to the extent of his partnership interest therein.
connection with the Company’s 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside
Directors or the Company’s Long-Term Executive Compensation (4) Includes 10,210 shares of restricted stock granted under the
Plans, as follows: Mr. Baum, 42,001 shares; Mr. Bloch, 10,001 shares; Company’s Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan.
Mr. Dubrish, 292,006 shares; Ms. Ecton, 38,001 shares; Mr. Ernst,
766,675 shares; Mr. Frigon, 28,001 shares; Mr. Hale, 42,001 shares; (5) Includes 12,428 shares of restricted stock granted under the
Mr. Nygaard, 41,670 shares; Mr. Seip, 4,001 shares; Mr. Smith, Company’s Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan and
22,001 shares; Mr. Tait, 13,334 shares; Mr. Wilkins, 10,001 shares; and 2,912 shares held in the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the
Mr. Yabuki, 246,006 shares. ‘‘ESPP’’).

(2) These amounts reflect share unit balances in the Company’s (6) Mr. Frigon has shared voting and shared investment power withDeferred Compensation Plan for Directors, the Company’s Deferred
respect to 4,000 of these shares.Compensation Plan for Executives and/or the Company’s Stock Plan

for Non-Employee Directors. The value of the share units mirrors the (7) Includes 9,834 shares of restricted stock granted under thevalue of the Company’s Common Stock. The share units do not have
Company’s Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan.voting rights.

(3) Mr. Bloch has shared voting and shared investment power with (8) Includes 5,000 shares of restricted stock granted under the
respect to 168,000 of these shares. Mr. Bloch disclaims beneficial Company’s Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan.
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(9) Includes 6,827 shares of restricted stock granted under the Schedule 13G indicates that Mr. Buffett, Berkshire Hathaway,
Company’s Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan, Inc., OBH Inc. and National Indemnity Company share voting
977 shares held in the ESPP and 1,195 in the Company’s and dispositive power over the shares.
401(k) plan. (2) Information as to the number of shares and the percent of

(10) Includes shares held by certain family members of such Common Stock outstanding is as of December 31, 2003 and is
directors and officers or in trusts or custodianships for such furnished in reliance on the Schedule 13G of Harris Associates
members (directly or through nominees) in addition to L.P. and Harris Associates Inc., filed with the SEC on
1,764,744 shares which such directors and officers have the February 13, 2004. The Schedule 13G indicates that the
right to purchase as of June 30, 2004 pursuant to options number of shares beneficially owned includes
granted in connection with the Company’s stock option plans. 14,302,700 shares with shared voting power, 3,113,600 shares

with sole dispositive power and 11,189,100 shares with shared(11) Includes 2,386,432 shares held with sole voting and
dispositive power.investment powers and 172,000 shares held with shared

voting and investment powers. (3) Information as to the number of shares and the percent of
Common Stock outstanding is as of December 31, 2003 and is

Principal Security Holders furnished in reliance on the Schedule 13G of Davis Selected
The following table sets forth the name, address and share Advisers, L.P., filed with the SEC on February 12, 2004.
ownership of each person or organization known to the Company
to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
Common Stock of the Company. The information provided is Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the
based upon Schedule 13G filings with the Securities and Company’s directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of
Exchange Commission. more than 10% of any class of the Company’s equity securities to

file reports of ownership and changes in ownership of the
Percent of Company’s Common Stock. To the best of the Company’s

Shares Common knowledge, all required reports were filed on time and all
Beneficially Stock

transactions by the Company’s directors and executive officers
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned Outstanding

were reported on time except for (a) the failure to timely report
Warren E. Buffett, 14,610,900 8.2%(1)

on Form 4 for Mr. Yabuki the disposition of 306 shares as theBerkshire Hathaway Inc., OBH Inc.,
result of the withholding of stock to pay taxes upon the vesting ofand National Indemnity Company

1440 Kiewit Plaza Restricted Shares; (b) the failure to timely report on Form 4 for
Omaha, Nebraska 68131 Mr. Bloch the acquisition if 150,000 shares by M&H Bloch
Harris Associates L.P. 14,302,700 8.02%(2) Partners, Inc. (Mr. Bloch is a general partner of M&H Bloch
Harris Associates Inc. Partners, Inc. and disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares
Two North LaSalle

except to the extent of his partnership interest therein); (c) theStreet, Suite 500
failure to timely report on Form 4 for Melanie K. Coleman theChicago, Illinois 60602-3790
acquisition of 72.73 deferred compensation units in the H&RDavis Selected Advisers, L.P. 9,089,540 5.1%(3)

Block Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives (‘‘DCP Units’’)2949 East Elvira
Road, Suite 101 between July 15, 2003 and December 15, 2003; (c) the failure to
Tucson, Arizona 85706 timely report on Form 4 for Mr. Tait the acquisition of 123.773

(1) Information as to the number of shares and the percent of DCP Units between July 15, 2003 and December 15, 2003. Each
Common Stock outstanding is as of December 31, 2003 and is DCP Unit has the value of one share of Common Stock. The
furnished in reliance on the last-filed Schedule 13G of Warren failures to timely report were inadvertent and, as soon as the
E. Buffett, Berkshire Hathaway Inc., OBH, Inc. and National oversights were discovered, the transactions were promptly
Indemnity Company filed on February 17, 2004. The reported.
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S h a re h o l d e r  P ro p o s a l s  a n d  N o m i n a t i o n s
In order for a shareholder proposal to be considered for inclusion contain the information required by the Company’s bylaws.
in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting Similarly, a shareholder wishing to submit a director nomination
pursuant to Rule 14a-8 of the Securities and Exchange directly at an annual meeting of shareholders must deliver
Commission, the Company must receive notice at our offices at written notice of the nomination within the time period described
4400 Main Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64111, Attention: in this paragraph and comply with the information requirements
Corporate Secretary, on or before March 25, 2005. Applicable in our bylaws relating to shareholder nominations.
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and regulations A proxy may confer discretionary authority to vote on any
govern the submission of shareholder proposals and our matter at a meeting if we do not receive notice of the matter
consideration of them for inclusion in next year’s proxy within the time frames described above. A copy of the Company’s
statement and form of proxy. bylaws is available on our website at www.hrblock.com under the

Pursuant to the Company’s bylaws, for any business not tab ‘‘Our Company’’ and then under the heading ‘‘Investors –
included in the proxy statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting to Governance Documents,’’ or upon request to: H&R Block, Inc.,
be brought before the meeting by a shareholder, the shareholder 4400 Main Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64111, Attention:
must give timely written notice of that business to the Corporate Corporate Secretary. The Chairman of the meeting may exclude
Secretary. To be timely, the notice must be received no later than matters that are not properly presented in accordance with the
June 8, 2005 (45 days prior to July 23, 2005). The notice must foregoing requirements.

O t h e r  M a t t e r s
The Board of Directors knows of no other matters which will be presented at the meeting, but if other matters do properly come before
the meeting, it is intended that the persons named in the proxy will vote according to their best judgment.

By Order of the Board of Directors
BRET G. WILSON
Secretary
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A P P E N D I X  A

H & R  B L O C K ,  I N C .
B O A R D  O F  D I R E C T O R S  I N D E P E N D E N C E  S TA N D A R D S

Pursuant to New York Stock Exchange listing standards, no director’s immediate family members, has been employed as
director qualifies as being an independent director unless the an executive officer of another company for which an
Board of Directors affirmatively determines that the director has executive officer of the Company serves on the
no material relationship with H&R Block, Inc. or any of its compensation (or equivalent) committee.
subsidiaries (collectively, the ‘‘Company’’), either directly or � At any time during the three years immediately preceding the
indirectly as a partner, shareholder or officer of an organization date of determination, the Company made payments to, or
that has a relationship with the Company. received payments from, a company, firm or professional

The Board of Directors has established the categorical entity of which or in which (i) the director is currently is an
standards to assist it determining the independence of directors. executive officer, partner or employee, or owns in excess of
Pursuant to these standards, a director will not be considered a 10% equity interest or (ii) the director’s immediate family
independent if: members currently is an executive officer or partner or owns

� At any time during the three years immediately preceding the in excess of a 10% equity interest; provided that such
date of determination, the director was an employee of the payments are in an amount exceeding the greater of
Company or any of the director’s immediate family was an $1 million or 2% of such other company’s consolidated gross
executive officer of the Company. revenues for such other company’s most recent full fiscal

� At any time during the three years immediately preceding the year.
date of determination, the director (or any of the director’s � The director (or any of the director’s immediate family)
immediate family) received more than $100,000 per year in serves as an officer, director or trustee of a charitable
direct compensation from the Company other than organization to which the Company gives directly or
(i) director or committee fees (including fees for service on indirectly through its foundation, more than $200,000 or 5%
the board of directors of subsidiary or affiliated companies) of the organization’s total annual charitable receipts during
and (ii) pension or other forms of deferred compensation for its last full fiscal year (whichever is greater).
prior service (provided such compensation is not contingent An individual will be considered to be affiliated with a
in any way on continued service). corporation or other entity if that individual controls, is

� At any time during the three years immediately preceding the controlled by or is under common control with the corporation or
date of determination, the director has been employed by (or other entity. An ‘‘immediate family member’’ includes a person’s
affiliated with) a present or former internal or external spouse, parents, children, siblings, mothers in law, fathers in law
auditor of the Company that had an auditing relationship and any one (other than domestic employees) who shares such
with the Company during such three year period or any of person’s home.
the director’s immediate family members have been so The Board of Directors will determine the independence of any
affiliated or employed in a professional capacity. director with a relationship to the Company that is not covered

� At any time during the three years immediately preceding the by the above standards.
date of determination, either the director, or any of the
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A P P E N D I X  B

H & R  B L O C K ,  I N C .
1 9 8 9  S T O C K  O P T I O N  P L A N  F O R  O U T S I D E  D I R E C T O R S
( A S  A M E N D E D )

1. Purposes. The purposes of this 1989 Stock Option Plan for (h) ‘‘Stock Option’’ shall mean the right to purchase, upon
Outside Directors are to attract and retain experienced and exercise of a Stock Option granted under this Plan, shares of the
qualified directors who are not employees of the Company or any Common Stock. Such Stock Options are non-statutory stock
Subsidiary of the Company, and to secure for the Company and options and are not intended to be ‘‘incentive stock options’’ as
its shareholders the benefits of stock ownership in the Company defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
by those directors. (i) ‘‘Subsidiary of the Company’’ shall mean a subsidiary of the
2. Definitions. Company, its divisions, departments, and subsidiaries and the

(a) ‘‘Board of Directors’’ shall mean the board of directors of respective divisions, departments and subsidiaries of such
the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, as the case may subsidiaries.
be. 3. Administration of the Plan. The Plan may be administered

(b) ‘‘Common Stock’’ shall mean the common stock, without by the Company’s Board of Directors or an Option Committee
par value, of the Company. (the ‘‘Committee’’), as the Board of Directors of the Company

(c) ‘‘Company’’ shall mean H&R Block, Inc., a Missouri may in its sole discretion decide. All Outside Directors shall be
corporation. ineligible to vote upon any matter concerning the Stock Options

(d) ‘‘Director’’ shall mean a member of the Board of Directors including adoption of this Plan. The Committee, if it is established
of the Company or a member of the Board of Directors of any by the Company’s Board of Directors to administer the Plan, shall
Subsidiary of the Company, as the case may be. consist of directors of the Company who are not Outside

(e) ‘‘Outside Director’’ shall mean a member of the Board of Directors, to be appointed by and to serve at the pleasure of the
Directors of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company who Board of Directors of the Company. A majority of the Committee
is not an employee of the Company on the date of grant of the members shall constitute a quorum and the acts of a majority of
Stock Option. As used herein, ‘‘employee of the Company’’ means the members present at any meeting at which a quorum is
any full-time employee of the Company, its subsidiaries and their present, or acts approved in writing by all members of the
respective divisions, departments and subsidiaries and the Committee, shall be valid acts of the Committee. All references
respective divisions, departments and subsidiaries of such herein to the Committee shall be deemed to mean any successor
subsidiaries who is employed at least thirty-five (35) hours a to the Committee, however designated, or the Board of Directors
week; provided, however, it is expressly understood that an of the Company if the Board has not approved a Committee.
employee of the Company does not include independent The Committee shall have full power and authority to construe,
contractors or other persons not otherwise employed by the interpret and administer the Plan and, subject to the powers
Company or any Subsidiary of the Company but who provide herein specifically reserved to the Company’s Board of Directors
legal, accounting, investment banking or other professional and subject to the other provisions of this Plan, to make
services to the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company. determinations which shall be final, conclusive and binding upon

(f) ‘‘Plan’’ shall mean this 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside all persons, including, without limitation, the Company, the
Directors, as the same may be amended from time to time. shareholders of the Company, the Board of Directors, the

(g) ‘‘Recipient’’ shall mean an Outside Director of the Recipients and any persons having any interest in any Stock
Company or any Subsidiary of the Company who has been Options which may be granted under this Plan. The Committee
granted a Stock Option under the Plan or any person who shall impose such additional conditions upon Stock Options
succeeds to the rights of such Outside Director under this Plan by granted under this Plan and the exercise thereof as may from
reason of the death of such Outside Director. time to time be deemed necessary or advisable, in the opinion of

counsel to the Company, to comply with applicable laws and
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regulations. The Committee from time to time may adopt rules Section 6. This Section 6 shall not apply to Outside Directors of
and regulations for carrying out the Plan and written policies for Subsidiaries of the Company who are not also Outside Directors
implementation of the Plan. Such policies may include, but need of the Company on the date of grant.
not be limited to, the type, size and terms of Stock Options to be 7. Stock Subject to the Plan. The total number of shares of
granted to Outside Directors of the Subsidiaries of the Company Common Stock issuable under this Plan may not at any time
and the conditions for payment of Stock Options by Recipients. exceed 800,000 shares, subject to adjustment as provided in

The initial Committee shall consist of Henry W. Bloch, Sections 14 and 15 hereof. Shares of Common Stock not actually
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, Jerome B. issued pursuant to Stock Options shall be available for future
Grossman, Vice Chairman of the Company, and Thomas M. Bloch, Stock Options. Shares of Common Stock to be delivered or
President of the Company. purchased under the Plan may be either authorized but unissued
4. Absolute Discretion. The Committee may, in its sole and Common Stock or treasury shares.
absolute discretion, from time to time during the continuance of 8. Vesting Requirements. The Committee may determine that
the Plan, (i) determine which Outside Directors of any Subsidiary all or a portion of a Stock Option shall be vested at such times
of the Company shall be granted Stock Options under the Plan, and upon such terms as may be selected by it. All Stock Options
(ii) grant Stock Options to any Outside Directors of any shall expire as to all of their unexercised shares ten years after
Subsidiary of the Company so selected, (iii) determine the type, the date of their grant.
date of grant, size and terms of Stock Options to be granted to 9. Stock Option Price. The purchase price per share of
Outside Directors of any Subsidiary of the Company (subject to Common Stock under each Stock Option granted hereunder shall
Sections 7, 9 and 10 hereof, as the same may be hereafter be equal to the last reported sale price, regular way, for the
amended), (iv) determine the terms other than the date of grant, Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of
size and stock option price of Stock Options granted pursuant to grant (or, if said date of grant falls on a non-business day, then on
Section 6 hereof to Outside Directors of the Company, (v) place the next preceding business date on which the stock is quoted) of
conditions or restrictions on the receipt of Stock Options by such Stock Option.
Outside Directors of any Subsidiary of the Company or on the 10. Payment of Stock Option Price. Payment for exercise of
payment or exercise of any Stock Options, and (vi) do all other any Stock Option granted hereunder shall be made (a) in cash, or
things necessary and proper to carry out the intentions of this (b) by delivery of Common Stock having a market value equal to
Plan. the aggregate option price, or (c) by a combination of payment of
5. Eligibility. Stock Options may be granted to any Outside cash and delivery of Common Stock in amounts such that the
Director; however, subject to Section 6 hereof, no Outside amount of cash plus the market value of the Common Stock
Director or other person shall have any claim or right to be equals the aggregate option price.
granted a Stock Option under the Plan. No member of the 11. Continuation as Director. The Committee shall require
Committee (other than an ex officio member) shall be eligible for that a Recipient be an Outside Director at the time a Stock Option
grants of Stock Options under the Plan. is granted and may require that a Recipient be an Outside
6. Prescribed Stock Options for Outside Directors of the Director at the time a Stock Option is exercised. The Committee
Company. During the continuance of the Plan, a Stock Option may provide for the termination of an outstanding Stock Option if
to purchase an aggregate of 4,000 shares of Common Stock shall a Recipient ceases to be an Outside Director and may establish
be granted on each date of grant specified in this Section 6 to such other provisions with respect to the termination or
each Outside Director of the Company serving as such on such disposition of a Stock Option on the death or retirement of a
date of grant. Stock Options specified in this Section 6 shall be Recipient as it, in its sole discretion, deems advisable. The
granted on September 11, 1991, and on June 30 of each year Committee shall have the sole power to determine the date of any
thereafter in which the Plan is in effect. The stock option price of circumstances which shall constitute cessation as a Director and
each share of Common Stock subject to a Stock Option granted to determine whether such cessation is the result of retirement,
pursuant to this Section 6 shall be determined in accordance with death or any other reason.
Section 9 hereof. Outside Directors of the Company shall not be 12. Registration of Stock. No Stock Option may be exercised
granted Stock Options pursuant to the Plan other than as at any time when its exercise or the delivery of shares of
specified in this Section 6, provided that no Stock Options Common Stock or other securities thereunder would, in the
granted pursuant to this Plan prior to September 11, 1991, shall opinion of counsel for the Company, be in violation of any state
be invalidated or otherwise affected by the provisions of this or federal law, rule or ordinance, including any state or federal
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securities laws or any regulation or ruling of the Securities and the Company and the Recipients. No Recipient shall have or
Exchange Commission. If at any time counsel for the Company acquire any rights under the Plan except such as are evidenced by
shall determine that qualification or registration under any state a duly executed agreement in the form thus specified.
or federal law of the shares of Common Stock or other securities 18. No Shareholder Privileges. Neither the Recipient nor any
thereby covered, or the consent or approval of any governmental person claiming under or through him or her shall be or have any
regulatory body, is necessary or desirable as a condition of or in of the rights or privileges of a shareholder of the Company in
connection with the exercise of such Stock Option or the respect to any of the Common Stock issuable upon the exercise
purchase of shares thereunder, the Stock Option may not be paid of any Stock Option, unless and until certificates evidencing such
or exercised in whole or in part unless and until such shares of Common Stock shall have been duly issued and
qualification, registration, consent or approval shall have been delivered.
effected or obtained free of any conditions such counsel deems 19. Guidelines. The Board of Directors of the Company shall
unacceptable. have the power to provide guidelines for administration of the
13. Non-assignability. No Stock Option granted pursuant to Plan by the Committee and to make any changes in such
the Plan shall be transferable or assignable by the Recipient other guidelines as from time to time the Board deems necessary.
than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant to 20. Amendment and Discontinuance. The Board of Directors
a qualified domestic relations order as defined by the Internal of the Company shall have the right at any time during the
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or Title I of the Employee continuance of the Plan to amend, modify, supplement, suspend
Retirement Security Act, or the rules thereunder. During the or terminate the Plan, provided that (a) no amendment,
lifetime of the Recipient a Stock Option granted pursuant to the supplement, modification, suspension or termination of the Plan
Plan shall be exercisable only by the Recipient. shall in any manner affect any Stock Option of any kind
14. Dilution or Other Adjustments. In the event of any theretofore granted under the Plan without the consent of the
change in the capital structure of the Company, including but not Recipient of the Stock Option, unless such amendment,
limited to a change resulting from a stock dividend or split-up, or supplement, modification, suspension or termination is by reason
combination or reclassification of shares, the Board of Directors of any change in capital structure referred to in Section 14 hereof
of the Company shall make such equitable adjustments with or unless the same is by reason of the matters referred to in
respect to the Stock Options or any provisions of this Plan as it Section 15 hereof; (b) Sections 6 and 9 herein shall not be
deems necessary or appropriate, including, if necessary, any amended or modified more than once in any six-month period,
adjustment in the maximum number of shares of Common Stock other than to comport with changes in the Internal Revenue Code
subject to an outstanding Stock Option. of 1986, as amended, or the rules thereunder and (c) if the Plan is
15. Merger, Consolidation, Reorganization, Liquidation, Etc. duly approved by the shareholders of the Company, no
If the Company shall become a party to any corporate merger, amendment, modification or supplement to the Plan shall
consolidation, major acquisition of property for stock, thereafter, in the absence of the approval of the holders of a
reorganization or liquidation, the Board of Directors of the majority of the shares of Common Stock of the Company present
Company shall make such arrangements it deems advisable with in person or by proxy at a duly constituted meeting of
respect to outstanding Stock Options, which shall be binding shareholders of the Company, (i) increase the aggregate number
upon the Recipients of outstanding Stock Options, including, but of shares which may be issued under the Plan, unless such
not limited to, the substitution of new Stock Options for any increase is by reason of any change in capital structure referred
Stock Options then outstanding, the assumption of such Stock to in Section 14 hereof, (ii) change the termination date of the
Options and the termination of or payment for such Stock Plan provided in Section 21 hereof, or (iii) delete or amend the
Options. provisions of Section 9 hereof relating to the establishment of the
16. Costs and Expenses. The cost and expenses of stock option price.
administering the Plan shall be borne by the Company and not 21. Termination. Stock Options may be granted in accordance
charged to any Stock Option nor to any Recipient. with the terms of the Plan until December 5, 2009, on which date
17. Stock Option Agreements. The Committee shall have the this Plan will terminate except as to Stock Options then
power to specify the form of Stock Option Agreements to be outstanding hereunder, which Stock Options shall remain in
granted from time to time pursuant to and in accordance with the effect until they have expired according to their terms.
provisions of the Plan and such agreements shall be final, 22. Approval. This Plan shall take effect upon due approval by
conclusive and binding upon the Company, the shareholders of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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A P P E N D I X  C

H & R  B L O C K ,  I N C .
1 9 9 9  S T O C K  O P T I O N  P L A N  F O R  S E A S O N A L  E M P L O Y E E S
( A S  A M E N D E D )

Article 1. Establishment of the Plan. H&R BLOCK, INC., a and binding upon all persons, including without limitation the
Missouri corporation (the ‘‘Company’’), hereby formulates and Company, Tax Services, the stockholders, the Board of Directors
adopts the 1999 Stock Option Plan for Seasonal Employees (the and any persons having any interest in any options which may be
‘‘Plan’’) whereby there may be granted to seasonal employees of granted under the Plan. The Committee may impose such
H&R Block Services, Inc. (an indirect subsidiary of the Company) additional conditions upon the grant and exercise of options
and the direct and indirect, majority-owned subsidiaries of under this Plan as may from time to time be deemed necessary or
H&R Block Services, Inc. (such corporation, such direct and desirable, in the opinion of counsel of the Company, to comply
indirect subsidiaries, and their successor entities, if any, to be with applicable laws and regulations. The Committee from time
referred to herein as ‘‘Tax Services’’), options to purchase shares to time may adopt rules and regulations for carrying out the Plan.
of the Company’s Common Stock, without par value (such shares Article 4. Eligibility. Options shall be granted on June 30 of
being hereinafter sometimes referred to for convenience as each year the Plan is in effect (the ‘‘date of grant’’) only to
‘‘Common Stock’’ or ‘‘stock’’ or ‘‘shares’’). ‘‘Eligible Seasonal Employees’’ of Tax Services for such year. The
Article 2. Purpose of the Plan. The purpose of the Plan is to term ‘‘Eligible Seasonal Employees’’ for any calendar year during
advance and promote the interests of the Company, Tax Services which the Plan is in effect shall include all those employees of
and the Company’s stockholders by providing a method whereby Tax Services who (a) are hired to perform for limited periods of
seasonal employees of Tax Services may acquire Common Stock time during such year jobs specifically designated by Tax Services
under options to purchase the same subject to the conditions to be seasonal jobs and (b) have adhered to the working hours
hereinafter or therein provided. The Plan is further intended to agreed upon during such year.
provide seasonal employees who may be granted such options Article 5. Stock Subject to the Plan. The shares of Common
with additional incentive to continue in the employ of Tax Stock to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Services on a seasonal basis and to increase their efforts to Plan shall be made available, at the discretion of the Board of
promote the best interests of the Company, Tax Services and the Directors of the Company, either from authorized but unissued
Company’s stockholders. stock of the Company or from shares that have been purchased
Article 3. Administration of the Plan. The Plan shall be by the Company from any source whatever, but the aggregate
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of number of shares for which options may be granted under the
Directors of the Company (the ‘‘Committee’’) consisting of three Plan shall not exceed 23,000,000 shares of Common Stock of the
or more directors of the Company, to be appointed by and to Company. If an option granted under the Plan shall be
serve at and during the pleasure of the Board of Directors of the surrendered or shall for any reason whatsoever expire or
Company. All references herein to the Committee shall be terminate in whole or in part without the exercise thereof, then
deemed to mean the Board of Directors of the Company if the the shares of stock which were subject to any such option shall, if
Board has not appointed a Committee. A majority of the the Plan shall then be in effect, be available for options thereafter
Committee shall constitute a quorum and the acts of a majority of granted under the Plan.
the members present at any meeting at which a quorum is Article 6. Method of Participation. Each Eligible Seasonal
present, or acts approved in writing by a majority of the Employee who either (i) is an employee of Tax Services on
Committee, shall be valid acts of the Committee. The Committee April 15 (or the next business day if it falls on a Saturday, Sunday
shall have full power and authority to construe, interpret and or holiday) of each calendar year the Plan is in effect, or (ii) has
administer the Plan and, subject to the powers herein specifically been an employee of Tax Services for at least an aggregate of
reserved to the Board of Directors and to the other provisions of 100 working days during the 12-month period ending with the
this Plan, to make determinations which shall be final, conclusive date of grant, shall be granted an option to purchase one share of
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Common Stock for each $100 of the total compensation earned business day then on the next preceding business date on which
by him or her during and throughout the 12-month period ending the stock is quoted) of such year.
with the date of grant (such total compensation during such Article 9. Terms and Conditions of Options. The terms and
period to be referred to herein as ‘‘Total Compensation’’), conditions of each option granted hereunder shall be set forth in
provided, however, that (a) each Eligible Seasonal Employee who a written notice to the employee to whom such option is granted.
is not entitled to an option grant under the provisions of this Said terms and conditions shall be consistent with the provisions
Article 6 on June 30, 1999 (regardless of whether or not such of the Plan and shall include but not be limited to the following:
Eligible Seasonal Employee was employed on or before such A. Continuation of Employment. The grant of an option
date), but who, with respect to any subsequent date of grant under this Plan shall not confer on the optionee any right to
during the term of the Plan, otherwise meets the requirements of continue in the employ of Tax Services or to be employed by the
this Article 6, shall be granted as of such subsequent date of grant Company or any of its subsidiaries, nor shall it limit the right of
an option to purchase one share of Common Stock for each $200 Tax Services to terminate the employment of any optionee at any
of Total Compensation in lieu of an option to purchase one share time.
of Common Stock for each $100 of Total Compensation, (b) no B. Periods of Exercising Option. An option may be
employee shall be granted an option to purchase in excess of 100 exercised only between the dates of September 1 through
of said shares in any calendar year under the Plan, (c) no November 30 of either of the two calendar years immediately
employee shall be granted an option if such employee’s Total following the calendar year in which said option was granted, and
Compensation for the applicable year is less than $4,000 ($500 for said option shall expire as to all shares subject thereto which are
an option granted on June 30, 1999), and (d) any fractional shares not so exercised.
which would otherwise be subject to an option under the Plan C. Conditions of Exercising Option. If an optionee shall not
shall be adjusted to the nearest whole number of shares. As be an Eligible Seasonal Employee, as defined in Article 4, for a
promptly as possible after June 30 of each year the Plan is in year in which he or she would be otherwise entitled to exercise
effect (but effective as of such date), each Eligible Seasonal an option under this Plan (‘‘Exercise Year’’), or shall not have
Employee shall be notified in writing of the number of shares earned actual Total Compensation during the 12-month period
optioned to him or her under the Plan, the option price and the ending on June 30 of such Exercise Year which is at least equal to
terms and conditions of said option, as described in Article 9. 50% of the actual Total Compensation earned by him or her
Article 7. Adjustment upon Changes in Capitalization. In the during the 12-month period ending on June 30 of the year in
event a merger, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, which the option was granted (‘‘Grant Year’’), he or she shall not
stock dividend, stock split, or other change in the corporate be entitled to exercise his or her option for such Grant Year;
structure or capitalization affecting the Company’s capital stock provided, however, if the optionee shall become a full-time
shall occur, an appropriate adjustment shall be made in (a) the employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including,
number of shares of stock available for options under the Plan but not limited to, Tax Services) prior to August 1 of such
and subject to outstanding options, (b) the purchase price per Exercise Year he or she shall be entitled to exercise said option
share for each outstanding option, and (c) the provisions of for such Grant Year, provided he or she is a full-time employee of
Article 6, provided that, no adjustment shall be made in the the Company or one of its subsidiaries at the time the option is
provisions of Article 6 in the event of a stock dividend or stock exercised. The option must be exercised by the optionee in
split. Any adjustment to the Plan shall be made by the Board of writing (unless otherwise authorized by the Company) within the
Directors and, when so made, shall be effective and binding for periods above specified with respect to all or part of the shares
all purposes of the Plan and of all options then outstanding. optioned and accompanied by full payment of the option price
Article 8. Option Price. Each year this Plan is in effect, the thereof. Only one exercise shall be permitted with respect to a
purchase price per share under each option granted during such single option. If an optionee exercises an option for less than all
year shall be equal to the last reported sale price, regular way, for of the shares subject to such option, the optionee shall lose all
the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange (or, if the rights to exercise the option for the balance of the shares subject
stock is not then traded on such exchange, the last reported sale to the option. No optionee will be deemed to be a holder of any
price, regular way, on such other national exchange or NASDAQ shares subject to an option unless and until certificates for such
or other system on which such stock is traded and reported), in shares are issued to him or her under the terms of the Plan. As
each case on the date of grant (or if said date falls on a non- used herein, ‘‘full-time employee’’ means an individual in the
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employ of the Company or one of its subsidiaries in a job suspend or terminate the Plan, provided that no employee’s rights
designated by the applicable employer to be a full-time job. existing at the effective time of such amendment, modification,

D. Non-transferability of Option; Termination upon Death. supplement, suspension or termination are adversely affected
The option shall be exercisable only by the optionee and shall not thereby, and provided further that, in the absence of the approval
be transferable by him or her. The option shall terminate upon of the holders of a majority of the shares of Common Stock of the
the death of the optionee. Company present in person or by proxy at a duly constituted

E. Qualification of Stock. Each option shall be subject to meeting of the shareholders of the Company, no such
the requirement that if at any time the Board of Directors of the amendment, modification or supplement shall (i) increase the
Company shall determine, in its discretion, that qualification or aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued
registration of the shares of stock thereby covered under any under the Plan, unless such increase is by reason of any change in
state or federal law, or the consent or approval of any the capital structure referred to in Article 7 hereof, (ii) materially
governmental regulatory body, is necessary or desirable as a modify the requirements as to eligibility for participation in the
condition of or in connection with the granting of such option or Plan, or (iii) materially increase the benefits accruing to
the purchase of shares thereunder, the option may not be participants under the Plan.
exercised in whole or in part unless and until such qualification Article 11. Effective Date; Expiration of Plan. The Plan shall
or registration, consent or approval shall have been effected or be effective on June 30, 1999 (with the grant of options on that
obtained free of any conditions not acceptable to the Board of date) and, unless extended, shall terminate on December 31,
Directors of the Company, at its discretion. 2006, but no termination of the Plan, whether under the
Article 10. Amendment and Discontinuance. The Board of provisions of this Article 11 or otherwise, shall affect the
Directors of the Company shall have the right at any time during continuance of any option granted hereunder prior to said date.
the continuance of the Plan to amend, modify, supplement,
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I N T R O D U C T I O N A N D F O R W A R D L O O K I N G S TAT E M E N T S
This year we have chosen to combine our Annual Report on Form 10-K, which we In this report, and from time to time throughout the year, we share our
are required to file annually with the Securities and Exchange Commission expectations for the Company’s future performance. These forward-looking
(‘‘SEC’’), and our Annual Report to Shareholders. Certain portions of our Annual statements are based upon current information, expectations, estimates and
Report to Shareholders, including our consolidated financial statements and projections regarding the Company, the industries and markets in which we
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of operate, and our assumptions and beliefs at that time. These statements speak
Operations, have historically been filed as exhibits to the Form 10-K. We hope that only as of the date on which they are made, are not guarantees of future
by including all of this information in one document, you will find this year’s performance, and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, which are
Annual Report more useful and informative. difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results could materially differ

Specified portions of our proxy statement, which will be filed in July 2004, are from what is expressed, implied or forecast in these forward-looking statements.
listed as ‘‘incorporated by reference’’ in response to certain items. Our proxy Words such as ‘‘believe,’’ ‘‘will,’’ ‘‘plan,’’ ‘‘expect,’’ ‘‘intend,’’ ‘‘estimate,’’
statement will be printed within our Annual Report and mailed to shareholders in ‘‘approximate,’’ and similar expressions may identify such forward-looking
July 2004 and will also be available on our website at www.hrblock.com. statements.

PA RT  I

I T E M  1 . B U S I N E S S

G e n e r a l D e v e l o p m e n t o f B u s i n e s s
H&R Block is a diversified company delivering tax products and services and Key to achieving our mission and vision is the enhancement of client
financial advice, investment and mortgage products and services, and business experiences through consistent delivery of valuable services and advice.
and consulting services. For nearly 50 years, we have been developing Operating through multiple lines of business allows us to better meet the changing
relationships with millions of tax clients and our strategy is to expand on these financial needs of our customers. Developments during fiscal year 2004 within our
relationships. Our tax services segments provide income tax return preparation operating segments are described below in ‘‘Description of Business.’’
services, electronic filing services and other services and products related to H&R Block, Inc. was organized as a corporation in 1955 under the laws of the
income tax return preparation to the general public in the United States, and also State of Missouri, and is a holding company with operating subsidiaries providing
in Canada, Australia and the United Kingdom. We also offer investment services tax and financial products and services to the general public. ‘‘H&R Block,’’ ‘‘the
and securities products through H&R Block Financial Advisors, Inc. (‘‘HRBFA’’). Company,’’ ‘‘we,’’ ‘‘our’’ and ‘‘us’’ are used interchangeably to refer to H&R Block,
Our mortgage services segment offers a full range of home mortgage products and Inc. or to H&R Block, Inc. and its subsidiaries, as appropriate to the context.
services through Option One Mortgage Corporation (‘‘OOMC’’) and H&R Block Recent Developments. We continue to believe share repurchase is one of the
Mortgage Corporation (‘‘HRBMC’’). RSM McGladrey Business Services, Inc. best ways we return value to our shareholders. On June 9, 2004, the Board of
(‘‘RSM’’) is a national accounting, tax and consulting firm primarily serving mid- Directors approved the repurchase of an additional 15 million shares. On June 11,
sized businesses. 2003, the Board of Directors approved the repurchase of 20 million shares and we

repurchased 10.6 million shares during fiscal year 2004.
H&R BLOCK’S MISSION During fiscal year 2004, we began operating former major franchise territories

‘‘To help our clients achieve their financial
as company-owned tax operations, as discussed further below in ‘‘Description ofobjectives by serving as their tax

and financial partner.’’ Business’’ and in Item 7.

H&R BLOCK’S VISION
‘‘To be the world’s leading provider of financial

services through tax and accounting
based advisory relationships.’’

F i n a n c i a l I n f o r m a t i o n A b o u t I n d u s t r y S e g m e n t s
See discussion below and in Item 8, note 21 to our consolidated financial
statements.

D e s c r i p t i o n o f B u s i n e s s

U.S. Tax Operations
General. Our U.S. Tax Operations segment is primarily engaged in providing tax (‘‘RALs’’). Segment revenues constituted 50% of our consolidated revenues for
return preparation, filing and related services and products in the United States. fiscal years 2004 and 2003, and 56% for fiscal year 2002.
Revenues include fees earned for tax-related services performed at company- Retail income tax return preparation and related services is our original
owned retail tax offices, royalties from franchise retail tax offices, sales of Peace business. These services are provided by tax professionals via a system of retail
of Mind (‘‘POM’’) guarantees, sales of tax preparation and other software, fees offices operated directly by us or by franchisees. In addition to our retail offices,
from online tax preparation, and fees related to refund anticipation loans we offer a number of digital tax preparation alternatives.

1 –
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TaxCut˛ from H&R Block enables do-it-yourself users to prepare their federal taxpayer in the amount of the refund, less the bank’s transaction fee and our tax
and state tax returns easily and accurately. Our software products may be return preparation fee, a system administration fee as applicable, and/or other
purchased through third-party retail stores, direct mail or online. fees for client-selected services. A RAC is not a loan, but allows our clients to

Clients also have many online options: multiple versions of do-it-yourself tax receive their refund faster and allows their tax preparation fees to be paid directly
preparation, professional tax review, tax advice and tax preparation through a tax out of their refund.
professional, whereby the client completes a tax organizer and sends it to a tax Additionally, digital tax clients can use a RAC so their federal, state and
professional for preparation and/or signature. electronic filing fees can be paid directly out of their refund.

By offering professional and do-it-yourself tax preparation options through Other Services and Products. We also offer the following services and
multiple channels, we can serve our clients in the manner in which they choose to products:
be served. � If one of our tax professionals makes an error in preparing a client’s tax

We also offer clients a number of options for receiving their income tax refund, return or if our online service or TaxCut software causes an error that results
including a check directly from the Internal Revenue Service (‘‘IRS’’), an in the assessment of any interest or penalties on additional taxes due, we
electronic deposit directly to their bank account, a refund anticipation check or a guarantee payment of the interest and penalties, but not the additional taxes,
RAL. under our standard guarantee.

Block Advantage. When clients have tax returns prepared by our tax � Beginning in fiscal year 2004, if due to our error on a return the client is
professionals or online, they also receive a Block Advantage report and entitled to a larger refund or smaller tax liability than what we calculated, we
consultation, which provides free, personalized tax and financial-related will refund the tax preparation fee for that return, when claimed within the
information and guidance for use throughout the year. This report also includes a calendar year, under our maximum refund guarantee.
summary of their tax return. The service helps identify opportunities for clients to � Our Double Check Challenge encourages taxpayers to bring previously
potentially minimize tax liability, maximize tax refunds, take advantage of new filed returns, which were not prepared by us, to one of our offices for review
savings created by tax law changes, and, in some cases, take advantage of at no charge. One of our tax professionals reviews the returns to determine if
government and other programs that may help the client’s financial situation. the taxpayer should file an amended return for a tax refund which otherwise

Peace of Mind Guarantee. The POM guarantee is offered to tax clients, would have been lost due to overlooked credits or deductions or other
whereby we will assume the cost, subject to certain limits, of additional taxes reasons.
owed by a client resulting from errors attributable to one of our tax professionals. � Electronic filing reduces the amount of time required for a taxpayer to
The POM program has a per client cumulative limit of $5,000 in additional taxes receive a federal tax refund and provides additional assurance to the client
assessed with respect to the federal, state and local tax returns we prepare for the the return is mathematically accurate.
taxable year covered by the program. There is an additional charge for the POM � Individual retirement accounts (‘‘Express IRAs’’), invested in FDIC-insured
guarantee, except at H&R Block Premium offices. money market accounts, are offered to tax clients as a tax savings strategy

RALs. RALs are offered to our tax clients by a designated bank through a and as a retirement savings tool. HRBFA acts as custodian on the accounts,
contractual relationship with Household Tax Masters, Inc. (‘‘Household’’). An with the funds being invested at insured depository institutions paying
eligible electronic filing client may apply for a RAL at one of our offices. After competitive money market interest rates.
meeting certain eligibility criteria, clients are offered the opportunity to apply for � ‘‘EasyPay’’ revolving loans are offered by Imperial through a contractual
a loan from Imperial Capital Bank (‘‘Imperial’’) in amounts up to $7,000 based relationship with Household to clients whose tax returns reflect a balance
upon their anticipated federal income tax refund. We simultaneously transmit the due to the IRS. The loan has ‘‘same as cash’’ terms for approximately 90 days.
income tax return information to the IRS and the lending bank. Within a few days � We offer income tax return preparation courses to the public, which
or less after the filing date, the client receives a check in the amount of the loan, teach taxpayers how to prepare income tax returns and provide us with a
less the bank’s transaction fee, our tax return preparation fee, a system source of trained tax professionals.
administration fee, if applicable, and/or other fees for client-selected services. Online Tax Preparation. We offer a comprehensive range of tax products and
Additionally, qualifying electronic filing clients are eligible to receive their RAL services, from tax advice to complete professional and do-it-yourself tax return
proceeds, less applicable fees, in approximately one hour after electronic filing preparation and electronic filing, through our website at www.hrblock.com and
under a product known as Instant Money. For a RAL to be repaid, the IRS directly www.taxcut.com. Our branded websites and partner sites provide clients the
deposits the participating client’s federal income tax refund into a designated ability to purchase digital tax services and products. These products and services
account at the lending bank. See related discussion of RAL participations below. allow them to prepare their Federal and state income tax returns using the Online

Software and online clients may obtain an Electronic Refund Advance (‘‘ERA’’). Tax Program (‘‘OTP’’), access tax tips, advice and tax-related news and use
ERAs are also loan products, through Imperial, that allow a client to have a RAL calculators for tax planning.
deposited directly into his or her bank account, usually within two days after the In addition to the standard OTP, we offer several other online tax products and
IRS accepts the taxpayer’s electronically filed return. services, including Online drop-off, OTP Premium, OTP Signature and OTP Young

RACs. Refund Anticipation Checks (‘‘RACs’’) are offered to clients who may Adult, as well as Ask a Tax Advisor. We also offer our online and software
not wish to obtain a RAL or do not qualify for the RAL program, but who would customers ERAs as discussed above under ‘‘RALs.’’
like to either (i) receive their refund faster and do not have a bank account for the Beginning with the fiscal year 2003 tax season, we participated in the newly
IRS to direct deposit their refund or (ii) have their tax preparation fees paid formed Free File Alliance. This alliance was created by the tax return preparation
directly out of their refund. With a RAC, the IRS directly deposits the client’s industry and the IRS, and allows qualified lower-income filers to prepare and file
refund into an account set up by the lending bank within approximately three their federal return online at no charge.
weeks after the tax return is electronically filed. A check is then issued to the

– 2



Fo rm  10 -K – H&R  BLOCK

Software Products. We develop and market TaxCut income tax preparation In addition to our regular offices, we offer tax return preparation services and
software, H&R Block DeductionProTM, Kiplinger’s Home and Business Attorney products at H&R Block Premium offices in the United States. Appealing to
and Kiplinger’s WILLPowerSM software products. taxpayers with more complex returns, H&R Block Premium stresses the

TaxCut Standard Edition offers a simple step-by-step tax preparation interview, convenience of appointments, year-round tax service from the same tax
data imports from money management software and tax preparation software, professional and private office interviews. The number of H&R Block Premium
calculations, completion of the appropriate tax forms, checking for errors and, for offices in fiscal year 2004 was 405, compared to 427 and 446 in fiscal years 2003
an additional charge, electronic filing. and 2002, respectively. In fiscal year 2004, the number of H&R Block Premium

TaxCut EZ Edition offers a simple step-by-step tax interview, data imports from clients was 455,000 compared to 504,000 and 559,000 for fiscal years 2003 and
money management software and tax preparation software for taxpayers qualified 2002, respectively.
to file 1040EZ forms and, for an additional charge, electronic filing. Offices in shared locations include 742 offices in Sears stores operated as ‘‘H&R

The TaxCut Deluxe Edition offers all the features in the Standard edition plus Block at Sears’’ and 553 offices operated in Wal-Mart stores. We are a party to
video tax advice from the experts at H&R Block and Kiplinger Personal Finance license agreements with both Sears and Wal-Mart relating to the operation in these
magazine, access to IRS publications, a tax and financial planning library, one free locations throughout the United States. The Sears license agreement expires on
TaxCut state program after mail-in rebate and free electronic filing after mail-in December 31, 2004 and the Wal-Mart agreement expires on May 30, 2005, both
rebate. subject to termination rights.

The TaxCut Premium Edition offers all the features in the Deluxe Edition, plus We have primarily granted two types of franchises — franchises, formerly called
access to free live professional tax advice from an H&R Block tax professional ‘‘satellite’’ franchises, and major franchises. Our franchise arrangements provide
after mail-in-rebate (through H&R Block’s Ask a Tax Advisor service) and a us with certain rights designed to protect our brand; however, these arrangements
number of additional features to help users address more complex tax situations. do not provide us with the right to make significant decisions regarding franchise

The TaxCut Premium for Home & Business Edition offers users all the features activities or control over the day-to-day operations of the franchise.
included in the Premium Edition, plus an additional program to help business Major franchisees cover larger cities and counties and provide for payment of
owners complete their Federal business returns. franchise royalties based upon a percentage of gross revenues of their offices. At

H&R Block DeductionPro helps taxpayers track and accurately value their the end of fiscal year 2004, we only have one remaining major franchisee. Under
charitable deductions by providing fair-market valuations for hundreds of the agreements, we granted to each franchisee the right to use the name ‘‘H&R
commonly donated household goods. Block’’ and provided a policy and procedure manual and other supervisory

Clients Served. We, together with our franchisees, served approximately services. We offer to sell furniture, signs, advertising materials, office equipment
19.2 million clients in the United States during fiscal year 2004, compared to and supplies to major franchisees. Each major franchisee selects and trains the
19.4 million in fiscal year 2003 and 19.5 million in fiscal year 2002. ‘‘Clients served’’ employees for its office or offices. Since March 1993, HRB Royalty, Inc. has been
includes taxpayers for whom we prepared income tax returns in offices, federal the franchisor under the major franchise agreements.
software units sold, online completed and paid federal returns and paid online We have also granted other franchises in smaller localities. These franchisees
state returns when no federal return was purchased, as well as taxpayers for receive signs, designated equipment, specialized forms, local advertising, initial
whom we provided only paid electronic filing services. Returns for our clients training, and supervisory services, and consequently, pay us a higher percentage
constituted 15.6% of an IRS estimate of total individual income tax returns filed as of gross tax return preparation and related service revenues as a franchise royalty
of April 30, 2004, compared to 15.9% in fiscal year 2003 and 15.6% in fiscal year than do major franchisees. Many of our franchises are located in cities with
2002. populations of 15,000 or less. Some major franchisees also grant franchises to sub-

Owned and Franchised Offices. All offices are open during the tax season. franchisees in their respective areas. Of the total 3,699 franchise offices in fiscal
During the rest of the year, only a limited number of offices are open, but H&R year 2004, 304 were operated by major franchisees, 230 were operated by
Block personnel are available by telephone to provide service to clients franchisees of major franchisees and 3,165 were operated by other franchisees.
throughout the entire year. A summary of our company-owned and franchise It has always been our policy to grant tax return preparation franchises to
offices is as follows: qualified persons without an initial franchise fee, although we do require a deposit

to secure compliance with franchise contracts.
April 30, 2004 2003 2002

From time to time, we have acquired the territories of existing franchisees and
Company-owned offices 4,746 4,672 4,417 other tax return preparation businesses, and will continue to do so if future

Former major franchise territories(1) 459 — — conditions warrant and satisfactory terms can be negotiated.
Company-owned shared locations(2) 947 607 600 During fiscal year 2000, we placed most of our major franchises on notice that

we would not be renewing their respective franchise agreements as of the nextTotal company-owned offices 6,152 5,279 5,017
renewal date. The related major franchise agreements accordingly expired inFranchise offices 3,374 3,398 3,373
fiscal year 2004, and we began operating the tax preparation businesses asFormer major franchise territories(1) — 529 524
company-owned operations in the former major franchise territories. The majorFranchise shared locations(2) 325 95 101
franchise agreements required us to pay the franchisee a ‘‘fair and equitable price’’Total franchise offices 3,699 4,022 3,998
for the franchise business. During fiscal year 2004, we made payments ofTotal offices 9,851 9,301 9,015
$243.2 million related to the acquisition of assets and stock in the franchise

(1)
Impact of company-owned offices in former major franchise territories that commenced territories of ten of our former major franchisees. Two former major franchises
operations during fiscal year 2004. entered into new franchise agreements. One franchisee is continuing litigation(2)
Shared locations include offices located within Wal-Mart, Sears or other third-party

businesses.
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challenging the post-expiration restrictive covenants and also disputing the preparation of income tax returns. Preparers may be prohibited from further
payment due under the franchise agreement terms. acting as income tax return preparers if they continuously and repeatedly engage

RAL Participations and 2003 Tax Season Waiver. Since July 1996, we have in specified misconduct. With certain exceptions, the Internal Revenue Code also
been a party to agreements with Household and others to participate in RALs prohibits the use or disclosure by income tax return preparers of certain income
provided by a lending bank to H&R Block tax clients. The 1996 agreement was tax return information without the prior written consent of the taxpayer. In
amended and restated in January 2003 and again in June 2003. In the June 2003 addition, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and Federal Trade Commission regulations
agreement, we obtained the right to purchase a 49.9% participation interest in adopted thereunder require income tax preparers to adopt and disclose consumer
RALs obtained through company-owned offices and a 25% interest in RALs privacy policies, and provide consumers a reasonable opportunity to ‘‘opt out’’ of
obtained through major franchise offices. The current agreement continues having personal information disclosed to unaffiliated third parties for marketing
through June 2006. Our purchases of the participation interests are financed purposes. Some states have adopted or proposed strict ‘‘opt-in’’ requirements in
through short-term borrowings, and we bear all of the credit risk associated with connection with use or disclosure of consumer information.
our interests in the RALs. Revenue from our participation is calculated as the rate We believe the federal legislation regulating commercial tax return preparers
of participation multiplied by the fee paid by the borrower to the lending bank. and consumer privacy has not had and will not have a material adverse effect on
During fiscal year 2002, we participated in RALs in substantially the same manner the operations of H&R Block. In addition, no present state statutes of this nature
as the current year. Our RAL participation revenue was $168.4 in fiscal year 2004 have had a material adverse effect on our business. However, we cannot predict
and $160.0 million in fiscal year 2002. what the effect may be of the enactment of new statutes or adoption of new

In January 2003, we entered into an agreement with Household, whereby we regulations.
waived our right to purchase any participation interests in and to receive fees The federal government regulates the electronic filing of income tax returns in
related to RALs during the period January 1 through April 30, 2003. In part by requiring individuals and businesses to be accepted into the electronic
consideration for waiving these rights, we received a series of payments from filing program. Once accepted, electronic filers must comply with all publications
Household, subject to certain adjustments based on delinquency rates for the 2003 and notices of the IRS applicable to electronic filing, provide certain information
tax season. We recorded revenues totaling $138.2 million during fiscal year 2003. to the taxpayer, comply with advertising standards for electronic filers, and be
The initial payments were recognized as revenue over the waiver period. We subjected to possible monitoring by the IRS, penalties for disclosure or use of
recorded an additional $6.5 million in revenues in fiscal year 2004. The waiver income tax return preparation and other preparer penalties, and suspension from
agreement only covered the 2003 tax season. the electronic filing program. States that have adopted electronic filing programs

Seasonality of Business. Because most of our clients file their tax returns for state income tax returns have also enacted laws regulating electronic filers
during the period from January through April of each year, substantially all of our and the advertising and offering of electronic filing services.
revenues from income tax return preparation and related services and products Federal statutes and regulations also regulate an electronic filer’s involvement
are received during this period. As a result, our tax segment generally operates at in RALs. Electronic filers must clearly explain the RAL is a loan and not a
a loss through the first two quarters of the fiscal year. Historically, these losses substitute for or a quicker way of receiving an income tax refund. Federal laws
primarily reflect wages of year-round personnel, training of tax professionals, place restrictions on the fees an electronic filer may charge in connection with
rental and furnishing of retail tax offices, and other costs and expenses relating to RALs. In addition, some states and localities have enacted laws and adopted
preparation for the upcoming tax season. Additionally, the tax business is affected regulations for RAL facilitators and/or the advertisement and offering of RALs.
by national economic conditions and unemployment rates. There are also many states that have statutes regulating, through licensing and

Competitive Conditions. The tax return preparation and electronic filing other requirements, the activities of brokering loans, providing credit services and
businesses are highly competitive. There are a substantial number of tax return offering ‘‘credit repair’’ services to consumers for a fee (‘‘Loan Activity Statutes’’).
preparation firms and accounting firms offering tax return preparation services. We believe the procedures under which we facilitate RALs are structured so our
Many tax return preparation firms and many firms not otherwise in the tax return activities are not included within the scope of the activities regulated by these
preparation business are involved in providing electronic filing and RAL services Loan Activity Statutes. There can be no assurances, however, that states with
to the public. Commercial tax return preparers and electronic filers are highly these Loan Activity Statutes will not contend successfully that these statutes
competitive with regard to price, service and reputation for quality. In terms of the apply to the RAL business and that we will need to become licensed under the
number of offices and personal tax returns prepared in offices, online and via our Loan Activity Statutes, otherwise comply with statutory requirements, or modify
software, we are the largest company providing direct tax return preparation in procedures so that the Loan Activity Statutes are inapplicable.
the United States. We are also, in terms of the number of offices and tax returns Many states have statutes requiring the licensing of persons offering contracts
electronically filed in fiscal year 2004, the largest provider of electronic filing of insurance. We have received from certain state insurance regulators inquiries
services in the United States. about our POM guarantee program and the applicability of the state insurance

The Digital Tax Solutions businesses compete with a number of companies. statutes. In states where the inquiries are closed, the regulators affirmed our
Intuit, Inc. is the dominant supplier of tax preparation software and is also our position that the POM guarantee is not a contract of insurance and is therefore
primary competitor in the online tax preparation market. There are many smaller not subject to state insurance licensing laws. In the few states where inquiries are
competitors in the online market, as well as free state sponsored online filing pending, we believe there are no insurance laws under which the POM guarantee
programs. constitutes a contract of insurance. There can be no assurances, however, that the

Government Regulation. Primary efforts toward the regulation of product, or other similar products we may offer in the future, will not be
commercial tax return preparers have historically been made at the federal level. scrutinized as potential insurance products and held to be subject to various
Federal legislation requires income tax return preparers to, among other things, insurance laws and regulations.
set forth their signatures and identification numbers on all tax returns prepared by Many of our income tax courses are regulated and licensed in select states.
them, and retain all tax returns prepared for three years. Federal laws also subject Failure to obtain a tax school license could affect our revenues and limit our
income tax return preparers to accuracy-related penalties in connection with the
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ability to develop interest in tax preparation as a career or obtain qualified tax Block’’ are operated by franchisees. Certain aspects of the franchisor/franchisee
professionals. relationship have been the subject of regulation by the Federal Trade Commission

We believe the federal, state and local laws and legislation regulating electronic and by various states. The extent of regulation varies, but relates primarily to
filing, RALs and the facilitation of RALs, loan brokers, credit services, credit disclosures to be made in connection with the grant of franchises and limitations
repair services, insurance products, and proprietary schools have not, and will not on termination by the franchisor under the franchise agreement. To date, no such
in the future, have a material adverse effect on our operations. We cannot predict, regulation has materially affected our business. We cannot predict, however, the
however, what the effect may be of the enactment of new statutes or the adoption effect of applicable statutes or regulations that may be enacted or adopted in the
of new regulations pertaining to these matters. future.

As noted above under ‘‘Owned and Franchised Offices,’’ many of the income tax See discussion in ‘‘Risk Factors’’ for additional information.
return preparation offices operating in the United States under the name ‘‘H&R

Mortgage Operations
General. Our Mortgage Operations segment originates mortgage loans, services Wholesale loan originations involve an independent broker who assists the
non-prime loans and sells and securitizes mortgage loans and residual interests in borrower in completing the loan application, gathering necessary information and
the United States. Revenues consist of proceeds from sales and securitizations of identifying a lender who offers a loan product best suited to the borrower’s
mortgage assets, accretion on residual and beneficial interests, servicing fee financial needs. Brokers are free to submit an application to one or more non-
income and interest received on loans. Segment revenues constituted 31% of our prime lenders, such as Option One. No one broker originates more than 1.2% of
consolidated revenues for fiscal years 2004 and 2003, and 21% for fiscal year 2002. our total non-prime production.

Prime mortgages are those that may be offered through government sponsored Each applicant completes an application, which includes information regarding
loan agencies. Non-prime mortgages are those that may not be offered through his or her assets, liabilities, income, credit history, employment history and
government-sponsored loan agencies and typically involve borrowers with personal information. We require a credit report on each applicant from an
impaired credit. Even though these borrowers have impaired credit, they also tend industry recognized credit reporting company. In evaluating an applicant’s credit
to have equity in the property that will be used to secure the loan. We offer both history, we utilize credit bureau risk scores, generally known as a FICO score,
types of loans and conduct business through four channels: which is a statistical ranking of likely future credit performance developed by

� Option One’s wholesale origination channel works with brokers throughout Fair, Isaac & Company and provided by the three national credit data repositories.
the United States to fund mortgage loans through a national branch network. Our weighted average FICO score on our non-prime production was 608 and 604
Wholesale originations represent the majority of Option One’s total loan for the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Qualified independent
production. appraisers are required to appraise mortgaged properties that are used to secure

� Option One’s national accounts channel forms partnerships with financial mortgage loans.
institutions, including national and regional banks, to allow them to offer Upon receipt of an application from a broker, a credit report and an appraisal
non-prime loans. report, one of our branch offices processes and underwrites the loan. Our

� Option One’s bulk acquisitions channel specializes in the purchase of underwriting guidelines require mortgage loans be underwritten in a standardized
performing non-prime mortgage loan pools. procedure that complies with federal and state laws and regulations. The

� HRBMC originates residential mortgage loans directly to retail consumers. guidelines are primarily intended to assess the value of the mortgaged property,
The following table details our originations by channel for fiscal years 2004, evaluate the adequacy of the property as collateral for the mortgage loan, and

2003 and 2002: assess the creditworthiness of the related borrower. Based upon this assessment,
we advise the broker whether the loan application meets our underwriting

(in 000s)
guidelines and product description by issuing a loan approval or denial. In some

2004 2003 2002 cases, we issue a ‘‘conditional approval,’’ which requires the submission of
Wholesale $16,828,138 $11,434,138 $ 8,078,192 additional information or clarification. The mortgage loans are underwritten with
National accounts 2,642,944 1,814,092 1,219,080 a view toward resale in the secondary market.
Bulk acquisitions 679,910 411,013 160,059 Sale and Securitization of Loans. Substantially all non-prime mortgage loans
Retail 3,105,021 2,918,378 1,995,842 we originate are sold daily to qualifying special purpose entities (‘‘Trusts’’). See

discussion of our loan sale and securitization process in Item 7, under the heading$23,256,013 $16,577,621 $11,453,173
‘‘Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements.’’

Option One. Option One, headquartered in Irvine, California, operates in 49 Servicing. Mortgage loan servicing involves collecting and remitting mortgage
states by serving more than 32,500 mortgage brokers and through its network of loan payments, making required advances, accounting for principal and interest,
33 wholesale loan production branches and six national accounts branches. holding escrow for payment of taxes and insurance and contacting delinquent

Loan Origination. We originated $20.2 billion in non-prime mortgage loans in borrowers. We receive loan servicing fees monthly over the life of the mortgage
fiscal year 2004, compared to $13.7 billion in fiscal year 2003 and $9.5 billion in loans. We only service non-prime mortgage loans. At the end of fiscal year 2004,
fiscal year 2002. The average non-prime loan during fiscal year 2004 had a $155,000 we serviced 324,364 loans totaling $45.3 billion, compared to 246,463 loans
principal balance, compared to $146,000 in fiscal year 2003 and $127,000 in fiscal totaling $31.3 billion at April 30, 2003 and 209,594 loans totaling $23.8 billion at
year 2002, and was secured by a first lien on a single-family residence. The April 30, 2002.
weighted-average loan-to-value ratio was 78.1%, 78.7% and 78.6% in fiscal years
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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The following table summarizes our servicing portfolio by origin and includes We originated $3.1 billion in retail mortgage loans in fiscal year 2004, compared
related mortgage servicing rights (‘‘MSRs’’) and the rate we earn on each type of to $2.9 billion in fiscal year 2003 and $2.0 billion in fiscal year 2002. In fiscal year
servicing as of April 30, 2004: 2004, we originated $1.3 billion in prime loans and $1.8 billion in non-prime loans.

Substantially all of our retail prime mortgage loans are sold to Countrywide Home
(dollars in 000s)

Loans, Inc. (‘‘Countrywide’’). The majority of mortgage loans sold to Countrywide
Type of servicing Principal Balance MSR Balance Rate Earned are underwritten through an automated system under which Countrywide assumes
Originated $ 36,131,752 $ 112,800 0.43% our representations and warranties, which comply with Countrywide’s underwriting
Purchased 353,576 1,021 0.50% guidelines. This agreement allows us to achieve improved execution due to price,
Sub-servicing 8,782,775 – 0.30% efficiencies in delivery, and elimination of redundancies in operations. We do not
Total $ 45,268,103 $ 113,821 0.41% retain servicing rights related to the prime mortgage loans we sell. Non-prime

mortgage loans are sold to Option One. See discussion of our prime warehouse line
When non-prime loans are subsequently sold or securitized, we generally retain

in Item 7, under ‘‘Capital Resources and Liquidity by Segment.’’
the right to service the loans. The resulting MSR assets are recorded at allocated

Competitive Conditions. Both the prime and non-prime sectors of the
carrying amounts based on relative fair values when the loans are sold. The fair

residential mortgage loan market are highly competitive. The principal methods of
values of MSRs are determined based on the present value of estimated future

competition are in service, product differentiation and price. There are a
cash flows related to servicing loans. Assumptions used in estimating the value of

substantial number of companies competing in the residential loan market,
MSRs are discussed in Item 7, under ‘‘Critical Accounting Policies.’’ In addition to

including mortgage banking companies, commercial banks, savings associations,
servicing loans we originate, we also service non-prime loans originated by other

credit unions and other financial institutions. There are also numerous companies
lenders. MSRs are recorded only in conjunction with our originated or purchased

competing in the business of servicing non-prime loans. No one firm is a dominant
loan servicing portfolio.

supplier of prime and non-prime mortgage loans or a dominant servicer of non-
Geographic Distribution. The following table details the percent of

prime loans. We believe we are one of the top originators and servicers of non-
origination volume of our non-prime loans for fiscal year 2004 and our loan

prime loans in the industry.
origination branches by state.

Seasonality of Business. Residential mortgage volume is not subject to
significant seasonal fluctuations. The mortgage business is cyclical, however, andState Percent of Volume Number of Branches
directly affected by national economic conditions, trends in business and finance

California 18.8% 5 and is impacted by changes in interest rates.
New York 14.4% 2

Government Regulation. Mortgage loans purchased, originated and/or
Massachusetts 10.2% 0

serviced are subject to federal laws and regulations, including:Florida 6.4% 4
� The federal Truth-in-Lending Act, as amended, and Regulation Z promulgatedNew Jersey 5.1% 1

thereunder;Texas 4.5% 3
� The Equal Credit Opportunity Act, as amended, and Regulation BIllinois 3.6% 3

promulgated thereunder;Virginia 2.9% 2
� The Fair Credit Reporting Act, as amended;Connecticut 2.6% 1
� The federal Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, as amended, andPennsylvania 2.6% 1

Regulation X promulgated thereunder;Michigan 2.3% 1
Georgia 2.2% 2 � The Home Ownership Equity Protection Act (‘‘HOEPA’’);
Colorado 2.1% 1 � The Soldiers’ and Sailors’ Civil Relief Act of 1940, as amended;
Rhode Island 2.0% 2 � The Home Mortgage Disclosure Act and Regulation C promulgated
Ohio 1.9% 2 thereunder;
North Carolina 1.7% 1 � The federal Fair Housing Act;
Arizona 1.5% 2 � The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and regulations adopted thereunder; and
New Hampshire 1.3% 1 � Certain other laws and regulations.
Washington 1.3% 1 Under environmental legislation and case law applicable in certain states, it is
Nevada 1.0% 1 possible that liability for environmental hazards in respect of real property may be
Wisconsin .8% 1 imposed on a holder of a deed to the property, which may impair the underlying
Other 10.8% 0

collateral.
H&R Block Mortgage Corporation. HRBMC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Applicable state laws generally regulate interest rates and other charges pertaining

Option One, is a retail mortgage lender for prime, non-prime and government to non-prime loans. These states also require certain disclosures and require
loans and is licensed to conduct business in all 50 states. HRBMC is an approved originators of certain mortgage loans to be licensed unless an exemption is available.
seller/servicer for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and is HUD authorized to In addition, most states have other laws, public policies and general principles of
originate and underwrite FHA and VA mortgage loans. Through HRBMC, we equity relating to consumer protection, unfair and deceptive practices, and practices
originated retail mortgage loans from various sales channels, including 41 loan that may apply to the origination, servicing and collection of mortgage loans.
production offices and nine regional offices in 26 states in fiscal year 2004. During In recent years, there has been a noticeable increase in state, county and
fiscal year 2004, approximately 49% of HRBMC’s loans were made to clients of our municipal statutes, ordinances and regulations that prohibit or regulate so-called
other affiliates compared to 54% in fiscal year 2003. ‘‘predatory lending’’ practices. Predatory lending statutes such as HOEPA,

regulate ‘‘high-cost loans,’’ which are defined separately by each state, county or
municipal statute, regulation or ordinance, but generally include mortgage loans
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with interest rates exceeding a (1) specified margin over the Treasury Index for a reduced the scope of the Parity Act preemption effective July 1, 2003 and, as a
comparable maturity, or (2) designated percentage of points and fees. Statutes, result, we can no longer rely on the Parity Act to preempt state restrictions on
ordinances and regulations that regulate high-cost loans generally prohibit prepayment penalties. The elimination of this federal preemption requires
mortgage lenders from engaging in certain defined practices, or require mortgage compliance with state restrictions on prepayment penalties. These restrictions
lenders to implement certain practices, in connection with any mortgage loans prohibit us from charging any prepayment penalty in six states and restrict the
that fit within the definition of a high-cost loan. We believe that we do not amount or duration of prepayment penalties that we may impose in an additional
originate loans falling under the definition of high-cost loans under any law. eleven states. This places us at a competitive disadvantage relative to financial

Certain state laws restrict or prohibit prepayment penalties on mortgage loans, institutions that continue to enjoy federal preemption of such state restrictions.
and we relied on the federal Alternative Mortgage Transactions Parity Act (‘‘Parity Such institutions can charge prepayment penalties without regard to state
Act’’) and related rules issued in the past by the Office of Thrift Supervision restrictions and, as a result, may be able to offer loans with interest rate and loan
(‘‘OTS’’) to preempt state limitations on prepayment penalties. The Parity Act was fee structures that are more attractive than the interest rate and loan fee
enacted to extend to financial institutions, other than federally chartered structures that we are able to offer.
depository institutions, the federal preemption that federally chartered depository See discussion in ‘‘Risk Factors’’ for additional information.
institutions enjoy. However, in September 2002, the OTS released a new rule that

Business Services
General. Our Business Services segment offers middle-market companies we are currently located based on the breadth of services we can offer to these
accounting, tax and consulting services. We have continued to expand the clients above and beyond what a traditional accounting firm can offer.
services we have to offer our clients by adding wealth management, retirement Government Regulation. Many of the same federal and state regulations
resources, payroll services, corporate finance and financial process outsourcing. relating to tax preparers and the information concerning tax reform discussed
Segment revenues constituted 12% of our consolidated revenues for fiscal years above in the ‘‘Government Regulation’’ section of ‘‘U.S. Tax Operations’’ apply to
2004 and 2003, and 13% for fiscal year 2002. the Business Services segment as well, except accountants are not subject to the

This segment consists primarily of RSM, which was formed in August 1999 to same prohibition on the use or disclosure of certain income tax return
acquire substantially all of the non-attest assets of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP information as tax professionals are. Accounting firms are also subject to state
(‘‘M&P’’). RSM has more than 90 offices in 23 states and offers services in 18 of the and federal regulations governing accountants, auditors and financial planners.
top 25 U.S. markets. Various legislative and regulatory proposals have been made relating to auditor

Services are also provided by the following wholly-owned subsidiaries: independence and accounting oversight, among others. Some of these proposals,
� RSM McGladrey Retirement Resources administers retirement plans, helps if adopted, could have an impact on RSM’s operations. We believe current state

clients design the best plan for their needs, and also provides retirement plan and federal regulations and known legislative and regulatory proposals do not and
investment advice, year-end compliance, tax reporting and consulting. will not have a material adverse effect on our operations, but we cannot predict

� RSM EquiCo, Inc. is an investment banking firm specializing in business what the effect of future legislation, regulations and proposals may be.
valuations, acquisitions and divestitures for private middle-market businesses. Independence rules established by the SEC, American Institute of Certified

� RSM McGladrey Employer Services, Inc. (formerly known as Public Accountants (‘‘AICPA’’) and the Public Company Accounting Oversight
‘‘MyBenefitSource, Inc.’’) is a provider of payroll and benefits administration Board (‘‘PCAOB’’) apply to M&P as a public accounting firm. In applying its
services to middle-market businesses. auditor independence rules, the SEC views us and M&P as a single entity and

� PDI Global, Inc. provides marketing, communications and visibility requires that we abide by its independence rules for M&P to be deemed
programs, tax and financial planning guides, and marketing and management independent of any SEC audit client. The SEC regards any financial interest or
consulting services to accountants, consultants, lawyers, banks, insurers, and business relationship we have with a client of M&P as a financial interest or
other financial service providers. business relationship between M&P and the client for purposes of applying its

Relationship with McGladrey & Pullen, LLP. By regulation, we cannot auditor independence rules.
provide audit and attest services. M&P, a public accounting firm, provides audit We and M&P have jointly developed and implemented policies, procedures and
and review services and other services in which M&P issues written reports on controls designed to safeguard M&P’s independence and integrity as an audit firm
client financial statements to their clients. Through an administrative services in compliance with applicable regulations and professional responsibilities. These
agreement with M&P, we provide accounting, payroll, human resources and other policies, procedures and controls are designed to monitor and prevent violations
administrative services to M&P and receive a management fee for these services. of applicable independence rules and include, among others, (i) informing our
M&P is a limited liability partnership with its own governing body and, officers, directors and other members of management concerning auditor
accordingly, is a separate legal entity and is not an affiliate. Some partners and independence matters, (ii) procedures for monitoring securities ownership,
employees of M&P are also our employees. (iii) communicating with SEC audit clients regarding the SEC’s interpretation and

Seasonality of Business. Revenues for this segment are largely seasonal in application of relevant independence rules and guidelines, and (iv) requiring RSM
nature, with peak revenues occurring during January through April. employees to comply with M&P’s independence and relationship policies

Competitive Conditions. The accounting and consulting business is highly (including M&P’s independence compliance questionnaire procedures). We
competitive. The principal methods of competition are price, service and reputation believe these policies, procedures and controls are adequate, although there can
for quality. There are a substantial number of accounting firms offering similar be no assurances they will ensure compliance with applicable independence rules
services at the international, national, regional and local levels. As our focus is on and requirements. Any noncompliance could cause M&P to lose the ability to
middle-market businesses, our principal competition is with regional accounting perform audits of financial statements filed with the SEC.
firms. We believe we have a competitive advantage in the geographic areas in which See discussion in ‘‘Risk Factors’’ for additional information.
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Investment Services
General. Our Investment Services segment provides brokerage services and producing advisors was approximately 93%. The retention and recruitment of
investment planning through HRBFA. Products and services offered to our experienced advisors will continue to be a key initiative in fiscal year 2005.
customers include traditional brokerage products, as well as annuities, insurance, Advisor productivity by recruitment class is as follows:
fee-based accounts, online account access, equity research and focus lists, model

(dollars in 000s)
portfolios, asset allocation strategies, and other investment tools and information.

Revenue Total ProductionSegment revenues constituted approximately 5% of our consolidated revenues for
Per Advisor Revenuesfiscal years 2004 and 2003 and 8% for fiscal year 2002.

HRBFA is a registered broker-dealer with the SEC and is a member of the New Fiscal year 2004:
York Stock Exchange (‘‘NYSE’’), other national securities exchanges, SIPC, and Pre-2003 class $216 $135,949
the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (‘‘NASD’’). HRBFA is also a 2003 recruits 84 17,717
registered investment advisor, offering financial advice with traditional products. 2004 recruits 61 7,664

Our integration of investment advice with the tax client base allows us to
Fiscal year 2003:maximize an already established relationship. In the past two years, new product
Pre-2003 class $135 $126,176offerings have allowed us to shift our focus from a transaction-based client
2003 recruits 34 4,604relationship to a more advice-based focus.

Customer trades in fiscal year 2004 totaled approximately 1.5 million, compared Licensed Referral Tax Professional Program. The Licensed Referral Tax
to approximately 1.2 million in fiscal year 2003 and approximately 1.5 million in Professional (‘‘LRTP’’) program encourages a cooperative relationship between
fiscal year 2002. We had 863,116 active accounts at April 30, 2004, compared to Investment Services and U.S. Tax Operations by helping tax professionals become
752,903 at 2003 and 695,355 at 2002. Margin balances decreased to an average of licensed to sell securities, teaming them with a financial advisor and providing a
$545.0 million for fiscal year 2004 from $577.0 million and $1.0 billion for fiscal commission to the LRTP for business referred to Investment Services. The LRTP
years 2003 and 2002, respectively. program began in fiscal year 2003 and, as of April 30, 2004 there were 461 LRTPs

Financial Services Offerings. We provide a full range of financial services to with total customer assets of $72 million compared to 126 LRTPs with total
our clients in the United States. customer assets of $2.0 million as of April 30, 2003. We will continue to increase

As previously discussed in ‘‘U.S. Tax Operations,’’ we offer our tax clients the the number of LRTPs in the coming year.
opportunity to open an Express IRA through HRBFA as a part of the tax return Integrated Online Services. We have an online investment center on our
preparation process. Clients funded approximately 215,000 Express IRAs during website at www.hrblock.com. Online users have the opportunity to open
tax season 2004, approximately 126,000 in tax season 2003 and approximately accounts, obtain research, create investment plans, buy and sell securities, and
130,000 in tax season 2002. view the status of their accounts. Through April 2004, over 145,000 accounts had

We also offer account holders a service that makes it possible for clients to been web enabled, compared to approximately 143,000 through April 2003 and
transact all of their investment activities from one convenient, flexible brokerage April 2002. In fiscal year 2004, 229,211 securities transactions were completed
account with cash management features. The cash management features include online compared to 126,055 in fiscal year 2003, and 107,308 in fiscal year 2002.
no-minimum checking, unlimited check writing, a credit interest program, a Office Locations. HRBFA is authorized to do business as a broker-dealer in
variety of tax-exempt money market fund options, an FDIC insured deposit all 50 states and the District of Columbia. At the end of fiscal year 2004, we
account, a VISA˛ Gold ATM/check card with a 1% cash rebate on card purchases operated approximately 358 branch offices, compared to approximately 600
and an airline miles program, one consolidated monthly statement and a year-end offices in fiscal years 2003 and 2002. The reduced number of branch offices is
account summary. HRBFA offers college savings products – called 529 Plans – primarily due to the evolution of our tax-partnering program, which now locates
through state-sponsored investment programs that allow clients to make tax-free financial advisors with tax professionals. Some HRBFA offices offer, in addition to
withdrawals for qualified education expenses and a comprehensive line of financial products and services, tax preparation and mortgage services year-round
insurance products. Clients may also open professionally managed accounts. to clients.

We act as a dealer in fixed income markets including corporate and municipal We believe the existence of retail locations contributes to our growth and client
bonds, various U.S. Government and U.S. Government Agency securities and satisfaction. The existence of retail locations generally results in an increase in
certificates of deposit. unsolicited customer transactions in the geographic area near the office. Many

Financial Advisors and Their Compensation. Our financial advisors receive clients prefer to conduct business in person in local offices rather than in distant
compensation based on several different factors. They receive commissions from offices or online. Clients may also use retail locations to deliver checks and
individual customer transactions as well as a percentage of quarterly fees for securities.
certain products based on asset levels. In addition, they can receive salaries, Competitive Conditions. HRBFA competes directly with a broad range of
draws against commissions and bonuses based on the level of assets they transfer companies seeking to attract consumer financial assets, including full-service
and production achieved. brokerage firms, discount and online brokerage firms, mutual fund companies,

Key to our future success is retention of our financial advisors and recruitment investment banking firms, commercial and savings banks, insurance companies
of new advisors. One of our key initiatives is to build revenues through the and others. The financial services industry has become considerably more
addition of financial advisors. During fiscal years 2004 and 2003, we added 255 and concentrated as numerous securities firms have been acquired by or merged into
260 advisors, respectively. These additions were offset by attrition of 230 and 487 other firms. Some of these competitors have greater financial resources than
advisors, respectively. Our overall retention rate for fiscal year 2004 was HRBFA and offer additional financial products and services. In addition, we
approximately 77%, but the retention rate for our more experienced, higher- expect competition from domestic and international commercial banks and larger

securities firms to continue to increase as a result of legislative and regulatory
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initiatives in the U.S., including the passage of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act in customer orders, the handling of customer funds and securities, trading practices,
November 1999 and the implementation of the U.S.A. Patriot Act in April 2002. capital structure, record keeping policies and practices, margin lending, execution
These initiatives strive to remove or relieve certain restrictions on mergers and settlement of transactions, the conduct of directors, officers and employees,
between commercial banks and other types of financial services providers and and the supervision of employees. The various governmental authorities and
extend privacy provisions and anti-money laundering procedures across the industry self-regulatory organizations that have supervisory and regulatory
financial services industry. jurisdiction over us generally have broad enforcement powers to censure, fine,

Discount brokerage firms and online-only financial services providers compete issue cease-and-desist orders or suspend or expel a broker-dealer or any of its
vigorously with HRBFA with respect to commission charges. Full-commission officers or employees who violate applicable laws or regulations.
brokerage firms also offer more product breadth, discounted commissions and The SEC is the federal agency responsible for the administration of the federal
online services to selected retail brokerage customers. Additionally, some securities laws. The SEC has delegated much of the regulation of broker-dealers
competitors in both the full-commission and discount brokerage industries have to self-regulatory organizations, principally the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
substantially increased their spending on advertising and direct solicitation of Board, NASD, Inc. and the NYSE, which has been designated as HRBFA’s primary
customers. regulator. These self-regulatory organizations adopt rules, subject to SEC

Competition in the online trading business has become similarly intense as approval, governing the industry and conduct periodic examinations of HRBFA’s
recent expansion and customer acceptance of conducting financial transactions brokerage operations and clearing activities. Securities firms are also subject to
online has attracted new brokerage firms to the market. regulation by state securities administrators in states in which they conduct

We compete based on quality of service, breadth of products and services business.
offered, prices, accessibility through delivery channels, technological innovation As a registered broker-dealer, HRBFA is subject to the Net Capital Rule
and expertise and integration with our tax services relationships. (Rule 15c3-1) promulgated by the SEC and adopted through incorporation by

Seasonality of Business. The Investment Services segment does not, as a reference in NYSE Rule 325. The Rule, which specifies minimum net capital
whole, experience significant seasonal fluctuations. The securities business is requirements for registered brokers and dealers, is designed to measure the
cyclical, however, and directly affected by national and global economic and financial soundness and liquidity of a broker-dealer and requires at least a
political conditions, trends in business and finance and changes in the conditions minimum portion of its assets be kept in liquid form. Additional discussion of this
of the securities markets in which our clients invest. requirement and HRBFA’s calculation of net capital is located in Item 7, under

Government Regulation. The securities industry is subject to extensive ‘‘Capital Resources and Liquidity by Segment.’’
regulation covering all aspects of the securities business, including registration of See discussion in ‘‘Risk Factors’’ for additional information.
our offices and personnel, sales methods, the acceptance and execution of

International Tax Operations
General. Our International Tax Operations segment provides tax return department stores in Canada in fiscal year 2004, including 79 offices in Sears’
preparation, electronic filing and related services to the general public, principally facilities.
in Canada, Australia and the United Kingdom. We also offer tax preparation of We offer a refund discount (‘‘CashBack’’) program to our customers in Canada.
U.S. tax returns and related services in company-owned and franchise offices in Canadian law specifies the procedures we must follow in conducting the program.
nine countries and U.S. Territories. We offer electronic filing of U.S. income tax In accordance with current Canadian regulations, if a customer’s tax return
returns at offices located in Europe, and the electronic filing of Canadian, indicates the customer is entitled to a tax refund, we issue a check to the client.
Australian, and United Kingdom income tax returns at H&R Block offices in their The client assigns to us the full amount of the tax refund to be issued by Revenue
respective countries. Segment revenues constituted approximately 2% of our Canada and the refund check is then sent by Revenue Canada directly to us. In
consolidated revenues for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002. accordance with the law, the discount is deemed to include both the tax return

This segment served 2.3 million taxpayers in each of fiscal years 2004, 2003 and preparation fee and the fee for tax refund discounting. This program is financed
2002. Returns prepared at 1,334 company-owned and franchised offices in by short-term borrowings. The number of returns discounted under the CashBack
countries outside of the United States in fiscal year 2004 constituted 12.8% of the program in fiscal year 2004 was approximately 552,000, compared to 531,000 in
total returns prepared by H&R Block, compared to 12.4% in fiscal year 2003 and fiscal year 2003 and 525,000 in fiscal year 2002.
11.9% in fiscal year 2002. A summary of our company-owned and franchise offices During fiscal year 2004, we contracted with Intuit Canada, Inc. to provide online
in countries outside the United States is as follows: tax preparation services under the H&R Block brand to Canadian consumers.

Users could print and mail their return, or download their return and file
April 30, 2004 2003 2002

electronically.
Canada 891 910 955 Australian Operations. The number of returns prepared by our company-
Australia 378 362 362 owned and franchise offices in Australia, was approximately 519,000 in fiscal year
Other 65 62 59 2004, compared to 505,000 in fiscal year 2003 and 489,000 in fiscal year 2002. Of

the 378 offices in Australia in fiscal year 2004, 278 were company-owned and 100Total offices 1,334 1,334 1,376
were franchise offices.

Seasonality of Business. Revenues in this segment are seasonal in natureCanadian Operations. H&R Block Canada, Inc. (‘‘Block Canada’’) and its
with peak revenues occurring during the applicable tax season, as follows:franchisees prepared approximately 1.7 million Canadian regular and discounted

returns filed with Revenue Canada in each of fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002. Of
Canada January – Aprilthe 891 offices in Canada in fiscal year 2004, 489 were owned and operated by us
Australia July – Octoberand 402 were owned and operated by franchisees. We operated 133 offices in
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Competitive Conditions. The tax return preparation business is highly Laws, or the results of future regulator inquiries regarding the applicability of
competitive, with a substantial number of firms offering tax preparation services. Foreign Laws may have on our segments, any particular subsidiary, or our
Commercial tax return preparers are highly competitive with regard to price, consolidated financial statements.
service and reputation for quality. We believe we operate the largest tax return Statutes and regulations relating to income tax return preparers, electronic
preparation businesses in Canada and Australia. filing, franchising and other areas affecting the income tax business also exist

Government Regulation. We seek to determine the applicability of all outside of the United States. In addition, the Canadian government regulates the
government and self-regulatory organization statutes, ordinances, rules and refund discounting program in Canada, as discussed under ‘‘Canadian
regulations in the countries in which we operate (collectively, ‘‘Foreign Laws’’) Operations,’’ above. These laws have not materially affected the International Tax
and to comply with these Foreign Laws. We cannot predict what effect the Operations segment.
enactment of future Foreign Laws, changes in interpretations of existing Foreign See discussion in ‘‘Risk Factors’’ for additional information.

Service Marks, Trademarks and Patents
We have made a practice of selling our products and services under service marks these service marks and trademarks, in the aggregate, to be of material
and trademarks and of obtaining protection for these by all available means. Our importance to our business, particularly our business segments providing
service marks and trademarks are protected by registration in the United States products and services under the ‘‘H&R Block’’ brand.
and other countries where our products and services are marketed. We consider We have no registered patents that are material to our business.

Employees
We have approximately 15,300 regular full-time employees. The highest number of
persons we employed during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004, including
seasonal employees, was approximately 111,300.

Risk Factors
In this report, and from time to time throughout the year, we share our Refund Anticipation Loans. Changes in government regulation related to
expectations for the Company’s future performance. The following explains the RALs could adversely affect our ability to offer RALs or our ability to purchase
critical risk factors impacting our business and reasons actual results may differ participation interests. Changes in IRS practices could adversely affect our ability
from our expectations. This discussion does not intend to be a comprehensive list to utilize the IRS debt indicator to limit our bad debt exposure. Changes in any of
and there may be other risks and factors that may have an effect on our business. these, as well as possible litigation related to RALs, may adversely affect our

Liquidity and Capital. We use capital primarily to fund working capital results of operations.
requirements, pay dividends, repurchase our shares and acquire businesses. We Mortgage Operations
are dependent on the use of our off-balance sheet arrangements to fund our daily Competitive Position. The majority of our mortgage loan applications are
non-prime originations and the secondary market to securitize and sell mortgage submitted through a network of brokers who have relationships with many other
loans and residual interests. See ‘‘Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements’’ in mortgage lenders. Unfavorable changes in our pricing, service or other factors
Item 7. We are also dependent on commercial paper issuances to fund RAL could result in a decline in our mortgage origination volume. A decline in our
participations and seasonal working capital needs. A disruption in such markets service ratings could adversely affect our pricing and origination volume.
could adversely affect our access to these funds. In order to meet our future Increased competition among mortgage lenders can also result in a decline in
financing needs we may issue additional debt or equity securities. coupon rates offered to our borrowers, which in turn lowers margins and could

Litigation. We are involved in lawsuits in the normal course of our business adversely affect our gains on sales of mortgage loans. Additionally, changes in
related to RALs, our Peace of Mind guarantee program, electronic filing of tax legislation relating to our industry can adversely affect our competitive position.
returns, Express IRAs, losses incurred by customers in their investment accounts, Asset Valuation Assumptions. The valuation of residual interests and
mortgage lending activities and other matters. Adverse outcomes related to mortgage servicing rights includes many estimates and assumptions surrounding
litigation could result in substantial damages and could adversely affect our interest rates, prepayment speeds and credit losses. If actual experience differs
results of operations. Negative public opinion can also result from our actual or from our estimates, we would be required to record write-ups or write-downs to
alleged conduct in such claims, possibly damaging our brand and adversely the related assets, which could either positively or negatively affect our results of
affecting the market price of our stock. See Item 3, ‘‘Legal Proceedings’’ for operations. See ‘‘Critical Accounting Policies’’ in Item 7.
additional information. Legislation and Regulations. Several states and cities are considering or

Privacy of Client Information. We manage highly sensitive client information have passed laws, regulations or ordinances aimed at curbing predatory lending
in all of our operating segments, which is regulated by law. Problems with the and servicing practices. The federal government is also considering legislative and
safeguarding and proper use of this information could result in regulatory actions regulatory proposals in this regard. In general, these proposals involve lowering
and negative publicity, which could adversely affect our results of operations. the existing federal HOEPA thresholds for defining a ‘‘high-cost’’ loan and

establishing enhanced protections and remedies for borrowers who receive suchU.S. Tax Operations
loans. If unfavorable laws and regulations are passed, it could restrict our abilityCompetitive Position. Increased competition for tax preparation clients in our
to originate loans if rating agencies refuse to rate our loans, loan buyers may notretail offices, online and software channels could adversely affect our current
want to purchase loans labeled as ‘‘high-cost,’’ and it could restrict our ability tomarket share and limit our ability to grow our client base. See clients served

statistics included under ‘‘U.S. Tax Operations’’ in Item 7.
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sell our loans in the secondary market. Accordingly, all of these items could Investment Services
adversely affect our results of operations. Regulatory Environment. The broker-dealer industry has recently come under

more scrutiny by both Federal and State regulators and, as a result, more focusBusiness Services
has been placed on compliance issues. If we do not comply with these regulations,Alternative Practice Structure with M&P. Our relationship with M&P requires
it could result in regulatory actions and negative publicity, which could adverselyus to comply with applicable auditor independence rules and requirements. In
affect our results of operations. Negative public opinion about our industry couldaddition, our relationship with M&P closely links our RSM McGladrey brand with
damage our reputation even if we are in compliance with such regulations.M&P. If M&P were to encounter problems concerning its independence as a result

Integration into the H&R Block Brand. We are working to foster an advice-of its relationship with us or if significant litigation arose concerning M&P or its
based relationship with our tax clients through our retail tax office network. Thisservices, our brand reputation and our ability to realize the mutual benefits of our
advice-based relationship is key to the integration of Investment Services into therelationship, such as the ability to attract and retain quality professionals, could
H&R Block brand and deepening our current client relationships. If we are unablebe impaired.
to successfully integrate, it may significantly impact our ability to differentiate our
business from other tax providers and grow our client base.

Availability of Reports and Other Information
Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports Business Ethics and Conduct, (4) the H&R Block, Inc. Audit Committee Charter,
on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports filed with or furnished to the (5) the H&R Block, Inc. Governance and Nominating Committee Charter, and
SEC are available, free of charge, through our website at www.hrblock.com as (6) the H&R Block, Inc. Compensation Committee Charter. If you would like a
soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed with or printed copy of any of these corporate governance documents, please send your
furnished to the SEC. request to the Office of the Secretary, H&R Block, Inc., 4400 Main Street, Kansas

Copies of the following corporate governance documents are posted on our City, Missouri 64111.
website: (1) The Amended and Restated Bylaws of H&R Block, Inc., (2) The H&R Information contained on our website does not constitute any part of this
Block, Inc. Corporate Governance Guidelines, (3) the H&R Block, Inc. Code of report.

I T E M  2 . P R O P E R T I E S
We own our corporate headquarters, which are located in Kansas City, Missouri. RSM’s executive offices are located in leased offices in Bloomington,
We have leased additional office space for corporate, U. S. Tax Operations and Minnesota. Its administrative offices are located in leased offices in Davenport,
Investment Services personnel, as necessary, in Kansas City, Missouri. Iowa. RSM also leases office space throughout the United States.

Most of our tax offices, except those in retail outlets, are operated under leases Our Canadian executive offices are located in a leased office in Calgary, Alberta.
throughout the United States. Our Canadian tax offices are operated under leases throughout Canada.

Option One’s executive offices are located in leased offices in Irvine, California. We will begin construction of new corporate headquarters during fiscal year
HRBMC is headquartered in leased offices in Lake Forest, California. Option One 2005, which will allow us to consolidate the majority of our Kansas City-based
and HRBMC also lease offices for their loan origination and servicing centers and personnel into one facility. The new building will be located in downtown Kansas
branch office operations throughout the United States. City, Missouri.

The executive offices of HRBFA are located in leased offices in Detroit, All current leased and owned facilities are in good repair and adequate to meet
Michigan. Branch offices are operated throughout the United States, in a our needs.
combination of leased and owned facilities.

I T E M  3 . L E G A L  P R O C E E D I N G S
The information below should be read in conjunction with the information customers, and in certain instances the courts have allowed the cases to proceed
included in Item 8, note 20 to our consolidated financial statements. as class actions. In other cases, courts have held that plaintiffs must pursue their

RAL Litigation. We have been named as a defendant in numerous lawsuits claims on an individual basis, and may not proceed as a class action. The amounts
throughout the country regarding our refund anticipation loan programs claimed in the RAL Cases have been very substantial in some instances.
(collectively, ‘‘RAL Cases’’). Plaintiffs in the RAL Cases have alleged, among other We have successfully defended against numerous RAL Cases. Of these RAL
things, that disclosures in the RAL applications were inadequate, misleading and Cases, some were dismissed on our motions for dismissal or summary judgment
untimely; that the RAL interest rates were usurious and unconscionable; that we and others were dismissed voluntarily by the plaintiffs after denial of class
did not disclose that we would receive part of the finance charges paid by the certification. Other cases were settled, with one settlement resulting in a pretax
customer for such loans; breach of state laws on credit service organizations; expense of $43.5 million in fiscal year 2003 (the ‘‘Texas RAL Settlement’’).
breach of contract; unjust enrichment; unfair and deceptive acts or practices; We believe we have meritorious defenses to the RAL Cases and we intend to
violations of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations act; violations of defend the remaining RAL Cases vigorously. We have accrued our best estimate of
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act; and that we owe, and breached, a fiduciary the probable loss related to the RAL Cases. However, there can be no assurances
duty to our customers in connection with the RAL program. In many of the RAL as to the outcome of the pending RAL Cases individually or in the aggregate, and
Cases, the plaintiffs seek to proceed on behalf of a class of similarly situated RAL there can be no assurances regarding the impact of the RAL Cases on our financial
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statements. The following is updated information regarding the pending RAL constitutes a breach of fiduciary duty. In August 2003, the court certified the
Cases that are class actions or putative class actions: following plaintiff classes: (1) all persons who were charged a separate fee for

Lynne A. Carnegie, et al. v. Household International, Inc., H&R Block, Inc., et Peace of Mind by ‘‘H&R Block’’ or a defendant H&R Block class member from
al., (formerly Joel E. Zawikowski, et al. v. Beneficial National Bank, H&R Block, January 1, 1997 to final judgment; (2) all persons who reside in certain class states
Inc., Block Financial Corporation, et al.) Case No. 98 C 2178, United States and who were charged a separate fee for Peace of Mind by ‘‘H&R Block,’’ or a
District Court for the Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division, instituted on defendant H&R Block class member, and that was not licensed to sell insurance,
April 18, 1998. On April 15, 2003, the District Court judge declined to approve a from January 1, 1997 to final judgment; and (3) all persons who had an unsolicited
$25.0 million settlement of this matter, finding that counsel for the settlement charge for Peace of Mind posted to their bills by ‘‘H&R Block’’ or a defendant H&R
plaintiffs had been inadequate representatives of the plaintiff class and failed to Block class member from January 1, 1997, to final judgment. Among those
sustain their burden of showing that the settlement was fair. The judge excluded from the plaintiff classes are all persons who received the Peace of Mind
subsequently appointed new counsel for the plaintiffs who filed an amended guarantee through an H&R Block Premium office and all persons who reside in
complaint and a motion for partial summary judgment. On March 29, 2004, the Texas and Alabama. The court also certified a defendant class consisting of any
court either dismissed or decertified all of the plaintiffs’ claims other than part of entity with the names ‘‘H&R Block’’ or ‘‘HRB’’ in its name, or otherwise affiliated
one count alleging violations of the racketeering and conspiracy provisions of the or associated with H&R Block Tax Services, Inc., and which sold or sells the
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations act. We intend to continue Peace of Mind product. The trial court subsequently denied the defendants’
defending the case vigorously, but there are no assurances as to its outcome. motion asking the trial court to certify the class certification issues for

Sandra J. Basile, et al. v. H&R Block, Inc., et al, April Term 1992 Civil Action interlocutory appeal. Discovery is proceeding.
No. 3246 in the Court of Common Pleas, First Judicial District of Pennsylvania, There is one other putative class action pending against us in Texas that
Philadelphia County, instituted on April 23, 1993. The court decertified the class involves the Peace of Mind guarantee. This case is being tried before the same
on December 31, 2003. Plaintiffs have appealed the decertification. judge that presided over the Texas RAL Settlement and involves the same

Levon and Geral Mitchell, et al. v. H&R Block and Ruth R. Wren, Case plaintiffs attorneys that are involved in the Marshall litigation in Illinois and
No. CV-95-2067, in the Circuit Court of Mobile County, Alabama, instituted on substantially similar allegations. No class has been certified in this case.
June 13, 1995. Plaintiffs’ motion for class certification was granted, and We believe the claims in these Peace of Mind actions are without merit and we
defendants have filed a notice of appeal of the certification. intend to defend them vigorously. However, there can be no assurances as to the

Deandra D. Cummins, et al. v. H&R Block, Inc., et al., Case No. 03-C-134 in the outcome of these pending actions individually or in the aggregate, and there can
Circuit Court of Kanawha County, West Virginia, instituted on January 22, 2003. be no assurances on the impact of these actions on our consolidated results of
Defendants’ motions to dismiss and to compel arbitration were heard in part in operations or financial position.
December 2003, during which the judge discontinued the hearing and ordered the Other Claims and Litigation. As with other broker-dealers that distribute
parties to mediation. Mediation occurred in February 2004 during which the mutual fund shares, HRBFA is the subject of an investigation by the NASD into
parties were unable to reach agreement. Defendants’ motion to dismiss and activities characterized as ‘‘market timing’’ and ‘‘late trading’’ of mutual fund
compel arbitration was subsequently denied. shares by HRBFA. The NASD staff has notified HRBFA that on the basis of its

Roy Carbahal, et al. v. Household International, H&R Block Tax Services, Inc. investigation it has preliminarily determined to recommend a disciplinary action
et al., Case No. 00C0626 in the United States District Court for the Northern against HRBFA for violating various federal securities laws and NASD rules in
District of Illinois, instituted on January 31, 2000. Defendants’ motion to compel connection with market timing activities that took place primarily in one of
arbitration was granted and the case was dismissed. Plaintiffs appealed such HRBFA’s offices. HRBFA has provided the NASD a written response to its
dismissal. On June 24, 2004, the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed such allegations. HRBFA is cooperating with the NASD and has conducted its own
dismissal. internal investigation. While we cannot provide assurance regarding the ultimate

Abby Thomas, et al. v. Beneficial National Bank, H&R Block, Inc., et al., Case resolution of this matter, we believe the resolution of this matter will not have a
No. 4:03-CV-00775 GTE in the United States District Court for the Eastern District material adverse effect on our operations, consolidated results of operations or
of Arkansas, Western Division, instituted on August 12, 2003. Defendants moved financial position.
to dismiss and compel arbitration, and plaintiffs thereafter filed an amended As part of an industry-wide review, the IRS is investigating tax planning
complaint and a motion to remand the case to state court. On December 8, 2003, strategies that certain RSM clients utilized during fiscal years 2000 through 2003.
the federal court denied plaintiffs’ motion to remand. Specifically, the IRS is examining these strategies to determine whether RSM

Lynn Becker v. H&R Block, Case No. CV-2004-03-1680 in the Court of Common complied with tax shelter registration and listing regulations and whether such
Pleas, Summit County, Ohio, instituted on April 15, 2004. Plaintiffs filed an strategies were appropriate. If the IRS were to determine that these strategies
amended complaint on May 3, 2004, containing class allegations. were inappropriate, clients that utilized the strategies could face penalties and

Peace of Mind Litigation. Lorie J. Marshall, et al. v. H&R Block Tax interest for underpayment of taxes and may attempt to seek recovery from RSM.
Services, Inc., et al., Civil Action 2002L000004, in the Circuit Court of Madison While there can be no assurance regarding the outcome of this matter, we do not
County, Illinois, is a class action case filed on January 18, 2002, as to which the believe that its resolution will have a material adverse effect on our operations,
court granted plaintiffs’ first amended motion for class certification on August 27, consolidated results of operations or financial position.
2003. Plaintiffs’ claims consist of five counts relating to the defendants’ Peace of As reported in current report on Form 8-K dated December 12, 2003, the United
Mind program under which the applicable tax return preparation subsidiary States SEC informed outside counsel to the Company on December 11, 2003 that
assumes liability for the cost of additional tax assessments attributable to tax the Commission had issued a Formal Order of Investigation concerning our
return preparation error. The plaintiffs allege that defendants’ sale of its Peace of disclosures, in and before November 2002, regarding RAL litigation to which we
Mind guarantee constitutes statutory fraud by selling insurance without a license, were and are a party. There can be no assurances as to the outcome and
an unfair trade practice, by omission and by ‘‘cramming’’ (i.e., charging customers resolution of this matter.
for the guarantee even though they did not request it and/or did not want it), and

– 12



Fo rm  10 -K – H&R  BLOCK

We have from time to time been party to claims and lawsuits not discussed which plaintiffs seek to represent a class of similarly situated customers. The
herein arising out of our business operations, including additional claims and amounts claimed in these claims and lawsuits are substantial in some instances
lawsuits concerning RALs, the Peace of Mind guarantee program, the Express IRA and the ultimate liability with respect to such litigation and claims is difficult to
program and claims and lawsuits concerning the preparation of customers’ predict. We consider these cases to be ordinary, routine litigation incidental to our
income tax returns, the electronic filing of customers’ tax returns, the fees business, we believe we have meritorious defenses to each of them, and we are
charged customers for various products and services, losses incurred by defending, or intend to defend, them vigorously. While we cannot provide
customers with respect to their investment accounts, relationships with assurance that we will ultimately prevail in each instance, we believe the amount,
franchisees, denials of mortgage loans, contested mortgage foreclosures, other if any, we are required to pay in the discharge of liabilities or settlements in these
aspects of the mortgage business, intellectual property disputes, and contract other matters will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results
disputes. Such lawsuits include actions by individual plaintiffs, as well as cases in of operations or financial position.

I T E M  4 . S U B M I S S I O N O F M AT T E R S T O A V O T E O F S E C U R I T Y H O L D E R S
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004. Information regarding executive officers is contained in Item 10 of
this report.

PA RT  I I

I T E M  5 . M A R K E T F O R T H E R E G I S T R A N T ’ S C O M M O N E Q U I T Y , R E L AT E D S T O C K H O L D E R M AT T E R S A N D I S S U E R
P U R C H A S E S O F E Q U I T Y S E C U R I T I E S

H&R Block’s common stock is traded principally on the NYSE and is also traded on the Pacific Exchange. The information called for by this item with respect to H&R
Block’s common stock appears in Item 8, note 22 to our consolidated financial statements. The remaining information called for by this item relating to ‘‘Securities
Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans’’ is reported in Item 8, note 14 to our consolidated financial statements. On June 15, 2004, there were 31,063
shareholders of record and the closing stock price on the NYSE was $46.62 per share.

A summary of our purchases of H&R Block common stock during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004 is as follows:

(shares in 000s)

Total Number of Maximum Number
Total Average Shares Purchased as of Shares that May Be

Number of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Announced Purchased Under the
Purchased(2) per Share Plans or Programs(1) Plans or Programs(1)(3)

February 1 – February 29 781 $55.28 780 13,367
March 1 – March 31 1,460 $53.81 1,460 11,907
April 1 – April 30 575 $46.75 575 11,332

(1)
On June 11, 2003, our Board of Directors approved the repurchase of 20 million shares of H&R Block common stock. This authorization has no expiration date.

(2)
Of the total number of shares purchased, 1,202 shares were purchased in connection with funding employee income tax withholding obligations arising upon the exercise of stock options

or the lapse of restrictions on restricted shares.
(3)

On June 9, 2004, our Board of Directors approved the additional repurchase of 15 million shares of H&R Block common stock. This authorization has no expiration date.

I T E M  6 . S E L E C T E D F I N A N C I A L D ATA

(in 000s, except per share amounts)

April 30, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Revenues $ 4,205,570 $ 3,746,457 $ 3,285,701 $ 2,965,405 $ 2,420,923
Net income before change in accounting principle 704,256 580,064 434,405 276,748 251,895
Net income 697,897 580,064 434,405 281,162 251,895
Basic earnings per share:

Net income before change in accounting principle $ 3.98 $ 3.23 $ 2.38 $ 1.50 $ 1.28
Net income 3.94 3.23 2.38 1.53 1.28

Diluted earnings per share:
Net income before change in accounting principle $ 3.90 $ 3.15 $ 2.31 $ 1.49 $ 1.27
Net income 3.86 3.15 2.31 1.52 1.27

Total assets $ 5,380,026 $ 4,767,308 $ 4,384,640 $ 4,166,044 $ 5,700,146
Long-term debt 545,811 822,302 868,387 870,974 872,396
Dividends per share $ .78 $ .70 $ .63 $ .59 $ .54
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I T E M  7 . M A N A G E M E N T ’ S D I S C U S S I O N A N D A N A LY S I S O F F I N A N C I A L C O N D I T I O N A N D R E S U LT S O F O P E R AT I O N S
We are a diversified company with subsidiaries delivering tax, financial, mortgage territories. Excluding the former major franchise territories, clients served
and business products and services. We are the only major company offering a full decreased 2.5%.
range of software, online and in-office tax solutions, combined with personalized � Software and online revenues increased 11.4% and 70.6%, respectively,
financial advice about retirement savings, home ownership and other compared to fiscal year 2003.
opportunities to help clients build a better financial future. � Mortgage originations totaled $23.3 billion for the year as a result of increases

Overall for fiscal 2004, we achieved strong financial results and generally in the sales force, average loan size, loan applications and the closing ratio.
executed well against our strategic priorities. We were able to increase our tax � Gains on sales of mortgage assets reached $726.7 million, including
and financial advice offerings, strengthen our multi-channel offerings and $40.7 million realized on the sale of previously securitized residual interests.
continued to cross-sell our financial services and products across segments, � The Business Services segment reported pretax income of $19.3 million, an
which we believe all help increase brand loyalty and client retention. However, we improvement of $33.4 million over the prior year. Fiscal year 2003 includes an
saw a decline in our retail tax clients served in our offices. Additionally, we again $11.8 million goodwill impairment.
saw Mortgage Operations deliver strong financial results. Our key strategic � The Investment Services segment reported a pretax loss of $64.4 million, an
priorities can be summarized as follows: improvement of $63.8 million over prior year. Fiscal year 2003 includes a

� U.S. Tax Operations – expanding our office network, working on service and $24.0 million goodwill impairment.
product differentiation and focusing on advice that supports client growth, � We began expensing stock-based compensation as of May 1, 2003. We recorded
increased brand loyalty and business extensions with a tax and financial $25.7 million in expense related to the issuance of stock options, restricted
connection. stock and our employee stock purchase plan during fiscal year 2004.

� Mortgage Operations – developing a diversified source of originations,
distinguishing our service quality, minimizing risk and volatility in

Consolidated Results of Operations (in 000s)performance and using secondary markets to optimize value.
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002� Business Services – developing a national accounting, tax and consulting

firm, adding extended services to middle-market companies and enhancing REVENUES:
our client service culture. U.S. Tax Operations $ 2,093,617 $ 1,861,681 $ 1,831,274

� Investment Services – serving the broad consumer market through tax-based Mortgage Operations 1,281,399 1,165,411 702,333
advisory relationships, brand differentiation through relevant advice and Business Services 499,210 434,140 416,926
multi-channel access and providing services clients can use to readily Investment Services 229,470 200,794 250,685
implement that advice. International Tax Operations 97,560 85,082 78,710

The analysis that follows should be read in conjunction with the tables below, Corporate Operations 4,314 (651) 5,773
the consolidated income statements and the information contained in Item 1 $ 4,205,570 $ 3,746,457 $ 3,285,701
under ‘‘Description of Business.’’

INCOME (LOSS):
Overview U.S. Tax Operations $ 627,592 $ 547,078 $ 533,468
A summary of our fiscal year 2004 results is as follows: Mortgage Operations 678,261 693,950 339,388

� Diluted earnings per share before change in accounting principle were $3.90, Business Services 19,321 (14,118) 22,716
an increase of 23.8% over fiscal year 2003. Investment Services (64,446) (128,292) (54,862)

� Revenues grew 12.3% over the prior year, primarily due to revenues from International Tax Operations 11,097 10,464 7,093
operations in former major franchise territories and growth in our Mortgage Corporate Operations (107,668) (122,005) (130,963)
Operations segment. We achieved revenue growth in each of our segments.

Pretax income $ 1,164,157 $ 987,077 $ 716,840� Clients served in company-owned retail tax offices grew 5.2%, and the
average fee per client served increased 6.7%. The increase in clients served is
due entirely to company-owned operations in former major franchise

C R I T I C A L  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S
We consider the policies discussed below to be critical to securing an revenue is recorded when we purchase our participation interest in the RAL.
understanding of our financial statements, as they require the use of significant Commission revenue is recognized on a trade-date basis. Business Services
judgment and estimation in order to measure, at a specific point in time, matters revenues are recognized on a time and materials basis.
that are inherently uncertain. Specific risks for these critical accounting policies We recognize interest income on customer margin loan balances daily as
are described in the following paragraphs. For all of these policies, we caution earned, based on current rates charged to customers for their margin balance.
that future events rarely develop precisely as forecast, and estimates routinely Accretion income represents interest earned over the life of residual interests
require adjustment and may require material adjustment. using the effective interest method.

Revenue recognition: We have many different revenue streams with different We record sales of software when the product is ultimately sold to the end user.
revenue recognition policies. We record retail and online tax preparation revenues POM revenues are deferred and recognized over the term of the guarantee based
when a completed return is filed or accepted by the customer. RAL participation upon historic and actual payment of claims.
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Franchise royalties, which are based upon the contractual percentages of approximates date of origination) and loan type (6-month adjustable, 2- to 3-year
franchise revenues, are recorded in the period in which the franchise provides the adjustable and fixed rate). Fair values take into account the historical prepayment
service. activity of the related loans and our estimates of the remaining future cash flows

Gains on sales of mortgage loans: We sell substantially all of the non-prime to be generated through servicing the underlying mortgage loans. If actual
mortgage loans we originate to the Trusts, which are qualifying special purpose prepayment rates prove to be higher than the estimate made by management,
entities (‘‘QSPEs’’), with servicing rights generally retained. Prime mortgage loans impairment of the MSRs could occur. MSRs valued at $113.8 million and
are sold in whole loan sales, servicing released, to third-party buyers. We record $99.3 million were recorded as of April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. There
the gain on sale as the difference between cash proceeds and the allocated cost of were no impairments to MSRs during fiscal year 2004. See Item 8, note 6 to our
loans sold. consolidated financial statements for current assumptions and a sensitivity

We determine the allocated cost of loans sold based on the relative fair values analysis of those assumptions.
of loans sold, MSRs and the beneficial interest in Trusts, which represents the Valuation of goodwill: We test goodwill for impairment annually or more
ultimate expected outcome from the disposition of the loans. The relative fair frequently whenever events occur or circumstances change which would, more
value of the MSRs and the beneficial interest in Trust is determined using likely than not, reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount.
discounted cash flow models, which require various management assumptions We have defined our reporting units as our operating segments or one level below.
(see discussion below in ‘‘Valuation of residual interests’’ and ‘‘Valuation of The first step of the impairment test is to compare the estimated fair value of the
mortgage servicing rights’’). Variations in these assumptions affect the estimated reporting unit to its carrying value. If the carrying value is less than fair value, no
fair values, which would affect the reported gains on sales. Gains on sales of impairment exists. If the carrying value is greater than fair value, a second step is
mortgage loans totaled $716.7 million, $663.6 million and $455.4 million for fiscal performed to determine the fair value of goodwill and the amount of impairment
years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. loss, if any. In estimating each reporting unit’s fair value using discounted cash

See discussion in ‘‘Off-Balance Sheet Financing’’ related to the disposition of flow projections and market comparables, when available, we make assumptions,
the loans by the Trusts and subsequent securitization by the Company. including discount rates, growth rates and terminal values. Changes in the

Valuation of residual interests: We use discounted cash flow models to projections or assumptions could materially affect fair values. Our goodwill
arrive at the estimated fair values of our residual interests. See Item 8, note 1 to balances were $959.4 million and $714.2 million as of April 30, 2004 and 2003,
our consolidated financial statements for our methodology used in valuing respectively. No goodwill impairments were identified during fiscal year 2004.
residual interests. Variations in our assumptions, including loss, prepayment In fiscal year 2003, a goodwill impairment charge of $24.0 million was recorded
speeds, discount rate and interest rate assumptions, could materially affect the in the Investment Services segment due to unsettled market conditions. Also
estimated fair values, which may require us to record impairments or unrealized during 2003, our annual impairment test resulted in an impairment of $11.8 million
gains. In addition, variations will also affect the amount of residual interest for a reporting unit within the Business Services segment. No other impairments
accretion recorded on a monthly basis. Residual interests – available-for-sale were identified.
valued at $211.0 million and $264.3 million were recorded as of April 30, 2004 and Litigation: Our policy is to routinely assess the likelihood of any adverse
2003, respectively. We recorded $167.1 million in net write-ups in other judgments or outcomes related to legal matters, as well as ranges of probable
comprehensive income and $30.7 million in impairments in the income statement losses. A determination of the amount of the reserves required, if any, for these
related to our residual interests during fiscal year 2004 as actual results differed contingencies is made after thoughtful analysis of each known issue and an
from our assumptions. See Item 8, note 6 to our consolidated financial statements analysis of historical experience in accordance with Statement of Financial
for current assumptions and a sensitivity analysis of those assumptions. See Accounting Standards No. 5, ‘‘Accounting for Contingencies,’’ and related
Item 7a for sensitivity analysis related to interest rates. pronouncements. Therefore, we have recorded reserves related to certain legal

Valuation of mortgage servicing rights: We generally sell non-prime matters for which it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the range of
mortgage loans with servicing retained. MSRs are recorded at allocated carrying such loss can be estimated. With respect to other matters, we have concluded that
amounts based on relative fair values when the loans are sold (see discussion a loss is only reasonably possible or remote and, therefore, no liability is
above in ‘‘Gains on sales of mortgage loans’’). Fair values of MSRs are determined recorded. In addition, there are certain gain contingencies for which we have not
based on the present value of estimated future cash flows related to servicing recorded an asset.
loans. Assumptions used in estimating the value of MSRs include discount rates, Stock-Based Compensation: We record compensation expense for the
prepayment speeds (including default) and other factors. The prepayment speeds issuance of stock options, restricted shares and our employee stock purchase
are somewhat correlated with the movement of market interest rates. As market plan (‘‘ESPP’’). The expense is calculated based on the fair value of the
interest rates decline there is a corresponding increase in actual and expected options/shares and the number of options/shares that vest. We use the Black-
borrower prepayments as customers refinance existing mortgages under more Scholes model to calculate the fair value for stock options and ESPP shares using
favorable interest rate terms. This in turn reduces the anticipated cash flows the following assumptions: stock volatility, expected life, risk-free interest rate
associated with servicing resulting in a reduction, or impairment, to the fair value and dividend yield. The fair value of restricted shares is the stock price on the
of the capitalized MSR. Many non-prime loans have a prepayment penalty in place date of the grant. We also estimate, based on historical data, the percent of
for the first two to three years, which has the effect of making prepayment speeds options/shares that we expect to vest. The total expense is recognized on a
more predictable, regardless of market interest rate movements. Prepayment straight-line basis over the vesting period. Variations in the assumptions used to
rates are estimated using our historical experience and third-party market calculate fair value could either positively or negatively affect the recorded
sources. Variations in these assumptions could materially affect the carrying value expense. Variations in the estimate of vesting could result in timing adjustments
of the MSRs. recorded at the end of the vesting period.

MSRs are carried at the lower of cost or market and are reviewed quarterly for We began expensing all stock-based compensation grants issued beginning on
potential impairment. Impairment is assessed based on the fair value of each risk May 1, 2003. Therefore, our income statements do not fully reflect the expense
stratum. MSRs are stratified by: the fiscal year of the loan sale date (which related to all of our stock options and restricted shares outstanding. We recorded
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$25.7 million and $2.1 million in stock-based compensation expense during fiscal subject to multiple sources of authoritative guidance. Certain of these matters are
year 2004 and 2003, respectively. among topics currently under reexamination by accounting standards setters and

Additionally, changes in accounting rules related to stock-based compensation regulators. Although no specific conclusions reached by these standard setters
could result in changes to our assumptions of fair value and expense recognition. appear likely to cause a material change in our accounting policies, outcomes

Other significant accounting policies: Other significant accounting policies, cannot be predicted with confidence. Also see Item 8, note 1 to our consolidated
not involving the same level of measurement uncertainties as those discussed financial statements, which discusses accounting policies we have selected when
above, are nevertheless important to an understanding of the financial statements. there are acceptable alternatives.
These policies require difficult judgments on complex matters that are often
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R E S U LT S  O F  O P E R AT I O N S

Our business is divided into five reportable segments: U.S. Tax Operations, Mortgage Operations, Business Services, Investment Services and International Tax
Operations.

U . S .  TA X  O P E R AT I O N S
This segment primarily consists of our income tax preparation businesses – retail, U.S. Tax Operations – Financial Results (in 000s)
online and software.

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Tax preparation and related fees $ 1,519,238 $ 1,378,733 $ 1,364,673
U.S. Tax Operations – Operating Statistics (in 000s, except average fee) Royalties 173,754 163,519 154,780
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003(1) 2002(1) RAL waiver fees 6,548 138,242 —

RAL participation fees 168,375 874 159,965Clients served:
Software sales 69,474 62,368 54,823Company-owned offices (2) 9,811 10,058 10,513
Online tax services 44,860 26,290 14,606Former major franchise territories (3) 775 ** **
Peace of Mind revenue 75,025 47,677 44,387

Total company-owned 10,586 10,058 10,513 Other 36,343 43,978 38,040
Franchise offices 5,413 5,629 5,785 Total revenues 2,093,617 1,861,681 1,831,274
Former major franchise territories (3) 16 830 850

Compensation and benefits 662,326 577,545 598,355
Total franchise 5,429 6,459 6,635 Occupancy and equipment 235,469 207,366 186,998
Digital tax solutions: Depreciation and amortization 54,879 39,456 39,871

Software (4) 2,027 1,963 1,825 Supplies, freight and postage 39,666 39,579 35,989
Online (5) 1,207 920 481 Cost of software sales 25,274 20,085 19,947

Bad debt 44,155 17,358 38,23519,249 19,400 19,454
Legal 7,645 69,783 7,641

Average fee per client served: (7)

Other 126,338 105,456 137,884
Company-owned offices (2) $ 147.38 $ 137.36 $ 128.69

Allocated corporate and shared
Former major franchise territories (3) 135.52 ** **

costs:
Total company-owned 146.51 137.36 128.69 Marketing 110,807 90,142 99,560

Information technology 91,158 77,285 77,230Franchise offices 128.02 117.42 108.82
Finance 19,675 22,367 13,270Former major franchise territories (3) 126.13 122.96 112.31
Supply 21,607 19,724 19,508Total franchise 128.02 118.14 109.27
Other 27,026 28,457 23,318

$ 140.24 $ 129.84 $ 121.18
Total expenses 1,466,025 1,314,603 1,297,806

RALs: (6)

Pretax income $ 627,592 $ 547,078 $ 533,468Company-owned offices (2) 2,521 2,758 2,844
Former major franchise territories (3) 185 ** ** (1)

Company-owned and franchise numbers for fiscal years 2003 and 2002 have not been

restated for franchise acquisitions during fiscal year 2004.Total company-owned 2,706 2,758 2,844 (2)
Excludes company-owned offices in former major franchise territories, which

commenced operations during fiscal year 2004.Franchise offices 1,501 1,595 1,573
(3)

Impact of company-owned offices in former major franchise territories, whichFormer major franchise territories (3) ** 188 189
commenced operations during fiscal year 2004.

Total franchise 1,501 1,783 1,762 (4)
Includes TaxCut federal units sold.

(5)
Includes a) online completed and paid federal returns, and b) state returns only when no

Digital tax solutions:
payment was made for a federal return.

Software 5 — 11 (6)
Data is for tax season (January 1 – April 30) only.

(7)
Calculated as gross tax preparation and related fees divided by clients served.Online 57 75 33

4,269 4,616 4,650
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Fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003 result of the amortization of larger deferred revenue balances established as part
U.S. Tax Operations’ revenues increased $231.9 million, or 12.5%, to $2.1 billion for of the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The cumulative effect
fiscal year 2004. will increase revenues this year and in future years, but is offset by the

Tax preparation and related fees increased $140.5 million, or 10.2%, for fiscal $6.4 million reduction to consolidated net income in fiscal year 2004.
year 2004, compared to fiscal year 2003. This increase is due to a 6.7% increase in Total expenses for fiscal year 2004 were up $151.4 million, or 11.5%, from 2003.
the average fee per client served in company-owned offices, coupled with a 5.2% These increased expenses were partially attributable to the operation of former
increase in clients served in those offices. The average fee per client served major franchise territories as company-owned. Compensation and benefits
increased to $146.51 in fiscal year 2004, due to increases in our pricing and the increased $42.6 million as a result of the former major franchises and $20.2 million
complexity of returns prepared. Clients served increased to 10.6 million from due to field wages during the later part of the tax season. Additionally,
10.1 million as a result of the former major franchise territories. Excluding the $12.9 million was incurred for the expensing of stock options awarded to seasonal
impact of our acquisition of former major franchises, clients served declined 2.5%. tax associates. Occupancy and equipment costs increased $28.1 million due
We believe this decline is due to a combination of factors including a lack of office primarily to a 5.7% increase in the average rent and a 3.4% increase in the number
network density in some key areas of the country. Given the competitive of offices under lease. Depreciation and amortization increased as a result of
environment and lack of density in key areas, we believe some potential clients, $9.0 million in intangible amortization from the acquisition of assets of former
who are primarily motivated by convenience and who do not want to wait for major franchisees and additional equipment purchased for new office locations
service in our office or drive as far to our office, will instead go to a competitor opened during the period. Bad debt expense increased $26.8 million as a result of
who is perceived to be more convenient. This is an indication that, for certain bad debt expense associated with RAL participations, which was not recorded in
consumers, we have not been able to effectively differentiate our services from the prior year due to the waiver agreement. Allocated marketing costs increased
the competition. See discussion of our future strategy in ‘‘Fiscal 2005 Outlook’’ $20.7 million as a result of additional marketing directed toward our brand
below. We also believe our marketing campaign, which focused primarily on our repositioning and raising consumer awareness of our advice offerings via the
brand, did not effectively drive clients, particularly early season filers, into our Block Advantage Campaign. Allocated information technology costs increased
offices. $13.9 million as a result of additional technology projects.

The average fee per client at our franchise offices increased 8.4%, while clients These increases were partially offset by a $62.1 million decrease in legal
served declined 15.9%. The decline is due to the former major franchise territories expenses, which is primarily a result of the Texas RAL litigation settlement and
being operated as company-owned for the majority of fiscal year 2004. These other cases in the prior year. See discussion in ‘‘RAL Litigation’’ below.
changes, coupled with the re-franchising of certain former major franchise Pretax income for fiscal year 2004 increased $80.5 million, or 14.7%, over 2003.
territories at higher royalty rates, resulted in an increase in royalty revenue of The segment’s operating margin improved sixty basis points to 30.0% in fiscal year
6.3%. 2004.

Revenues earned during the current year in connection with RAL participations
totaled $168.4 million. These revenues are approximately $30.1 million higher than Fiscal 2005 outlook
waiver fees earned during fiscal year 2003 and $8.4 million higher than For us to successfully grow our client base in future years, we must improve the
participation fees earned in fiscal year 2002. See discussion on the waiver below. convenience of our services through office expansion and differentiate the value
Our RAL participation revenues are benefiting from the new company-owned of our services through advice and multi-channel access. In fiscal year 2005, we
operations in former major franchise territories. We participate in RALs at a rate plan to expand our company-owned office locations by 500-600 offices. We believe
of nearly 50% for company-owned offices compared to 25% in major franchise by investing in our office network, we can attract potential clients who are
offices. This increased participation rate has allowed our revenues to increase, primarily motivated by convenience. Although, we expect the additional tax
although the number of RALs has declined 8.2% since fiscal year 2002. offices to result in incremental revenues during fiscal year 2005, due to the cost of

During fiscal year 2003, we entered into an agreement with Household, whereby expansion, we do not expect any growth in pretax income from this office
we waived our right to purchase any participation interests in and receive license expansion.
fees for RALs during the period January 1 through April 30, 2003. In consideration Over the past few fiscal years, we have focused on integrating actionable advice
for waiving these rights we received a series of payments from Household in fiscal into our relationships with our tax clients. We continue each year to add new
year 2003, subject to certain adjustments in fiscal year 2004 based on delinquency areas of free advice targeted at the individual client based on information
rates. See discussion in Item 1, ‘‘RAL Participations and 2003 Tax Season Waiver.’’ provided during the preparation of their tax return. We believe our advice-based

A total of 3.8 million software units were sold during fiscal year 2004, an strategy is a key point of differentiation and strengthens our competitive position.
increase of 11.2% compared to unit sales of 3.4 million in 2003. Software units In addition, our Licensed Referral Tax Professional (‘‘LRTP’’) program, which
include TaxCut Federal, TaxCut State, DeductionPro, WillPower and Legal provides referrals to HRBFA financial advisors, is key to bringing financial advice
Advisor. Revenues from software sales of $69.5 million in fiscal year 2004 and services to the portion of our client base where more sophisticated
increased 11.4% as a result of the higher sales volume. investment services are appropriate. Our fiscal year 2005 goal is to have

Online tax preparation revenues increased 70.6% to $44.9 million primarily as a 2,500 LRTPs. We believe this advice relationship, as well as our ability to offer
result of an increase in the average price and a 31.2% increase in clients served. retail mortgage products to our client base increases our tax client retention.
Increases in software and online unit sales have an especially beneficial impact to We will also continue to enhance our digital tax solutions. We believe our multi-
our earnings, as these operations have relatively low variable costs. channel strategy not only allows clients to choose how they want to be served, but

POM revenues for fiscal year 2004 increased $27.3 million, or 57.4%, primarily also allows us to appeal to a different client base than we do through our offices.
due to a change in accounting principle. Prior to the adoption of EITF 00-21,
revenues related to POM guarantees in premium offices were recorded within tax

Fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002preparation revenues. With the adoption of EITF 00-21, the revenues are deferred
U.S. Tax Operations’ revenues increased $30.4 million, or 1.7%, to $1.9 billion forand recognized over the guarantee period. The increase over the prior year is a
fiscal year 2003.
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Tax preparation and related fees increased $14.1 million, or 1.0%, for fiscal year Pretax income for fiscal year 2003 increased $13.6 million, or 2.6%, over 2002.
2003, compared to fiscal year 2002. This increase is due to a 6.7% increase in our The segment’s operating margin improved thirty basis points to 29.4% in fiscal
average fee per client served, partially offset by a 4.3% decrease in clients served year 2003.
in company-owned offices. The increase in the average fee per client served is
primarily due to an increase in the complexity of returns prepared. The decrease RAL litigation
in clients served in company-owned offices during fiscal year 2003 was driven We have been named as a defendant in a number of lawsuits around the country
primarily by the impact of the sustained weak economy. Additionally, due to the alleging that we engaged in wrongdoing with respect to the RAL program. In
absence of substantive tax law changes, the marketing programs failed to attract particular, the plaintiffs in these cases have alleged that disclosures in the RAL
as much new business as in the previous year. applications were inadequate, misleading and untimely; that the RAL interest rates

Royalty revenue increased $8.7 million, or 5.6%. The average fee per client were usurious and unconscionable; that we suppressed the fact that we would
served at franchise offices increased 8.1%, while clients served declined 2.7%. receive part of the finance charges paid by the customer for such loans; and that

RAL waiver fees of $138.2 million were recognized during fiscal year 2003. We we owe, and breached, a fiduciary duty to our customers in connection with the
participated in RALs in fiscal year 2002 and recognized revenues of $160.0 million. RAL program. In many of these cases, the plaintiffs seek to proceed on behalf of a

A total of 3.4 million software units were sold during fiscal year 2003, an class of similarly situated RAL customers, and in certain instances the courts have
increase of 12.1% compared to unit sales of 3.0 million in 2002. Revenues from allowed the cases to proceed as class actions. In other cases, courts have held
software sales of $62.4 million in fiscal year 2003 increased 13.8% as a result of the that plaintiffs must pursue their claims on an individual basis, and may not
higher sales volume. This increase was partially offset by increases in the number proceed as a class action. See Item 3, Legal Proceedings for additional
of rebates offered and customer rebate redemption rates. information.

Online tax preparation revenues increased 80.0% primarily as a result of a 91.3% On November 19, 2002, we announced a settlement had been reached in the
increase in clients served. cases Ronnie and Nancy Haese, et al. v. H&R Block, Inc., et al., Case

Total expenses for fiscal year 2003 were up $16.8 million, or 1.3%, from 2002. No. CV96-4213, District Court of Kleberg County, Texas (Haese I) and Ronnie and
These increased expenses were primarily attributable to a litigation reserve of Nancy Haese, et al. v. H&R Block, Inc., et al., Case No. CV-99-314-D, District Court
$41.7 million recorded during the second quarter of fiscal year 2003 relating to of Kleberg County, Texas (Haese II), filed originally as one action on July 30, 1996.
Texas RAL litigation. Other legal costs increased $20.4 million due to various legal As a result of that settlement, we recorded a liability and pretax expense of
proceedings. $43.5 million during the 2003 fiscal year. This represented our best estimate of our

Occupancy and equipment costs increased $20.4 million due primarily to a 5.2% share of the settlement, plaintiff class legal fees and expenses, tax products and
increase in the number of offices under lease and increases in related utility and associated mailing expenses. Our share of the settlement is less than the total
other support charges. Allocated finance expenses increased $9.1 million, or amount awarded due to amounts recoverable from a co-defendant in the case.
68.6%, primarily due to increased insurance costs. These increases were partially We believe we have strong defenses to the various RAL cases and will
offset by a $20.8 million decrease in compensation and benefits. This decrease vigorously defend our position. Nevertheless, the amounts claimed by the
was due to better management of support staff wages, a decline in payroll taxes plaintiffs are, in some instances, very substantial, and there can be no assurances
related to seasonal stock option exercises and changes in the tax preparer as to the ultimate outcome of the pending RAL cases, or as to the impact of the
compensation plan. Bad debt expense declined $20.9 million as a result of RAL cases on our financial statements.
collections of RAL receivables, which were written off in prior years, and the
elimination of bad debt expense associated with RAL participations. Other
expenses decreased $32.4 million from 2002 primarily due to reduced servicing
expenses associated with prior year RAL participations.
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M O R T G A G E  O P E R AT I O N S
This segment is primarily engaged in the origination of non-prime mortgage loans Mortgage Operations – Financial Results (in 000s)
through an independent broker network, the origination of prime and non-prime

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
mortgage loans through a retail office network, the sale and securitization of

Components of gains on sales:mortgage loans and residual interests, and the servicing of non-prime loans.
Gains on mortgage loans $ 716,690 $ 663,573 $ 455,388We believe offering retail mortgage products to other segments’ clients results
Gains on sales of residualin added value to the total client experience. During fiscal year 2004, 48.9% of our

interests 40,689 130,881 –retail loans were made to other segments’ clients. We estimate, for those clients
Impairment of residual interests (30,661) (54,111) (30,987)who purchase these products, their retention as a tax client improves by more

than six percentage points. Total gains on sales 726,718 740,343 424,401
Loan servicing revenue 211,710 168,351 147,162
Interest income:

Mortgage Operations – Operating Statistics (dollars in 000s)
Accretion-residual interests 168,029 145,165 50,583

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 Accretion-beneficial interest 167,705 103,294 70,668
Number of loans Other interest income 5,064 5,421 6,609

originated: Total interest income 340,798 253,880 127,860
Wholesale (non-prime) 130,356 93,497 74,208 Other 2,173 2,837 2,910
Retail: Prime 9,763 12,361 7,935

Total revenues 1,281,399 1,165,411 702,333Non-prime 15,220 9,983 7,190
Compensation and benefits 297,441 242,143 171,084Total 155,339 115,841 89,333
Servicing and processing 107,538 74,774 86,146

Volume of loans Occupancy and equipment 49,231 42,626 30,700
originated: Other 148,928 111,918 75,015
Wholesale (non-prime) $ 20,150,992 $ 13,659,243 $ 9,457,331

Total expenses 603,138 471,461 362,945Retail: Prime 1,258,347 1,697,815 1,179,137
Pretax income $ 678,261 $ 693,950 $ 339,388Non-prime 1,846,674 1,220,563 816,705

Total $ 23,256,013 $ 16,577,621 $ 11,453,173

Loan sales: Fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003
Loans originated $ 23,234,935 $ 16,591,821 $ 11,440,190 Mortgage Operations’ revenues increased $116.0 million, or 10.0%, compared to
Loans acquired – 633,953 – the prior year. This increase was primarily a result of higher servicing income,

increased production volumes and accretion.Total $ 23,234,935 $ 17,225,774 $ 11,440,190
The following table summarizes the key drivers of gains on sales of mortgage

loans:Weighted average FICO
score (2) 608 604 600 (dollars in 000s)

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003Execution price – Net
gain on sale (1)

Number of sales associates (1) 2,812 2,228
Loans originated and sold 4.09% 4.63% 4.30% Total number of applications 269,267 216,492
Loans acquired and sold – .18% – Closing ratio (2) 57.7% 53.5%

Total number of originations 155,339 115,841Total 4.09% 4.46% 4.30%
Average loan size $ 150 $ 143
Total originations $ 23,256,013 $ 16,577,621Weighted average interest
Non-prime/prime origination ratio 17.5:1 8.8:1rate for borrowers (2) 7.39% 8.15% 9.09%
Loan sales $ 23,234,935 $ 17,225,774

Weighted average loan-to- Execution price – net gain on sale (3) 4.09% 4.46%
value (2) 78.1% 78.7% 78.6%

(1)
Includes all direct sales and back office sales support associates.

(1)
Defined as total premium received divided by total balance of loans delivered to third- (2)

Percentage of loans funded divided by total applications in the period.
party investors or securitization vehicles (excluding mortgage servicing rights and the (3)

Defined as total premium received divided by total balance of loans delivered to third-
effect of loan origination expenses). party investors or securitization vehicles (excluding mortgage servicing rights and the

(2)
Represents non-prime production. effect of loan origination expenses).
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Gains on sales of mortgage loans increased $53.1 million to $716.7 million for fair value of the residual interests and could cause changes to the accretion of
the year ended April 30, 2004. The increase over last year is a result of a significant these residual interests in future periods. Additionally, sales of previously
increase in loan origination volume, an increase in the average loan size and the securitized residual interests results in decreases to accretion income in future
closing ratio, partially offset by a decrease in the loan sale execution price and periods.
increased loan sale repurchase reserves. During the year, the Company originated Accretion of beneficial interest in Trusts increased $64.4 million, or 62.4%, in
$23.3 billion in mortgage loans compared to $16.6 billion last year, an increase of 2004. The balance of loans held by the Trusts and the interest margin earned
40.3%. The execution price on mortgage loan sales decreased primarily due to impacts our accretion. The average balance of loans held by the Trusts increased
lower mortgage rates as the non-prime industry adjusted rates to reflect changes to $3.2 billion from $1.8 billion in the prior year. The interest margin is the
in the market interest rates. The loan sale repurchase reserves, which are netted difference between the rate on the underlying loans and the financing costs of the
against gains on sales, increased $25.5 million over the prior year. This increase is Trusts. The interest rate margin decreased to 5.40% during fiscal year 2004, from
primarily a result of an increase in loan sales coupled with the increase in whole 5.76% in 2003.
loan sales compared to securitizations, for which higher reserves are provided at Total expenses increased $131.7 million, or 27.9%, over the prior year. Servicing
the time of sale for estimated repurchases. Whole loan sales accounted for 76% of and processing expenses increased $32.8 million, or 43.8%, as a result of a higher
total loan sales, compared to 41% in the prior year. average servicing portfolio and the acceleration of amortization of certain MSRs.

In November 2002, the Company completed the sale of previously securitized Compensation and benefits increased $55.3 million as a result of a 22.9% increase
residual interests and recorded a gain of $130.9 million. This sale accelerated cash in the number of employees, reflecting resources needed to support higher loan
flows from these residual interests, effectively realizing previously recorded production volumes. Other expenses increased $37.0 million, or 33.1%, for the
unrealized gains included in other comprehensive income. Two smaller current year, primarily due to $10.4 million in increased marketing expenses
transactions were completed in fiscal year 2004, which resulted in gains of primarily for retail mortgage direct mail advertising, $13.5 million in increased
$40.7 million. allocated corporate and shared costs and $7.2 million in increased consulting

Impairments of residual interests in securitizations of $30.7 million were expenses. Allocated costs increased due to higher insurance costs and the
recognized during the year compared with $54.1 million in the prior year. The expensing of stock-based compensation. Occupancy and equipment expenses
impairments were due primarily to loan performance of older residuals and increased $6.6 million due to nine additional branch offices opened since October
changes in assumptions to more closely align with the current economic and 2002, continued expansion of a second servicing center that opened in August
interest rate environment. 2002 and additional administrative office space.

The following table summarizes the key drivers of loan servicing revenues: Pretax income decreased $15.7 million, or 2.3%, for fiscal year 2004.

(dollars in 000s) Fiscal 2005 outlook
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 We believe fiscal year 2005 will generally be a rising interest rate environment. In a

rising interest rate environment, we expect our profit margins will narrow due toAverage servicing portfolio:
less favorable loan execution pricing compared to the sustained period ofWith related MSRs $ 32,039,811 $ 23,858,490
declining rates over the last two fiscal years. Actual execution pricing for theWithout related MSRs 6,481,069 3,883,980
fourth quarter and full fiscal year 2004 was 3.96% and 4.09%, respectively. As of$ 38,520,880 $ 27,742,470
April 30, 2004, we have forward loan sale commitments at an average execution

Number of loans serviced 324,364 246,463 price of 4.38%.
Average delinquency rate 6.04% 7.08% With the rising interest rates we have raised our coupon rate since year-end.
Value of MSRs $ 113,821 $ 99,265 Although the timing and magnitude of changes to non-prime mortgage interest

Loan servicing revenues increased $43.4 million, or 25.8%, this year. The rates may differ from changes in other market interest rates, we will be utilizing
increase reflects a higher average loan servicing portfolio, which was partially various strategies in fiscal year 2005 to manage our pricing in a competitive rate
offset by the reduction of certain of our ancillary fees previously charged to environment.
borrowers. The average servicing portfolio for fiscal year 2004 increased 38.9%. Additionally, we believe we can grow our originations at a modest level by

Total accretion of residual interests increased $22.9 million over the prior year. continued expansion of our retail business and focusing on controllable drivers in
This improvement is the result of write-ups in the related asset values in fiscal our wholesale business. These drivers include geographic expansion, growing our
years 2003 and 2004. Increases in fair value are realized in income through sales force, increasing our penetration of existing broker relationships and
accretion over the remaining expected life of the residual interest. continuing to improve our closing ratios.

For the majority of fiscal year 2004, our residual interests continued to perform Based on these assumptions, we expect our mortgage segment pretax income
better than expected primarily due to lower interest rates during the first part of to be flat to slightly down from this year, excluding the gain on sale of previously
the year and due to lower credit losses than assumed during the later part of the securitized residual interests.
year. As a result of this performance, our residuals have produced, or are

Fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002expected to produce, more cash proceeds than projected in previous valuation
Mortgage Operations’ revenues increased $463.1 million, or 65.9%, compared tomodels. We recorded favorable pretax mark-to-market adjustments, which
fiscal year 2002. This increase was primarily a result of increased productionincreased the fair value of our residual interests $199.7 million during the year.
volumes and related sales execution pricing, gains on sales of previouslyThese adjustments were recorded, net of write-downs of $32.6 million and
securitized residuals and accretion on residual interests.deferred taxes of $63.8 million, in other comprehensive income and will be

Gains on sales of mortgage loans increased $208.2 million to $663.6 million foraccreted into income throughout the remaining life of the residual interests.
the year ended April 30, 2003. The increase over the prior year is a result of aFuture changes in interest rates, actual loan pool performance or other
significant increase in loan origination volume, an increase in the average loanassumptions could cause additional favorable or unfavorable adjustments to the
size, the closing ratio and the loan sale execution price. During 2003, the Company
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originated $16.6 billion in mortgage loans compared to $11.5 billion in 2002, an deferred taxes of $70.5 million, in other comprehensive income and will be
increase of 44.7%. The execution price on mortgage loan sales increased primarily accreted into income throughout the remaining life of the residual interests.
due to declining interest rates during the year, offset by a decline in the weighted- Accretion of beneficial interest in Trusts increased $32.6 million, or 46.2%, in
average coupon rate charged to borrowers. 2003, due to the average balance on loans held by the Trusts increasing to

In November 2002, the Company completed the sale of previously securitized $1.8 billion from $1.2 billion in fiscal year 2002. Also contributing to the increase
residual interests and recorded a gain of $130.9 million. was higher interest margin earned. The interest rate margin increased to 5.76%

Impairments of residual interests in securitizations of $54.1 million were during fiscal year 2003, from 5.58% in 2002.
recognized during fiscal year 2003, due primarily to loan performance of older Total expenses increased $108.5 million, or 29.9%, over fiscal year 2002. This
residuals and changes in assumptions to more closely align with the current increase is primarily due to a $71.1 million increase in compensation and benefits
economic and interest rate environment. as a result of a 23.2% increase in the number of employees, reflecting resources

Loan servicing revenues increased $21.2 million, or 14.4%, over fiscal year 2002. needed to support higher loan production volumes. Occupancy and equipment
The increase reflects a higher average loan servicing portfolio. The average expenses increased $11.9 million due to the opening of an additional servicing
servicing portfolio for fiscal year 2003 increased 39.4%. center and expansion of the servicing and information technology facilities to

Total accretion of residual interests increased $94.6 million over fiscal year support the higher overall activity levels. Servicing and processing expenses
2002. This improvement is the result of increases in the related asset values in declined due to an impairment of $11.6 million on servicing assets recorded
fiscal years 2002 and 2003. Increases in fair value are realized in income through during fiscal year 2002, while only $866 thousand was recorded in fiscal year 2003.
accretion over the remaining expected life of the residual interest. Other expenses increased $36.9 million, or 49.2%, primarily due to increased

We recorded favorable pretax mark-to-market adjustments, which increased the consulting, depreciation and marketing expenses.
fair value of our residual interests $203.8 million during fiscal year 2003, and write- Pretax income increased $354.6 million, or 104.5%, for fiscal year 2003.
downs of $19.1 million. These adjustments were recorded, net of write-downs and
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B U S I N E S S  S E R V I C E S
This segment offers middle-market companies accounting, tax and consulting businesses contributed $13.0 million in revenues in the current fiscal year. The
services, wealth management, retirement resources, payroll services, corporate remainder of the increase was driven primarily by a 3.3% increase in the net
finance and financial process outsourcing. collected rate per hour.

Total expenses increased $31.6 million, or 7.1%, over the prior year.
Compensation and benefits costs increased $43.8 million, primarily as a result of

Business Services – Operating Statistics increased activity in the capital markets business and increased costs in
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 traditional accounting. A goodwill impairment charge of $11.8 million was

recorded in the prior year. No such impairment was recorded in fiscal year 2004.Accounting, tax and consulting:
Pretax income for the year ended April 30, 2004 was $19.3 million compared toChargeable hours 2,598,397 2,583,505 2,675,704

a loss of $14.1 million in fiscal year 2003.Chargeable hours per person 1,414 1,388 1,399
Net collected rate per hour $ 124 $ 120 $ 113
Average margin per person $ 102,496 $ 97,117 $ 94,052 Fiscal 2005 outlook

Capital markets: Our focus for fiscal year 2005 is growing the business within our current markets
Platforms delivered 1,293 655 (1)

by expanding our services to existing clients and by targeting other mid-size
companies in those areas. To achieve this goal, we began the development of a(1)

Not comparable due to mid-year acquisition of capital markets business.

national sales force in fiscal year 2004 and we plan to continue to roll this
initiative out in fiscal year 2005. Additionally, in May 2004 we initiated new
marketing efforts designed to promote brand awareness and the services we offer.

Business Services – Financial Results (in 000s) We have no major acquisition plans for fiscal year 2005.
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Accounting, tax and consulting $ 372,423 $ 352,102 $ 365,194 Fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002
Capital markets 73,857 35,626 10,756 Business Services’ revenues for fiscal year 2003 improved $17.2 million, or 4.1%,
Payroll, benefits and retirement services 21,107 20,578 17,048 over fiscal year 2002. This increase was primarily due to the acquisition of Equico
Other 31,823 25,834 23,928 Resources, LLC (‘‘EquiCo’’) in December 2001, which contributed an increase of

Total revenues 499,210 434,140 416,926 $24.9 million over fiscal year 2002. Revenues from traditional accounting services
declined $13.1 million over fiscal year 2002 as a result of a 20.0% reduction in taxCompensation and benefits 336,073 292,291 265,960
planning services sold and lower revenues per unit sold. This decline wasOccupancy and equipment 25,277 24,428 19,957
somewhat offset by growth in core accounting and tax services, driven primarilyDepreciation and amortization 23,002 23,044 21,339
by an increase in the net collected rate per hour. Additionally, fiscal year 2003 wasImpairment of goodwill – 11,777 –
the first year there was no significant year-over-year growth related to newOther 95,537 96,718 86,954
acquisitions. In fiscal year 2003 we acquired only a few businesses to add scale to

Total expenses 479,889 448,258 394,210 existing offices and only one new location was added, resulting in an increase of
Pretax income (loss) $ 19,321 $ (14,118) $ 22,716 $1.7 million in revenues.

Deferred revenue increased $12.2 million in fiscal year 2003 due to a backlog of
Fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003 scheduled capital markets platforms resulting from staffing shortages.
Business Services’ revenues for fiscal year 2004 improved $65.1 million, or 15.0%, Total expenses increased $54.0 million, or 13.7%, over fiscal year 2002.
over the prior year. This increase was primarily due to a $38.2 million increase in Compensation and benefits costs increased $26.3 million and occupancy and
capital markets revenue resulting from a 97.4% increase in the number of equipment costs increased $4.5 million, primarily as a result of the EquiCo and
platforms delivered. MyBenefitSource, Inc. (‘‘MBS’’) acquisitions in December 2001. Other expenses

Revenues in accounting, tax and consulting also increased $20.3 million over increased by $9.8 million primarily due to increased legal and travel expenses,
the prior year as a result of newly acquired tax businesses and increased both related to EquiCo and MBS. As part of our annual goodwill impairment
productivity. The acquisition of U.S. Tax Operations’ former major franchises testing, an impairment charge of $11.8 million was recorded related to MBS in
allowed us to acquire the tax businesses associated with the original fiscal year 2003.
M&P acquisition. We were previously unable to acquire and operate these The pretax loss for fiscal year 2003 was $14.1 million compared to pretax
businesses in direct competition with major franchise territories. The acquired tax income of $22.7 million in fiscal year 2002.

I N V E S T M E N T  S E R V I C E S
This segment is primarily engaged in offering advice-based investment services offerings have allowed us to shift our focus from a transaction-based client
and securities products. Our integration of investment advice and new product relationship to a more advice-based focus.
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Investment Services – Operating Statistics Investment Services – Financial Results (in 000s)

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Customer trades (1) 1,514,969 1,218,092 1,536,930 Transactional revenue $ 101,634 $ 93,422 $ 123,990
Daily average trades 5,918 4,853 6,123 Annuitized revenue 59,696 37,358 25,677
Average revenue per trade (2) $ 119.36 $ 120.15 $ 106.42 Production revenue 161,330 130,780 149,667
Active accounts 863,116 752,903 695,355 Other revenue 34,732 32,714 33,169
Assets under administration

Non-interest revenue 196,062 163,494 182,836(billions) $ 26.7 $ 22.3 $ 27.3
Margin interest revenue 33,408 37,300 67,849Average assets per active account $ 30,970 $ 29,616 $ 39,261
Less: interest expense (1,358) (4,830) (14,744)Ending margin balances (millions) $ 608 $ 486 $ 801

Net interest revenue 32,050 32,470 53,105Ending customer payables
balances (millions) $ 1,007 $ 848 $ 825

Total revenues (1) 228,112 195,964 235,941
Number of advisors (3) 1,009 984 1,211

Commissions 53,851 41,748 46,490
Included in the numbers above

Other variable expenses 3,866 4,234 9,266
are the following relating to

Total variable expenses 57,717 45,982 55,756fee-based accounts:
Gross profit 170,395 149,982 180,185Customer accounts 6,964 4,680 3,339
Compensation and benefits 97,151 92,978 93,314Average revenue per account $ 1,572 $ 1,442 $ 449
Occupancy and equipment 29,054 30,323 29,106Assets under administration
Depreciation and amortization 45,129 51,791 49,866(millions) $ 1,494 $ 789 $ 512
Impairment of goodwill – 24,000 –Average assets per active
Other 44,426 63,933 48,067account $ 214,537 $ 168,522 $ 153,323
Allocated corporate and shared costs 19,081 15,249 14,694

(1)
Includes both trades on which commissions are earned (‘‘commissionable trades’’) and

Total fixed expenses 234,841 278,274 235,047trades for which no commission is earned (‘‘fee-based trades’’). Excludes open-ended

mutual fund redemptions. Pretax loss $ (64,446) $ (128,292) $ (54,862)(2)
Calculated as total commissions divided by commissionable trades.

(3)
Fiscal year 2003 and 2002 advisors have been adjusted to exclude sales assistants. (1)

Total revenues, less interest expense

Fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003
Investment Services’ revenues, net of interest expense, for fiscal year 2004
increased $32.1 million, or 16.4%, over the prior year. The improvement is
primarily due to the increase in annuitized revenues.

Transactional revenue, which is based on transaction or trade quantities,
increased $8.2 million, or 8.8%, from the prior year due to a 24.4% increase in
trading activity, partially offset by a slight decline in average revenue per trade.
Annuitized revenues increased $22.3 million, or 59.8%, due to increased sales of
annuities and mutual funds. The increase in production revenues is also due to an
increase in advisor productivity. We added a net 25 advisors this year and advisor
productivity continues to improve. Productivity averaged approximately $166,000
per advisor compared to $122,000 last year.

Margin interest revenue declined $3.9 million, or 10.4%, from the prior year
primarily as a result of a 5.5% decline in average margin balances coupled with
lower interest rates. Margin balances declined from an average of $577.0 million in
fiscal year 2003 to $545.0 million in the current year. Accordingly, interest expense
for fiscal year 2004 declined $3.5 million, or 71.9%, from fiscal year 2003. Margin
balances, which steadily declined during most of 2003, have steadily increased in
the last several months of fiscal year 2004 and averaged $600.0 million for the
fourth quarter.

Total expenses decreased $31.7 million, or 9.8%, primarily due to the
$24.0 million goodwill impairment charge recorded last year. Other expenses
decreased $19.5 million primarily as a result of a reduction in consulting and legal
expenses. These decreases were partially offset by a $12.1 million increase in
commissions expense due to the increase in customer trading and higher average
commissions paid.
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The pretax loss for Investment Services for fiscal year 2004 was $64.4 million lower interest rates. Margin balances declined from an average of $1.0 billion for
compared to a loss of $128.3 million last year. fiscal year 2002 to $577.0 million in 2003. Accordingly, interest expense for fiscal

year 2003 declined $9.9 million, or 67.2%, from fiscal year 2002.
Fiscal 2005 outlook Total expenses increased $33.5 million, or 11.5%, primarily due to a $24.0 million
We believe the key to segment profitability is the recruitment and retention of goodwill impairment charge recorded during fiscal year 2003. During the first
experienced financial advisors. See additional discussion of our advisor quarter of fiscal year 2003, in light of unsettled market conditions and the severe
production in Item 1, ‘‘Description of Business.’’ Our goal is to hire 250-300 decline of comparable business valuations in the investment industry, we engaged
experienced advisors in fiscal year 2005. We are also partnering with the U.S. Tax an independent valuation firm to perform the goodwill impairment test, in
Operation segment in the LRTP program, which focuses on adding advice to our accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, ‘‘Goodwill
tax client relationships through licensing and aligning tax professionals with and Other Intangible Assets,’’ on the Investment Services segment. As a result, the
financial advisors. See additional discussion above in U.S. Tax Operations outlook $24.0 million impairment charge was recorded.
section. Additional expense increases resulted from various new initiatives to expand

Although we expect to see continued improvements in our financial products and the business, including the installation of a new back office
performance, we still expect to report an operating loss for fiscal year 2005. brokerage operating system, relocation to new offices and advisor recruitment

initiatives. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in commissionsFiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002
expense due to the decline in customer trading and cost containment measures.Investment Services’ revenues, net of interest expense, for fiscal year 2003

As a result of meeting certain three-year production goals established indeclined $40.0 million, or 16.9%, compared to fiscal year 2002. The decrease was
connection with the acquisition of OLDE Financial, certain long-term advisorsprimarily due to lower net interest income and lower transactional revenues.
were eligible to receive a one-time retention payment. The retention period wasTransactional revenue decreased $30.6 million, or 24.7%, from the prior year due
through December 31, 2002. Retention payments under this plan of approximatelyto a 20.7% decline in trading activity, partially offset by an increase in average
$17.0 million were accrued through the third quarter of fiscal year 2003. Therevenue per trade. Additionally, syndicate fee revenues of $6.7 million were
retention payments were paid out in February 2003.included in Other revenues for fiscal year 2003 and in fiscal year 2002 they were

The pretax loss for Investment Services for fiscal year 2003 was $128.3 millionincluded in Transactional revenue. Annuitized revenues increased $11.7 million, or
compared to the prior year loss of $54.9 million.45.5%, due to increased sales of annuities and mutual funds.

Margin interest revenue declined $30.5 million, or 45.0%, from fiscal year 2002
primarily as a result of a 42.3% decline in average margin balances coupled with

I N T E R N AT I O N A L  TA X  O P E R AT I O N S
This segment is primarily engaged in providing local tax return preparation, filing 10.8%, entirely as a result of favorable foreign exchange rates. Revenues in
and related services in Canada, Australia and the United Kingdom. In addition, Canadian dollars declined 0.4% primarily due to a 3.5% decline in the average
International Tax Operations includes Overseas operations, which consists of charge per return, somewhat offset by an increase in company-owned tax returns
company-owned and franchise offices preparing tax returns for U.S. citizens living prepared, most of which were discounted returns. The decline in average charge
abroad. resulted from our current year marketing program, which was designed to attract

Operations in this segment are transacted in the local currencies of the students and younger filers. Of the $6.0 million increase in Australian revenues,
countries in which they operate, therefore the results can be affected by the $4.9 million was due to favorable foreign exchange rates. Additionally, tax returns
translation into U.S. dollars. The weakening of the U.S. dollar during the current prepared in company-owned offices in fiscal year 2004 increased 3.7% compared
year had the impact of increasing reported revenues, income and losses. to the prior year and the average charge per return increased 2.0%.

Pretax income improved $0.6 million, or 6.1%, primarily due to exchange rates,
as earnings in local currencies were similar to the prior year.

International Tax Operations – Financial Results (in 000s)

Fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
International Tax Operations’ revenues for the year ended April 30, 2003 increased

Canada $ 64,238 $ 57,985 $ 55,753
$6.4 million, or 8.1%, compared to fiscal year 2002. This improvement is primarily

Australia 26,577 20,614 17,701
due to results in Australia, where tax returns prepared in company-owned offices

Other 6,745 6,483 5,256
in fiscal year 2003 increased 3.7% compared to 2002 and the average charge per

Total revenues 97,560 85,082 78,710 return increased 3.0%. Revenues in Canada increased $2.2 million, or 4.0%, entirely
as a result of foreign exchange rates. Revenues in Canadian dollars declined 2.3%Canada 8,888 8,108 7,728
primarily due to the sale of certain operations during 2003 and a decline in theAustralia 4,609 3,802 2,912
number of returns prepared. Tax returns prepared declined 3.7% as a result ofOther (2,400) (1,446) (3,547)
increased competition in the major metropolitan areas.Pretax income $ 11,097 $ 10,464 $ 7,093

Pretax income improved $3.4 million, or 47.5%, primarily due to cost savings in
Fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003 the United Kingdom as a result of business restructuring and the write-off of
International Tax Operations’ revenues for the year ended April 30, 2004 increased intangible assets in the prior year, which is included in ‘‘Other’’ in the above table.
$12.5 million, or 14.7%, compared to the prior year. This improvement is due to
results in Canada and Australia. Revenues in Canada increased $6.3 million, or
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CORPORATE OPERATIONS
This segment consists primarily of corporate support departments, which provide $2.0 million write-off of investments at our captive insurance subsidiary and
services to our operating segments. These support departments consist of improved results from our small business subsidiary.
marketing, information technology, facilities, human resources, executive, legal, Corporate expenses declined $6.9 million, or 5.4%, due primarily to lower
finance, government relations and corporate communications. Support interest expense. Interest expense on acquisition debt declined as a result of
department costs are generally allocated to our operating segments. Our captive lower financing costs and a scheduled payment of $45.1 million in August 2003.
insurance, franchise financing and small business initiative subsidiaries are also Information technology department expenses increased $17.7 million, or 19.0%,
included within this segment. primarily due to additional resources needed to support additional projects on

behalf of the operating segments and other support departments. Marketing
department expenses increased $21.7 million, or 24.4%, primarily as a result of

Corporate Operations – Financial Results (in 000s) marketing initiatives for U.S. Tax Operations directed toward our brand
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 repositioning and raising consumer awareness of our advice offerings.

The pretax loss was $107.7 million, compared with last year’s loss ofOperating revenues $ 12,532 $ 6,448 $ 12,603
$122.0 million.Eliminations (8,218) (7,099) (6,830)

Our effective income tax rate for fiscal year 2004 decreased to 39.5% comparedTotal revenues 4,314 (651) 5,773
to 41.2% in fiscal year 2003, primarily as a result of non-deductible goodwill

Corporate expenses: impairment charges recorded in the prior year.
Compensation and benefits 12,670 14,959 14,703
Interest expense:

Fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002
Acquisition debt 68,815 72,766 79,002

Corporate Operations’ revenues declined $6.4 million primarily as a result of a
Other interest 693 1,106 3,777

$4.2 million decrease in operating interest income and a $2.0 million write-off of
Marketing and advertising 1,409 4,518 4,600

investments at our captive insurance subsidiary.
Other 36,299 33,438 36,392

Corporate expenses declined $11.7 million, or 8.4%, due primarily to lower
119,886 126,787 138,474 interest expense. Interest expense on acquisition debt declined as a result of

Support departments: lower financing costs and a payment of $39.8 million in August 2002.
Information technology 110,569 92,899 84,834 Information technology department expenses increased $8.1 million, or 9.5%,
Marketing 110,507 88,819 85,087 primarily due to a 20.5% increase in department personnel to support additional
Finance 33,829 30,232 19,795 projects on behalf of the operating segments. Finance department expenses
Other 78,521 65,730 58,749 increased $10.4 million, or 52.7%, primarily as a result of $4.7 million in increased

insurance costs and $2.4 million in additional consulting fees over fiscal year 2002.333,426 277,680 248,465
The pretax loss was $122.0 million, compared with the fiscal year 2002 loss ofAllocation of corporate and shared

$131.0 million.costs (336,639) (280,677) (247,106)
Our effective income tax rate for fiscal year 2003 increased to 41.2% comparedInvestment income, net 4,691 2,436 3,097

to 39.4% in fiscal year 2002, primarily as a result of non-deductible goodwillPretax loss $ (107,668) $ (122,005) $ (130,963)
impairment charges recorded in 2003.

Fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003
Corporate Operations’ revenues increased $5.0 million primarily as a result of
operating capital gains of $1.0 million in the current year compared to a

F I N A N C I A L  C O N D I T I O N

C A P I TA L  R E S O U R C E S  &  L I Q U I D I T Y  B Y  S E G M E N T
Our sources of capital include cash from operations, issuances of common stock Issuances of Common Stock. We issue shares of our common stock in
and debt. We use capital primarily to fund working capital requirements, pay accordance with our stock-based compensation plans out of our treasury shares.
dividends, repurchase our shares and acquire businesses. Proceeds from the issuance of common stock totaled $120.0 million, $126.3

Cash From Operations. Operating cash flows totaled $926.8 million, $690.8 million and $195.2 million in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
million and $741.4 million in fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Dividends. We have consistently paid quarterly dividends. Dividends paid
Operating cash flows in fiscal year 2004 improved compared to fiscal year 2003 totaled $138.4 million, $125.9 million and $115.7 million in fiscal years 2004, 2003
due to an increase of $117.8 million in net income and increased cash flows from and 2002, respectively.
both Mortgage Operations and U.S. Tax Operations. Mortgage Operations Share Repurchases. On June 9, 2004, our Board of Directors approved an
contributed $278.5 million to cash from operations in the current year compared authorization to repurchase an additional 15 million shares. This authorization is
to $145.0 million in fiscal year 2003. U.S. Tax Operations contributed $521.6 in addition to the authorization of 20 million shares on June 11, 2003 and
million in operating cash flows this year compared to $410.2 million in the prior 15 million shares on September 12, 2001. During fiscal year 2004, we repurchased
year. 10.6 million shares pursuant to these authorizations at an aggregate price of
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$518.5 million or an average price of $48.90 per share. There were 11.3 million Investment Services held $531.6 million of this total segregated in a special
shares remaining under the 2003 authorization and no shares remaining under the reserve account for the exclusive benefit of customers pursuant to Rule 15c3-3 of
2001 authorization at the end of fiscal year 2004. the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Investment Services restricted cash

We plan to continue to purchase shares on the open market in accordance with balance has grown from $400.1 million at the beginning of fiscal year 2004 as
these authorizations, subject to various factors including the price of the stock, customer credit balances have increased at a faster pace than customer debit
the availability of excess cash, our ability to maintain liquidity and financial balances. Restricted cash of $13.2 million at April 30, 2004 held by Business
flexibility, securities laws restrictions and other investment opportunities Services is related to funds held to pay payroll taxes on behalf of its customers.
available. Restricted cash held by Mortgage Operations totaled $0.6 million at April 30, 2004

Acquisitions. We, from time to time, acquire businesses that are a good as a result of cash held for outstanding commitments to fund mortgage loans.
strategic fit to our organization. Significant acquisitions during fiscal year 2004 Fiscal year 2005 outlook. We are planning on refinancing our $250.0 million
were the former major franchise territories we now operate as company-owned. in Senior Notes, which are due in November 2004.
Cash paid in fiscal year 2004 related to the acquisition of these territories totaled We are also beginning construction on a new world headquarters facility during
$243.2 million. Total cash paid for acquisitions was $280.9 million during fiscal fiscal year 2005. Estimated construction costs during fiscal year 2005 of
year 2004 and $26.4 million during fiscal year 2003. $18 million will be financed from operating cash flows.

Restricted Cash. We hold certain cash balances that are restricted as to use.
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted totaled $545.4 million at fiscal year end.

A condensed consolidating statement of cash flows by segment for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004 follows. Generally, interest is not charged on intercompany
activities between segments. Detailed consolidated statements of cash flows are located in Item 8.

(in 000s)

U.S. Tax Mortgage Business Investment International Tax Corporate Consolidated
Operations Operations Services Services Operations Operations H&R Block

Cash provided by (used in):
Operations $ 521,646 $ 278,461 $ 61,875 $ (28,200) $ 19,458 $ 73,567 $ 926,807
Investing (293,711) 219,111 (39,373) (4,086) (4,679) (8,395) (131,133)
Financing – – (59,003) – (129) (540,219) (599,351)
Net intercompany (188,699) (546,609) 49,668 31,841 (13,831) 667,630 –

Net intercompany activities are excluded from investing and financing activities applicable state and federal laws. It is our intention to continue to offer the RAL
within the segment cash flows. We believe that by excluding intercompany program in the foreseeable future.
activities, the cash flows by segment more clearly depicts the cash generated and Loss of the RAL program could adversely affect our operating results. In
used by each segment. Had intercompany activities been included, those addition to the loss of revenues and income directly attributable to the RAL
segments in a net lending situation would have been included in investing program, the inability to offer RALs could indirectly result in the loss of retail tax
activities, and those in a net borrowing situation would have been included in clients and associated tax preparation revenues, unless we were able to take
financing activities. mitigating actions. Revenues from RAL participations were $168.4 million for the

U.S. Tax Operations: U.S. Tax Operations has historically been our largest year ended April 30, 2004, and after direct costs, contributed $92.7 million to the
provider of annual operating cash flows. The seasonal nature of U.S. Tax segment’s results. Total revenues related to the RAL program (including revenues
Operations generally results in a large positive operating cash flow in the fourth from participation interests) were $174.2 million for the year ended April 30, 2004,
quarter. U.S. Tax Operations generated $521.6 million in operating cash flows representing 4.1% of consolidated revenues. Revenues related to the RAL program
primarily related to net income, as cash is generally collected from clients at the totaled $142.1 million for the year ended April 30, 2003, representing 3.8% of
time services are rendered. Cash requirements for investing activities of consolidated revenues.
$293.7 million includes $243.2 million paid to former major franchisees. Mortgage Operations: This segment primarily generates cash as a result of

Household and its designated bank provide funding of all RALs offered the sale and securitization of mortgage loans and residual interests and as its
pursuant to a contract that expires in June 2006. If Household and its designated residual interests mature. Mortgage Operations provided $278.5 million in cash
bank do not continue to provide funding for RALs, we could seek other RAL from operating activities primarily due to the sale of mortgage loans. This segment
lenders to continue offering RALs to our clients or consider alternative funding also generated $219.1 million in cash from investing activities primarily related to
strategies. We believe that a number of suitable lenders would be available to cash received from the maturity and sales of residual interests.
replace Household should the need arise. Gains on Sales. Gains on sales of mortgage loans and related assets totaled

We also believe that the RAL program is a productive product line for the $726.7 million, of which 87% was received as cash. The cash was primarily
Company and a useful product for our customers. The RAL program is regularly recorded as operating activities.
reviewed both from a business perspective and to ensure compliance with
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The percent of gains on sales of mortgage assets received as cash is calculated Another important measure of cash generation is the percentage of cash
as follows: proceeds we receive from our capital market transactions. These amounts are

also included within the gain on sale of mortgage assets as reconciled below. The(in 000s)
percent calculation is as follows:

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
(in 000s)

Cash:
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002Whole loans sold by the Trusts $ 721,957 $ 347,241 $ 65,219

Loans securitized 198,226 389,449 414,844 Cash proceeds:
Sale of previously securitized Whole loans sold by the Trusts $ 721,957 $ 347,241 $ 65,219

residuals 40,689 130,881 – Loans securitized 198,226 389,449 414,844
Loan origination expenses, net (325,605) (203,511) (116,699) Sale of previously securitized

residuals 40,689 130,881 –635,267 664,060 363,364
Non-cash: 960,872 867,571 480,063

Retained mortgage servicing rights 84,274 60,078 52,844 Non-cash:
Additions (reductions) to balance Retained mortgage servicing

sheet (1) 11,490 (10,829) 22,910 rights 84,274 60,078 52,844
Changes in beneficial interest in Additions (reductions) to balance

Trusts 37,918 74,987 17,028 sheet (1) 11,490 (10,829) 22,910
Impairments to fair value of

95,764 49,249 75,754
residual interests (30,661) (54,111) (30,987)

Portion of gain on sale related toNet change in fair value of rate-
capital market transactions $ 1,056,636 $ 916,820 $ 555,817lock commitments (11,570) 6,158 (758)

Other items included in gain on
91,451 76,283 61,037

sale:
Reported gains on sales of mortgage Changes in beneficial interest in

assets $ 726,718 $ 740,343 $ 424,401 Trusts 37,918 74,987 17,028
Impairments to fair value of% of gains received as cash 87% 90% 86%

residual interests (30,661) (54,111) (30,987)
(1)

Includes residual interests and interest rate caps. Net change in fair value of rate-
lock commitments (11,570) 6,158 (758)

Loan origination expenses, net (325,605) (203,511) (116,699)

(329,918) (176,477) (131,416)
Reported gains on sales of

mortgage assets $ 726,718 $ 740,343 $ 424,401

% of gain on sale related to capital
market transactions received as
cash (2) 91% 95% 86%

(1)
Includes residual interests and interest rate caps.

(2)
Cash proceeds divided by portion of gain on sale related to capital market transactions.

Warehouse Funding. We regularly sell loans as a source of liquidity. Loan
sales in fiscal year 2004 were $23.2 billion compared with $17.2 billion in fiscal
year 2003. Additionally, Block Financial Corporation (‘‘BFC’’) provides an
additional $150 million line of credit for working capital needs.

To finance our prime originations, we utilize a warehouse facility with capacity
up to $50 million. This annual facility is currently in the final stage of
renegotiation, during which time the original maturity has been extended on a
month-to-month basis. This facility bears interest at one-month LIBOR plus 64 to
175 basis points. As of April 30, 2004 and 2003, the balance outstanding under this
facility was $4.0 million and $6.3 million, respectively, and is included in accounts
payable, accrued expenses and other on the consolidated balance sheets.

See discussion of our non-prime warehouse facilities below in ‘‘Off-Balance
Sheet Financing Arrangements.’’

We believe the sources of liquidity available to the Mortgage Operations
segment are sufficient for its needs. Risks to the stability of these sources include,
but are not limited to, adverse changes in the perception of the non-prime
industry, adverse changes in the regulation of non-prime lending, changes in the
rating criteria of non-prime lending by third-party rating agencies and, to a lesser
degree, reduction in the availability of third parties that provide credit
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enhancement. Past performance of the securitizations will also impact the To manage short-term liquidity, BFC provides HRBFA a $300 million unsecured
segment’s future participation in these markets. The five off-balance sheet credit facility. At the end of fiscal year 2004 there was no outstanding balance on
warehouse facilities used by the Trusts, which have a total current capacity of this facility.
$7.0 billion, are subject to annual renewal, each at a different time during the year, Liquidity needs relating to client trading and margin-borrowing activities are
and any of the above events could lead to difficulty in renewing the lines. These met primarily through cash balances in client brokerage accounts and working
risks are mitigated by a staggering of the renewal dates related to these capital. We believe these sources of funds will continue to be the primary sources
warehouse lines and through the use of multiple lending institutions to secure of liquidity for Investment Services. Stock loans have historically been used as a
these lines. secondary source of funding and could be used in the future, if warranted.

Business Services: Business Services funding requirements are largely related Securities borrowed and securities loaned transactions are generally reported
to receivables for completed work and ‘‘work in process.’’ We provide funding as collateralized financings. These transactions require us to deposit cash and/or
sufficient to cover their working capital needs. Business Services also has future collateral with the lender. Securities loaned consist of securities owned by
obligations and commitments, which are summarized in the tables below under customers, which were purchased on margin. When loaning securities, we receive
‘‘Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments.’’ cash collateral approximately equal to the value of the securities loaned. The

This segment generated $61.9 million in operating cash flows primarily related amount of cash collateral is adjusted, as required, for market fluctuations in the
to the collection of receivables and net income. Additionally, Business Services value of the securities loaned. Interest rates paid on the cash collateral fluctuate
used $39.4 million in investing activities primarily related to contingent payments as short-term interest rates change.
on prior acquisitions, and $59.0 million in financing activities as a result of To satisfy the margin deposit requirement of client option transactions with the
payments on acquisition debt. Options Clearing Corporation (‘‘OCC’’), Investment Services pledges customers’

Investment Services: Investment Services, through HRBFA, is subject to margined securities. Pledged securities at the end of fiscal year 2004 totaled
regulatory requirements intended to ensure the general financial soundness and $46.3 million, an excess of $7.9 million over the margin requirement. Pledged
liquidity of broker-dealers. securities at the end of fiscal year 2003 totaled $39.7 million, an excess of

HRBFA is required to maintain minimum net capital as defined under Rule 15c3- $4.3 million over the margin requirement.
1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and complies with the alternative capital We believe the funding sources for Investment Services are stable. Liquidity risk
requirement, which requires a broker-dealer to maintain net capital equal to the within this segment is primarily limited to maintaining sufficient capital levels to
greater of $250,000 or 2% of the combined aggregate debit balances arising from obtain securities lending liquidity to support margin borrowing by customers.
customer transactions. The net capital rule also provides that equity capital may International Tax Operations: International Tax Operations generated $19.5
not be withdrawn or cash dividends paid if resulting net capital would be less than million in cash flows from operating activities primarily due to its net income as
the greater of 5% of combined aggregate debit items or 120% of the minimum cash is generally collected from clients when services are rendered.
required net capital. At the end of fiscal year 2004, HRBFA’s net capital of International Tax Operations are generally self-funded. Cash balances are held
$115.5 million, which was 17.6% of aggregate debit items, exceeded its minimum in Canada, Australia and the United Kingdom independently in local currencies.
required net capital of $13.2 million by $102.3 million. During fiscal year 2004, we Block Canada has a commercial paper program up to $125 million (Canadian). At
contributed additional capital of $32.0 million, even though HRBFA was in excess April 30, 2004, there was no commercial paper outstanding. The peak borrowing
of the minimum net capital requirement, and we may continue to do so in the during fiscal year 2004 was $61.0 million (Canadian).
future.

In fiscal year 2004, Investment Services used $28.2 million in its operating
activities primarily due to the timing of cash deposits that are restricted for the
benefit of customers.

O F F - B A L A N C E  S H E E T  F I N A N C I N G  A R R A N G E M E N T S
We are party to various transactions with an off-balance sheet component, Substantially all non-prime mortgage loans we originate are sold daily to the
including loan commitments and QSPEs, or Trusts. Trusts. The Trusts purchase the loans from us utilizing five warehouse facilities,

We have commitments to fund mortgage loans in our pipeline of $2.6 billion at arranged by us, totaling $7.0 billion. These facilities are subject to various Option
April 30, 2004, which are subject to conditions and loan contract verification. One performance triggers, limits and financial covenants, including tangible net
There is no commitment on the part of the borrower to close and fund on the worth and leverage ratios. In addition, these facilities contain cross-default
mortgage loan at this stage of the lending process and external market forces features in which a default in one facility would trigger a default under the other
impact the probability of these loan commitments being closed. Therefore, total facilities as well. These various facilities bear interest at one-month LIBOR plus 50
commitments outstanding do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. to 100 basis points and expire on various dates during the year.
If the loan commitments are exercised, they will be funded as described below. When we sell loans to the Trusts, we remove the mortgage loans from our

Our relationships with the Trusts serve to reduce our capital investment in our balance sheet and record the gain on the sale, cash and a beneficial interest in
non-prime mortgage operations. These arrangements are primarily used to sell Trusts, which represents the ultimate expected outcome from the disposition of
mortgage loans, but a portion may also be used to sell servicing advances and the loans. Our beneficial interest in Trusts totaled $137.8 million and
finance residual interests. Additionally, these arrangements have freed up cash $122.1 million at April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
and short-term borrowing capacity, improved liquidity and flexibility, and reduced Subsequently, the Trusts, as directed by their third-party beneficial interest
balance sheet risk, while providing stability and access to liquidity in the holders, either sell the loans directly to third-party investors or back to us to pool
secondary market for mortgage loans. the loans for securitization. The decision to complete a whole loan sale or a

securitization is dependent on market conditions.
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For fiscal year 2004, the final disposition of loans was 24% securitizations and retain a subordinated interest in the NIM trust, and receive cash flows on our
76% whole loan sales. For fiscal year 2003, the final disposition was 59% residual interest generally after the bonds issued to the third-party investors are
securitizations and 41% whole loan sales. The current year shift to whole loan paid in full.
sales is due to the more favorable pricing in the whole loan market. Increased At the settlement of each NIM transaction, we remove the residual interests
whole loan sale transactions result in cash being received earlier. Additionally, sold from our consolidated balance sheet and record the cash received and the
whole loan sales do not add residual interests to our balance sheet, and therefore new residual interest retained. These residual interests are classified as available-
do not retain balance sheet risk. for-sale securities.

If the Trusts choose to sell the mortgage loans in a whole loan sale, we receive Residual interests retained from NIM securitizations may also be sold in a
cash for our beneficial interest in Trusts. In a securitization transaction, after the subsequent securitization or sale transaction.
Trusts transfer the loans, and the right to receive all payments on the loans, to our Loans totaling $3.2 billion and $2.2 billion were held by the Trusts as of April 30,
consolidated special purpose entity, we transfer our beneficial interest in Trusts 2004 and 2003, respectively, and were not recorded on our consolidated balance
and the loans to a securitization trust. The securitization trust meets the definition sheets.
of a QSPE and is therefore not consolidated. The securitization trust issues bonds, In connection with the sale of mortgage loans, we provide certain
which are supported by the cash flows from the pooled loans, to third-party representations and warranties allowing the purchaser the option of returning the
investors. We retain an interest in the loans in the form of a residual interest and, purchased loans to us under certain conditions. We may recognize losses as a
therefore, usually assume the first risk of loss for credit losses in the loan pool. As result of the repurchase of loans under these arrangements. We maintain reserves
the cash flows of the underlying loans and market conditions change, the value of for the repurchase of loans based on historical trends. See Item 8, note 19 to our
our residual interests may also change, resulting in potential write-ups or consolidated financial statements.
impairment of our residual interests. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘‘FASB’’) has decided to reissue its

At the settlement of each securitization, we record cash received and our exposure draft, ‘‘Qualifying Special Purpose Entities and Isolation of Transferred
residual interests. Additionally, we reverse the beneficial interest in Trusts. These Assets, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 140,’’ during the third quarter of
residual interests are classified as trading securities. See Item 8, note 1 to our calendar year 2004. The purpose of the proposal is to provide more specific
consolidated financial statements for our methodology used in valuing our guidance on the accounting for transfers of financial assets to a QSPE.
residual interests. Provisions in the first exposure draft, as well as the tentative decision reached

To accelerate the cash flows from our residual interests, we securitize the by the FASB during its deliberations, may require us to consolidate the Trusts to
majority of our residual interests in net interest margin (‘‘NIM’’) transactions. In a whom we sell our non-prime loans daily. As of April 30, 2004, the Trusts had assets
NIM transaction, the residual interests are transferred to another QSPE (‘‘NIM and liabilities of $3.2 billion. The provisions of the exposure draft are subject to
trust’’), which then issues bonds to third-party investors. The proceeds from the FASB due process and are subject to change. We will continue to monitor the
bonds are returned to us as payment for the residual interests. The bonds are status of the exposure draft, and consider changes, if any, to current structures as
secured by the pooled residual interests and are obligations of the NIM trust. We a result of the proposed rules.

C O M M E R C I A L  PA P E R  I S S U A N C E
We participate in the United States and Canadian commercial paper (‘‘CP’’) subject to annual renewal in August 2004 and has a one-year term-out provision
markets to meet daily cash needs. CP is issued by BFC and Block Canada, wholly- with a maturity date in August 2005. This line is subject to various affirmative and
owned subsidiaries of the Company. The following chart provides the debt ratings negative covenants. This CLOC includes $1.5 billion for CP back-up and general
for BFC as of April 30, 2004 and 2003: corporate purposes and $500 million for working capital use, general corporate

purposes and CP back-up. An additional line of credit of $500 million was put into
place for the period of January 26 to February 25, 2004 to back-up peak CPShort-term Long-term
issuance. This line is subject to various covenants, substantially similar to theFitch F1 A
primary CLOC. These CLOCs were undrawn at April 30, 2004. There are no ratingMoody’s P2 A3
contingencies under the CLOCs.S&P A2 BBB+

The Canadian issuances are supported by a credit facility provided by one bank
The following chart provides the debt ratings for Block Canada as of April 30, in an amount not to exceed $125 million (Canadian). The Canadian CLOC is

2004 and 2003: subject to annual renewal in December 2004. This CLOC was undrawn at April 30,
2004.

Short-term Corporate Trend We believe the CP market to be stable. Risks to the stability of our CP market
participation would be a short-term rating downgrade, adverse changes in ourDBRS R-1(low) A Stable
financial performance, non-renewal or termination of the CLOCs, adverseMoody’s P2
publicity and operational risk within the CP market. We believe if any of theseWe use capital primarily to fund working capital requirements, pay dividends,
events were to occur, the CLOCs, to the extent available, could be used for anrepurchase our shares and acquire businesses. Short-term borrowings peaked at
orderly exit from the CP market, though at a higher cost to us. Additionally, we$2.3 billion in February 2004 related to funding of our participation interests in
could turn to other sources of liquidity, including cash, debt issuance under theRALs. No CP was outstanding at April 30, 2004 or 2003.
existing shelf registration and asset sales or securitizations.U.S. CP issuances are supported by an unsecured committed line of credit

(‘‘CLOC’’) from a consortium of twenty-four banks. The $2.0 billion CLOC is
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C O N T R A C T U A L  O B L I G AT I O N S  A N D  C O M M E R C I A L  C O M M I T M E N T S
A summary of our obligations to make future payments as of April 30, 2004 is as follows:

(in 000s)

Less Than After 5
Total 1 Year 1 - 3 Years 4 - 5 Years Years

Debt $ 748,200 $ 249,975 $ 498,225 $ – $ –
Long-term obligation to government 279,976 – 186,651 93,325 –
Acquisition payments 60,768 25,257 34,963 548 –
Pension obligation assumed 17,511 2,826 5,048 4,176 5,461
Capital lease obligations 12,512 437 1,035 1,132 9,908
Operating leases 597,883 199,292 258,385 91,609 48,597

Total contractual cash obligations $ 1,716,850 $ 477,787 $ 984,307 $ 190,790 $ 63,966

In April 2000, we issued $500 million of 81/2% Senior Notes, due 2007. The Senior As of April 30, 2004, we had $250 million remaining under our shelf registration
Notes are not redeemable prior to maturity. The net proceeds of this transaction available for additional debt issuance.
were used to repay a portion of the short-term borrowings that initially funded the In connection with our acquisition of the non-attest assets of M&P in
acquisition of OLDE Financial Corporation. August 1999, we assumed certain pension liabilities related to M&P’s retired

In October 1997, we issued $250 million of 63/4% Senior Notes, due 2004. The partners. We make payments in varying amounts on a monthly basis. Included in
Senior Notes are not redeemable prior to maturity. The net proceeds of this other noncurrent liabilities at April 30, 2004 and 2003 are $17.5 million and
transaction were used to repay short-term borrowings that initially funded the $19.5 million, respectively, related to this liability.
acquisition of Option One. These Senior Notes are included in the current portion Operating leases, although requiring future cash payments, are not included in
of long-term debt on our consolidated balance sheet. We plan to refinance these our consolidated balance sheets.
Senior Notes during fiscal year 2005.

Also included in debt are future payments related to Business Services
acquisitions and capital lease obligations. Our debt to total capital ratio was 30.3%
at April 30, 2004, compared with 34.5% at April 30, 2003.

A summary of our commitments as of April 30, 2004, which may or may not require future payments, expire as follows:

(in 000s)

Less Than After 5
Total 1 Year 1 - 3 Years 4 - 5 Years Years

Commitments to fund mortgage loans $ 2,605,878 $ 2,605,878 $ – $ – $ –
Commitments to sell mortgage loans 4,748,994 4,748,994 – – –
Pledged securities 46,340 46,340 – – –
Commitment to fund M&P 40,000 40,000 – – –
Franchise Equity Lines of Credit 26,990 9,149 5,995 11,846 –
Mortgage loan repurchase obligations 25,168 25,168 – – –
Other commercial commitments 10,255 5,880 3,595 780 –

Total commercial commitments $ 7,503,625 $ 7,481,409 $ 9,590 $ 12,626 $ –

See discussion of commitments in Item 8, note 19 to our consolidated financial statements.

R E G U L AT O R Y  E N V I R O N M E N T
The United States, various state, local, provincial and foreign governments and receive inquiries from governmental and self-regulatory agencies regarding the
some self-regulatory organizations have enacted statutes and ordinances, and/or applicability of Laws to our products and services. In response to past inquiries,
adopted rules and regulations, regulating aspects of our business, including, but we have agreed to comply with such Laws, convinced the authorities that such
not limited to, commercial income tax return preparers, income tax courses, the Laws were not applicable or that compliance already exists, and/or modified our
electronic filing of income tax returns, the facilitation of RALs, loan originations activities in the applicable jurisdiction to avoid the application of all or certain
and assistance in loan originations, mortgage lending, privacy, consumer parts of such Laws. We believe that the past resolution of such inquiries and our
protection, franchising, sales methods, brokers, broker-dealers and various ongoing compliance with Laws have not had a material adverse effect on our
aspects of securities transactions, financial planners, investment advisors, consolidated financial statements. We cannot predict what effect future Laws,
accountants and the accounting practice. We seek to determine the applicability changes in interpretations of existing Laws, or the results of future regulator
of such statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations (collectively, ‘‘Laws’’) and inquiries with respect to the applicability of Laws may have on our consolidated
comply with those Laws. From time to time in the ordinary course of business, we financial statements.
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N E W  A C C O U N T I N G  P R O N O U N C E M E N T S
See Item 8, note 1 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of
recently issued accounting pronouncements.

I T E M  7 A . Q U A N T I TAT I V E  A N D  Q U A L I TAT I V E  D I S C L O S U R E S  A B O U T  M A R K E T  R I S K

G e n e r a l
Interest Rate Risk. We have established investment guidelines to help minimize 10-15 days prior to standard Public Securities Association (‘‘PSA’’) settlement
the market risk exposure of our cash equivalents and available-for-sale securities. dates. At April 30, 2004, the Company recorded an asset of $2.1 million related to
These guidelines focus on managing liquidity, preservation of principal and these instruments.
earnings, which are primarily affected by credit quality and movements in interest To finance our prime originations, we utilize a warehouse facility with capacity
rates. Most of our interest rate-sensitive assets and liabilities are managed at the up to $50 million, which bears interest at one-month LIBOR plus 64 to 175 basis
subsidiary level. points. As of April 30, 2004, the balance outstanding under this facility was

Our cash equivalents are primarily held for liquidity purposes and are $4.0 million.
comprised of high quality, short-term investments, including qualified money Interest Rate Risk, Non-prime Mortgage Origination Operations. Interest
market funds. As of April 30, 2004, our non-restricted cash and cash equivalents rate changes will impact the value of the loans in the origination pipeline,
had an average maturity of less than one month with an average credit quality of beneficial interest in Trusts and the forward loan sale commitments. Additionally,
AAA. With such a short maturity, our portfolio’s market value is relatively our accretion earned on our beneficial interest in Trusts may be affected.
insensitive to interest rate changes. We are exposed to interest rate risk associated with loans in the origination

We use capital primarily to fund working capital requirements, pay dividends, pipeline, consisting of fixed- and adjustable-rate loans, which will generally be
repurchase our shares and acquire businesses. At April 30, 2004, no commercial sold, ultimately, through whole loan sales or securitizations. We have binding
paper was outstanding. For fiscal year 2004, the average issuance term was commitments ($.6 billion) and non-binding commitments ($2.0 billion) to fund
23 days and the average outstanding balance was $279.7 million. As commercial mortgage loans at April 30, 2004, subject to conditions and loan contract
paper borrowings are seasonal, interest rate risk typically increases through our verification. Of these commitments, external market forces impact the probability
third fiscal quarter and declines to zero by fiscal year-end. See Item 7, ‘‘Financial of the loans being funded and we estimate only $1.3 billion will likely be
Condition’’ for additional information. originated.

Our current portion of long-term debt and long-term debt at April 30, 2004 As a result of whole loan sales to the Trusts, we remove the mortgage loans
consists primarily of fixed-rate Senior Notes; therefore, a change in interest rates from our balance sheet and record the gain on sale, cash and a beneficial interest
would have no impact on consolidated pretax earnings. See Item 8, note 10 to our in Trusts, which represents the ultimate expected outcome from the disposition of
consolidated financial statements. the loans. See Item 7, ‘‘Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements.’’ At April 30,

We have exposure to interest rate risk through our investment in fixed income 2004, there were $3.2 billion of loans held in the Trusts and the value of our
securities at our captive insurance subsidiary and our broker-dealer. See table beneficial interest in Trusts was $137.8 million. Changes in interest rates and other
below for sensitivities to changes in interest rates. Additionally, we have exposure market factors may result in a change in value of our beneficial interest in Trusts.
to interest rate risk in the financial instruments associated with Mortgage We use forward loan sale commitments to reduce risk associated with loans in
Operations. the pipeline and our beneficial interest in Trusts. These commitments, which

Equity Price Risk. We have exposure to the equity markets in several ways. represent an obligation to sell a non-prime loan at a specific price in the future,
The largest exposures are through our deferred compensation plans, which have increase in value as interest rates rise and decrease as rates fall. At April 30, 2004,
mismatches in asset and liability amounts and investment choices (both fixed- there were $4.7 billion in forward loan sale commitments, and most of them give
income and equity), as well as through equity investments at our captive us the option to under- or over-deliver by five to ten percent. Forward loan sale
insurance subsidiary. At April 30, 2004, the impact of a 10% market value change commitments for non-prime loans are not considered derivative instruments and
in the combined equity assets of the deferred compensation plans and the captive are therefore not recorded in our financial statements. Forward loan sale
insurance subsidiary would be approximately $8.9 million, assuming no offset for commitments lock in the execution price-net gain on sale on the loans which will
the liabilities. ultimately be delivered into a whole loan sale.

We also have used interest rate swaps to reduce interest rate risk associated
with non-prime loans in our pipeline prior to ultimate disposition. Interest rateM o r t g a g e  O p e r a t i o n s
swaps represent an agreement to exchange interest rate payments, whereby weInterest Rate Risk, Prime Mortgage Origination Operations. We regularly
generally receive a floating rate and pay the fixed rate. These contracts increase inenter into rate-lock commitments with our customers to fund prime mortgage
value as rates rise and decrease in value as rates fall. There were no swapsloans within specified periods of time. The fair value of rate-lock commitments
outstanding at April 30, 2004.and loans held for sale is calculated based on the current market pricing of short

Prime and non-prime loans, as well as rate-locks associated with prime loans,sales of FNMA, FHLMC and GNMA mortgage-backed securities and the coupon
have interest rate risk if interest rates rise before the loan is sold or hedged andrates of the eligible loans. At April 30, 2004, we recorded a liability of $1.7 million
the rate on the loan does not change. With $4.7 billion of forward loan salerelated to rate-lock commitments.
commitments (and the option to adjust the commitment amount between $4.5 toWe sell short FNMA, FHLMC and GNMA mortgage-backed securities to reduce
$5.0 billion), netting against pipeline loans estimated at $1.3 billion andthe risk related to our prime commitments to fund fixed-rate loans. The position

hedging certain, or all, of the fixed-rate mortgage loans is closed approximately
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the anticipated sale of $3.2 billion in loans by the Trusts, we believe the net risk I n v e s t m e n t  S e r v i c e s
position of loan origination operations at year end is relatively neutral to changes Interest Rate Risk. HRBFA holds interest bearing receivables from customers,
in interest rates. brokers, dealers and clearing organizations, which consist primarily of amounts

Delivery Risk. We have exposure to delivery risk in our non-prime origination due on margin transactions and are generally short-term in nature. We fund these
operations, which regularly enter into forward loan sale commitments prior to short-term assets with short-term variable rate liabilities from customers, brokers
loans being originated. Additionally, it is possible that the loans originated will not and dealers, including stock loan activity. Although there may be differences in
meet the required characteristics of the forward loan sale commitments. Several the timing of the re-pricing related to these assets and liabilities, we believe we
remedies are available, however, use of the remedies could reduce the execution are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk in this area. As a result, any
price or the effectiveness of the forward loan sale commitment as a hedge vehicle. change in interest rates would not materially impact our consolidated earnings.

Residual Interests. Relative to modeled assumptions, an increase or decrease Our fixed-income trading portfolio is affected by changes in market rates and
in interest rates would impact the value of our residual interests. Additionally, prices. The risk is the loss of income arising from adverse changes in the value of
accretion income related to our residual interests may be affected. Residual the trading portfolio. We value the trading portfolio at quoted market prices and
interests bear the interest rate risk embedded within the securitization due to an the market value of our trading portfolio at April 30, 2004 was approximately
initial fixed-rate period on the loans versus a floating-rate funding cost, and the $13.6 million, net of securities sold short. See table below for sensitivities to
on-going basis risk between the indices of the floating-rate assets and liabilities. changes in interest rates. With respect to our fixed-income securities portfolio, we

We enter into interest rate caps to mitigate interest rate risk associated with manage our market price risk exposure by limiting concentration risk,
residual interests that are classified as trading securities because they will be sold maintaining minimum credit quality and limiting inventory to anticipated retail
in a subsequent NIM transaction, and to enhance the marketability of the NIM demand and current market conditions.
transactions. Interest rate caps represent a right to receive cash if interest rates
rise above a contractual strike rate. Therefore, its value increases as interest rates I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Ta x  O p e r a t i o n s
rise. The interest rate used in our interest rate caps is based on LIBOR. There Foreign Exchange Rate Risk. Our cash and operations in international markets
were no interest rate caps outstanding at April 30, 2004. are exposed to movements in currency exchange rates. The currencies involved

See table below for sensitivities to changes in interest rates for residual are the Canadian dollar, the Australian dollar and the British pound. We translate
interests. See Item 8, note 6 to the consolidated financial statements for additional revenues and expenses related to these operations at the average of exchange
analysis of interest rate risk and other financial risks impacting residual interests. rates in effect during the period. As currency exchange rates change, translation

It is our policy to utilize economic hedge vehicles only for the purpose of of the financial results into U.S. dollars does not presently materially affect, and
offsetting or reducing the risk of loss in earnings associated with a defined or has not historically materially affected, our consolidated financial results,
quantified exposure. although such changes do affect the year-to-year comparability of the operating

Mortgage Servicing Rights. Declining mortgage rates may cause increased results of our international businesses. We estimate a 10% change in foreign
refinancing activity. Increased refinancing activity reduces the life of the loans exchange rates by itself would impact consolidated pretax income in fiscal year
underlying the residual interests and MSRs, thereby reducing their value. Just the 2004 by approximately $1.3 million and cash balances at April 30, 2004 by
opposite occurs in a rising rate environment, however, MSRs are recorded at the $6.1 million.
lower of cost or market value. Reductions in the value of these assets impact
earnings through impairment charges. See Item 8, note 6 to our consolidated
financial statements for further sensitivity analysis of the other assumptions.

The sensitivities of certain financial instruments to changes in interest rates as of April 30, 2004 are as follows:

(in 000s)

– 50 + 50 + 100 + 200 + 300
Fair Value at Basis Basis Basis Basis Basis

April 30, 2004 Points Points Points Points Points

Residual interests in securitizations –

available-for-sale $ 210,973 $ 45,449 $ (18,563) $ (32,709) $ (46,527) $ (48,090)

Investments at captive insurance subsidiary 44,667 1,079 (1,069) (1,591) (3,146) (4,667)

Fixed income – trading (net) 13,639 677 (637) (1,228) (2,271) (3,164)

The table above represents hypothetical instantaneous and sustained parallel shifts in interest rates and should not be relied on as an indicator of future expected results.
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I T E M  8 . F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S  A N D  S U P P L E M E N TA R Y  D ATA

M a n a g e m e n t  R e p o r t
We at H&R Block are guided by our core values of client focus, integrity, auditors and the chief internal auditor to review matters relating to our financial
excellence, respect and teamwork. These values govern the manner in which we statements, internal audit activities, internal accounting controls and non-audit
serve clients and each other, and are embedded in the execution and delivery of services provided by the independent auditors. The independent auditors and the
our financial reporting responsibilities to our shareholders. To that end, we chief internal auditor have full access to the Audit Committee and meet, both with
maintain a comprehensive system of internal accounting controls designed to and without management present, to discuss the scope and results of their audits,
provide reasonable assurance the Company’s assets are safeguarded against including internal control, audit and financial matters.
material loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and authorized transactions The financial information in this Annual Report, including the consolidated
are properly recorded. We support an extensive program of internal audits and financial statements, is the responsibility of management. The consolidated
require the management teams of our individual subsidiaries to certify their financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
respective financial information. Appropriate communication programs aimed at accounting principles and necessarily include certain amounts based on
assuring our policies, procedures and principles of business conduct are management’s best estimates and judgments.
understood and practiced by our associates are also an integral part of our control
environment.

KPMG LLP audited our 2004 consolidated financial statements and /s/ Mark A. Ernst
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP audited our 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial Mark A. Ernst, Chairman of the Board,
statements. Both issued unqualified opinions thereon. Their audits were President and Chief Executive Officer
conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) and included an objective, independent review
and testing of the system of internal controls necessary to express an opinion on /s/ Melanie K. Coleman
the financial statements. Melanie K. Coleman, Vice President and

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, composed solely of outside and Corporate Controller
independent directors, meets periodically with management, the independent

R e p o r t  o f  I n d e p e n d e n t  R e g i s t e r e d  P u b l i c  A c c o u n t i n g  F i r m
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of H&R Block, Inc.: In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of H&R Block, fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of H&R Block, Inc. and
Inc. and subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’) as of April 30, 2004, and the related subsidiaries as of April 30, 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash
consolidated income statement, statement of cash flows and statement of flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
stockholders’ equity for the year then ended. These consolidated financial accounting principles.
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company changed its
responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements method of accounting to adopt Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 105, ‘‘Application of
based on our audit. Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments,’’ Emerging Issues Task Force Issue

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public No. 00-21, ‘‘Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables,’’ and Statement of
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether Compensation – Transition and Disclosure’’ during the year ended April 30, 2004.
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in /s/ KPMG LLP
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting June 9, 2004
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as Kansas City, Missouri
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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R e p o r t  o f  I n d e p e n d e n t  R e g i s t e r e d  P u b l i c  A c c o u n t i n g  F i r m
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of H&R Block, Inc. perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
consolidated statements of income, of cash flows and of stockholders’ equity test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of H&R Block, Inc. statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
and its subsidiaries (the ‘‘Company’’) at April 30, 2003, and the results of their made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
April 30, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these /s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these June 10, 2003
statements in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Kansas City, Missouri
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
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C O N S O L I D AT E D  I N C O M E  S TAT E M E N T S

Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

REVENUES:
Service revenues $ 2,740,983 $ 2,398,081 $ 2,345,307
Gains on sales of mortgage assets, net 726,718 740,343 424,401
Interest income 379,064 297,185 206,433
Product sales 157,417 123,510 115,505
Royalties 184,882 174,659 164,615
Other 16,506 12,679 29,440

4,205,570 3,746,457 3,285,701

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee compensation and benefits 1,610,103 1,387,731 1,298,159
Occupancy and equipment 384,622 345,960 305,387
Depreciation and amortization 172,038 161,821 155,386
Marketing and advertising 188,317 150,847 155,729
Interest 84,556 92,644 116,141
Supplies, freight and postage 89,189 88,748 75,710
Impairment of goodwill – 35,777 –
Other 522,442 502,687 463,761

3,051,267 2,766,215 2,570,273

Operating income 1,154,303 980,242 715,428
Other income, net 9,854 6,835 1,412

Income before taxes 1,164,157 987,077 716,840
Income taxes 459,901 407,013 282,435

Net income before change in accounting principle 704,256 580,064 434,405
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

for multiple deliverable revenue arrangements, less taxes of $4,031 (6,359) – –

NET INCOME $ 697,897 $ 580,064 $ 434,405

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Before change in accounting principle $ 3.98 $ 3.23 $ 2.38
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (.04) – –

Net income $ 3.94 $ 3.23 $ 2.38

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Before change in accounting principle $ 3.90 $ 3.15 $ 2.31
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (.04) – –

Net income $ 3.86 $ 3.15 $ 2.31

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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C O N S O L I D AT E D  B A L A N C E  S H E E T S

Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts

April 30, 2004 2003

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,071,676 $ 875,353
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted 545,428 438,242
Receivables from customers, brokers, dealers and clearing organizations, net 625,076 517,037
Receivables, net 347,910 403,197
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 371,209 391,402

Total current assets 2,961,299 2,625,231
Residual interests in securitizations – available-for-sale 210,973 264,337
Beneficial interest in Trusts – trading 137,757 122,130
Mortgage servicing rights 113,821 99,265
Property and equipment, net 279,220 288,594
Intangible assets, net 325,829 341,865
Goodwill, net 959,418 714,215
Other assets 391,709 311,671

Total assets $ 5,380,026 $ 4,767,308

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:

Current portion of long-term debt $ 275,669 $ 55,678
Accounts payable to customers, brokers and dealers 1,065,793 862,694
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other 456,167 468,933
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes 268,747 210,629
Accrued income taxes 405,667 299,262

Total current liabilities 2,472,043 1,897,196
Long-term debt 545,811 822,302
Other noncurrent liabilities 465,163 384,101

Total liabilities 3,483,017 3,103,599

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Common stock, no par, stated value $.01 per share, 500,000,000 shares
authorized, 217,945,398 shares issued at April 30, 2004 and 2003 2,179 2,179

Convertible preferred stock, no par, stated value $.01 per share,
500,000 shares authorized – –

Additional paid-in capital 545,065 496,393
Accumulated other comprehensive income 57,953 36,862
Retained earnings 2,781,368 2,221,868
Less treasury shares, at cost (1,489,556) (1,093,593)

Total stockholders’ equity 1,897,009 1,663,709

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 5,380,026 $ 4,767,308

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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C O N S O L I D AT E D  S TAT E M E N T S  O F  C A S H  F L O W S

Amounts in thousands

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 697,897 $ 580,064 $ 434,405
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 172,038 161,821 155,386
Provision for bad debt 53,663 49,748 76,804
Provision for deferred taxes on income (3,632) (45,734) (89,688)
Accretion of residual interests in securitizations (168,029) (145,165) (50,583)
Impairment of residual interests in securitizations 30,661 54,111 30,987
Realized gain on sale of previously securitized residual interests (40,689) (130,881) –
Additions to trading securities – residual interests in securitizations (327,996) (542,544) (809,228)
Proceeds from net interest margin transactions 310,358 541,791 783,171
Additions to mortgage servicing rights (84,274) (65,345) (65,630)
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights 69,718 47,107 33,890
Net change in beneficial interest in Trusts (15,627) (69,529) (19,960)
Impairment of goodwill – 35,777 –
Tax benefit from stock option exercises 23,957 37,304 57,809
Stock-based compensation 25,718 2,079 –
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 6,359 – –
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Cash and cash equivalents – restricted (107,186) (286,069) (67,976)
Receivables for customers, brokers dealers and clearing organizations (108,846) 326,824 465,926
Receivables 23,887 (87,140) (86,531)
Mortgage loans held for sale:

Originations and purchases (23,255,483) (17,827,828) (11,771,688)
Sales and principal repayments 23,246,815 17,837,323 11,780,758

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 26,978 43,818 (159,734)
Accounts payable to customers, brokers and dealers 203,099 (40,507) (154,799)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other (34,326) 56,149 57,608
Accrued salaries, wages and payroll taxes 58,468 (42,772) 31,751
Accrued income taxes 108,801 156,023 77,047
Other, net 14,478 44,400 31,721

Net cash provided by operating activities 926,807 690,825 741,446

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Available-for-sale securities:

Purchases of available-for-sale securities (11,434) (14,614) (7,241)
Cash received from residual interests in securitizations 193,606 140,795 67,070
Cash proceeds from sale of previously securitized residuals 53,391 142,486 –
Maturities of other available-for-sale securities – – 8,250
Sales of other available-for-sale securities 15,410 14,081 23,173

Purchases of property and equipment, net (127,573) (150,897) (111,775)
Payments made for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (280,865) (26,408) (46,738)
Other, net 26,332 19,896 8,228

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (131,133) 125,339 (59,033)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of commercial paper (4,618,853) (9,925,516) (10,622,011)
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper 4,618,853 9,925,516 10,622,011
Payments on acquisition debt (59,003) (57,469) (50,594)
Dividends paid (138,397) (125,898) (115,725)
Acquisition of treasury shares (519,862) (317,570) (462,938)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 119,956 126,325 195,233
Other, net (2,045) (2,344) 140

Net cash used in financing activities (599,351) (376,956) (433,884)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 196,323 439,208 248,529
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 875,353 436,145 187,616

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ 1,071,676 $ 875,353 $ 436,145

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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C O N S O L I D AT E D  S TAT E M E N T S  O F  S T O C K H O L D E R S ’  E Q U I T Y

Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts

Accumulated
Convertible Additional Other

Common Stock Preferred Stock Treasury StockPaid-in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Shares Amount Total Equity

Balances at April 30, 2001 217,945 $ 2,179 – $ – $ 419,957 $ (42,767) $ 1,449,022 (34,337) $ (654,650) $ 1,173,741
Net income – – – – – – 434,405 – – –
Unrealized translation loss – – – – – (875) – – – –
Change in net unrealized

gain on marketable
securities – – – – – 87,770 – – – –

Comprehensive income – – – – – – – – – 521,300
Stock options exercised – – – – 47,590 – – 9,662 202,500 250,090
Restricted stock awards – – – – 237 – – 17 400 637
Stock issued for ESPP – – – – 268 – – 97 2,047 2,315
Acquisition of treasury

shares – – – – – – – (12,259) (462,938) (462,938)
Cash dividends paid – $.63

per share – – – – – – (115,725) – – (115,725)

Balances at April 30, 2002 217,945 2,179 – – 468,052 44,128 1,767,702 (36,820) (912,641) 1,369,420
Net income – – – – – – 580,064 – – –
Unrealized translation gain – – – – – 17,415 – – – –
Change in net unrealized

gain on marketable
securities – – – – – (24,681) – – – –

Comprehensive income – – – – – – – – – 572,798
Stock options exercised – – – – 27,241 – – 5,070 135,409 162,650
Restricted stock awards – – – – 5 – – (64) (1,306) (1,301)
Stock issued for ESPP – – – – 1,095 – – 94 2,515 3,610
Acquisition of treasury

shares – – – – – – – (6,624) (317,570) (317,570)
Cash dividends paid – $.70

per share – – – – – – (125,898) – – (125,898)

Balances at April 30, 2003 217,945 2,179 – – 496,393 36,862 2,221,868 (38,344) (1,093,593) 1,663,709
Net income – – – – – – 697,897 – – –
Unrealized translation gain – – – – – 12,355 – – – –
Change in net unrealized

gain on marketable
securities – – – – – 8,736 – – – –

Comprehensive income – – – – – – – – – 718,988
Stock options exercised – – – – 21,585 – – 3,928 117,975 139,560
Restricted stock awards – – – – 385 – – 72 2,103 2,488
Stock issued for ESPP – – – – 984 – – 127 3,821 4,805
Stock-based compensation – – – – 25,718 – – – – 25,718
Acquisition of treasury

shares – – – – – – – (10,633) (519,862) (519,862)
Cash dividends paid – $.78

per share – – – – – – (138,397) – – (138,397)

Balances at April 30, 2004 217,945 $ 2,179 – $ – $ 545,065 $ 57,953 $ 2,781,368 (44,850) $ (1,489,556) $ 1,897,009

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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N O T E S  T O  C O N S O L I D AT E D  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S

N O T E  1 :  S U M M A R Y  O F  S I G N I F I C A N T  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S
Nature of operations: The operating subsidiaries of H&R Block, Inc. (the classified as trading, based on management’s intentions, are carried at market
‘‘Company’’) provide a variety of financial services to the general public, value (based on discounted cash flow models) and marked to market through the
principally in the United States, but also in Canada, Australia and the United consolidated income statements. These securities are included in prepaid
Kingdom. Specifically, the Company offers tax return preparation and electronic expenses and other current assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
filing of tax returns; origination, sale and servicing of non-prime and prime Receivables from customers, brokers, dealers and clearing organizations
mortgages; investment services through a broker-dealer; tax preparation and and accounts payable to customers, brokers and dealers: Customer
related software, refund anticipation loan products offered by a third-party receivables and payables consist primarily of amounts due on margin and cash
lending institution; and accounting, tax and consulting services to business transactions. These receivables are collateralized by customers’ securities held,
clients. which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include Receivables from brokers are collateralized by securities in physical possession
the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned and majority-owned of, or on deposit with, the Company or receivables from customers or other
subsidiaries. All material intercompany transactions and balances have been brokers. The allowance for doubtful accounts represents an amount considered
eliminated. by management to be adequate to cover potential losses.

Some of the Company’s subsidiaries operate in regulated industries, and their Securities borrowed and securities loaned transactions are generally reported
underlying accounting records reflect the policies and requirements of these as collateralized financing. These transactions require deposits of cash and/or
industries. collateral with the lender. Securities loaned consist of securities owned by

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year customers that were purchased on margin. When loaning securities, cash
amounts to conform to the current year presentation. Revenues were decreased collateral approximately equal to the value of the securities loaned is received.
$33.3 million and $32.0 million for the years ended April 30, 2003 and 2002, The amount of cash collateral is adjusted, as required, for market fluctuations in
respectively, related to the reclassification of loan sale repurchase reserves from the value of the securities loaned. Interest rates paid on the cash collateral
other expenses and certain compensation and benefits expenses to reduce gains fluctuate as short-term interest rates change.
on sales of mortgage assets. These reclassifications had no effect on the results of Receivables: Receivables consist primarily of Business Services accounts
operations or shareholders’ equity as previously reported. receivable and mortgage loans held for sale. Mortgage loans held for sale are

Management estimates: The preparation of financial statements in carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value as determined by
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to outstanding commitments from investors or current investor-yield requirements
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and calculated on an aggregate basis. The allowance for doubtful accounts requires
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the management’s judgment regarding current market indicators about general
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during economic trends to establish an amount considered by management to be
the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. adequate to cover potential losses related to its non-mortgage loan receivable

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balance.
cash due from banks and securities purchased under agreements to resell. For Marketable securities – available-for-sale: Certain marketable debt and
purposes of the consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of cash equity securities are classified as available-for-sale, based on management’s
flows, all non-restricted highly liquid instruments purchased with an original intentions, and are carried at market value (based on quoted prices) with
maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. unrealized gains and losses included in other comprehensive income. If losses are

The Company’s broker-dealers purchase securities under agreements to resell determined to be other-than-temporary, the security is written down to fair value
and account for them as collateralized financings. The securities are carried at the with the realized loss, net of any unrealized gain previously recorded in other
amounts at which the securities will be subsequently resold, as specified in the comprehensive income, included in the consolidated income statements. The cost
respective agreements. Collateral relating to investments in repurchase of marketable securities sold is determined on the specific identification method.
agreements is held by independent custodian banks. The securities are revalued These securities are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
daily and collateral added whenever necessary to bring market value of the Residual interests in securitizations: Residual interests classified as
underlying collateral equal to or greater than the repurchase amount specified in available-for-sale securities are carried at market value (based on discounted cash
the contracts. flow models) with unrealized gains included in other comprehensive income. The

Cash and cash equivalents – restricted: Cash and cash equivalents – residual interests are accreted over the estimated life of the securitization
restricted consists primarily of securities purchased under agreements to resell structure. If the carrying value exceeds market value, the residual is written down
and cash which has been segregated in a special reserve account for the exclusive to market value with the realized loss, net of any unrealized gain previously
benefit of customers pursuant to federal regulations under Rule 15c3-3 of the recorded in other comprehensive income, included in gains on sales of mortgage
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Also included are cash balances held for assets in the consolidated income statements.
outstanding commitments to fund mortgage loans and funds held to pay payroll The Company estimates future cash flows from these residuals and values them
taxes on behalf of customers. utilizing assumptions it believes to be consistent with those of unaffiliated third-

Marketable securities – trading: Certain marketable debt securities held by party purchasers. The Company estimates the fair value of residuals by computing
the Company’s broker-dealer are classified as trading, carried at market value the present value of the excess of the weighted-average interest rate on the loans
(based on quoted prices) and marked to market through the consolidated income sold over the sum of (1) the coupon on the securitization bonds, (2) a contractual
statements. Certain residual interests in securitizations of mortgage loans are servicing fee paid to the servicer of the loans (which is usually the Company),

– 40



Fo rm  10 -K – H&R  BLOCK

(3) expected losses to be incurred on the portfolio of the loans sold (as projected frequently, whenever events occur or circumstances change which would, more
to occur) over the lives of the loans, (4) fees payable to the trustee and insurer, if likely than not, reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value.
applicable, (5) estimated collections of prepayment penalty fee income, and These tests were completed and no indications of goodwill impairment were
(6) payments made to investors on NIM bonds, if applicable. The residual found during fiscal year 2004 or 2002. During fiscal year 2003 however,
valuation takes into consideration the current and expected interest rate impairment charges of $24.0 million and $11.8 million were recorded in the
environment, including projected changes in future interest rates and the timing Investment Services and Business Services segments, respectively.
of such changes. Prepayment and loss assumptions used in estimating the cash In addition, long-lived assets, including intangible assets with finite lives, are
flows are based on evaluation of the actual experience of the servicing portfolio, assessed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying
the characteristics of the applicable loan portfolio, as well as also taking into value may not be fully recoverable by comparing the carrying value to future
consideration the current and expected economic and interest rate environment undiscounted cash flows. To the extent there is impairment, analysis is performed
and its expected impact. The estimated cash flows are discounted at an interest based on several criteria, including, but not limited to, revenue trends, discounted
rate the Company believes an unaffiliated third-party purchaser would require as a operating cash flows and other operating factors to determine the impairment
rate of return on a financial instrument with a similar risk profile. The Company amount. No material impairment adjustments to other intangible assets or other
evaluates, and adjusts if necessary, the fair values of residual interests quarterly long-lived assets were made during the three-year period ended April 30, 2004.
by updating the actual and expected assumptions in the discounted cash flow The weighted-average life of intangible assets with finite lives is 10 years.
models based on current information and events and by estimating, or validating Commercial paper: Short-term borrowings are used to finance temporary
with third-party experts, if necessary, what a market participant would use in liquidity needs and various financial activities conducted by the Company. There
determining the current fair value. To the extent that actual excess cash flows are was no commercial paper outstanding at April 30, 2004 and 2003.
different from estimated excess cash flows, the fair value of the residual would Litigation: The Company’s policy is to routinely assess the likelihood of any
increase or decrease. adverse judgments or outcomes related to legal matters, as well as ranges of

Beneficial interest in Trusts – trading: The beneficial interest in Trusts is probable losses. A determination of the amount of the reserves required, if any,
recorded as a result of daily non-prime whole loan sales to qualifying special for these contingencies is made after thoughtful analysis of each known issue and
purpose entities (‘‘Trusts’’). The beneficial interest is classified as a trading an analysis of historical experience in accordance with Statement of Financial
security, based on management’s intentions, is carried at market value and is Accounting Standards No. 5, ‘‘Accounting for Contingencies,’’ and related
marked to market through the consolidated income statements. Market value is pronouncements. The Company has recorded reserves related to certain legal
calculated as the present value of future cash flows which are limited to the matters for which it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the range of
ultimate expected outcome from the disposition of the loans by the Trusts. such loss can be estimated. With respect to other matters, management has

Mortgage servicing rights: Mortgage servicing rights (‘‘MSRs’’) retained in concluded that a loss is only reasonably possible or remote and, therefore, no
the sale of mortgage loans are recorded at allocated carrying amounts based on liability is recorded. In addition, there are certain gain contingencies for which the
relative fair values at the time of the sale. The MSRs are carried at the lower of Company has not recorded an asset.
cost or fair value. Fair values of MSRs are determined based on the present value Income taxes: The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal
of estimated future cash flows related to servicing loans. Assumptions used in income tax return on a calendar year basis. Deferred taxes are provided for
estimating the value of MSRs include market discount rates and anticipated temporary differences between financial and tax reporting, which consist
prepayment speeds (including default), estimated ancillary fee income and other principally of deductible goodwill, residual interests, stock-based compensation,
economic factors. The prepayment speeds are estimated using the Company’s accrued expenses, deferred compensation, mortgage servicing rights and
historical experience and third-party market sources. The MSRs are amortized to allowances for credit losses. Deferred taxes are included in prepaid expenses and
earnings in proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net future servicing other current assets and other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
income. MSRs are reviewed quarterly for potential impairment. Impairment is Revenue recognition: Service revenues consist primarily of fees for
assessed based on the fair value of each risk stratum. MSRs are stratified by: the preparation and filing of tax returns, system administration fees associated with
fiscal year of the loan sale date (which approximates date of origination) and loan refund anticipation loans (‘‘RALs’’) and refund anticipation checks, mortgage loan
type (6-month adjustable, 2- to 3-year adjustable and fixed rate). servicing fees, brokerage commissions and fees for consulting services. Generally,

Property and equipment: Buildings and equipment are stated at cost and are service revenues are recorded in the period in which the service is performed.
depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line Retail and online tax preparation revenues are recorded when a completed return
method. Leasehold improvements are stated at cost and are amortized over the is filed or accepted by the customer. RAL participation revenue is recorded when
lesser of the term of the respective lease or the estimated useful life, using the the Company purchases its participation interest in the RAL. Commission revenue
straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are 15 to 40 years for buildings, 3 to is recognized on a trade-date basis. Revenues for services rendered in connection
5 years for computers and other equipment and up to 8 years for leasehold with the Business Services segment are recognized on a time and materials basis.
improvements. Gains on sales of mortgage assets are recognized when control of the assets are

The Company capitalizes certain allowable costs associated with software surrendered (when loans are sold to Trusts) and are based on the difference
developed or obtained for internal use. These costs are amortized over 36 months between cash proceeds and the allocated cost of the assets sold.
using the straight-line method. Interest income consists primarily of interest earned on customer margin loan

Intangible assets and goodwill: The Company accounts for its goodwill and balances and mortgage loans, and accretion income. Interest income on customer
intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards margin loan balances is recognized daily as earned based on current rates charged
No. 142, ‘‘Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,’’ (‘‘SFAS 142’’). Under SFAS 142, to customers for their margin balance. Accretion income represents interest
amortization of both goodwill and indefinite-life intangibles ceased and periodic earned over the life of residual interests using the effective interest method.
impairment testing of these assets is now required. The Company tests goodwill Product sales consist mainly of tax preparation software, other personal
and other indefinite life intangible assets for impairment annually or more productivity software and the Peace of Mind (‘‘POM’’) guarantee program. Sales of
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software are recognized when the product is ultimately sold to the end user. POM throughout the year to manage its interest rate risk. The Company does not enter
revenues are deferred and recognized over the term of the guarantee based upon into derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes.
historic and actual payment of claims. Disclosure regarding certain financial instruments: The carrying values

Franchise royalties, which are based upon the contractual percentages of reported in the balance sheet for cash equivalents, receivables, accounts payable,
franchise revenues, are recorded in the period in which the franchise provides the accrued liabilities and the current portion of long-term debt approximate fair
service. market value due to the relative short-term nature of the respective instruments.

Revenue recognition is evaluated separately for each unit in multiple- Residual interests are recorded at estimated fair value as discussed above. See
deliverable arrangements. note 10 for fair value of long-term debt.

Advertising expense: Advertising costs are expensed the first time the New accounting standards: In March 2004, the SEC Staff issued Staff
advertisement is run. Accounting Bulletin No. 105, ‘‘Application of Accounting Principles to Loan

Foreign currency translation: Assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are Commitments,’’ (‘‘SAB 105’’). SAB 105 states that, when valuing loan
translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates prevailing at the end of the year. commitments, registrants may not include expected future cash flows related to
Revenue and expense transactions are translated at the average of exchange rates the associated servicing of the loans and, similarly, may not recognize any other
in effect during the period. Translation gains and losses are recorded in other internally developed intangible assets as part of the loan commitment derivative.
comprehensive income. The guidance in SAB 105 is effective for new loan commitments entered into after

Stock-based compensation plans: Prior to fiscal year 2004, the Company March 31, 2004. As such, the Company no longer records an asset related to the
accounted for stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and fair value of its non-prime commitments to fund loans entered into after March 31,
measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Issued to 2004. The Company recorded an asset of $.4 million and $11.4 million as of
Employees’’ (‘‘APB 25’’) as allowed under Statement of Financial Accounting April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, related to the fair value of non-prime loan
Standards No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation’’ (‘‘SFAS 123’’). commitments.
Effective May 1, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions In April 2003, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 149,
of SFAS 123, under the prospective transition method as described in Statement of ‘‘Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities’’
Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, ‘‘Accounting for Stock-Based (‘‘SFAS 149’’) was issued. SFAS 149 amends and clarifies the accounting for
Compensation – Transition and Disclosure’’ (‘‘SFAS 148’’). Stock-based derivative instruments and incorporates many of the implementation issues
compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting cleared as a result of the Derivatives Implementation Group process. The
period. Had compensation cost for all stock-based compensation plan grants been provisions of this standard are effective for contracts entered into or modified
determined in accordance with the fair value accounting method prescribed under after June 30, 2003. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact
SFAS 123, the Company’s net income and earnings per share would have been as on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
follows: In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘‘FASB’’) issued

Interpretation No. 46, ‘‘Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities’’ (‘‘FIN 46’’). A
(in 000s, except per share amounts)

revision of FIN 46 was issued in December 2003. FIN 46 provides guidance with
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 respect to the consolidation of certain variable interest entities (‘‘VIEs’’) whereby
Net income as reported $ 697,897 $ 580,064 $ 434,405 a VIE must be consolidated by its primary beneficiary if the entity does not
Add: Stock-based compensation effectively disperse risks among parties involved. The primary beneficiary is one

expense included in reported net who absorbs a majority of the expected losses, residual returns, or both as a
income, net of taxes 18,029 1,223 — result of holding variable interests. FIN 46 also requires disclosures for both the

Deduct: Total stock-based primary beneficiary of a VIE and other parties with significant variable interests in
compensation expense determined the entity. The Mortgage Operations segment has an interest in certain qualifying
under fair value method for all special purpose entities (‘‘QSPEs’’) it currently does not consolidate, which are
awards, net of taxes (30,662) (21,025) (34,045) exempt from the provisions of FIN 46. See discussion of SFAS 140 exposure draft

below, which may affect this conclusion. Adoption of FIN 46 did not have aPro forma net income $ 685,264 $ 560,262 $ 400,360
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Basic earnings per share:
In August 2003, the Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force Issue

As reported $ 3.94 $ 3.23 $ 2.38
No. 00-21, ‘‘Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables’’ (‘‘EITF 00-21’’).

Pro forma 3.87 3.12 2.19
EITF 00-21 requires consideration received in connection with arrangements

Diluted earnings per share:
involving multiple revenue generating activities be measured and allocated to

As reported $ 3.86 $ 3.15 $ 2.31
each separate unit of accounting. Revenue recognition is determined separately

Pro forma 3.80 3.06 2.13
for each unit of accounting within the arrangement. EITF 00-21 impacts revenue
and expense recognition related to tax preparation in the Company’s premium taxDerivative activities: The Company records derivative instruments as assets
offices where POM guarantees are included in the price of a completed tax return.or liabilities, measured at fair value. The recognition of gains or losses resulting
Prior to the adoption of EITF 00-21, revenues and expenses related to POMfrom changes in the values of those derivative instruments is based on the use of
guarantees at premium offices were recorded in the same period as taxeach derivative instrument and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting.
preparation revenues. Beginning May 1, 2003, revenues and direct expensesThe Company uses financial instruments to mitigate interest rate risk, loan
related to POM guarantees are now initially deferred and recognized over thecommitments related to mortgage loans which will be held for sale, and at times,
guarantee period in proportion to POM claims paid. As a result of the adoption ofother instruments which are accounted for as derivatives. The Company utilizes
EITF 00-21, the Company recorded a cumulative effect of a change in accountingforward loan sale commitments, interest rate swaps and interest rate caps
principle of $6.4 million, net of taxes of $4.0 million, as of May 1, 2003.
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Revenues recognized during fiscal year 2004, which were initially recognized in The FASB intends to reissue the exposure draft, ‘‘Qualifying Special Purpose
prior periods and recorded as part of the cumulative effect of a change in Entities and Isolation of Transferred Assets, an Amendment of FASB Statement
accounting principle, totaled $36.3 million. No. 140,’’ during the third quarter of calendar year 2004. The purpose of the

Pro forma results, as if EITF 00-21 had been applied during fiscal years 2003 and proposal is to provide more specific guidance on the accounting for transfers of
2002, are as follows: financial assets to a QSPE.

Provisions in the first exposure draft, as well as tentative decisions reached by
(in 000s, except per share amounts)

the Board during its deliberations, may require the Company to consolidate its
Year ended April 30, 2003 As Reported Pro Forma current QSPEs (the Trusts) established in its Mortgage Operations segment. As of
Net income $ 580,064 $ 578,418 April 30, 2004, the Trusts had assets and liabilities of $3.2 billion. The provisions of
Earnings per share: the exposure draft are subject to FASB due process and are subject to change.

Basic $ 3.23 $ 3.22 The Company will continue to monitor the status of the exposure draft, and
Diluted 3.15 3.14 consider changes, if any, to current structures as a result of the proposed rules.

The estimated impact of these new accounting standards reflects current views.
There may be material differences between these estimates and the actual impact(in 000s, except per share amounts)

of these standards.Year ended April 30, 2002 As Reported Pro Forma

Net income $ 434,405 $ 435,551
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 2.38 $ 2.38
Diluted 2.31 2.31
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N O T E  2 : B U S I N E S S  C O M B I N AT I O N S  A N D  D I S P O S A L S
Significant acquisitions during fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows. Each acquisition was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, results for each
acquisition are included since the date of acquisition.

(in 000s)

Asset Acquired Estimated Life Asset Value at Acquisition

Fiscal year 2004
Former major franchise territories Property and equipment $ 2,697

Goodwill N/A 205,313

Customer relationships 10 years 18,167
Noncompete agreements 3 years 17,069

Weighted average life 7 years $ 243,246

Accounting firms Goodwill N/A $ 3,923
Customer relationships 10 years 1,794

Noncompete agreements 15 years 747

Weighted average life 11 years $ 6,464

Fiscal year 2003
Accounting firms Goodwill N/A $ 2,404

Customer relationships 10 years 2,242
Noncompete agreements 15 years 728

Weighted average life 11 years $ 5,374

Fiscal year 2002
MyBenefitSource, Inc. Goodwill N/A $ 11,929

Trade name 5 years 868
Customer relationships 8 years 1,616

Noncompete agreements 5 years 1,522

Weighted average life 6 years $ 15,935

Equico Resources, LLC Goodwill N/A $ 28,383
Trade name 6 years 1,560

Customer relationships 3 years 2,510
Noncompete agreements 5 years 4,370

Weighted average life 5 years $ 36,823

Accounting firms Goodwill N/A $ 15,842
Customer relationships 10 years 9,314

Noncompete agreements 15 years 3,584

Weighted average life 11 years $ 28,740

During fiscal year 2004, we made payments of $243.2 million related to the provide for possible future contingent consideration of approximately
acquisition of assets and stock in the franchise territories of ten former major $0.3 million. Goodwill recognized in these transactions was $2.4 million, which is
franchisees. The customer relationships will be amortized based on estimated deductible for tax purposes and is included in the Business Services segment.
customer retention over ten years. The noncompete agreements will be amortized In December 2001, the Company acquired a controlling interest in
on a straight-line basis over three years. Goodwill recognized in these transactions MyBenefitSource, Inc., an integrated payroll and benefits processing company,
is included in the U.S. Tax Operations segment and all but $3.9 million is with an option to acquire the remaining shares. The Company also acquired 100%
deductible for tax purposes. of EquiCo Resources, LLC (‘‘EquiCo’’), a valuation, merger and acquisition

During fiscal year 2004, the Company acquired three accounting firms. Cash consulting company. Cash payments related to these acquisitions totaled
payments related to these acquisitions totaled $6.2 million, with additional cash $28.5 million with additional cash payments of $31.0 million over the next five
payments of $1.0 million over the next five years. The purchase agreements also years. The purchase agreements also provide for possible future contingent
provide for possible future contingent consideration of approximately consideration of approximately $45.0 million, which is based on achieving certain
$3.0 million. Goodwill recognized in these transactions is deductible for tax revenue, profitability and working capital targets over the next six years, and such
purposes and is included in the Business Services segment. consideration will be treated as purchase price if paid. Goodwill recognized in

During fiscal year 2003, the Company acquired two accounting firms. Cash these transactions is not deductible for tax purposes and is included in the
payments related to these acquisitions totaled $2.6 million, with additional cash Business Services segment.
payments of $2.8 million over the next five years. The purchase agreements also
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During fiscal year 2002, the Company acquired six accounting firms, giving the Goodwill of $8.8 million is expected to be fully deductible for tax purposes and is
Business Services segment a geographic presence in Seattle and San Francisco, as included in the Business Services segment.
well as expanding its existing presence in New York City and Dallas. Cash During fiscal year 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company made other acquisitions
payments related to these acquisitions totaled $6.9 million, with additional cash which were accounted for as purchases with cash payments totaling $7.9 million,
payments of $26.1 million over the next five years. The purchase agreements also $3.0 million and $1.6 million, respectively. Their operations, which are not
provide for possible future contingent consideration of approximately material, are included in the consolidated income statements since the date of
$6.6 million, which is based on achieving certain revenue and profitability over the acquisition.
next five years, and such consideration will be treated as purchase price if paid.

N O T E  3 : E A R N I N G S  P E R  S H A R E
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of Diluted earnings per share excludes the impact of weighted-average common
common shares outstanding. The dilutive effect of potential common shares shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options of 2.4 million, 2.6 million, and
outstanding is included in diluted earnings per share. The computations of basic 0.7 million shares for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, because the options’
and diluted earnings per share before change in accounting principle are as exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares
follows: and therefore, the effect would be antidilutive.

(in 000s, except per share amounts)

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Net income before change in
accounting $ 704,256 $ 580,064 $ 434,405

Basic weighted average common
shares 177,076 179,638 182,903

Dilutive potential shares from stock
options and restricted stock 3,725 4,439 5,423

Convertible preferred stock 1 1 1

Dilutive weighted average common
shares 180,802 184,078 188,327

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 3.98 $ 3.23 $ 2.38
Diluted 3.90 3.15 2.31

N O T E  4 : R E C E I VA B L E S
The components of receivables from customers, brokers, dealers and clearing The components of receivables are as follows:
organizations are as follows: (in 000s)

(in 000s) April 30, 2004 2003

April 30, 2004 2003 Business Services accounts receivable $ 145,231 $ 185,023
Mortgage loans held for sale 84,428 68,518Gross receivables $ 626,179 $ 518,558
Loans to franchisees 35,872 33,341Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,103) (1,521)
Refund anticipation loans (‘‘RALs’’) 49,047 12,871

$ 625,076 $ 517,037
Software receivables 20,882 36,810
Other 65,868 89,054

401,328 425,617
Allowance for doubtful accounts (38,266) (17,038)
Lower of cost or market adjustment – mortgage loans (15,152) (5,382)

$ 347,910 $ 403,197
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N O T E 5 : M A R K E TA B L E  S E C U R I T I E S  AVA I L A B L E - F O R - S A L E

The amortized cost and market value of marketable securities classified as available-for-sale at April 30, 2004 and 2003 are summarized below:

(in 000s)

2004 2003

Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Gains Losses(1) Value Cost Gains Losses Value

Municipal bonds $ 8,846 $ 27 $ 78 $ 8,795 $ 11,959 $ 516 $ 8 $ 12,467
Common stock 4,661 450 82 5,029 4,491 169 97 4,563

13,507 477 160 13,824 16,450 685 105 17,030

Residual interests 98,462 112,511 – 210,973 166,248 98,089 – 264,337

$ 111,969 $ 112,988 $ 160 $ 224,797 $ 182,698 $ 98,774 $ 105 $ 281,367

(1)
Gross unrealized losses have been in a continuous loss position for less than 12 months.

Proceeds from the sales of available-for-sale securities were $68.8 million, expected maturities differ from contractual maturities due to the issuers’ rights to
$156.6 million and $23.2 million during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Gross prepay certain obligations or the seller’s rights to call certain obligations, the first
realized gains on those sales during 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $41.8 million, call date, put date or auction date for municipal bonds and notes is considered the
$131.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively; gross realized losses were contractual maturity date.
$0.1 million, $0.7 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

Contractual maturities of available-for-sale debt securities (municipal bonds) at
April 30, 2004 occur at varying dates over the next five to ten years. Because

N O T E  6 : M O R T G A G E  B A N K I N G  A C T I V I T I E S
The Company originates mortgage loans and sells most non-prime loans the same definition of a QSPE and is therefore not consolidated. The securitization trust
day the loans are funded to Trusts. These Trusts meet the criteria of QSPEs and issues bonds, which are supported by the cash flows from the pooled loans, to
are therefore not consolidated. The sale is recorded in accordance with Statement third-party investors. The Company retains an interest in the loans in the form of a
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, ‘‘Accounting for Transfers and residual interest and usually assumes the first risk of loss for credit losses in the
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities’’ (‘‘SFAS 140’’). loan pool. As the cash flows of the underlying loans and market conditions
The Trusts purchase the loans from the Company utilizing five warehouse change, the value of the Company’s residual interest may also change, resulting in
facilities arranged by the Company. As a result of the whole loan sales to the either additional unrealized gains or impairment of the value of the residual
Trusts, the Company removes the mortgage loans from its balance sheet and interests. These residual interests are classified as trading securities and had no
records the gain on the sale, cash and a beneficial interest in Trusts, which balance as of April 30, 2004 and 2003.
represents the ultimate expected outcome from the disposition of the loans. The To accelerate the cash flows from its residual interests, the Company securitizes
beneficial interest in Trusts was $137.8 million and $122.1 million at April 30, 2004 the majority of its residual interests in net interest margin (‘‘NIM’’) transactions. In
and 2003, respectively. The beneficial interest in Trusts was reclassified from a NIM transaction, the residual interests are transferred to another QSPE (‘‘NIM
prepaid and other current assets to a non-current asset on the April 30, 2003 trust’’), which then issues bonds to third-party investors. The proceeds from the
balance sheet. bonds are returned to the Company as payment for the residual interests. The

The Trusts, as directed by their third-party beneficial interest holders, either sell bonds are secured by the pooled residual interests and are obligations of the NIM
the loans directly to third-party investors or back to the Company to pool the trust. The Company retains a subordinated interest in the NIM trust, and receives
loans for securitization. The decision to complete a whole loan sale or a cash flows on its residual interest generally after the bonds issued to the third-
securitization is dependent on market conditions. If the Trusts choose to sell the party investors are paid in full. Residual interests retained from NIM
mortgage loans, the Company receives cash for its beneficial interest in Trusts. In securitizations may also be bundled and sold in a subsequent securitization. These
a securitization transaction, the Trusts transfer the loans to a consolidated residual interests are classified as available-for-sale securities (see note 5).
subsidiary of the Company, and the Company transfers its beneficial interest in Prime mortgage loans are sold in whole loan sales, servicing released, to third-
Trusts and the loans to a securitization trust. The securitization trust meets the party buyers.
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Activity related to residual interests in securitizations consists of the following: and 1999. The outstanding loans were repurchased from the securitization trust,
and the proceeds were used to pay off the remaining bondholders. These

(in 000s)
repurchased loans may be included in future sale transactions. At the time the call

April 30, 2004 2003 options were exercised, the carrying value of the corresponding residual interests
Balance, beginning of year $ 264,337 $ 365,371 was $5.9 million, and is included in ‘‘Other’’ in the rollforward of residual interests
Additions (resulting from NIM transactions) 9,007 753 above.
Cash received (193,606) (140,795) As the Company services non-prime mortgage loans, $216.1 million and
Cash received on sales of residual interests (53,391) (142,486) $186.9 million in foreclosure advances, escrow advances and principal and
Accretion 165,817 145,165 interest advances are included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on
Impairments of fair value (30,661) (54,111) the consolidated balance sheets as of April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Other (6,203) – Activity related to mortgage servicing rights consists of the following:
Change in unrealized holding gains (losses) arising

(in 000s)
during the period 55,673 90,440

April 30, 2004 2003
Balance, end of year $ 210,973 $ 264,337

Balance, beginning of year $ 99,265 $ 81,893
The Company sold $23.2 billion and $17.2 billion of mortgage loans in whole Additions 84,274 65,345

loan sales to the Trusts during the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003, Amortization (69,718) (47,107)
respectively. Gains totaling $716.7 million and $663.6 million were recorded on Impairments of fair value – (866)
these sales, respectively.

Balance, end of year $ 113,821 $ 99,265Residual interests valued at $328.0 million and $542.5 million were securitized
in NIM transactions during the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Estimated amortization of MSRs for fiscal years 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009
Net cash proceeds of $310.4 million and $541.8 million were received from the is $58.5 million, $29.1 million, $11.3 million, $3.9 million and $.7 million,
NIM transactions for the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Total respectively. The carrying value of MSRs approximates fair value at April 30, 2004
net additions to residual interests for the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003 were and 2003.
$9.0 million and $0.8 million, respectively. The key assumptions the Company used to originally estimate the cash flows

Cash flows from the residual interests of $193.6 million and $140.8 million were and values of the residual interests are as follows:
received from the securitization trusts for the years ended April 30, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. An additional $53.4 million and $142.5 million was received during 2004 2003 2002
fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively, as a result of the sale of previously

Estimated annual prepayments 30-90% 30-90% 30-90%
securitized residuals, as discussed below. Cash received on the residual interests

Estimated credit losses 3.63% 3.60% 3.06%
is included in investing activities on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Discount rate 16.25% 13.03% 14.43%
During fiscal year 2004, the Company completed sales of previously securitized

Variable returns to third-party beneficial
residual interests and recorded gains of $40.7 million. Cash proceeds of

interest holders LIBOR forward curve at closing
$53.4 million were received from the transactions and a $1.5 million residual

The key assumptions the Company used to estimate the cash flows and valuesinterest was retained. These sales accelerate cash flows from the residual
of the residual interests and MSRs at April 30 are as follows:interests, effectively realizing previously recorded unrealized gains included in

other comprehensive income.
April 30, 2004 2003During fiscal year 2003, the Company completed the sale of previously

securitized residual interests and recorded a gain of $130.9 million on the Estimated annual prepayments 25-90% 20-90%
transaction. Cash proceeds of $142.5 million were received from the transaction Estimated credit losses 4.16% 5.14%
and a residual interest of $57.4 million was retained. Discount rate – residual interests 19.09% 24.22%

Residual interests are considered available-for-sale securities and are therefore Discount rate – MSRs 12.80% 12.80%
reported at fair value. Gross unrealized holding gains represent the write-up of Variable returns to third-party Beneficial LIBOR forward curve at
residual interests as a result of lower interest rates, loan losses or loan interest holders valuation date
prepayments to date than most recently projected in the Company’s valuation

Expected static pool credit losses are as follows:
models.

Aggregate net unrealized gains on residual interests, which had not yet been
Mortgage loans securitized in

accreted into income, totaled $112.5 million and $98.1 million at April 30, 2004 and
2002 2003 20042003, respectively. These unrealized gains are recorded net of deferred taxes in

other comprehensive income, and may be recognized in income in future periods April 30, 2004 3.58% 4.35% 3.92%
either through accretion or upon further securitization of the related residual

Static pool credit losses are calculated by summing the actual and projected
interest.

future credit losses and dividing them by the original balance of each pool of assets
In connection with securitization transactions, the Company, as servicer,

outstanding at April 30, 2004.
generally has a 10% clean-up call option, whereby the Company, at its discretion,

At April 30, 2004, the sensitivities of the current fair value of the residuals and
may repurchase the outstanding loans in the securitization once the current value

MSRs to 10% and 20% adverse changes in the above key assumptions are
of the loans is 10% or less of their original value. During fiscal year 2004, the

presented in the table below. These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be
Company exercised call options on residual interests initially recorded in 1996
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used with caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair value based on a 10% assumptions; in reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in another,
variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities.
relationship of the change in assumption to the change in fair value may not be
linear. Also in this table, the effect of a variation of a particular assumption on the
fair value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other

(dollars in 000s)

Residential Mortgage Loans

NIM Beneficial Interest Servicing
Residuals in Trusts(1) Assets

Carrying amount/fair value of residuals $ 210,973 $ 137,757 $ 113,821
Weighted average life (in years) 1.4 2.2 1.2
Prepayments (including defaults):

Adverse 10% – $impact on fair value $ 6,352 $ (3,836) $ (12,239)

Adverse 20% – $impact on fair value 11,458 (1,967) (23,003)
Credit losses:

Adverse 10% – $impact on fair value $ (23,156) $ (2,962) Not applicable

Adverse 20% – $impact on fair value (47,198) (5,831) Not applicable
Discount rate:

Adverse 10% – $impact on fair value $ (4,176) $ (590) $ (1,545)

Adverse 20% – $impact on fair value (8,063) (3,685) (3,055)
Variable interest rates:

Adverse 10% – $impact on fair value $ (9,597) $ (10,571) Not applicable

Adverse 20% – $impact on fair value (18,771) (21,910) Not applicable
(1)

Adverse changes are minimized by the Trusts ability to deliver loans into the Company’s forward loan sale commitments. See Item 7a for additional analysis.

Mortgage loans which have been securitized at April 30, 2004 and 2003, past due sixty days or more and the related net credit losses are presented below:

(in 000s)

Total Principal Principal Amount of Loans Net Credit Losses
Amount of Loans Outstanding 60 Days or More Past (net of recoveries)

April 30, Due April 30, Year ended April 30,

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Residual mortgage loans $ 15,732,953 $ 19,835,641 $ 1,286,069 $ 1,308,991 $ 159,253 $ 130,065

Warehouse 3,244,141 2,186,224 – – – –

Total loans $ 18,977,094 $ 22,021,865 $ 1,286,069 $ 1,308,991 $ 159,253 $ 130,065
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N O T E  7 : G O O D W I L L  A N D  I N TA N G I B L E  A S S E T S
Goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets were tested for impairment in test on the Investment Services segment in accordance with SFAS 142. Based on
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004. An independent valuation firm was engaged this valuation, a goodwill impairment charge of $24.0 million was recorded during
to assist in the test for selected reporting units. No impairment existed at any of fiscal year 2003. Also during 2003, the Company’s annual impairment test resulted
the Company’s reporting units. in an impairment of $11.8 million for a reporting unit within the Business Services

In light of unsettled market conditions and the severe decline of comparable segment. No other impairments were identified.
business valuations in the investment industry, the Company engaged an Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by segment for the year ended
independent valuation firm in fiscal year 2003 to perform the goodwill impairment April 30, 2004, are as follows:

(in 000s)

2003 Additions Other 2004

U.S. Tax Operations $ 130,502 $ 212,200 $ – $ 342,702
Mortgage Operations 152,467 – – 152,467
Business Services 279,650 31,525 – 311,175
Investment Services 145,732 – – 145,732
International Tax Operations 5,666 849 619 7,134
Corporate Operations 198 10 – 208

Total goodwill $ 714,215 $ 244,584 $ 619 $ 959,418

Additions to goodwill for U.S. Tax Operations include $205.3 million related to result from the final contingent payment related to the acquisition of the non-
asset and stock acquisitions involving former major franchise territories and other attest assets of McGladrey & Pullen, LLP of $26.7 million.
acquisitions of $6.9 million. Additions to goodwill for Business Services primarily

The components of intangible assets are as follows:
(in 000s)

April 30, 2004 April 30, 2003

Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

U.S. Tax Operations:
Customer relationships $ 18,167 $ (3,311) $ – $ –
Noncompete agreements 17,069 (5,690) – –

Business Services:
Customer relationships 121,229 (56,313) 120,178 (44,192)
Noncompete agreements 27,424 (8,670) 26,909 (6,157)
Trade name – amortizing 1,450 (926) 1,450 (205)
Trade name – non-amortizing 55,637 (4,868) 55,637 (4,868)

Investment Services:
Customer relationships 293,000 (129,408) 293,000 (100,108)

Corporate Operations:
Customer relationships 844 (66) 172 (10)
Noncompete agreements 295 (34) 60 (1)

Total intangible assets $ 535,115 $ (209,286) $ 497,406 $ (155,541)

Amortization of intangible assets for the year ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and $52.9 million, $51.9 million, $43.0 million, $41.2 million and $40.0 million,
2002 was $54.2 million, $44.5 million and $43.4 million, respectively. Estimated respectively. In fiscal year 2004, the Company wrote off a $0.6 million trade name
amortization of intangible assets for fiscal years 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 is for a subsidiary in its Business Services segment.
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N O T E  8 : P R O P E R T Y  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T
The components of property and equipment are as follows: Depreciation and amortization expense for 2004, 2003 and 2002 was

(in 000s) $117.9 million, $117.3 million and $110.9 million, respectively. Included in
April 30, 2004 2003 depreciation and amortization expense is amortization of capitalized software of

$28.2 million, $29.9 million and $25.4 million for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002,Land $ 29,925 $ 37,614
respectively.Buildings 78,136 81,631

As of April 30, 2004 and 2003, the Company has property and equipment underComputers and other equipment 498,373 433,649
capital lease with a cost of $14.1 million and $17.6 million, respectively, andCapitalized software 137,784 113,826
accumulated depreciation of $2.5 million and $4.2 million, respectively. TheLeasehold improvements 114,537 107,482
Company has an agreement to lease real estate and buildings under a

858,755 774,202 noncancelable capital lease for the next 16 years with an option to purchase after
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 579,535 485,608 three years.

$ 279,220 $ 288,594

N O T E 9 : D E R I VAT I V E  I N S T R U M E N T S
The Company, in the normal course of business, enters into commitments with its The Company enters into forward loan commitments to sell its non-prime
customers to fund both non-prime and prime mortgage loans for specified periods mortgage loans to manage interest rate risk. Forward loan sale commitments for
of time at ‘‘locked-in’’ interest rates. These derivative instruments represent non-prime loans are not considered derivative instruments and are therefore not
commitments to fund loans (‘‘rate-lock equivalents’’). The fair value of non-prime recorded in our financial statements. The notional value and the contract value of
loan commitments is calculated using a binomial option model. The fair value of the forward commitments at April 30, 2004 were $4.7 billion and $5.0 billion,
prime loan commitments is calculated based on the current market pricing of respectively.
short sales of FNMA, FHLMC and GNMA mortgage-backed securities and the The Company entered into an agreement with Household Tax Masters, Inc.
coupon rates of the eligible loans. At April 30, 2004 and 2003, the Company (‘‘Household’’) during fiscal year 2003, whereby the Company waived its right to
recorded a liability of $1.4 million and an asset of $12.5 million, respectively, in purchase any participation interests in and receive license fees relating to RALs
receivables on its consolidated balance sheets related to these prime and non- during the period January 1 through April 30, 2003. In consideration for waiving
prime commitments. Changes in the fair value totaling a loss of $13.9 million were these rights, the Company received a series of payments from Household, subject
recognized in gains on sales of mortgage assets for fiscal year 2004. See discussion to certain adjustments based on delinquency rates on RALs made by Household
of SAB 105 in note 1, related to a change in accounting for non-prime loan through December 31, 2003. This adjustment provision was accounted for as a
commitments. derivative and was marked-to-market monthly through December 31, 2003.

The Company sells short FNMA, FHLMC and GNMA mortgage-backed Accordingly, during fiscal year 2004, the Company recognized $6.5 million of
securities to reduce its risk related to its commitments to fund fixed-rate prime revenues related to this instrument. The final settlement in accordance with this
loans. The position on certain or all of the fixed-rate mortgage loans is closed agreement was received in January 2004. A receivable of $5.2 million was included
approximately 10-15 days prior to standard Public Securities Association (‘‘PSA’’) on the consolidated balance sheet as of April 30, 2003.
settlement dates. At April 30, 2004 the Company recorded assets totaling None of the derivative instruments qualify for hedge accounting treatment as of
$2.1 million in prepaid expenses and other current assets on its consolidated April 30, 2004 and 2003.
balance sheet related to these instruments. Changes in the market value of these
instruments are included in gains on sales of mortgage assets and totaled
$4.7 million for fiscal year 2004.
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N O T E  1 0 : L O N G - T E R M  D E B T
The components of long-term debt and capital lease obligations at year end are as On October 21, 1997, the Company issued $250.0 million of 63/4% Senior Notes
follows: under a shelf registration statement. The Senior Notes are due November 1, 2004,

(in 000s) and are not redeemable prior to maturity. The net proceeds of this transaction
April 30, 2004 2003 were used to repay short-term borrowings, which initially funded the acquisition

of Option One Mortgage Corporation (‘‘Option One’’).Senior Notes, 81/2%, due April 2007 $ 498,225 $ 497,625
The Company has obligations related to Business Services acquisitions ofSenior Notes, 63/4%, due November 2004 249,975 249,925

$60.8 million and $115.9 million at April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. TheBusiness Services acquisition obligations, due from
current portion of these amounts is included in the current portion of long-termAugust 2004 to January 2008 60,768 115,874
debt on the consolidated balance sheet. The long-term portions are due fromMortgage notes – 1,543
August 2005 to January 2008.Capital lease obligations 12,512 13,013

The Company has a capitalized lease obligation of $12.5 million at April 30, 2004
821,480 877,980 that is collateralized by land and buildings. The obligation is due in 16 years.

Less: Current portion 275,669 55,678 The aggregate payments required to retire long-term debt are $275.7 million,
$ 545,811 $ 822,302 $23.5 million, $510.7 million, $1.1 million, $0.6 million and $9.9 million in 2005,

2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and beyond, respectively.On April 13, 2000, the Company issued $500.0 million of 81/2% Senior Notes
Based upon borrowing rates currently available for indebtedness with similarunder a shelf registration statement. The Senior Notes are due April 15, 2007, and

terms, the fair value of long-term debt was approximately $893.5 million andare not redeemable prior to maturity. The net proceeds of this transaction were
$915.4 million at April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.used to repay a portion of the short-term borrowings that initially funded the

acquisition of OLDE Financial Corporation and Financial Marketing Services, Inc.
(collectively, ‘‘OLDE’’).

N O T E  1 1 : O T H E R  N O N C U R R E N T  L I A B I L I T I E S
The Company has deferred compensation plans that permit directors and certain The Company has recorded $280.0 million and $281.7 million for obligations to
employees to defer portions of their compensation and accrue income on the certain government agencies at April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
deferred amounts. The compensation, together with Company matching of In connection with the Company’s acquisition of the non-attest assets of
deferred amounts, has been accrued. Included in other noncurrent liabilities are McGladrey & Pullen, LLP (‘‘M&P’’) in August 1999, the Company assumed certain
$93.4 million and $65.4 million at April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, reflecting pension liabilities related to M&P’s retired partners. The Company makes
the liability under these plans. The Company purchases whole-life insurance payments in varying amounts on a monthly basis. Included in other noncurrent
contracts on certain director and employee participants to recover distributions liabilities at April 30, 2004 and 2003 are $17.5 million and $19.5 million,
made or to be made under the plans and records the cash surrender value of the respectively, related to this liability.
policies in other noncurrent assets.

N O T E  1 2 : S T O C K H O L D E R S ’  E Q U I T Y
On June 20, 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a two-for-one stock issued in connection with these options. Each share of Convertible Preferred
split of its Common Stock in the form of a 100% stock distribution effective Stock became convertible on April 5, 1998 into four shares of Common Stock of
August 1, 2001, to shareholders of record as of the close of business on July 10, the Company (eight shares after the August 1, 2001 stock split), subject to
2001. All share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the adjustment upon certain events. The holders of the Convertible Preferred Stock
retroactive effect of the stock split. are not entitled to receive dividends paid in cash, property or securities and, in the

The Company is authorized to issue 6.0 million shares of Preferred Stock, event of any dissolution, liquidation or wind-up of the Company, will share ratably
without par value. At April 30, 2004, the Company had 5.6 million shares of with the holders of Common Stock then outstanding in the assets of the Company
authorized but unissued Preferred Stock. Of the unissued shares, 0.6 million after any distribution or payments are made to the holders of Participating
shares have been designated as Participating Preferred Stock in connection with Preferred Stock or the holders of any other class or series of stock of the
the Company’s shareholder rights plan. Company with preference over the Common Stock.

On March 8, 1995, the Board of Directors authorized the issuance of a series of The Company grants restricted shares to selected employees under its stock-
0.5 million shares of nonvoting Preferred Stock designated as Convertible based compensation plans. Upon the grant of restricted shares, unearned
Preferred Stock, without par value. In April 1995, 0.4 million shares of Convertible compensation is recorded as an offset to additional paid in capital and is
Preferred Stock were issued in connection with an acquisition. In addition, amortized as compensation expense over the restricted period. The balance of
options to purchase 51,828 shares of Convertible Preferred Stock were issued as a unearned compensation related to restricted shares at April 30, 2004 was
part of the acquisition and 37,399 shares of Convertible Preferred Stock were $15.0 million.
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N O T E  1 3 : C O M P R E H E N S I V E I N C O M E
(in 000s)Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, ‘‘Reporting Comprehensive

Income,’’ establishes standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
income and its components in stockholders’ equity. The Company’s Net income $ 697,897 $ 580,064 $ 434,405
comprehensive income is comprised of net income, foreign currency translation Unrealized gains on securities (less
adjustments and the change in the net unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale applicable taxes (benefit) of $5,412,
marketable securities. Included in stockholders’ equity at April 30, 2004 and 2003, ($15,290) and $56,156):
the net unrealized holding gain on available-for-sale securities was $69.7 million Unrealized holding gains arising
and $61.0 million, respectively, and the foreign currency translation adjustment during the period (less applicable
was $(11.8) million and $(24.1) million, respectively. The net unrealized holding taxes of $64,174, $70,983 and
gain on available-for-sale securities relates primarily to residual interests in $58,248) 103,886 114,885 92,629
securitizations. Less: Reclassification adjustment for

gains included in income (less
applicable taxes of $58,762,
$86,273 and $2,092) (95,150) (139,566) (4,859)

Change in foreign currency translation
adjustments 12,355 17,415 (875)

Comprehensive income $ 718,988 $ 572,798 $ 521,300

N O T E  1 4 : S T O C K - B A S E D  C O M P E N S AT I O N  A N D  R E T I R E M E N T  B E N E F I T S
The Company has four stock-based compensation plans: the 2003 Long-Term three years after the date of the grant on a cumulative basis at the annual rate of
Executive Compensation Plan, the 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors, 331/3% of the total number of option shares, or (3) starting three years after the
the 1999 Stock Option Plan for Seasonal Employees, and the 2000 Employee Stock date of the grant on a cumulative basis at the rate of 40%, 30%, and 30% over the
Purchase Plan (‘‘ESPP’’). The shareholders have approved all of the Company’s following three years. In addition, certain option grants have accelerated vesting
stock-based compensation plans. provisions based on the Company’s stock price reaching specified levels.

The 2003 Plan replaced the 1993 Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan, Under the 2003 and 1989 plans, restricted shares of the Company’s common
effective July 1, 2003. The 1993 Plan terminated at that time, except with respect stock may be granted to selected employees. Restricted shares granted vest either
to outstanding awards thereunder. The shareholders had approved the 1993 Plan (1) starting one or three years after the grant on a cumulative basis at an annual
in September 1993 to replace the 1984 Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan, rate of 331/3% of the total number of shares, or (2) at the end of three years.
which terminated at that time except with respect to outstanding awards The 1999 Stock Option Plan for Seasonal Employees provided for the grant of
thereunder. Under the 2003 and 1989 plans, options may be granted to selected options on June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 at the market price on the date of the
employees and outside directors to purchase the Company’s Common Stock for grant. The options are exercisable during September through November in each of
periods not exceeding 10 years at a price that is not less than 100% of fair market the two years following the calendar year of the grant, subject to certain
value on the date of the grant. Options granted under the Plans are exercisable conditions.
either (1) starting one year after the date of the grant, (2) starting one, two or

Changes during the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 under the stock-based compensation plans were as follows:

(in 000s, except per share amounts)

2004 2003 2002

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding, beginning of year 15,772 $ 32.14 15,910 $ 26.33 18,908 $ 20.40
Options granted 3,744 44.05 5,364 44.32 8,816 32.85
Options exercised (3,927) 29.11 (5,098) 24.65 (9,659) 19.82
Options expired/cancelled (1,107) 34.51 (404) 34.53 (2,155) 30.21

Options outstanding, end of year 14,482 35.86 15,772 32.14 15,910 26.33

Shares exercisable, end of year 6,668 30.78 6,836 25.21 6,410 20.46
Restricted shares granted 514 43.93 45 44.64 17 36.85
Restricted shares vested 72 23.79 63 21.02 81 19.56

Shares reserved for future option or restricted stock
grants, end of year 9,880 14,563 19,523
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A summary of stock options outstanding and exercisable at April 30, 2004 follows:

(shares in 000s)

Outstanding Exercisable

Number Weighted-Average Weighted- Number Weighted-
Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average
at April 30 Contractual Life Exercise Price at April 30 Exercise Price

$ 16.13 – 21.91 2,292 4 years $ 18.22 2,135 $ 18.08

$ 22.13 – 27.81 1,693 5 years 25.94 1,092 25.82

$ 32.10 – 39.96 3,447 8 years 33.41 1,613 33.56

$ 40.00 – 46.26 6,814 9 years 44.79 1,828 46.11

$ 47.00 – 58.95 236 10 years 56.60 – –

14,482 6,668

The 2000 ESPP provides the option to purchase shares of the Company’s weighted-average assumptions were used for stock option grants and purchase
Common Stock through payroll deductions to a majority of the employees of right grants during the following periods:
subsidiaries of the Company. The purchase price of the stock is 90% of the lower

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002of either the fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock on the first
trading day within the Option Period or on the last trading day within the Option Stock option grants:
Period. The Option Periods are six-month periods beginning January 1 and July 1 Risk-free interest rate 1.76% 3.37% 4.48%
each year. During fiscal years 2004 and 2003, 127,246 and 93,657 shares, Expected life 3 years 4 years 3 years
respectively, were purchased under the ESPP out of a total authorized 6.0 million Expected volatility 31.65% 29.04% 28.81%
shares. Dividend yield 1.65% 1.50% 1.84%

For purposes of computing actual fiscal year 2004 compensation expense and Purchase right grants:
the pro forma effects for fiscal years 2003 and 2002 of stock compensation plans Risk-free interest rate .97% 1.45% 2.70%
under the fair value accounting method, disclosed in note 1, the fair value of each Expected life 6 months 6 months 6 months
stock option grant or purchase right grant was estimated on the date of the grant Expected volatility 38.14% 44.38% 33.07%
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The weighted-average fair value of Dividend yield 1.55% 1.60% 1.60%
stock options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $7.58, $8.29 and $5.77,

The Company has 401(K) defined contribution plans covering all full-timerespectively. The weighted-average fair value of purchase rights granted during
employees following the completion of an eligibility period. Company2004, 2003 and 2002 was $9.96, $9.02 and $5.88, respectively. The following
contributions to these plans are discretionary and totaled $28.9 million,
$20.7 million and $15.5 million for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

N O T E  1 5 : S H A R E H O L D E R  R I G H T S  P L A N
On July 25, 1998, the rights under a shareholder rights plan, adopted by the Rights become exercisable). When exercisable, the registered holder of each
Company’s Board of Directors on March 25, 1998, became effective. The 1998 plan Right may purchase from the Company one two-hundredth of a share of a class of
was adopted to deter coercive or unfair takeover tactics and to prevent a potential the Company’s Participating Preferred Stock, without par value, at a price of
acquirer from gaining control of the Company without offering a fair price to all of $107.50, subject to adjustment. The registered holder of each Right then also has
the Company’s stockholders. Under the 1998 plan, a dividend of one right (a the right (the ‘‘Subscription Right’’) to purchase for the exercise price of the Right,
‘‘Right’’) per share was declared and paid on each share of the Company’s in lieu of shares of Participating Preferred Stock, a number of shares of the
Common Stock outstanding on July 25, 1998. Rights automatically attach to shares Company’s Common Stock having a market value equal to twice the exercise
issued after such date. price of the Right. Following an Unapproved Stock Acquisition, if the Company is

Under the 1998 plan, a Right becomes exercisable when a person or group of involved in a merger, or 50% or more of the Company’s assets or earning power
persons acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding shares of are sold, the registered holder of each Right has the right (the ‘‘Merger Right’’) to
the Company’s Common Stock without the prior written approval of the purchase for the exercise price of the Right a number of shares of the common
Company’s Board of Directors (an ‘‘Unapproved Stock Acquisition’’), and at the stock of the surviving or purchasing company having a market value equal to
close of business on the tenth business day following the commencement of, or twice the exercise price of the Right.
the public announcement of an intent to commence, a tender offer that would After an Unapproved Stock Acquisition, but before any person or group of
result in an Unapproved Stock Acquisition. The Company may, prior to any persons acquires 50% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s
Unapproved Stock Acquisition, amend the plan to lower such 15% threshold to not Common Stock, the Board of Directors may exchange all or part of the then
less than the greater of (1) any percentage greater than the largest percentage of outstanding and exercisable Rights for Common Stock at an exchange ratio of one
beneficial ownership by any person or group of persons then known by the share of Common Stock per Right (the ‘‘Exchange’’). Upon any such Exchange,
Company, and (2) 10% (in which case the acquisition of such lower percentage of the right of any holder to exercise a Right terminates. Upon the occurrence of any
beneficial ownership then constitutes an Unapproved Stock Acquisition and the of the events giving rise to the exercisability of the Subscription Right or the
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Merger Right or the ability of the Board of Directors to effect the Exchange, the expiration of the rights. The Rights under the plan will expire on March 25, 2008,
Rights held by the acquiring person or group under the new plan will become void unless extended by the Board of Directors. Until a Right is exercised, the holder
as they relate to the Subscription Right, the Merger Right or the Exchange. thereof, as such, will have no rights as a stockholder of the Company, including

The Company may redeem the Rights at a price of $.000625 per Right at any the right to vote or to receive dividends. The issuance of the Rights alone has no
time prior to the earlier of (1) an Unapproved Stock Acquisition, or (2) the dilutive effect and does not affect reported earnings per share.

N O T E  1 6 : I N T E R E S T  I N C O M E  A N D  I N T E R E S T  E X P E N S E
The components of interest income are as follows: The components of interest expense are as follows:

(in 000s) (in 000s)

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Mortgage loans $ 5,064 $ 5,421 $ 6,609 Acquisition debt $ 68,816 $ 72,766 $ 79,002
Accretion – residual interests 168,029 145,165 50,583 Accretion of liabilities and other 7,517 7,724 12,588
Accretion – beneficial interest 167,705 103,294 70,668 RAL-related 4,482 3,244 3,902
Broker-dealer activities 33,408 37,300 67,849 Mortgage loans 1,836 3,229 4,955
Other 4,858 6,005 10,724 Margin lending 1,358 4,830 14,744

Loans to franchises 547 851 950$ 379,064 $ 297,185 $ 206,433
$ 84,556 $ 92,644 $ 116,141

N O T E  1 7 : I N C O M E TA X E S
The components of income upon which domestic and foreign income taxes have Deferred income tax provisions (benefits) reflect the impact of temporary
been provided are as follows: differences between amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting

purposes and such amounts as measured by tax laws. The current and deferred
(in 000s)

components of taxes on income are as follows:
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

(in 000s)
Domestic $ 1,151,632 $ 976,078 $ 709,940

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002Foreign 12,525 10,999 6,900
Current$ 1,164,157 $ 987,077 $ 716,840

Federal $ 421,787 $ 415,083 $ 335,082
State 41,169 29,608 33,116
Foreign 577 8,056 3,925

463,533 452,747 372,123

Deferred:
Federal (3,305) (42,512) (80,275)
State (323) (2,534) (8,416)
Foreign (4) (688) (997)

(3,632) (45,734) (89,688)

Total provision for income taxes before
change in accounting principle 459,901 407,013 282,435

Income tax on cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle (4,031) – –

Income tax included in comprehensive
income 5,412 (15,290) 56,156

Total provision for income taxes $ 461,282 $ 391,723 $ 338,591

Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries totaled $89.5 million at April 30,
2004. Management intends to indefinitely reinvest foreign earnings, therefore, a
provision has not been made for income taxes which might be payable upon
remittance of such earnings. Moreover, due to the availability of foreign income
tax credits, management believes the amount of federal income taxes would be
immaterial in the event foreign earnings were repatriated.
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The following table reconciles the federal statutory tax expense to the The components of deferred taxes are as follows:
Company’s income tax expense:

(in 000s)

(dollars in 000s) Year ended April 30, 2004 2003
Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 Gross deferred tax assets:
Statutory tax $ 407,455 $ 345,477 $ 250,894 Accrued expenses $ 46,097 $ 58,635
Increases (reductions) in income taxes Allowance for credit losses 23,099 35,817

resulting from: Current 69,196 94,452
State income taxes, net of Federal

Deferred compensation 34,723 24,940income tax benefit 27,408 25,978 16,433
Residual interest income 210,826 197,747Amortization and impairment of
Depreciation 5,612 –goodwill and intangibles 10,893 23,337 11,023

Noncurrent 251,161 222,687Other 14,145 12,221 4,085

Gross deferred tax liabilities:Total income tax expense $ 459,901 $ 407,013 $ 282,435
Accrued income (15,040) (24,865)Effective tax rate 39.5% 41.2% 39.4%

Current (15,040) (24,865)

Mortgage servicing rights (38,005) (39,339)
Amortization of intangibles (31,985) (19,451)
Depreciation – (494)

Noncurrent (69,990) (59,284)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ 235,327 $ 232,990

The Company believes the net deferred tax asset of $235.3 million is realizable.
The Company has federal taxable income in excess of $1.9 billion and substantial
state taxable income in the carry-back period, as well as a history of growth in
earnings and prospects for continued earnings growth. Deferred taxes and taxes
payable have been reclassified for a change in method of income tax reporting
initiated by the Company during fiscal year 2004 resulting in an increase to total
assets and liabilities of $163.4 million at April 30, 2003.

N O T E 1 8 : S U P P L E M E N TA L  C A S H  F L O W  I N F O R M AT I O N
The Company made the following cash payments: The Company characterized the following as non-cash investing activities: 

(in 000s) (in 000s)

Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Income taxes paid $ 331,635 $ 247,057 $ 236,784 Additions to residual interests $ 9,007 $ 753 $ 26,057
Interest paid 84,551 84,094 105,072 Residual interest mark-to-market 167,065 38,880 148,188

N O T E 1 9 :  C O M M I T M E N T S ,  C O N T I N G E N C I E S  A N D  R I S K S
Commitments and contingencies: At April 30, 2004, the Company maintained a assessments, up to a cumulative per client limit of $5,000, attributable to tax
$2.0 billion back-up credit facility to support the commercial paper program and return preparation error for which the Company is responsible. The Company
for general corporate purposes. The annual facility fee required to support the now defers all revenues and direct costs associated with these guarantees,
availability of this facility is eleven basis points per annum on the unused portion recognizing these amounts over the term of the guarantee based upon historic and
of the facility. Among other provisions, the credit agreement limits the Company’s actual payment of claims. The related current asset is included in prepaid
indebtedness. expenses and other current assets. The related liability is included in accounts

The Company maintains a revolving credit facility in an amount not to exceed payable, accrued expenses and other on the consolidated balance sheets. The
$125.0 million (Canadian) in Canada to support a commercial paper program with related noncurrent asset and liability are included in other assets and other
varying borrowing levels throughout the year, reaching its peak during February noncurrent liabilities, respectively, on the consolidated balance sheets. A loss on
and March for the Canadian tax season. these POM guarantees would be recognized if the sum of expected costs for

The Company offers guarantees under its POM program to tax clients whereby services exceeded unearned revenue. The deferred revenue liability increased in
the Company will assume the cost, subject to certain limits, of additional tax fiscal year 2004 by $61.5 million due to the change in accounting principle. The
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changes in the deferred revenue liability for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2004 mortgage loans held by the Trusts before ultimate disposition of the loans by the
and 2003 are as follows: Trusts. This guarantee would be called upon in the event adequate proceeds were

not available from the sale of the mortgage loans to satisfy the current or ultimate
(in 000s)

payment obligations of the Trusts. No losses have been sustained on this
April 30, 2004 2003 commitment since its inception. The total principal amount of Trust obligations
Balance, beginning of year $ 49,280 $ 44,982 outstanding as of April 30, 2004 and 2003 was $3.2 billion and $2.2 billion,
Amounts deferred for new guarantees issued 81,803 28,854 respectively. The fair value of mortgage loans held by the Trusts as of April 30,
Revenue recognized on previous deferrals (69,522) (24,556) 2004 and 2003 was $3.3 billion and $2.3 billion, respectively.
Adjustment resulting from change in accounting The Company is required, in the event of non-delivery of customers’ securities

principle 61,487 – owed to it by other broker-dealers or by its customers, to purchase identical
Balance, end of year $ 123,048 $ 49,280 securities in the open market. Such purchases could result in losses not reflected

in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
As of April 30, 2004, the Company had pledged securities totaling $46.3 million,The Company has commitments to fund mortgage loans to customers as long as

which satisfied margin deposit requirements of $38.5 million.there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments
The Company monitors the credit standing of brokers and dealers andgenerally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses. The

customers with whom it does business. In addition, the Company monitors thecommitments to fund loans amounted to $2.6 billion at April 30, 2004 and 2003,
market value of collateral held and the market value of securities receivable fromrespectively. External market forces impact the probability of commitments being
others, and seeks to obtain additional collateral if insufficient protection againstexercised, and therefore, total commitments outstanding do not necessarily
loss exists.represent future cash requirements.

The Company and its subsidiaries have various contingent purchase priceThe Company is responsible for servicing mortgage loans for others of
obligations in connection with prior acquisitions. In many cases, contingent$36.5 billion and subservicing loans of $8.8 billion at April 30, 2004.
payments to be made in connection with these acquisitions are not subject to aThe Company has entered into whole loan sale agreements with investors in the
stated limit. The Company estimates the potential payments (undiscounted) totalnormal course of business, which include standard representations and
approximately $7.8 million as of April 30, 2004. The Company’s estimate is basedwarranties customary to the mortgage banking industry. The Company has
on current financial conditions. Should actual results differ materially from thecommitments to sell loans of $4.7 billion and $1.5 billion as of April 30, 2004 and
assumptions, the potential payments will differ from the above estimate. Such2003, respectively.
payments, if and when paid, would be recorded as additional goodwill.Violations of these representations and warranties may require the Company to

At April 30, 2004, the Company had a receivable from M&P of $5.8 million. Thisrepurchase loans previously sold. In accordance with these loan sale agreements,
amount is included in receivables in the consolidated balance sheet.the Company repurchased loans with an outstanding principal balance of
Commitments exist to loan M&P up to $40.0 million at April 30, 2004, which is the$192.3 million and $182.0 million during the fiscal years ended April 30, 2004 and
lower of the value of their accounts receivable, work-in-process and fixed assets2003, respectively. A liability has been established related to the potential loss on
or $40.0 million, on a revolving basis through July 31, 2004, subject to certainrepurchase of loans previously sold of $25.2 million and $18.9 million at April 30,
termination clauses. This revolving facility bears interest at prime rate plus four2004 and 2003, respectively. Repurchased loans are normally sold in subsequent
and one-half percent on the outstanding amount and a commitment fee of one-halfsale transactions. On an ongoing basis, management monitors the adequacy of this
percent per annum on the unused portion of the commitment. The loan is fullyliability, which is established upon the initial sale of the loans, and is included in
secured by the accounts receivable, work-in-process and fixed assets of M&P. Theaccounts payable, accrued expenses and deposits in the consolidated balance
Company anticipates entering into a new revolving facility, which will extend thesheets. In determining the adequacy of the recourse liability, management
loan past July 31, 2004.considers such factors as known problem loans, underlying collateral values,

The Company has contractual commitments to fund certain franchiseshistorical loan loss experience, assessment of economic conditions and other
requesting Franchise Equity Lines of Credit (‘‘FELCs’’). The commitment to fundappropriate data to identify the risks in the mortgage loans held for sale.
FELCs as of April 30, 2004 totaled $27.0 million, with a related receivable balanceThe Company is required, under the terms of its securitizations, to build and/or
of $35.9 million included in the consolidated balance sheets. The receivablemaintain overcollateralization (‘‘OC’’) to specified levels, using the excess cash
represents the amount drawn on the FELCs as of April 30, 2004.flows received, until specified percentages of the securitized portfolio are

The Company is self-insured for certain risks, including certain employee healthattained. The Company funds the OC account from the proceeds of the sale.
and benefit, workers’ compensation, property and general liability claims, andFuture cash flows to the residual holder are used to amortize the bonds until a
claims related to its POM program. In fiscal year 2004, the Company issued twospecific percentage of either the original or current balance is retained, which is
standby letters of credit to servicers paying claims related to the Company’sspecified in the securitization agreement. The bondholders’ recourse to the
worker’s compensation and POM programs. These letters of credit are forCompany for credit losses is limited to the excess cash flows received and the
amounts not to exceed $0.9 million and $3.6 million, respectively. At April 30, 2004amount of OC held by the trust. Upon maturity of the bonds, any remaining
there were no balances outstanding on these letters of credit.amounts in the trust are distributed. The estimated future cash flows to be

During fiscal year 2004, the Company announced plans to construct a newdistributed to the Company are included as part of the residual valuation and are
world headquarters facility in downtown Kansas City, Missouri. The Company isvalued upon distribution from the OC account. As of April 30, 2004 and 2003,
in negotiations to enter into contractual commitments with the City of Kansas$316.0 million and $309.6 million, respectively, was maintained in various OC
City and a general contractor for the construction of the building. As of April 30,accounts. These accounts are not assets of the Company and are not reflected in
2004, no commitment for the total cost of the building had been negotiated. Thethe accompanying consolidated financial statements.
Company expects the total expenditure associated with this building to be in theOption One Mortgage Corporation provides a guarantee up to a maximum

amount equal to approximately 10% of the aggregate principal balance of

– 56



Fo rm  10 -K – H&R  BLOCK

range of $140 million to $160 million, and to be paid out over the next three fiscal The Company’s rent expense for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled
years. $239.8 million, $211.7 million and $190.4 million, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries routinely enter into contracts that include In the regular course of business, the Company is subject to routine
embedded indemnifications that have characteristics similar to guarantees. Other examinations by Federal, state and local taxing authorities. In management’s
guarantees and indemnifications of the Company and its subsidiaries include opinion, the disposition of matters raised by such taxing authorities, if any, in
obligations to protect counter parties from losses arising from the following: such tax examinations would not have a material adverse impact on the
(1) tax, legal and other risks related to the purchase or disposition of businesses; Company’s consolidated financial statements.
(2) penalties and interest assessed by Federal and state taxing authorities in Risks: Loans to borrowers who do not meet traditional underwriting criteria
connection with tax returns prepared for clients; (3) indemnification of the (non-prime borrowers) present a higher level of risk of default than federal
Company’s directors and officers; and (4) third-party claims relating to various agency prime loans, because of the increased potential for default by borrowers
arrangements in the normal course of business. Typically, there is no stated who may have previous credit problems or who do not have any credit history.
maximum payment related to these indemnifications, and the term of indemnities Loans to non-prime borrowers also involve additional liquidity risks, as these
may vary and in many cases is limited only by the applicable statute of limitations. loans generally have a more limited secondary market than prime loans. The
The likelihood of any claims being asserted against the Company or its actual rates of delinquencies, foreclosures and losses on loans to non-prime
subsidiaries and the ultimate liability related to any such claims, if any, is difficult borrowers could be higher under adverse economic conditions than those
to predict. While management cannot provide assurance the Company and its currently experienced in the mortgage lending industry in general. While the
subsidiaries will ultimately prevail in the event any such claims are asserted, Company believes the underwriting procedures and appraisal processes it
management believes the fair value of these guarantees and indemnifications is employs enable it to mitigate certain risks inherent in loans made to these
not material as of April 30, 2004. borrowers, no assurance can be given that such procedures or processes will

Substantially all of the operations of the Company’s subsidiaries are conducted afford adequate protection against such risks.
in leased premises. Most of the operating leases are for a three-year period with Commitments to fund loans involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk
renewal options and provide for fixed monthly rentals. and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the financial

Future minimum lease commitments at April 30, 2004 are as follows: statements. Credit risk is mitigated by the Company’s evaluation of the
creditworthiness of potential borrowers on a case-by-case basis.

(in 000s)
Risks to the stability of Mortgage Operations include external events impacting

2005 $ 199,292 the asset-backed securities market, such as the level of and fluctuations in interest
2006 150,441 rates, real estate and other asset values, changes in the securitization market and
2007 107,944 competition.
2008 56,694
2009 34,915
2010 and beyond 48,597

$ 597,883

N O T E 2 0 :  L I T I G AT I O N  C O M M I T M E N T S  A N D  C O N T I N G E N C I E S
The Company has been involved in a number of RAL class actions and putative sustain their burden of showing that the settlement was fair. The judge
RAL class action cases since 1990. Although the Company has successfully subsequently appointed new counsel for the plaintiffs who filed an amended
defended many such cases, it incurred a pretax expense of $43.5 million in fiscal complaint and a motion for partial summary judgment. In March 2004, the court
year 2003 in connection with the settlement of one such case. Several of these either dismissed or decertified all of the plaintiffs’ claims other than part of one
cases are still pending and the amounts claimed in some of them is very count alleging violations of the racketeering and conspiracy provision of the
substantial. To avoid the uncertainty of litigation and the diversion of resources Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations act. The Company intends to
and personnel resulting from the lawsuits, the Company, the lending bank, and the continue defending the case and the remaining RAL class action litigation
plaintiffs in the case Joel E. Zawikowski, et al. v. Beneficial National Bank, H&R vigorously, but there are no assurances as to their outcome. We have accrued our
Block, Inc., et al. (renamed Lynne A. Carnegie, et al. v. H&R Block, Inc., et al.), best estimate of the probable loss related to the RAL cases.
Case No. 98-C-2178 in the United States District Court for Northern Illinois, had The Company and certain of its current and former officers and directors are
agreed to a settlement class and a settlement of RAL-related claims on a named defendants in litigation entitled Paul White, et al. v. H&R Block, et al.,

nationwide basis. Under that settlement, the Company and the lending bank consolidated Case Numbers 02CV8965, 02CV9661, 02CV9682 and 02CV9830
agreed to each pay $12.5 million toward a $25.0 million settlement fund for the pending in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York
benefit of the class members. The settlement was approved by the District Court since the third quarter of fiscal year 2003. The respective named plaintiffs seek to
in February 2001. Certain class members who had objected to the settlement represent a class of shareholders who purchased the Company’s stock between
appealed the order approving the settlement to the Seventh Circuit Court of November 8, 1997 and November 6, 2002, and allege that the defendants violated
Appeals. In April 2002, the Court of Appeals reversed the District Court’s order Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
approving the settlement and remanded the matter back to the District Court for thereunder by failing to disclose to shareholders various cases in which the
further consideration of the fairness and adequacy of the proposed settlement by Company had been sued regarding the RAL program, by failing to set adequate
a new District Court judge. In April 2003, the District Court judge declined to reserves for those cases, and by failing to disclose the supposed implications of
approve the $25.0 million settlement, finding that counsel for the settlement those cases for the future of the RAL program. The four securities law cases were
plaintiffs had been inadequate representatives of the plaintiff class and failed to all assigned to the same judge and consolidated for pre-trial matters. A
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consolidated complaint was filed in March 2003 and the defendants responded by claimed in these claims and lawsuits are substantial in some instances, and the
filing a motion to dismiss in April 2003. In response to defendants’ motion to ultimate liability with respect to such litigation and claims is difficult to predict.
dismiss, the plaintiffs informed defendants that they wished further to amend The Company’s management considers these cases to be ordinary, routine
their complaint. Defendants consented to the filing of an amended complaint as a litigation incidental to its business, believes the Company and its subsidiaries
pleading matter, the plaintiffs filed the amended complaint, and the defendants have meritorious defenses to each of them and is defending, or intends to defend,
filed a motion to dismiss it in August 2003. The Company believes the claims in them vigorously. While management cannot provide assurance the Company and
these actions are without merit and intends to defend them vigorously. its subsidiaries will ultimately prevail in each instance, management believes that

In addition to the aforementioned cases, the Company and its subsidiaries have amounts, if any, required to be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries in the
from time to time been parties to claims and lawsuits arising out of such discharge of liabilities or settlements will not have a material adverse effect on the
subsidiaries’ business operations, including other claims and lawsuits relating to Company’s consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.
RALs, and claims and lawsuits concerning the preparation of customers’ income Regardless of outcome, claims and litigation can adversely affect the Company
tax returns, the electronic filing of income tax returns, the fees charged customers and its subsidiaries due to defense costs, diversion of management and publicity
for various services, the Peace of Mind guarantee program associated with related to such matters.
income tax return preparation services, the Express IRA program, relationships It is the Company’s policy to accrue for amounts related to legal matters if it is
with franchisees, contract disputes and civil actions, arbitrations, regulatory probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount is reasonably estimable.
inquiries and class actions arising out of our business as a broker-dealer. Such Many of the various legal proceedings are covered in whole, or in part, by
lawsuits include actions by individual plaintiffs, as well as cases in which insurance.
plaintiffs seek to represent a class of similarly situated customers. The amounts

N O T E  2 1 :  S E G M E N T I N F O R M AT I O N
The principal business activity of the Company’s operating subsidiaries is offers services through offices located throughout the United States. Revenues of
providing tax and financial services and products to the general public. this segment are seasonal in nature.
Management has determined the reportable segments identified below according Investment Services: This segment is primarily engaged in offering
to types of services offered, geographic locations in which operations are investment services and securities products through H&R Block Financial
conducted, and the manner in which operational decisions are made. The Advisors, Inc., a full-service securities broker, to the general public. Investment
Company operates in the following reportable segments: advice and services are primarily offered through H&R Block Financial Advisors

U.S. Tax Operations: This segment is primarily engaged in providing tax branch offices.
return preparation, filing and related services and products in the United States. International Tax Operations: This segment is primarily engaged in
Segment revenues include fees earned for tax-related services performed at providing local tax return preparation, filing, and related services to the general
company-owned tax offices, royalties from franchise offices, sales of tax public in Canada, Australia and the United Kingdom. In addition, International Tax
preparation and other software, fees from online tax preparation, and payments Operations prepares U.S. tax returns for U.S. citizens living abroad. Tax-related
related to RALs. This segment includes the Company’s tax preparation software – service revenues include fees from company-owned tax offices and royalties from
TaxCut˛ from H&R Block, and other personal productivity software offered to the franchised offices. Revenues of this segment are seasonal in nature. The majority
general public, and offers online do-it-yourself-tax preparation, online tax advice of the foreign countries in which subsidiaries of the Company operate, which are
to the general public through the www.hrblock.com website and online drop-off individually immaterial, are included within this segment.
(whereby the client fills out an online tax organizer and sends it to a tax Corporate Operations: This segment consists primarily of corporate support
professional for preparation). Revenues of this segment are seasonal in nature. departments that provide services to the Company’s operating segments. These

Mortgage Operations: This segment is primarily engaged in the origination support departments consist of marketing, information technology, facilities,
of non-prime mortgage loans, sales and securitizations of mortgage assets and human resources, executive, legal, finance, government relations and corporate
servicing of non-prime loans in the United States. This segment mainly offers, communications. These support department costs are largely allocated to the
through a network of mortgage brokers, a flexible product line to borrowers who Company’s operating segments. The Company’s captive insurance, franchise
are creditworthy but do not meet traditional underwriting criteria. Prime financing and small business initiative subsidiaries are also included within this
mortgage loan products, as well as the same flexible product line available segment.
through brokers, are offered through H&R Block Mortgage Corporation retail Identifiable assets: Identifiable assets are those assets, including goodwill
offices and some other retail offices. and intangible assets, associated with each reportable segment. The remaining

Business Services: This segment offers middle-market companies accounting, assets are classified as corporate assets and consist primarily of cash, marketable
tax and consulting services, wealth management, retirement resources, payroll securities and equipment.
services, corporate finance, and financial process outsourcing. This segment
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(in 000s)Information concerning the Company’s operations by reportable segment as of
and for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows: Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES:(in 000s)

U.S. Tax Operations $ 46,729 $ 62,383 $ 58,683Year ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
Mortgage Operations 28,176 38,204 23,087

REVENUES: Business Services 18,003 15,248 10,676
U.S. Tax Operations $ 2,093,617 $ 1,861,681 $ 1,831,274 Investment Services 14,278 15,562 10,268
Mortgage Operations 1,281,399 1,165,411 702,333 International Tax Operations 3,475 3,086 4,407
Business Services 499,210 434,140 416,926 Corporate Operations 16,912 16,414 4,654
Investment Services 229,470 200,794 250,685

$ 127,573 $ 150,897 $ 111,775International Tax Operations 97,560 85,082 78,710
Corporate Operations 4,314 (651) 5,773 IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS:

U.S. Tax Operations $ 622,884 $ 281,340 $ 269,476$ 4,205,570 $ 3,746,457 $ 3,285,701
Mortgage Operations 1,200,928 1,320,233 1,387,774

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE Business Services 636,492 674,566 665,018
TAXES: Investment Services 1,685,190 1,489,297 1,656,469
U.S. Tax Operations $ 627,592 $ 547,078 $ 533,468 International Tax Operations 40,390 33,142 47,820
Mortgage Operations 678,261 693,950 339,388 Corporate Operations 1,194,142 968,730 358,083
Business Services 19,321 (14,118) 22,716

$ 5,380,026 $ 4,767,308 $ 4,384,640Investment Services (64,446) (128,292) (54,862)
International Tax Operations 11,097 10,464 7,093
Corporate Operations (107,668) (122,005) (130,963)

$ 1,164,157 $ 987,077 $ 716,840

DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION:
U.S. Tax Operations $ 73,029 $ 58,131 $ 59,258
Mortgage Operations 24,428 21,703 14,753
Business Services 23,104 23,134 21,390
Investment Services 47,285 53,984 52,182
International Tax Operations 3,250 3,356 4,854
Corporate Operations 942 1,513 2,949

$ 172,038 $ 161,821 $ 155,386

Goodwill impairments:
Business Services – 11,777 –
Investment Services – 24,000 –

– 35,777 –

$ 172,038 $ 197,598 $ 155,386

59 –



H&R  BLOCK – Fo rm  10 -K

N O T E  2 2 :  Q U A R T E R LY  F I N A N C I A L  D ATA  ( U N A U D I T E D )

(in 000s, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year 2004 Quarter Ended April 30, 2004 January 31, 2004 October 31, 2003 July 31, 2003 Total

Revenues $ 2,191,793 $ 959,541 $ 562,912 $ 491,324 $ 4,205,570

Income before taxes 952,074 176,120 17,134 18,829 1,164,157
Income taxes 376,439 69,394 6,758 7,310 459,901

Net income before change in accounting principle 575,635 106,726 10,376 11,519 704,256
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle – – – (6,359) (6,359)

Net income $ 575,635 $ 106,726 $ 10,376 $ 5,160 $ 697,897

Basic earnings per share:
Before change in accounting principle $ 3.30 $ .60 $ .06 $ .06 $ 3.98
Net income 3.30 .60 .06 .03 3.94

Diluted earnings per share:
Before change in accounting principle $ 3.23 $ .59 $ .06 $ .06 $ 3.90
Net income 3.23 .59 .06 .03 3.86

Dividends per share $ .20 $ .20 $ .20 $ .18 $ .78
Stock price range:
High $ 61.00 $ 60.18 $ 48.36 $ 46.00 $ 61.00
Low 44.50 47.14 40.55 36.30 36.30

(in 000s, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year 2003 Quarter Ended April 30, 2003 January 31, 2003 October 31, 2002 July 31, 2002 Total

Revenues $ 1,909,755 $ 949,272 $ 465,041 $ 422,389 $ 3,746,457

Income (loss) before taxes (benefit) 842,294 222,934 (62,245) (15,906) 987,077
Income taxes (benefit) 347,652 90,621 (24,898) (6,362) 407,013

Net income (loss) $ 494,642 $ 132,313 $ (37,347) $ (9,544) $ 580,064

Basic earnings per share $ 2.76 $ .74 $ (.21) $ (.05) $ 3.23
Diluted earnings per share 2.71 .73 (.21) (.05) 3.15
Dividends per share $ .18 $ .18 $ .18 $ .16 $ .70
Stock price range:
High $ 44.35 $ 43.05 $ 53.15 $ 48.28 $ 53.15
Low 35.47 30.74 37.45 40.00 30.74

Quarterly revenues for fiscal year 2004 and 2003 in the table above have been The accumulation of four quarters in fiscal years 2004 and 2003 for earnings per
adjusted from the reported amounts on Form 10-Q. Reclassifications between share may not equal the related per share amounts for the years ended April 30,
revenues and expenses were made in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004 which 2004 and 2003 due to the repurchase of treasury shares, the timing of the exercise
related to previous quarters in fiscal year 2004. The prior year quarters were of stock options, and the antidilutive effect of stock options in the first two
adjusted to conform to the current period presentation. Net income did not quarters.
change in any quarter as a result of these adjustments. Additionally, upon
adoption of EITF 00-21 in the second quarter of fiscal year 2004, the first quarter
results were restated.

N O T E  2 3 :  C O N D E N S E D  C O N S O L I D AT I N G  F I N A N C I A L  S TAT E M E N T S
Block Financial Corporation (‘‘BFC’’) is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of These condensed consolidating financial statements have been prepared using
the Company. BFC is the Issuer and the Company is the Guarantor of the the equity method of accounting. Income of subsidiaries is, therefore, reflected in
$250.0 million 63/4% Senior Notes issued on October 21, 1997 and of the the Company’s investment in subsidiaries account. The elimination entries
$500.0 million 81/2% Senior Notes issued on April 13, 2000. The Company’s eliminate investments in subsidiaries, related stockholder’s equity and other
guarantee is full and unconditional. The following condensed consolidating intercompany balances and transactions.
financial statements present separate information for BFC, the Company and for
the Company’s other subsidiaries, and should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.
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Condensed Consolidating Income Statements

(in 000s)

H&R Block, Inc. BFC Other Consolidated
Year Ended April 30, 2004 (Guarantor) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations H&R Block

Total revenues $ – $ 1,802,461 $ 2,404,669 $ (1,560) $ 4,205,570

Expenses:
Compensation & benefits – 465,839 1,144,544 (280) 1,610,103
Occupancy & equipment – 79,399 305,226 (3) 384,622
Interest – 45,580 38,976 – 84,556
Depreciation & amortization – 72,482 99,556 – 172,038
Marketing & advertising – 42,664 146,117 (464) 188,317
Supplies, freight & postage – 19,555 69,634 – 89,189
Other – 382,073 140,809 (440) 522,442

– 1,107,592 1,944,862 (1,187) 3,051,267

Operating income – 694,869 459,807 (373) 1,154,303
Other income, net 1,164,157 – 9,854 (1,164,157) 9,854

Income before taxes 1,164,157 694,869 469,661 (1,164,530) 1,164,157
Income taxes 459,901 280,956 179,092 (460,048) 459,901

Income before change in accounting 704,256 413,913 290,569 (704,482) 704,256
Cumulative effect of change in accounting (6,359) – (6,359) 6,359 (6,359)

Net income $ 697,897 $ 413,913 $ 284,210 $ (698,123) $ 697,897

(in 000s)

H&R Block, Inc. BFC Other Consolidated
Year Ended April 30, 2003 (Guarantor) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations H&R Block

Total revenues $ – $ 1,567,917 $ 2,180,009 $ (1,469) $ 3,746,457

Expenses:
Compensation & benefits – 391,603 995,867 261 1,387,731
Occupancy & equipment – 73,837 272,123 – 345,960
Interest – 62,294 30,350 – 92,644
Depreciation & amortization – 101,613 95,985 – 197,598
Marketing & advertising – 34,612 117,110 (875) 150,847
Supplies, freight & postage – 21,717 67,031 – 88,748
Other – 256,004 247,518 (835) 502,687

– 941,680 1,825,984 (1,449) 2,766,215

Operating income – 626,237 354,025 (20) 980,242
Other income, net 987,077 – 6,835 (987,077) 6,835

Income before taxes 987,077 626,237 360,860 (987,097) 987,077
Income taxes 407,013 265,079 141,926 (407,005) 407,013

Net income $ 580,064 $ 361,158 $ 218,934 $ (580,092) $ 580,064
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(in 000s)

H&R Block, Inc. BFC Other Consolidated
Year Ended April 30, 2002 (Guarantor) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations H&R Block

Total revenues $ – $ 1,187,955 $ 2,112,438 $ (14,692) $ 3,285,701

Expenses:
Compensation & benefits – 323,600 974,622 (63) 1,298,159
Occupancy & equipment – 65,305 240,015 67 305,387
Interest – 100,800 15,341 – 116,141
Depreciation & amortization – 69,497 85,889 – 155,386
Marketing & advertising – 20,642 136,342 (1,255) 155,729
Supplies, freight & postage – 15,000 60,804 (94) 75,710
Other – 291,986 184,993 (13,218) 463,761

– 886,830 1,698,006 (14,563) 2,570,273

Operating income – 301,125 414,432 (129) 715,428
Other income, net 716,840 (2,028) 3,440 (716,840) 1,412

Income before taxes 716,840 299,097 417,872 (716,969) 716,840
Income taxes 282,435 123,884 158,602 (282,486) 282,435

Net income $ 434,405 $ 175,213 $ 259,270 $ (434,483) $ 434,405

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in 000s)

H&R Block, Inc. BFC Other Consolidated
April 30, 2004 (Guarantor) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations H&R Block

Cash & cash equivalents $ – $ 132,076 $ 939,600 $ – $ 1,071,676
Cash & cash equivalents – restricted – 532,201 13,227 – 545,428
Receivables from customers, brokers and dealers, net – 625,076 – – 625,076
Receivables, net 180 168,879 178,851 – 347,910
Intangible assets and goodwill, net – 461,791 823,456 – 1,285,247
Investments in subsidiaries 4,291,693 205 297 (4,291,693) 502
Other assets (145) 1,115,435 389,270 (373) 1,504,187

Total assets $ 4,291,728 $ 3,035,663 $ 2,344,701 $ (4,292,066) $ 5,380,026

Accounts payable to customers, brokers and dealers $ – $ 1,065,793 $ – $ – $ 1,065,793
Long-term debt – 498,225 47,586 – 545,811
Other liabilities 15,879 509,151 1,345,822 561 1,871,413
Net intercompany advances 2,378,840 (327,834) (2,050,445) (561) –
Stockholders’ equity 1,897,009 1,290,328 3,001,738 (4,292,066) 1,897,009

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 4,291,728 $ 3,035,663 $ 2,344,701 $ (4,292,066) $ 5,380,026
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(in 000s)

H&R Block, Inc. BFC Other Consolidated
April 30, 2003 (Guarantor) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations H&R Block

Cash & cash equivalents $ – $ 180,181 $ 695,172 $ – $ 875,353
Cash & cash equivalents – restricted – 420,787 17,455 – 438,242
Receivables from customers, brokers and dealers, net – 517,037 – – 517,037
Receivables, net 168 171,612 231,417 – 403,197
Intangible assets and goodwill, net – 491,091 564,989 – 1,056,080
Investments in subsidiaries 3,546,734 215 1,105 (3,546,734) 1,320
Other assets (1,321) 1,182,521 293,930 949 1,476,079

Total assets $ 3,545,581 $ 2,963,444 $ 1,804,068 $ (3,545,785) $ 4,767,308

Accounts payable to customers, brokers and dealers $ – $ 862,694 $ – $ – $ 862,694
Long-term debt – 747,550 74,752 – 822,302
Other liabilities 2,654 360,125 1,055,860 (36) 1,418,603
Net intercompany advances 1,879,218 125,627 (2,005,346) 501 –
Stockholders’ equity 1,663,709 867,448 2,678,802 (3,546,250) 1,663,709

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 3,545,581 $ 2,963,444 $ 1,804,068 $ (3,545,785) $ 4,767,308

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

(in 000s)

H&R Block, Inc. BFC Other Consolidated
Year Ended April 30, 2004 (Guarantor) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations H&R Block

Net cash provided by operating activities: $ 64,782 $ 184,949 $ 677,076 $ – $ 926,807

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities – – (11,434) – (11,434)
Cash received on residual interests – 193,606 – – 193,606
Sales of available-for-sale securities – 53,391 15,410 – 68,801
Purchases of property & equipment, net – (39,229) (88,344) – (127,573)
Payments made for business acquisitions – – (280,865) – (280,865)
Net intercompany advances 473,521 – – (473,521) –
Other, net – 12,655 13,677 – 26,332

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 473,521 220,423 (351,556) (473,521) (131,133)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of commercial paper – (4,618,853) – – (4,618,853)
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper – 4,618,853 – – 4,618,853
Payments on acquisition debt – – (59,003) – (59,003)
Dividends paid (138,397) – – – (138,397)
Acquisition of treasury shares (519,862) – – – (519,862)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 119,956 – – – 119,956
Net intercompany advances – (453,477) (20,044) 473,521 –
Other, net – – (2,045) – (2,045)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (538,303) (453,477) (81,092) 473,521 (599,351)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents – (48,105) 244,428 – 196,323
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year – 180,181 695,172 – 875,353

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ – $ 132,076 $ 939,600 $ – $ 1,071,676
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(in 000s)

H&R Block, Inc. BFC Other Consolidated
Year Ended April 30, 2003 (Guarantor) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations H&R Block

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 36,560 $ 140,617 $ 513,648 $ – $ 690,825

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities – – (14,614) – (14,614)
Maturities of available-for-sale securities – 140,795 – – 140,795
Sales of available-for-sale securities – 142,486 14,081 – 156,567
Purchases of property & equipment, net – (37,999) (112,898) – (150,897)
Payments made for business acquisitions – – (26,408) – (26,408)
Net intercompany advances 280,583 – – (280,583) –
Other, net – (1,480) 21,376 – 19,896

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 280,583 243,802 (118,463) (280,583) 125,339

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of commercial paper – (9,925,516) – – (9,925,516)
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper – 9,925,516 – – 9,925,516
Payments on acquisition debt – – (57,469) – (57,469)
Dividends paid (125,898) – – – (125,898)
Acquisition of treasury shares (317,570) – – – (317,570)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 126,325 – – – 126,325
Net intercompany advances – (402,197) 121,614 280,583 –
Other, net – – (2,344) – (2,344)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (317,143) (402,197) 61,801 280,583 (376,956)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents – (17,778) 456,986 – 439,208
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year – 197,959 238,186 – 436,145

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ – $ 180,181 $ 695,172 $ – $ 875,353

(in 000s)

H&R Block, Inc. BFC Other Consolidated
Year Ended April 30, 2002 (Guarantor) (Issuer) Subsidiaries Eliminations H&R Block

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 58,927 $ 256,188 $ 426,331 $ – $ 741,446

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities – – (7,241) – (7,241)
Maturities of available-for-sale securities – 67,070 8,250 – 75,320
Sales of available-for-sale securities – – 23,173 – 23,173
Purchases of property & equipment, net – (36,434) (75,341) – (111,775)
Payments made for business acquisitions – – (46,738) – (46,738)
Net intercompany advances 324,503 – – (324,503) –
Other, net – (4,069) 12,297 – 8,228

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 324,503 26,567 (85,600) (324,503) (59,033)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of commercial paper – (10,622,011) – – (10,622,011)
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper – 10,622,011 – – 10,622,011
Payments on acquisition debt – – (50,594) – (50,594)
Dividends paid (115,725) – – – (115,725)
Acquisition of treasury shares (462,938) – – – (462,938)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 195,233 – – – 195,233
Net intercompany advances – (167,738) (156,765) 324,503 –
Other, net – – 140 – 140

Net cash used in financing activities (383,430) (167,738) (207,219) 324,503 (433,884)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents – 115,017 133,512 – 248,529
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year – 82,942 104,674 – 187,616

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ – $ 197,959 $ 238,186 $ – $ 436,145
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I T E M  9 . C H A N G E S I N A N D D I S A G R E E M E N T S W I T H A C C O U N TA N T S O N A C C O U N T I N G A N D F I N A N C I A L D I S C L O S U R E
The information called for by this item regarding the change in independent in Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) in the current
accountants following completion of the audit of our financial statements for the reports on Form 8-K dated May 12, 2003 and July 10, 2003 and Form 8-K/A dated
fiscal year ended April 30, 2003 was previously reported (as such term is defined May 12, 2003.

I T E M  9 A . C O N T R O L S  A N D  P R O C E D U R E S
Disclosures controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective, maturing control system,
ensuring that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as this Form 10-K, is recorded, As of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K, we evaluated the
processed, summarized and reported in accordance with the SEC’s rule. effectiveness of the design and operation of our Disclosure Controls. The controls
Disclosure controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such evaluation was done under the supervision and with the participation of
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the management, including our CEO and Principal Accounting Officer.
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer or persons performing similar The evaluation of our Disclosure Controls included a review of the controls’
functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure. objectives and design, our implementation of the controls and the effect of the

Our Disclosure Controls were designed to provide reasonable assurance that controls on the information generated for the use in this Form 10-K. In the course
the controls and procedures would meet their objectives. Our management, of the controls evaluation, we identified a series of control weaknesses related to
including the CEO and Principal Accounting Officer, does not expect that our our corporate tax accounting function. These weaknesses relate specifically to the
Disclosure Controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no reconciliation and level of detailed support of both current and deferred income
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of tax accounts. We also determined an acceleration of taxable income was
achieving the designed control objectives and management is required to apply its warranted in one of our segments, however, there was no change to our total
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and income tax provision. Upon identification of these control weaknesses, immediate
procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no corrective action was undertaken. Our efforts to strengthen financial and internal
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and controls continue. We expect these efforts to be completed by the end of fiscal
instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent year 2005.
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, Based on this evaluation, other than the item described above, our CEO and
and that breakdowns can occur because of simply error or mistake. Additionally, Principal Accounting Officer have concluded these controls are effective. There
controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by have been no significant changes in internal controls, or in other factors, which
collusions of two or more people, or by management override of the control. would significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of evaluation.

PA RT  I I I

I T E M  1 0 . D I R E C T O R S A N D E X E C U T I V E O F F I C E R S O F T H E R E G I S T R A N T
The following information appearing in our definitive proxy statement, to be filed We have adopted a code of business ethics and conduct that applies to our
no later than 120 days after April 30, 2004, is incorporated herein by reference: directors, officers and employees, including our chief executive officer, chief

� Information appearing under the heading ‘‘Election of Directors’’ financial officer, principal accounting officer and persons performing similar
� Information appearing under the heading ‘‘Section 16(a) Beneficial functions. A copy of the code of business ethics and conduct is available on our

Ownership Reporting Compliance’’ website at www.hrblock.com.

� Information appearing under the heading ‘‘Board of Directors’ Meetings and
Committees’’ regarding identification of the Audit Committee and Audit
Committee financial experts.
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Information about our executive officers as of May 15, 2004 is as follows:

Name, age Current Position Business Experience Since May 1, 1999

Mark A. Ernst, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Chairman of the Board of Directors since September 2002; Chief Executive Officer since
age 46 Executive Officer January 2001; President of the Company since September 1999; Chief Operating Officer from

September 1998 through December 2000; Executive Vice President from September 1998
until September 1999. Mr. Ernst has been a Member of the Board of Directors since
September 1999.

Jeffery W. Yabuki, Executive Vice President and Chief Chief Operating Officer since April 2002; Executive Vice President since October 2000;
age 44 Operating Officer President, H&R Block Services, Inc. since October 2000; President, H&R Block International

from September 1999 until October 2000; President and Chief Executive Officer of American
Express Tax & Business Services, Inc., from 1998 to September 1999.

Melanie K. Coleman, Vice President and Corporate Controller Vice President and Corporate Controller since October 2002; Assistant Vice President and
age 39 Assistant Controller at Sprint Corporation (‘‘Sprint’’), from December 2000 until October

2002; Executive Assistant to the Chief Financial Officer of Sprint from September 1999 until
December 2000; Director, Capital Asset Accounting at Sprint from October 1998 until
September 1999.

Robert E. Dubrish, President and Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Executive Officer, Option One Mortgage Corporation, since March 1996.
age 52 Option One Mortgage Corporation

Brad C. Iversen, Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since September 2003; Founded
age 54 Officer Catamount Marketing in 2002; Executive Vice President and Director of Marketing at Bank

One Corporation from 1997 to 2002.

Linda M. McDougall, Vice President, Communications Vice President, Communications since July 1999; Assistant Vice President, Communications
age 51 from November 1995 through June 1999.

Timothy R. Mertz, Vice President, Corporate Tax Vice President, Corporate Tax since October 2000; Vice President of Treasury for Payless
age 53 Cashways, Inc., from September 1998 through September 2000.

Brian L. Nygaard, President and Chief Executive Officer, H&R President and Chief Executive Officer, H&R Block Financial Advisors, Inc., since November
age 46 Block Financial Advisors, Inc. 2001; President, ING Advisors Network, ING Group, from October 2000 until October 2001;

Chief Operating Officer, Advisors Network, ING Advisors Network, from October 1999 until
October 2000; Senior Vice President, Strategic Marketing, ING Advisors Network, from May
1999 until October 1999.

Tammy S. Serati, Senior Vice President, Human Resources Senior Vice President, Human Resources since December 2002; Vice President, Human
age 45 Resources Corporate Staffs, for Monsanto Agricultural Company, from May 2000 through

November 2002; Vice President, Human Resources, Monsanto Nutrition & Consumer Sector,
from January 1997 through April 2000.

Becky S. Shulman, Vice President and Treasurer Vice President and Treasurer since September 2001; Chief Investment Officer of U.S. Central
age 39 Credit Union, from September 1998 until August 2001.

Nicholas J. Spaeth, Senior Vice President and Chief Legal Senior Vice President and Chief Legal Officer since February 2004; Senior Vice President,
age 54 Officer General Counsel and Secretary of Intuit, Inc. from August 2003 to February 2004; Senior Vice

President, General Counsel and Secretary, GE Employers Reinsurance Corporation from
September 2000 until August 2003; Partner at Cooley Godward LLP from March 1998 until
September 2000.

Steven Tait, President, RSM McGladrey Business President, RSM McGladrey Business Services, Inc. since April 2003; Executive Vice President,
age 44 Services, Inc. Sales & Client Operations, Gartner, Inc., from June 2001 through March 2003; Senior Vice

President, Sales and Operations at Gartner, Inc. from July 2000 until May 2001; President and
Chief Executive Officer of Xerox Connect, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xerox Corporation,
from November 1999 until June 2000; Vice President, Xerox Global Services/VP Xerox Offsite
Document Management Services, from September 1998 until October 1999.
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Name, age Current Position Business Experience Since May 1, 1999

Robert A. Weinberger, Vice President, Government Relations Vice President, Government Relations, since March 1996.
age 60

Bret G. Wilson, Vice President and Secretary Vice President and Secretary since October 2002; Vice President, Corporate Development and
age 45 Risk Management from October 2000 until October 2002; Vice President, Corporate Planning

and Development from September 1999 until October 2000; Vice President, Corporate
Development, from December 1997 until September 1999.

I T E M  1 1 . E X E C U T I V E C O M P E N S AT I O N
The information called for by this item is contained in our definitive proxy 2004, in the sections entitled ‘‘Director Compensation’’ and ‘‘Compensation of
statement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after April 30, Executive Officers,’’ and is incorporated herein by reference.

I T E M  1 2 . S E C U R I T Y O W N E R S H I P O F C E R TA I N B E N E F I C I A L O W N E R S A N D M A N A G E M E N T A N D R E L AT E D S T O C K H O L D E R
M AT T E R S

The information called for by this item is contained in our definitive proxy ‘‘Information Regarding Security Holders,’’ and is incorporated herein by
statement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after April 30, reference.
2004, in the section titled ‘‘Equity Compensation Plans’’ and in the section titled

I T E M  1 3 . C E R TA I N R E L AT I O N S H I P S A N D R E L AT E D T R A N S A C T I O N S
The information called for by this item is contained in our definitive proxy 2004, in the section titled ‘‘Employee Agreements, Change in Control and Other
statement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A no later than 120 days after April 30, Arrangements,’’ and is incorporated herein by reference.

I T E M  1 4 . P R I N C I PA L A C C O U N T I N G F E E S A N D S E R V I C E S
The information called for by this item is contained in our definitive proxy
statement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A no later than 120 days after April 30,
2004, in the section titled ‘‘Audit Fees,’’ and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PA RT  I V

I T E M  1 5 . E X H I B I T S , F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S C H E D U L E S , A N D R E P O R T S O N F O R M  8 - K
(a) Documents filed as part of this Report:

1. The following financial statements appearing in Item 8: ‘‘Consolidated Income Statements;’’ ‘‘Consolidated Balance Sheets;’’ ‘‘Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows;’’ and ‘‘Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity.’’

2. Financial Statement Schedule II – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts with the related Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms. These will be
filed with the SEC but will not be included in the printed version of the Annual Report to Shareholders.

3. Exhibits: The list of exhibits in the Exhibit Index to this Report is incorporated herein by reference. The following exhibits are required to be filed as exhibits to this
Form 10-K:

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of H&R Block, Inc., as amended and restated as of June 9, 2004.
10.16 Employment Agreement dated February 2, 2004 between HRB Management, Inc. and Nicholas J. Spaeth.
10.23 Severance and Release Agreement dated February 10, 2004 between HRB Management, Inc. and James H. Ingraham.
10.24 Termination Agreement dated April 16, 2004 between HRB Management, Inc. and Jeffrey G. Brandmaier.
12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges for the five years ended April 30, 2004.
21 Subsidiaries of the Company.
23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification by Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2 Certification by Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The exhibits will be filed with the SEC but will not be included in the printed version of the Annual Report to Shareholders.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

We filed on February 24, 2004 an amended report on Form 8-K/A dated May 12, 2003, with updated Item 4 disclosures as of and through the date of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP’s resignation (the termination date of the client/auditor relationship) as the Company’s independent accountants.

We filed on February 26, 2004 a report on Form 8-K dated February 24, 2004, reporting under Item 12, Results of Operations and Financial Condition, our issuance of
a press release regarding our results of operations for the fiscal quarter ended January 31, 2004.
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S I G N AT U R E S

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

H&R BLOCK, INC.

By /s/ MARK A. ERNST

Mark A. Ernst
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

July 2, 2004

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title

/s / MARK A. ERNST Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
 (principal executive officer)Mark A. Ernst

/s/ G. KENNETH BAUM Director

G. Kenneth Baum

/s/ THOMAS M. BLOCH Director

Thomas M. Bloch

/s/ DONNA R. ECTON Director

Donna R. Ecton

/s/ ROGER W. HALE Director

Roger W. Hale

/s/ TOM D. SEIP Director

Tom D. Seip

/s/ LOUIS W. SMITH Director

Louis W. Smith

/s/ RAYFORD WILKINS, JR. Director

Rayford Wilkins, Jr.

/s / MELANIE K. COLEMAN Vice President and Corporate Controller (principal accounting officer)

Melanie K. Coleman

(Signed as to each on June 9, 2004)
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E X H I B I T  I N D E X

The following exhibits are numbered in accordance with the Exhibit Table of Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of H&R Block, Inc., as amended, filed as 10.2 * The Company’s 2003 Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan, as amended and
Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended restated as of September 10, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
October 31, 2001, file number 1-6089, are incorporated herein by reference. quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2003, file

number 1-6089, is incorporated by reference.3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation effective October 15, 2001,
filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the 10.3 * The H&R Block Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, as Amended and
quarter ended October 31, 2001, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by Restated effective July 1, 2002, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s annual
reference. report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002, file number 1-6089,

is incorporated by reference.3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of H&R Block, Inc., as amended and restated as of
June 9, 2004. 10.4 * The H&R Block Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives, as Amended and

Restated July 1, 2002, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s annual report on4.1 Indenture dated as of October 20, 1997, among H&R Block, Inc., Block Financial
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002, file number 1-6089, isCorporation and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee, filed as Exhibit 4(a) to the
incorporated by reference.Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31,

1997, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference. 10.5 * Amendment No. 1 to the H&R Block Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives,
as Amended and Restated, effective as of March 12, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.5 to4.2 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 18, 2000, among H&R Block, Inc.,
the company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30,Block Financial Corporation, Bankers Trust Company and the Bank of New York,
2003, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference.filed as Exhibit 4(a) to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K dated April 13,

2000, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference. 10.6 * The H&R Block Short-Term Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2000, file4.3 Form of 63/4% Senior Note due 2004 of Block Financial Corporation, filed on
number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference.October 23, 1997 as Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K, file

number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference. 10.7 * The Company’s 1989 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors, as amended
September 12, 2001, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s quarterly report on4.4 Form of 81/2% Senior Note due 2007 of Block Financial Corporation, filed as
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2001, file number 1-6089, isExhibit 4(b) to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K dated April 13, 2000,
incorporated herein by reference.file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference.

10.8 * The H&R Block Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors, as amended August 1,4.5 Copy of Rights Agreement dated March 25, 1998, between H&R Block, Inc. and
2001, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q forChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C., filed on July 22, 1998 as Exhibit 1 to
the quarter ended October 31, 2001, file number 1-6089, is incorporated hereinthe Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, file number 1-6089, is
by reference.incorporated herein by reference.

10.9 * The H&R Block, Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended August 1,4.6 Form of Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Participating
2001, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q forPreferred Stock of H&R Block, Inc., filed as Exhibit 4(e) to the Company’s annual
the quarter ended October 31, 2001, file number 1-6089, is incorporated hereinreport on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1995, file number 1-6089,
by reference.is incorporated by reference.

10.10 * The H&R Block, Inc. Executive Survivor Plan (as Amended and Restated) filed as4.7 Form of Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Designation, Preferences and
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarterRights of Participating Preferred Stock of H&R Block, Inc., filed as Exhibit 4(j) to the
ended October 31, 2000, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference.Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1998,

file number 1-6089, is incorporated by reference. 10.11 * First Amendment to the H&R Block, Inc. Executive Survivor Plan (as Amended and
Restated), filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for4.8 Form of Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Delayed Convertible
the fiscal year ended April 30, 2002, file number 1-6089, is incorporated byPreferred Stock of H&R Block, Inc., filed as Exhibit 4(f) to the Company’s annual
reference.report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1995, file number 1-6089,

is incorporated by reference.

10.1 * The Company’s 1993 Long-Term Executive Compensation Plan, as amended and
restated as of September 11, 2002, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2002, file
number 1-6089, is incorporated by reference.
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10.12 * Second Amendment to the H&R Block, Inc. Executive Survivor Plan (as Amended 10.23 * Severance and Release Agreement dated February 2, 2004 between HRB
and Restated), effective as of March 12, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Management, Inc. and James H. Ingraham.
company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003, 10.24 * Termination Agreement dated April 16, 2004 between HRB Management, Inc.
file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference. and Jeffrey G. Brandmaier.

10.13 * Employment Agreement dated July 16, 1998, between the Company and Mark A. 10.25 Second Amended and Restated Refund Anticipation Loan Operations Agreement
Ernst, filed as Exhibit 10(a) to the Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for dated as of June 9, 2003, between H&R Block Services, Inc., Household Tax
the quarter ended July 31, 1998, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by Masters, Inc. and Beneficial Franchise Company, filed as Exhibit 10.27 to the
reference. annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003, file number

10.14 * Amendment to Employment Agreement dated June 30, 2000, between HRB 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference.
Management, Inc. and Mark A. Ernst, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s 10.26 Third Amended and Restated Refund Anticipation Loan Participation Agreement
quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2000, file number 1- dated as of January 1, 2004, between Block Financial Corporation and Household
6089, is incorporated herein by reference. Tax Masters, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the

10.15 * Employment Agreement dated September 7, 1999, between HRB Management, quarter ended January 31, 2004, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by
Inc. and Jeffery W. Yabuki, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s quarterly report reference.
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2000, file number 1-6089, is 10.27 Agreement of Settlement dated March 31, 2003 by and between H&R Block, Inc.,
incorporated herein by reference. H&R Block and Associates L.P., H&R Block Tax Services, Inc., HRBO, Limited, H&R

10.16 * Employment Agreement dated as of February 2, 2004, between HRB Block of South Texas, Inc., HRB-Delaware, Inc., H&R Block, Ltd., HRBOI, Ltd.,
Management, Inc. and Nicholas J. Spaeth. HRBO III, Ltd., HRBOII, Inc., H&R Block of Dallas, Inc., H&R Block of Houston, Ltd.,

Houston Block, L.C., Block Management, Ltd., and STI-Block, L.C., and Ronnie10.17 * Employment Agreement dated September 2, 2003, between HRB Management,
and Nancy Haese, on behalf of themselves individually and on behalf of the ClassInc. and Brad C. Iversen, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s quarterly report
as defined in such Agreement, filed as Exhibit 10.29 to the annual report onon Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2004, file number 1-6089, is
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003, file number 1-6089, isincorporated herein by reference.
incorporated herein by reference.

10.18 * Employment Agreement between Option One Mortgage Corporation and
10.28 Credit and Guarantee Agreement dated as of August 12, 2003 among BlockRobert E. Dubrish, executed on February 9, 2002, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the

Financial Corporation, H&R Block, Inc., The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC, Bank ofCompany’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31,
America, N.A., JPMorgan Chase Bank, J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc. and other2002, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference.
lending parties thereto, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q

10.19 * Employment Agreement dated as of November 5, 2001, between H&R Block for the quarter ended July 31, 2003, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein
Financial Advisors, Inc. and Brian L. Nygaard, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the by reference.
Company’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31,

10.29 Settlement Agreement dated January 8, 2004 between (a) Herbert Dicker; HBD,2002, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference.
Inc.; Robert Hildorf; RKL, Inc.; Ray Jiruska; HRB, LLC; RLJ Enterprises, Inc.; DFJ

10.20 * Employment Agreement dated December 2, 2002 between HRB Management, Enterprises, Inc.; RRJ Enterprises, Inc.; DEJ Enterprises, Inc.; Moore Business
Inc. and Tammy S. Serati, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the quarterly report on Form Service, Inc.; T.J. Enterprises, Inc.; Block Mountain West, Inc.; Orr Enterprises
10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2003, file number 1-6089, is incorporated Limited Partnership; S.E. Iowa Business Services, Inc.; Taxsavers, Inc.; and JBW
herein by reference. Limited Partnership and (b) H&R Block, Inc.; Block Financial Corporation; HRB

10.21 * Employment Agreement dated as of April 1, 2003 between HRB Business Royalty, Inc.; H&R Block Tax Services, Inc.; and H&R Block Eastern Tax Services,
Services, Inc. and Steven Tait, filed as Exhibit 10.23 to the annual report on Form Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2003, file number 1-6089, is incorporated ended January 31, 2004, file number 1-6089, is incorporated herein by reference.
herein by reference.

10.22 * Separation Agreement dated September 4, 2003 between HRB Management, Inc.
and Frank J. Cotroneo, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s quarterly report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 2003, file number 1-6089, is
incorporated herein by reverence

* Indicates management contracts, compensatory plans or arrangements.
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World Headquarters: 4400 Main Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64111

Chief Legal Counsel: Nicholas J. Spaeth, Kansas City, Missouri 64111

Independent Auditors: KPMG LLP, Kansas City, Missouri 64106

Transfer Agent & Register: Mellon Investor Services LLC, 85 Challenger Road, Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660. www.melloninvestor.com

Annual Meeting: The annual meeting of shareholders of H&R Block Inc. will be held at the H&R Block City Stage at Union Station, 30 West Pershing Road, 

Kansas City, Missouri, at 9 a.m. Central Time, Wednesday, September 8, 2004. Upon written request, we will furnish without charge to our shareholders a copy

of our 2004 Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Requests should be directed to Investor Relations, 800-869-9220, ext. 2721, 

or by mail to 4400 Main Street, Kansas City, Missouri 64111.

www.hrblock.com 

Client photos and information included in this Annual Report appear courtesy of our clients, who have given their written consent.

H&R Block Inc. (www.hrblock.com) is a diversified company with subsidiaries that deliver tax

services and financial advice, investment and mortgage products and services, and business

accounting and consulting services. H&R Block empowers clients to make tax and financial decisions

by providing a unique combination of tax services, financial information and advice, and related

products and services. The company’s mission is to help clients achieve their financial objectives

by serving as their tax and financial partner. 

The world’s largest consumer tax services company, H&R Block in 2004 served 21.6 million clients

at more than 11,000 retail offices worldwide and with digital tax solutions. H&R Block is the only

tax company that offers clients, under a single brand, a choice or a blend of in-person services and

TaxCut® software and online solutions. H&R Block is the largest consumer tax company in the

U.S., Canada and Australia and also serves clients in the United Kingdom and nine other countries

and U.S. territories. 

When clients request more than basic financial advice, their H&R Block tax professional refers

them to H&R Block Financial Advisors Inc., which can assist them with a detailed investment

plan and investment services. H&R Block Financial Advisors, member NYSE, SIPC, employs

more than 1,000 financial advisors serving clients in more than 350 branch offices in the U.S. 

H&R Block Inc. is not a registered broker-dealer.

H&R Block Mortgage Corp. offers a full range of retail mortgage products. Option One Mortgage

Corp. offers wholesale mortgage products and other mortgage services through large financial

institutions and a network of more than 32,000 independent mortgage brokers. Option One

Mortgage Corp., the nation’s fifth largest non-prime lender, is recognized by rating agencies and

investors as a leader in best practices and client-focused services.

RSM McGladrey Business Services offers a wide range of services to mid-sized companies, including

business and tax consulting, wealth management, retirement resources, payroll services,

corporate finance and financial process outsourcing. Companies in the business services segment

include RSM McGladrey Inc., RSM McGladrey Business Solutions Inc., RSM McGladrey

Employer Services, RSM EquiCo Inc. and RSM McGladrey Financial Process Outsourcing, LLC. 
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